Who we are

We are a leading financial mutual employing over 6,000 people and serving
over 5 8 milllon customers with a range of financial products We are also
the UK's largest friendly soclety

When we started in 1843 our goal was to give financial security to more
than just a privileged few and for many decades we were most commonly
assoclated with providing a methed of saving to people of modest means
Today we follow a similar purpese, helping people to protect and provide

for the things they love, although on a much larger scale and through a wide
range of financial services including Insurance, investment and retirement
products We are currently the UK's number one brand for tnsurance and
Investments, according to the 2015 YouGov Brandindex Buzz Rankings

We offer our services direct to consumers, as well as through IFAs and
brokers, and through strategic partnerships with respected organisations
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£1.4bn

Capital resources

£72m

General insurance
operating profit

6,000

Employees

Group operating profit

£27/m

Mutual bonus

£491m

Life
operating profit

£195m £124m

Group profit before tax

3.8%

With-profits investment
performance

80%

Brand awareness

TN\

806%

Employee engagement

5.8m

Members and customers




Coodl, value,
3reaf values

Offering affordable well-designed
products but not at the expense
of doing the right thing.

Quick and easy to set up,

atter 6&/%3 with the same
company tor years I was surprised.
how competitive LI/= was. As T
also have life insurance with them
7 teel they are a trustworthy
campany to be wWith. Very pleased.

William from Durham
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£113_m

senchimark: 2.7% [ EEGEGNG

With-profits fund
investment return

Everything we do
revolves around

our members

LV=is a modern and leading financial mutual.
We were established in 1843 to help families
protect and provide for their dependents and
cherished possessions. LV= still has this aim
at the heart of its business today.

We are owned by, and run for the benefit of,

our members and are therefore different from
other organisations which may be owned by
shareholders, employees, private equity groups,
ar government We believe this difference 1s
Important In serving customers, engaging with
employees and to fulfil our primary goal of
creating long-term value for our members

Our members are customers who have certain
longerterm financtal products with us, such as life
Insurance, protection, Investment or retirement
polictes They have voting rights and can expect
to influence the key decisions in the Soctety

Returning value
to our with-profits
members

We have returned good value to our with-profits
members 1n 2015 through

¢ The investment returns achleved on

thelr polictes During 2015 the main LVFS
with-profits fund delivered good relative
performance for our with-profits members
with an absolute performance of 3 8%
This 1s 1 1% abaove the market benchmark
of 2 7% Performance has heen above
benchmark in four of the last five years

+ The vast majority of with-profits members

are eliglble to receive the LV= mutua! bonus
For 2015 this amounts to a 1% enhancement
to the eligible policies’ asset shares

(£27 million in total)

¢ The payouts that were paid to maturing
policies dunng the year These compare
well with our industry, with all nine of our
benchmarked payouts well above market
average and top quartile in five out of nine
cases Further details can be found on
page 8

Mutual Bonus

The LV= mutual bonus was launched in 2011 and
rewards eligible members for their ownership of
the Society The LV= board considers the financial
performance of the LV= trading businesses each
year along with i1ts current and projected financia!
strength to determine whether, at what level,

and tn what form, any mutual bonus should be
declared, and which members should be ehgible
to receive it Most eligible members will receive
the mutual bonus when their with-profits policy
matures or 15 cashed in The LV= mutual bonus
15 not a guaranteed benefit and 1s at the
discretion of the LV= board

Our performance in 2015 has enabled us

1o allocate a discretionary mutual bonus of

£27 mulion (2014 £24 mithon) We have applied
the mutual bonus by enhancing the asset share
of relevant policies

Since the launch of the mutual bonus in 2011,
LV= has allocated a total mutual bonus of
£113 million to eligible member policies




Qur Members 7

e rea//g does try to put
its members at the heart of
ez/ergfﬁfng and, is a/waqs /oak/hg

to explore new avenues of business.

Mary Quinn, member panellist since 2013

Dialogue with members

RECOMMENDED

With-profits policyholders’ bonuses

In addition to the LV= mutual bonus, we added
£113 million (2014 £108 million) of bonuses

to members’ with-profits policies during 2015
This increase reflects the increased level of
policies maturing, with bonus rates not matenally
changing year-on-year

We manage our with-profits fund and set bonus
rates with the aim of being fair to all policyholtders
invested in the fund When we decide bonus
rates we need to constder the policyholders who
will remain in the fund as well as those whose
policies mature or are surrendered We also

need to mantain the strength of the fund

and protect the long-term Interests of current

and future members

SoUBUIZA0Y 1oday 2188180
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Favourable payouts relative to the market

Lv= with-profits policyholders continue to benefit from excellent returns on their investments,
with equivalent annual rates of return for the pohicies listed below ranging from 4 0% to 9 1%,
which includes the mutual bonus

Conventional with-profits

Equivalent annual rate of
Policy Duration Policy Description Payout return over the full term

25 years @ Ordinary Branch £37,983 6 8%
Endowment

25 years® Industrial Branch £3,612 5.8%
Endowment

a Regular premium of £60 per month for a male aged 30 next birthgay at entry, maturing 01/03/2016
b Regular premium of £5 per four week period for a male aged 30 next birthday at entry matuning 01/03/2016

Unitised with-profits regular premium policies

Equivalent annual rate of
Policy Duration Policy Description Payout return over the full term

10 years ® Endowment £7,989 6 6%
15 years @ Endowment £14,606 6 2%
10 years ® Pension Policy £36,411 8 1%
15 years ® Pension Policy £61,953 6 9%

a Regular premum of £50 per month for a male aged 30 next birthday at entry matuning 01/03/2016
b Regular premium of £200 per month for a male reuring at age 65 on 01/03/2C16

Unitised with-profits bonds

Policy Policy Surrender value as Surrender value Effective return
Duration Description at 1 March 2016 a year ago over the year

5 years ? Flexible £654,190 £52,125 4 0%
Guarantee Bond
Cautious Series

2
As above, £56,905 £54,213 5 0%
but without
a guarantee
5 years ® Flexible £53,523 £51,217 4 5%

Guarantee Bond
Balanced Series

P
As above, £58,743 £55,195 6 4%
but without
a guarantee
5 years @ Flexible £52,276 £49,865 4 8%

Guarantee Bond
Managed Growth

As above, £60,284 £55,920 7 8%
but without
a guarantee

10 years b With Profits £19,549 £17,922 9 1%

Growth Bend
a Single premium of £45 000 for a male aged 30 exact at entry with a 5 year guaraniee surrendenng 01/03/2016
b Single premium of £10 000 for a maie aged 30 exact at entry surrendering 01/03/2016




Ousr Members

Going the extra mile for our
life and protection members

In 2015 we paid 99% of our life protection claims. totalling just over £65m in payments to customers
and members. This includes £9m to our 50 Plus customers. In line with the continuing increase in new
customers and members, and the increase in ¢claims, our team continues to grow $0 we ¢an continue
1o offer our award winning service (o every single customer. We're revamping the claims information
we host on our websites to make it easier for customers to understand what happens when they

make a claim. and we continue to seek customer feedback on how we can make improvements.

In addition to ensuring our members are treated fairly when claims are made on their policies.
we have made a number of significant enhancements to our producis and services.

50 Plus

In 2014 we introduced a paperless claims process and to date 82% (and rising) of 50 Plus claims
are agreed over the phone with the majoerity of customers receiving the money in their bank within
3 working days from the first time they made contact with us. This means that for those customers
using the money to pay for a funeral, the money arrives in their bank at the right time.

Critical lliness

In 2015 we reduced the time it takes for customers to receive their money to 4-6 weeks by putting in
place processes to speed up requesting and receiving the medical information needed to pay the claim.
Qur critical illness policies include free cover for chitdren from birth up 1o age 21 which accounted for
4% of our critical illiness claims.

Income Protection
The average length of time an Income Protection customer needed to claim for was 5 years 8 months,
demonstrating the imporiance and value of this type of financial protection.

In addition to paying Income Protection claims. we also offer on a case-by-case basis a return (o work
support service. Following a claim for an accident or injury, we helped customers return to work by gither
fast tracking them through to a specialist medical consultant or treatments such as physiotherapy.

and retraining for a new job.

Business Protection

In 2015 we launched our Business Protection range of policies aimed at small to medium sized
enterprises. To add value for our business protection customers we partnered with a firm of solicitors
to offer all policyholders access 1o LV= Business Care. LV= Business care is a 24/7 legal advice line
providing legal advice on a number of business areas including, employment law and health and safety
as well as commercial contracts and tenancy agreements.

) WINNER

Irvestment Lie & Pensens !

Moneyfacts
Award 2015
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Nicola and Jeremy's story

Crntical illness customers Nicola and

Jeremy were devastated when thetr son Sam
was diagnosed with Hodgkin’s Lymphoma
We have a short film of them talking about
how they coped when they found out,

and how LV= supported them dunng their
claim at LV com/nicola-and-jeremy

Nicola and Jeremy took out their LV=cntical
illness policy in February 2002 when Sam,
therr oldest son, was just 3 years old

When Sam was 14, they found a lump on

his neck, and when after a few weeks the
lump was still there, they booked a doctor's
appointment just to make sure everything
was ok Unfortunately things weren't ok and,
after a number of tests, Sam was diagnosed
with Hodgkin's Lymphoma (a rare cancer that
develops in the lymphatic system} From that
day onwards, all of their lives changed

Jeremy | think my stepfather came over
towards the end of January He said have you
got the LV= Iife policy document | brought it to
him and he had a iittle flick through He said
that there's a provision 10 the policy should
one of your children become sick

Nicola Insurance companies as a whole tend

to have that reputation of if they can get out of |
it they will So we thought, we’ll look mto 1t but ‘
we didn’t expect teo much to come from it

Jeremy i called up | was met with a very ‘
sympathetic response | received the claim

form very quickly | filled it sn and not long after

| was contacted by Helen who said that she |
was going to manage the claim for us and

{ just got the impression from speaking to her

that she was working for us, you know, with us

rather than against us It feit hke she wanted

to give us the money that we were entitled to

Nicola She sounded like she cared

Jeremy Very soon after that we were given
a cheque for £25,000

Thankfully, Sam 15 now in remission, and
Nicola and Jeremy have decided to keep therr
£25,000 payment aside for Sam for when

he 15 older

(:—Vergbodg thinks it's never going to happen to them and
we thought the same, but nat anymore, it happened, in

the blink of an eye ard, in a moment: everqz%/‘ng c/;a,nges.

Nicola and Jeremy, Critical iliness customers since 2002
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Our Members 11

I do get
a sense of pride
befng imvolved.

LU= s deﬁniz‘e/g

a difterent
type of rmutual
for alf the

ngﬁt reasons.

Mike Hannaway
Member of the panel
since 2004

Supporting our members

Dialogue with members

The LV= Member Panel 1s a group of around 40 members from a vanety of backgrounds who
meet with our Board and sentor leaders twice a year to challenge our performance and strategy
The purpose of the Member Panel is to learn from, and keep in touch, with our membership

It 1s an important forum in which to understand the needs of consumers and listen to their

feedback and views

Exclusive member benefits

Throughout our 173 year history we have existed to increase the value of our business for our
members and placed them at the heart of what we do As well as mutual bonus and excellent
payouts on their investments we also offer members other ways to benefit from thewr ownership

of the Society

Each of these henefits aligns to, and demonstrates, our overall goal, providing tangible support

and value to members

Member Care Line

The Member Care Line offers three very
different services Members can get free and
confidential legal advice, ranging from how to
challenge a parking ticket to advice on how to
resolve a nerghbourhood dispute Thousands
of members have found this facility extremely
useful and reassunng The Care Line also
allows members to speak to medical staff If
they are worned about a health condition and
they can even talk to a counsellor if they are
experiencing emotional distress, and need

a sympathetic ear

Member Support Fund

The Member Support Fund provides grants to
members in financial hardship and has helped
hundreds of members get back on their feet

in ttmes of financial difficulty Applcations

for financial support are reviewed by a small
committee of LV= members who approve
requests We understand that people can face
adversity, through no fault of their own, so this
fund s especially significant

Member Community Fund

We know that we already do a tremendous
amount for our local communities and causes
that our employees are keen to support

The aim of the Member Commumty Fund s

to give back to good causes that are important
to our members This fund allows members

to put forward a chanty, orgamsation or an
individual for £10,000 in order for us to make
a significant and lasting difference So far we
have helped community centres, homeless
shelters and individuals make a change for the
better Any member can nominate something
or someone that's important to them

Member Discounts

Another financial reward which 1s available to
members I1s discounts on the majonty of our
general insurance products Members can
save from 5-10% on their nsurance premiums
If they take out car, home, pet, travel caravan,
motoreycle or classic car insurance

My wite and, T would, like to express our gmﬁtqde for the

grant of £2,000 that was made to us by the Member

Support Fund.. This is an e)ctreme/z, Eind and generous g/‘ﬁ‘
which means a fot to us and wil/ goa bng way towards us
being able to stay in our home.

Mr Clay Feedback on our Member Support Fund
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Strategic Report

E)cmz,oro{marzf

Delighting our customers
and members so we stand
out from other companies.

7 believe that you get what

you pay tor. Li/= provided, the
cover 1 wanted, far the money

7 was prepared, to pay, and, z‘/uezf
oftered an excellent product
that didn't cost the earth.

Ao the aftersales service was
impartant to me and that was
alse the reason I chose LU/=.
Delghted with LV/=.

Melvyn from Stockport

Strategic
Report

14 Key Performance Indicators
16 Chairman’s Review
18 Chief Executive’s Review

20 OQur Objectives, Strategy
and Business Model

28 Group Finance Director’s Review
36 General Insurance Review

40 Life Review

44 Heritage Review

46 Risk Management

58 Corporate Responsibility Report

The following pages outline our performance
during 2015 and give a review of our business
areas and our strategy.

We have chosen to observe the reguirement of the
Department for Businegss Innovation Skills {BIS)
narrative reporting regulations. which require the
preparation of a strategic report, even though we
are not formally required to do this.
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Key Performance Indicators

Our key performance indicators are chosen
to measure performance against our goal
of growing member value, and our vision

of being Britain's best loved insurer.

Our board also assesses progress against our strategic agenda, the way we

manage risks plus a range of other financial and qualitative measures coverning

the significant aspects of our business Enterprise Value 1s no longer used as

a key perfarmance Indicator because 1t 1S considered more appropriate to maintain

a focus on a combination of profit levels, capital strength and the performance of the
hentage with-profits fund when working towards our goal of growing member value
Enterprise Value is still used as a target in the 2013-2015 and 2014-2016 LTIP
schemes (see page 104) Additional performance indicators are reported In the

individual business sections of this report

Britain's best loved insurer

To be Britain's best loved insurer

_ ——
3

B4

To be one of the best loved insurers by continuing to rank
In the top five for relevant opinion surveys and delivening
excelfent customer service levels whilst consistently treating

the customer fairly

Performance
st v
1S UK best loved
2014 2 2013 4"
UK
customer 2
satisfaction n d
index of 2014 1st
insurance
companies 2013 3rd

R
O
©
<t
=
(=]
N

2015: 83%

IFAs quite/very satisfied 90%

YouGov Most recommended General msurance
cusiomers very/

insurer extremely satisfied

Commentary
In an independent survey by Research Now 1,285 insurance
customers ranked us the best loved insurer

As well as the results of opinion surveys our best loved
vision 1s demonstrated through the many awards LV= has
won during the year including the Moneywise 'most trusted
insurer’, The British Insurance awards for Best Customer
Care and The Institute of Customer Service, UK Customer
Satisfaction Award

2016 Target

Our aim s to maintain our position as one of the best loved
insurers by continuing to rank n the top five for relevant
opimon surveys and delivering excellent customer service
levels whilst consistently treating the customer fairly

2015 Targe
Focus on retaining engagement scores at or above the UK
high performing organisattons norm of 81% as defined by

Willis Towers Watson, a global HR consultancy

Performance

86% engagement '

LV= engagement 2015: 86%
UK high performing organisations norm 2015: 81%

LV= engagement 2014: 85%

UK high performing organisations norm 2014: 78%

Commentary

Lv= has demonstrated strong levels of staff engagement
with improvements agamst the prior year Levels of staff
engagement are 5% higher than the UK high performing
orgamsations norm and 13% higher than the UK financial
services organisations norm

2016 Target

Focus on retaining engagement scores at or above the UK
high performing organisations benchmark as defined by Willis
Towers Watson
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Achieved target @
Progressing towards targel §)
Missed target .

Grow member value

To deliver superior returns commensurate with the markets in which we operate Planned operating profit was £69 million

Performance

£195m

2015: £195m
2014. £86m
2013: £105m

Commentary

Operating profit of £195 milhion was significantly above target Strong results were delivered in both the general insurance
and life businesses Results were also iImpacted by a large positive impact from model and valuation changes in the herntage
business See page 44 for further details

2016 Target
To deliver returns in line with the markets in which we operate

Heritage with-profits fund performance Capital strength

g Ot
2015 Target
: To manage the regulatory capital cover ratio within the group’s
2015 Target risk appetite framework
To deliver fund performance at or above benchmark levels
of 2 7%
Performance Performance
3.8% ¥ 195% 4
LV= with-profits 20413 3 8% 2015: 195%

[Benctman 200 27%

Lv= with-profits 2014: 11.4% 2013: 178%
Benchmark 2014: 11.3%
Commentary
LV= with-profits 2013: 11.1% At the end of 2015 our regulatory capital cover ratio was

Benchmark 2013 2.6% 195% Our successful capital raise in 2013 has helped

us to maintain a strong capital position See page 33 for
further detarls

Commentary

The return on the with-profits fund in 2015 was 3 8%,

more than 1% above the benchmark The fund 1s managed 2016 Target

on our behalf by Columbia Threadneedle Investments To manage the capital cover ratio within the group’s risk
and saw out-performance mainly dnven by UK equities appetite framework in a Solvency Il environment There are
See page 32 for further details substantial differences between the calculations of the
2016 Target group’s capital position under Solvency Il and under the

To deliver fund performance at or above benchmark levels current approach See page 34 for detalls
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Chairman’s
Review

Much of the S aciety’s
success can be attributed
to our mutual status.

Mark Austen
Chairman

As we reach the end of my third year as chairman
I am pleased to report that the group has had
another successful year and has delivered an
operating profit of £195 milhion This level of
financial performance has enabled the board

to allocate a mutual bonus of £27 million to
eligible members’ polhcies this year This means
that over the past 5 years we will have allocated
a total of £113 million in mutuatl bonuses to
eligible members

Much of the Society's success can be attnbuted
to our mutual status We do things differently
from other financial services companies, and In
many ways hetter Not only does our member
ownership model mean we focus on generating
operating profit but also on generating long-term
value We have no conflict in doing what s right
for our customers and members Nor do we have
conflict between shareholders' timescales, often
a few days or weeks, and customers’ expectations
which in insurance can extend to many years

There have been several major challenges in
the insurance sector during 2015 For example,
following eighteen months of benign weather
conditions many areas of the country were
battered by a series of extreme storms In

the final few weeks of the year It 1s often said
that you can only tell how good an insurance
company 1s when you come to make a claim
Everything suggests we have done very well

| have been tremendously impressed with the
way that our claims teams have responded

10 these unprecedented weather events,
volunteering for extra duties and looking after
our customers when they needed our help most

As soon as the flooding occurred we contacted
all our customers in the affected areas to see

if they had been impacted and If so what help
they needed We drafted in extra staff to ensure
we could deal with claims quickly and efficiently
Those people whose homes or businesses have
been severely damaged are likely to be out of
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We do t/u‘ngs difterently from other tnancial services

companies, and in many waiys better.

their properties for many months to come while
they are dried out and repaired but we will be

with them every step of the way We beheve our
service to have been unmatched in the industry

The pace of legislative change affecting the
financial services industry continued unabated

In 2015 and we continue to exercise our influence
at the heart of many of these initiatives as part
of our overall corporate affairs programme

Following the Government’s announcement on
pension freedom reforms in 2014 we continue
to have a close dialogue with members of
Government and their related agencies as their
thinking develops further We have been very
much invelved i the recent Financial Advice
Market Review which seeks to improve the
take-up of regulated financial advice We believe
low cost, regulated advice services like the LvV=
Retirement Wizard can make a real impact in
bringing affordable, accessible advice to all
This ts a message we have been making regularly
te the Treasury and other Government officials

In the last quarter of 2015, the Government
also announced plans to create a secondary
annuity market We welcome this move but 1t
is not without nsk and we beleve this further
demonstrates the need for regulated advice

We have also been concerned for some time
about the increase 1n exaggerated and fraudulent
whiplash claims which add at least £90 onto

the average car insurance premium We want

to see tougher controls on claims management
companies and excessive costs driven gut

of the system for the benefit of all motorsts

It was gratifying to hear the Chancellor announce
measures to end the nght to cash compensation
for minor whiplash injuries and raise the upper
hrmit for the small claims court for personal
injury claims from £1,000 to £5,000 in his
Autumn Statement We will continue to work

with Government to ensure the plans are
implemented in full and the associated

cost savings passed on to customers

Foltowing regulatory approval for the transaction
with Teachers Assurance, where we will take over
the majority of its business interests, we passed
the final milestone on the 16 December 2015
when Teachers Assurance members voted 99%
in favour of the deal

This deal represents a very good opportunity for
the Society and will help with our objective to grow
our hfe and pensions business Everythingis in
place to complete the transaction during the first
half of 2016, subject to regulatory approval

The new Solvency |l regulations came Into

effect on 1 January 2016 and following years

of preparatory work the Society was ready for

its implementation on time We are inihially using
the standard formula, but 1t 1s our intention

to move to our own internal model, subject to
regulatory approval

It ts now approaching ten years since Mike Rogers
and | joined the board and your Scciety has been
transformed over this penod Despite the UK
financial services market remaining one of the
most competitive 1in the world, LV= has done
consistently well

Our strategy has and continues to remain the
same Grow life and diversify within general
insurance The board believes this strategy

1s the nght way to create long-term sustainable
value for our members and 1s confident about
the Society’'s prospects for 2016

| would like to thank all our members,
customers, employees and the board
for their ongoing support
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Chief
Executive's
Review

We remain focused.

on afﬂen'n\g good value
products and. an excellent
leve/ of customer care for
our customers and. members.

Mike Rogers
Chief Executive

The challenging market conditions we saw In
2014 have continued during 2015 However we
have maintained our underwriting discipline and
have delivered an operating profit of £195 milion,
an increase of 127% over the prior year

In general insurance the home market remains
tough but we have seen an improvement in motor
rates In hfe, equity release sales have reduced
as expected but we have seen a significant
increase In pension and flexible guarantee

bond sales We have also witnessed a change

In buying behaviour with a notable shift towards
blended solutions

Our focus on customers and members has once
again been recogmised In a number of external
awards We have been voted one of the very
best insurers for customer satisfaction in the
2015 UK Institute of Customer Service Customer
Satisfaction Index In the Financial Adviser
OQutstanding Service Awards we achieved two
five star ratings, in the main life and pensions
category for the fifth year and in the investments
category for the second year running

In November we announced two significant
changes to the executive team Steve Treloar
has been appointed as managing director,
general insurance replacing John O'Roarke
whose contract has come to its end In the last
nine years John has fundamentally transformed
the general insurance business He has turned
a business that made a loss of £4€ million

on premium income of £0 3 twlhon 1n 2007

to one that 1s reporting a profit of £72 million on
premium income of £1 5 bilhon in 2015 Under
his leadership LV= has chmbed from the twelfth
to third largest private car insurer in the UK and
more recently we have grown our home insurance
and SME portfolios, as well as achieving record
levels of customer satisfaction and renewal rates

Steve joins from Aviva where he was managing
director of persenal lines His in-depth knowledge
of the general insurance market makes him the
rdeal person to buiid on the strong platform that
John O'Roarke and the team have created

We have also created a new role of customer and
member director and Katie Wadey joined L= to fill
this role 1n January 2016 She 1s responsible for
dehvering our objective of being a truly customer
centric orgamisation and developng a compeling
mutual advantage for members Katie brings an
extensive background across a range of marketing
and commercial disciphines from Tesco, BT, RBS,
Barclays and British Gas

General insurance

Claims costs benefitted from good weather

over the first eleven months of the year,

although this has been offset by the impact

of the extreme flooding that many areas of the
country experienced tin December Taken together,
storms Desmond, Eva and Frank have cost £36m
Despite this we have still achieved an operating
profit of £72 million and a combined operating
ratio of 96 1%
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The motor market has remained competitive but we
have seen some rate recovery in the second half of
the year and we expect that to continue throughout
2016 We continue to diversify our portfolic away
fram motor with our in-force policy count growing

in home, SME and our other categones

As part of our strategy to grow our range

of electronically traded commercial products
we launched our first online fleet product
giving brokers iImmediate access to quotes
and policy documentation

To extend our distribution footprint we also
entered into a number of scheme agreements
We joined Towergate Underwriting s home
syndicate in a five year deal and joined Ingenie’s
panel of insurers providing underwriting capacity
for the telematics brand aimed at younger drivers

Life

The mpact of the pension reforms continues to
be felt in the retirement market We have seen
a marked change in buying behaviour with mgre
penswon savers shopping around for retirement
income solutions As we offer a wide range of
products we are well placed to take advantage
of these market trends

We are also seeing a move towards blended
solutions, combining the flexibility of drawdown
with the guarantees provided by specialst
annuities, and we continue to develop new
products and services to position LV= at the
forefront of the changing pensions envirgnment

Throughout the year we have held a number of
retirement semunars for IFAs to support them

in helping customers navigate the new world,

post pensions freedom To make 1t easier for

IFAs to explain, recommend, apply and administer
single or blended solutions we launched the LV=
Retirement Account For the first ime advisers are
able to easily tailor multiple product solutions in

a single apphcation and policy for their chents

We retain our position as the ieading provider of
indiidual income protection and dunng the year
we launched our first range of business protection
insurance products Designed to protect small and
medium sized businesses agammst the financial
impacts of death or cnitical liness, we offer key
person, shareholder and partnership insurance
plus loan protection Protection 1s a market where
we see further growth opportunities and as part
of our commitment to being easy to do business
with, we joined the UnderwriteMe comparison
service In 2015

In partnership with the Government, we are
currently in the process of tralling a ‘Pensions
Passport with members approaching retirement,
sending this in place of the ‘Wake-up pack’
Customers are being sent a simple document
outhning how much they have in their pension pot,
In what type of scheme, and any special terms,
such as guaranteed annuity rates attached to
their pension The pilot aims to see whether the
passport will better engage pension savers than
the weight of matenal people currently receive
from pension providers

The pension freedoms have undoubtedly been

a positive move but the complexity of decisions

at retirement 15 overwhelming for most people

To help address the lack of affordable, accessible
regulated advice we launched the first onhne
regulated advice service for the retirement income
market The service, LV= Retirement Wizard,

aims to close the advice gap, helping people
make the most of retirement savings that they
have spent a hfetime buitding up

LV= Retirement Wizard was developed by Wealth
Wizards, the UX based automated advice experts
Following the launch, we acquired a majority stake
In Wealth Wizards Limited, a deal that sees Lv=
inject development capital to enable the company
to deliver on its ambition to develop a widely
available ‘white-label’ automated advice platform

As a group with a closed book of with-profits
business, we are examining carefully the findings
of the recent Financial Conduct Authority (FCA)
review published with regards to the treatment of
long-standing customers, whose policies are no
longer being actively marketed LV= aims to treat
all its customers fairly, nonetheless we will be
paying particular attention to the FCA s concerns
regarding how organisations communicate with
therr customers about exit and paid-up charges
and whether those customers may have suffered
detriment as a result
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Qur people and culture

We believe that if we look after our people then
we can rightly assume that they will look after
our customers and members

IUBUIDAOD

Each year Wilhs Towers Watson conducts a
survey among all 6,000 employees In 2015 our
engagement score was 86%, up 1% on last
year and 5% above the norm for UK High
Performing Organisations

We have further bwit on our diversity and inclusion
programme (n the three streams of gender, sexual
onentation and disability with a number of new
forums, activities and networking opportunities
Hawving a diverse, motivated and engaged
workforce will play an important part in cur

future success

SIUN0J2Y INYD

In summary, we are a financially strong mutual
with a well-known brand and our composite model
means we are well positioned for the future

with growth opportunities in both our trading
businesses We remain focused on offenng good
value products and an excellent level of customer
care for our customers and members

The LV= Strategic Report on pages 13 to 72 was
approved by the Board of Directors on 11 March
2016 and signed on its behalf by

Mike Rogers, Chief Executive



Our Objectives, Strategy
and Business Model

Our goal:
To grow
S member value
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Our goal 1s to grow value for our members

Our vision 15 to be Britain’s best loved insurer and We have a clear point of difference which we call
we also want to make insurance something that sharp with a heart This guides the way we do
people can refate to — by achieving our vision and things and combines the competitive performance
humanising insurance we believe people will trust of a PLC with the trusted behaviours of a mutual
us to look after their iInsurance needs

Our brand promises reflect aspects that we consider to be important to our customers

~

Cood, value, great values

Offering affordable well-designed products but not at the expense of doing the nght thing

Easy to do business with Skittu/

Offering a simple, hassle-free journey for Using our expertise to deliver solutions to
all who deal with us, regardless of how financial 1ssues that people come across
they choose to do business throughout Iife

C aring Exz‘ra,ardmarg

Caring about our customers and ther Delighting our customers and members
loved ones when they need us most so we stand out from other companies

LU= continues to meet its tinancial aims of de/ft/er/hg gaoaf
returns to members, while ensqn‘ng a s‘z‘ro*n\g cap/‘z‘a/ pasition
on which to base future grawz%.
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Sustainable

bhusiness model

9,

Strategic agenda

We had previously laid out an agenda highlighting eight key areas of management focus to ensure the
sustainable growth of the Society well into the future as an aspiring and misston driven modern mutual

- we continue to focus on these elements

e Sustainable business model : ’

Diversified general
insurance earnings

Grow life to scale

Exploratian of adjacent
business areas

For a mutual, managing the business in a
sustainable manner is critical to ensure that the
business continues to thrive and succeed well into
the future Compared to PLCs, mutuals have a
narrower set of funding options and hence typically
need to be more cautious in approach The board
and management believe that the strategy being
executed enhances the sustainability of the
Society However, there continues to be

a need to be vigilant around threats

In particular, there are three relevant strands
which are being monitored carefully

(a) Regulatory developments

During 2015, the key regulatory development
was the impending implementation of Solvency
II, a new EU-wide capital management regime
designed to strengthen consumer protection
and sector stabiiity by ensuring that insurance
companies hold adequate capital to cover ther
business nsks Durning 2015, we invested a
significant amount of resources, and worked
with our regulator to ensure that LV= was ready
and well-placed for the new regime when 1t
came Inte effect on 1 January 2016

(b)Competitive developments

At LV= we take cognizance of the ever increasing
competitive pressures of the markets we
participate in We also recognise that the healthy
rate of growth seen over recent years will likely
moderate We have therefore successfully
developed and launched new differentiated
propositions in the market during 2015 to
strengthen our competitive position

D

Go digital

Build a distinctive
and relevant brand

Become customer
centric

DO
)

Broaden and deepen ,...‘
talent pool

We have also implemented a group-wide cost
management programme to ensure that the
cost structure of the business is appropnate
to help us meet the challenges ahead

{c) Capital structure

Constraints around raising new capital flexibly are
a particular challenge for the mutual business
model The primary source of capital for mutuals
Is annual retained earnings less any member
distributions, although a Iimited amount of

debt capital can also be raised Mutual capital
therefore grows slowly, even for the strongest
performing mutual, hmiting the number of growth
opportunities mutual businesses can engage
wrth at any given time The ability of mutuals

to withstand economic shocks 1s alsa restricted
due to constraints on raising new capital

In 2015, the Mutuak Shares Bill passed through
Parliament and received Royal Assent This bill
makes it possible for mutual insurers such as
LV= to consider issuing shares These shares
would be similar to the Core Capital Deferred
Shares 1ssued by Nationwide They would confer
membership of the Society, but imit voting
rights to one vote per member irrespective

of shareholding We beheve that there would

be strong consumer and institutional interest

in shares issued by LV= and as a result we

are actively working with the Treasury and our
regulators to ensure appropriate secondary
legislation 1s passed which facilitates this

The board Is as yet unresolved whether indeed
the shares would be 1ssued However, supporting
this initiative would give us additional options
should we want to exercise them in the future
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Diversified general
insurance earnings

We have a very successful general insurance business selling
a range of personal and commercial products We sell these

to consumers directly and via brokers We have a particularly
strong personal motor line with around 12% market share based
on the number of vehicles insured We batance the pride in the
success of our general Insurance business with the recognition
of risks that shorter policy lifespans present and the volatility
often experienced by the motor insurance industry QOver recent
years therefore, we have put deliberate management focus on
diversifying into other general insurance product hines vtihsing
our strong brand and the successful personal motor hine as
launch pads

in the direct market, we are using our well-known consumer
brand to extend our advertising to include home insurance
Home insurance 15 also actively promoted to existing motor
insurance customers In the broker market, several new
schemes have been launched, such as the launch of Heartiand
to help suppert growth from the top 100 independent brokers,
the Towergate Home Co-Insurance scheme and becoming the
strategic partner for Jelf Our SME insurance line 1s also growing
In scale and gaining recognition in the market

During 2015 we successfully delivered new travel and pet
insurance offerings, enhancements to existing home insurance
products for the broker channel, and system enhancements

to allow direct home and commercial fleet customers access
to on-line guote and buy

As a result of the sustained effort on diversification the
proportion of non-personal motor pelicies in the overall portfolio
has grown from 29% n 2013 to 36% at the end of 2015

QOver the same period non-personal motor premiums have
grown from 27% to 31% of total gross written premiums

{the slower growth stems from the strengthening of motor

rates during the last eight months of 2015} We aim to improve
further on diversification over the next five years

Dqﬂ'ng 2075 we sqcces‘sﬂ{//q
dellvered new travel and. pet
insurance of/énhgs.

e Grow life to scale

Our hfe trading business consists of businesses that operate
In the retirement and protection markets We also have a
heritage business that mainly compnses our with-profits
products This targeted approach has allowed us to compete
in our chosen markets effectively and aflowed us to establish
significant businesses which have been successful However,
this focused approach also means that despite strong growth
the overall size of the life business 1s still markedly smaller
than our general insurance business As a result, the strategy
of the Society 15 to grow the ife business to a size comparable
to the general insurance business

In response to the pensions freedoms made possible by the
Changellor in the 2014 Budget, dunng 2015 we successfully
developed and launched our Retirement Pathfinder to help IFAs
model retirement scenarios alongside our Retirement Account
that allows our retirement products to be blended into a single
solution We beheve this meets the needs of consumers who
in future will see retirement as a process with multiple stages
rather than a single event

We have also launched a fully regulated automated retirement
advice solution, an industry first in the UK, to address the
advice gap This 1s getting much attention in the media and
by the Government and LV=is bemng seen as a leader in this
EXCItIf‘Ig new area

LV=RetirementWizard*"

In addition, significant progress has been made on underwriting
and administratioen system enhancements across both our
retirement and protection businesses This gives us the ability
to have better proposttions, significantly improve customer
expenence and manage costs We expect the implementation
of these to support the growth trajectory of the business over
the medium-term

We continue {o explore growth opportunities via partnerships
with selected organisations whose customers would benefit
from our products and expertise During 2015 we launched
the LV= Corporation Solutions suite of tools and services

to help corporate partners and mtermedianes serve therr
customers better via improved engagement, education,

and access to financial advice to get the most from therr
options at and in retirernent

We are amongst the largest UK players (by asset size} in the
with-profits market Apart from wriing new business which we are
doing successfully, we also consider consolidation opportunities
where other mutuals look to close and have an orderly run-off of
therr policies In December 2014, we announced a transaction
to take over the majority of Teachers Assurance business lines
This deal was approved by Teachers Assurance members with
an overwhelming majority (99% of votes cast were in favour of
the transfer) at their special general meeting in December 2015
The transfer Is scheduled to be completed duning the first half
of 2016, subject to regulatcry approval
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Exploration of adjacent
business areas

Qur group and shared services structure positions us well to
support additional business areas alongstde our existing life,
hentage and general insurance businesses Although we are
keen to only participate \n areas where we have advantages,
we continually investigate and, where appropriate, progress
potenttal adjacent business areas which may give us greater
diversification, make the most of our capabilities and assets
and bring new profit streams into LV=

In particular, during 2015, we launched

e V= Law — a non-insurance legal services proposition
for our customers,

e Pensions Compass allowing defined benefit pension r
scheme members to understand their options at retirement, (' \
a business protection proposition, and
QuickCover life iInsurance — a non-advised, instant life
cover proposition

In addition, we worked closely with a number of employee
benefit consultants to explore potential opportunities N 4
in the butk annuity market

o Build a distinctive
e Go digital o and relevant brand

At LV= we believe the increasingly digital business context We have invested significant effort in building our brand in

presents exciting opportumities for us to engage with our recent years As a result our brand 1s now amongst the most

customers, staff, partners, suppliers and other stakeholders recognised brands in our target market and 1s widely seen

Technological advancements also present opportunities as vibrant and modern We are proud of this achievement

for us to reinvent the ways in which we organise ourselves and continue to focus on ensuning that our brand stays fresh,

to conduct business relevant and distinctive to our target audiences

We have made substantial progress In this space Over the During 2015, we have focused on embedding the refreshed

course of 2015, we invested significant resources in system brand across our website and internal and external paper

enhancement projects across the organisation, driving based and digital communications The results have been

continuous Improvements to customer and intermediary impressive For the fourth year running, YouGov ranked

Journeys, enhancements to the way we use the data we LV= as the Best Brand n their BrandIndex Insurance and

held and eptimising the technology we have to help us Investments Buzz Rankings — a measure of how positively

dnive greater effictency a brand 1s perceved by customers LV=was also recogmsed
as the ‘Best Loved’ and the ‘Most Recommended’

We have evolved our core technology infrastructure and insurance brand

undertaken test and learn activities, focused on improving

our understanding of opportunitres to change the risk model WE — e

and introduced a culture of innovation with digital selutions =T

e B =
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e
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Become customer
centric

We believe that customer centricity in the design, development
and delivery of our products and services is core 10 our
husiness. We have a strong track record in treating customers
well which is demonstrated by our excellent customer
satisfaction and recommendation scores, our market-leading
retention levels and the numercus industry awards we receive
for customer satisfaction and recommendation.

We are committed to building ever greater engagement with
our customers. We look to utilise customer feedback and

data analysis to imgrove our understanding of customer needs
and in developing relevant propositions to enhance customer
experience. We also look at ways to increase customer
awareness and knowledge about their options at various

life stages.

During 2015, we have launched several new initiatives

to engage with our customers such as hosted ‘Business
readiness’ webinars and a new fully regulated automated
advice service, We also launched an LV=/Mail on Sunday
co-branded Retirement Guide, and a new Pensions Passport
with the backing of the Treasury. to increase customer
awareness about their options at, and in. retirement.
Internally, we developed and embedded employee training
tools and operational processes that put customer
engagement at the heart of communications, claims
handling and complaints management.

Broaden and deepen ,...‘
talent pool M
7

We believe our ability to recruit, motivate and retain talented
people is the key to our success. We are committed to providing
appropriate oppertunities and support to our employees ta

help them achieve their ambitions whatever their backgrounds.
This positive and supportive culture creates high employee
engagement levels that consistently exceed the benchmark

for organisations that excel at employee engagement across

the UK. We continually lock to strengthen this high engagement
culture that in turn makes us an atiractive employer for

future recruitment.

In 2015. we have embedded a talent management programme
10 identify and develop future leaders for our organisation:
invested significant efforts in a diversity and inclusion
programme; and engaged with other organisations 1o fearn from
their successes in furthering positive employee engagement.

7 love L= as they have given me
a chance to be mgse/f in the job
and encaqrageaf me to achieve
and pragress into further positions.

Sam Holmes, Bournemouth office
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Business Model

Our proeducts fall into the following categories

e Life protection and retirement products,
including savings and investments,
covering people’s hves and incomes,

* General Insurance insurance for those more
tangible items people love, their vehicles,
homes, pets and holdays,

e Heritage focuses on savings and investment

products that are no longer actively marketed,

the majonty of these being with-profits
products,

+ Non-insurance legal services and online
retirement advice

Our portfolo includes a deliberate and careful
balance of well established, profitable lines
and selective investments in growth lines,

all distributed to consumers directly and via
brokers and [FAs This mix of business lines
and distnbution channels provides us with
diversification of risks and helps mitigate

the impact of adverse market conditions

and business cycles which affect specific
products or distribution channels

Our members’ assets, and the premiums we
recelve every year, are managed on our behalf
by our strategic partner, Columbia Threadneedle
Investments This allows us to secure the

best possible outcomes for our members and
customers by focussing on our ¢core expertise
of nsk based insurance business while benefiting
from the investment management expertise of
our partners The partnership arrangement with
Columbia Threadneedle Investments Is reviewed
regularly to ensure the risk and return balance
1S5 appropriate for our members

As 1s common In our Industry, reinsurance 1S
used by LV=to help support our business hines
where appropniate as it enables the transfer of
nsk of insurance losses that are outside our
nsk appetite, reduces the regulatory capital
requirements imposed on the business,

and helps improve our pricing competitiveness

We aim to grow member value consistently over
the long-term while managing the nsk involved

In doing so appropnately We maintain, review,
strengthen and develop a range of organisaticnal
capabihties that enable us to do that on an
ongoing basis

7 was treated po//‘z‘e/zf and my enguiry dealt with canﬁdent/g,
efﬁcfent/g and. in a fr/‘end/g manrer. T wouldn't hesitate to
recommend, your company to friends and, famf/g.




Business Model

General Insurance

~NS

Personal Commercial

b 4 b 4

Commercial Combined

Manufacturer s
Motoreycle Wholesaler's
Business

Leisure
Specialist Vehicles

Commercial Motor
Britannia Rescue Fleet
Truck
Hire & Reward

Motor Trade Combined

Motor Trade Road Risks

Package insurance

Pub
Restaurant
Office & Surgery
Landlord
Retait
Hotel & Guest House

Caravan
Trades & Professions

Legal Services Property Owners

Property Investors
Residential

Commerciat Property

~

Protection

b

Income Protection

Term/ Life
Assurance

Critical Hiness

Whole of Life

Business Protection

Protection Advice
Service

Retirement

A 4

Self-invested and
personal pension

Income Drawdown

Fixed Term Annuity

Enhanced Annuity

Flexible Guarantee
Funds & Bonds

Equity Release

Retirement Advice
Service

LV= Retirement
Wizard

Herntage

Pension Income
Plus Annuity

The diagram represents the major product incs and servces we currently sell. which are distnbuted diractly or via infermedianss.
We have a sigmficant number of agdibonal product ines that are closed to new business including our Industnal Branch whole of hfe potwres Qrginary Branch pensians,

and products sold by RNPEN

Fiexible Savings Plan
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Group Finance »
Director’s

Review

The results for 2015 were
particularly pleasirg, with
both of our tmdmg businesses

conz‘ﬂqu?hg to

overal|

aperating profit despite

c/ua//engzhg market conditions.

Philip Moore
Group Finance Director

With-profits investments
performance

3.8%

1 1% above benchmark

Operating profit

£195m

+127%

Qverview

QOperating profit in 2015 was £195 million

(2014 £86 million), benefiting from solid trading
profits in the general insurance business and
strong trading profits in the life businesses
There was also a significant contribution from the
heritage busmess generated by changes made to
the reserving assumptions The increase n profit
before tax to £124 milhon (2014 £37 million) I1s
mainty drniven by the increase in operating profit

This record level of operating profit was achieved
desmite continuing challenging conditions faced
across the business In our hfe business the
retirement result s still being tmpacted by the
2014 budget changes leading to a shift in the
buying behaviour of retirees In our general
insurance business continued pressure on
margins and extensive flooding towards the

end of the year impacted the underwnting result

Economic conditions have also proved a drag on
results with an increase in gilt yields driving down

Surplus capital

£854m

+£165m

the value of debt securities In addition we saw
credit spreads widening and the FTSE finishing
the year down 4 9% on the 2014 closing position
at 6,242

Qur with profit investment returns at 3 8% have
outperformed the benchmark for the fourth year
running and we have declared a mutual bonus of
£27 milbon, representing a8 1% enhancement to
eligible policies’ asset share LV= continues to
meet 1ts financal aims of delivering good returns
to members, while ensuring a satisfactory capital
position on which to base future growth

During the year we have maintained a strong
focus on ensuring we are ready to comply with
Solvency |l requirements from 1 January 2016
and the potential impact this will have on our
capital position A significant capital management
action taken was the general insurance business
entering into a loss portfolio transfer agreement
at the end of the year which reduced our

capital requirements
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Results for 2015

£m 2015 2014
General insurance 72 92
Life 41 (7
Heritage 88 g
Group (6) {(8)
Operating profit* 195 86
Pensions business IFRS adjustment (5) 1
Short-term investment fluctuations and related items** (10) {(2)
Centrally managed costs (29) {21)
Finance costs (24) (24)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles {3) (3)
Profit before tax* 124 37
Mutual bonus (27) (24)
Income tax expense (6) (47)
Pension scheme actuanal gain net of tax 51 19
Transfer to/{from) the Unallocated divisible surplus 142 {15)

* A defimtion of the measures we use {o review our business performance 1s provided in the glossary section on page 110
=+ Short term investment Auctuations and related tems Includes the favourable impact of tax deducted from policy asset shares and the

RNPFN fund tetalling £nil milhon (2014 £34 millon)

The operating profit contrnibution from our
businesses 1s summansed in the table above
Operating profit for the general insurance
business comprises the trading results from
insurance activity (underwnting profit) and
investment returns For the life and heritage
businesses, operating profit includes the trading
performance of new and existing insurance
business, the impact of actuanal mode! and
valuation changes, and also a margin for prudence
in the life valuation assumptions (such as credit
default allowance) Unmatched movements in
the value of iInvestment assets or habibties are
reported in short-term investment fluctuations

Operating profit for the general insurance
business of £72 milion (2014 £92 million)

was satisfactory given the challenges faced dunng
the year The underwnting result dropped to

£44 milton (2014 £51 mullion) following
extensive flooding towards the end of the

year which resulted in claims of £36 mifhon

The result benefited from favourable prior-year
claims run-off of £33 million (2014 £109 million)
Price increases in motor insurance began to
impact in the second half of 2015 which has
mitigated some of the strain on profit expenenced
in recent years from lower premium rates on
business wntten due to the continuing severe
market price competition

However, the impact of the rate increases
achieved was eroded by an acceleration in market
claims inflation and the level of large value claims
The investment return reduced to £28 million
(2014 £41 million} reflecting the less favourable
market conditions

The life business has enjoyed a recovery

from the tnitial impacts of the Government's
announcement on pension freedom reforms

in 2014 New business volumes have grown
significantly, particularly in protection, flexible
guarantee bends and pensions The increase In
contribution from this new business has helped
drive an increase In operating profit to £41 milhon
(2014 £7 million loss) Operating profit has also
henefited from favourable cne-off model and
valuation changes In the year

The hertage business operating profit of

£88 mulhon (2014 £9 mullion) 1s dnven by

model and valuation changes of £91 milhon

Of this, £62 million relates to the methodology
used to value the habihties for OB pension
policies, which was adjusted during the year to
reflect a change n the basis used to calculate the
amount payable when the policyholder elects to
take the proceeds from the policy as cash rather
than as an annuity

Group operating profit includes unallocated
group overheads and also the return on the
group's free capital
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Profit before tax for the group of £124 mullion (2014 £37 million) ts driven by the increase in operating
profit Costs booked below operating profit include the impact of short-term investment fluctuations,
centrally managed costs and finance costs, mainly interest payable on our subordinated debt

The reduction in the tax charge during the year reflects lower gains made in policyholders” fixed-interest
investments compared to 2014 This tax on investment gains in the with-profit business, which gets
charged to policyholders’ asset shares, fell from £34 miliion to £ml milhien The balancing reduction

In the tax charge manly refiects reduced general insurance profits

The actuanal gain on the pension schemes of £51 milhon (2014 £19 million) 15 manly driven by

the increase in discount rate reducing the value of the schemes labilities This has been offset by
the reductron in the vaiue of the schemes’ invested assets, reflecting market movements As at 31
December 2015 the schemes reported a combined asset, net of tax of £54 milion (2014 £3 million)

The general insurance, Itfe and hertage performance 1s explained in more detail in the relevant
business review sections

Statutory results for 2015
Summarised Income statement

£m 2015 2014
Gross earned premiums 2,408 2,264
Premiums ceded to reinsurers {384) (124)
Net earned premiums 2,024 2,140
Investment ncome 401 377
Net (losses)/gains on Investments {282) 832
QOther income 57 a7
Total Income 2,200 3,396
Net benefits and claims (1,476) (1,584)
MNet change In contract habilities a7 (1,131)
finance costs (24) (24)
investment return allocated to external umit holders - {36)
Other operating and administrative expenses (623) (584)
Total benefits, claims and expenses {2,076) (3,359)
Profit before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer 124 37

Total income has decreased by £1,196 milion 1o £2,200 million (2014 £3,396 million) This 1s primarily
driven by the movement in net gains on investments from £832 milien in 2014 to net losses on
investments of £282 million in 2015 Unrealised losses of £275 million occurred in the value of debt
secunties as gilt yields increased and credit spreads widened In response to general market challenges
in the second half of the year Unrealised losses on equities of £115 million reflect the overall fall in the
FTSE during the year

In 2014 the high charge to the net change I1n contract iabilities was mainly driven by investment gains
In 2015 the investment gan reversal has generated a credit to the statement of comprehensive Income
This has been partially offset by the increase in new busingss

Total Income was also adversely impacted by a fall in net earned premiums of £116 million The overall
fall in net earned premiums 1s driven by the new loss portfolio transfer agreement which the general
insurance business entered into at the end of 2015 This resulted m reinsurance of 20% of its booked
reserves, tmpacting premiums ceded to reinsurers by £242 mithon Gross earned premiums have
increased by £144 million {(6%) The underlying increase 1s driven by strong new business sales in
pensions, flexible guarantee bonds and protection policies Gross earned premiums were essentrally
flat in the general insurance business

The new loss portfolio transfer agreement has also impacted the net benefit and claims figure,
Increasing the reinsurer’s share of claims habilities by £242 milhon This means that gross benefits
and claims have actually increased, mainly in retirement, reflecting the increase in annuity claims
as the one year products sold in 2014 in response to the budget announcement have matured

Other expenses have increased to £623 milion (2014 £584 million) We have a continued focus

on cost control and this increase 1s mainly due to the increase in staff costs, reflecting higher bonus
and LTIP payments following the strong 2015 results The remainder of the increase 1S due to increased
commission payments, reflecting the increase in and mix of new business sales
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Profit before tax Summansed balance sheet

£124m

+£87m Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,186 790
Financial assets — Fair value through income 11,419 11,791
Unallocated Other assets 1,934 1,468
divisible Surp|us Total assets 14,539 14,049

Liabllities
£1 y 10 1 m Insurance contract liabilities 9,868 9,715
+£142m fnvestment contract habilities 2,416 2,108
Other habilities 1,154 1,269
Unallecated divisible surplus 1,101 959
Total liabilities 14,539 14,049

The group retains a significant iquid cash position with a cash and cash equivalents balance
of £1,186 millien {2014 £730 million)

Investments held at fair value through income have decreased by £372 million to £11,419 million
(2014 £11,791 milhon) Included in this balance are debt and other fixed income secunties

which have decreased by £916 million to £6,456 million (2014 £7,372 million) This decrease Is
generated by the impact on investment valuations from increases Iin yields Also included are vanabie
yleld securnties which have increased by £549 million to £4,257 miilion (2014 £3,708 million),
following increased levels of equnties purchased to back new business sales in the life business

w
1ok
=
u
1
T}
s
&
=
a
=]
]
=

Associated with the group’s investment in debt and other fixed income secunties, cash and cash ‘

o
equivalents, and loans secured on residential and commercial property 1S credit counterparty rnisk ?D |
The table below shows the credit profile of the group s Investment in these assets, with 72% of the § ‘
group's exposure to credit nsk on these assets rated ‘A or above (2014 74%) §
Credit risk exposure !
Em 2015 2014
AAA ; 739 Q98
AA 3,304 3,245
A 1,933 2,296 =4
BBB 1,585 1,444 %
Below BBB 59 137 §
Not rated* 728 751 2

8,348 8,871

* Not rated includes balances for residential and commerclal property totalling £708 million {2014 £709 rmillion)

Insurance contract habilities have increased by £153 million to £9,868 milhon (2014 £9,715 million)
This increase 1s split between life with an increase of £51 million to £7,771 million (2014 £7,720 milhon)
and general insurance which has seen an increase of £102 milhon to £2,097 mulhion {2014

£1,995 milhion)

Investment centract liabiities have increased by £310 million to £2,416 million (2014 £2,106 million)
followtng strong new business sales in retirement
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Heritage LVFS with-profits fund performance

Assels under management
Heritage WP Fund performance % D
Benchmark* performance % P

|
|

U- _
UK

Overseas

Equity Equity

With-profits 2015

Asset Lidss Dreakdow.n

N

p UK Equity
Overseas Equity
P UK Gilts
Bonds
Property
p Alternative
» Cash

Other group
assets 20157

Asset class bredwdown

» UK Equity
Overseas Equity
P UK Gilts
Bonds
Property
P Alternative
» Cash

14,9 13.6

—

L] L] om ]_]I

Property Alternative Cash Total

Assels under management
Other group assets fund performance** Fund performance % P

UK Equity

Overseas
Equity

UK Gilts

Property

G EHIT

*  Benchmark performance 1s calculated using a blend of récogmsed metrics which
reascnably represent the market level parformance for the mix of assets included
In the Heritage WP fund.

*+ Other group assels are assels invested by the general insurance and life business.,
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Investment performance

Columbla Threadneedle Investments -

Our ongoing strategic partnership with investment
managers Columbia Threadneedle Investments
continues to prove successful with the LVFS
with-profits fund once again exceeding the

market standard benchmark

With-profits - The main LVFS with-profits fund
delivered good relative performance for our
with-profits members with an absolute
performance of 3 8% This 1s above the
benchmark of 2 7%, with outperfarmance

in UK equities and a broadly in-line performance
of UK gits, which together form 59% of the
fund's assets

Other group assets — Qutside of the main LVFS
with-profits fund the magority of assets are
invested in UK corporate bonds and UK gilts
Returns in these areas were subdued in the face
of increases in yields and widening credit spreads

Capital management

Capital 1s managed on both economic and
regulatory hases to ensure we have sufficient
funds to meet our business cbjectives, the
promises we have made to our members and
policyholders and regulatory requirements

LVFS capital resources

Capital 1s monitored and managed both at a group
and entity level

We operate through three mamn companies

s LVFS s the parent company of the group and
the company where we write the majority of
our ife insurance business LVFS s also the
sponsor of our staff pension funds

« Lwerpool Victoria Insurance Company (LVIC)
and Highway Insurance Company {HICO)
are the companies which wnte our general
insurance business

We seek to deploy capital where we believe

the risk 1s properly rewarded Asset and hability
matching i1s extensively used and nisks are
hedged where we believe we would otherwise
receve insufficient return for the nsk taken

or to reduce volatiity

We report our capital positicen on a regulatory

basis using legislation in force in 2015 which

defines the capital requirements an organisation

must meet The two different bases reported

below are

o Peak 1 (a traditional valuation basis}, and

e« Peak 2 (more realistic for with-profits
business)

£m 2015 2014
Admissible assets* 10,667 10,282
Add capital requirements of regulatory related undertakings 229 256
Mathematical reserves {after distnbution of surplus) (8,719) (8,470}
Regulatory current liabilities {(770) {755}
Available capltal resources 1,407 1,313
Capital requirements of regulatory related undertakings (229) (256}
Capital resources within RNPFN fund** (236) (247)
Peak 1 capital requirement (306) (300)
Peak 1 excess regulatory capital {excluding RNPFN**} 636 510
With-profits insurance capttal component (129) (168)
Peak 2 excess regulatory capital {excluding RNPFN**} 507 342
Subordinated debt (after costs) 347 347
Pillar 1 excess regulatory capital Including subordinated debt 854 689

* The admuss:ble assets shown abeve are calculated on a regulatory basis and therefore differ from the total assets under management
** RNPFN denotes Royal Natignal Pension Fund for Nurses which is a ring fenced fund The free assets attributab’e to this fund are reported

as insurance contract liabilities of the Society

During 2015 the main movements in Pillar 1 regulatory capital were

£m 2015 2014
Excess capital at 1 Januvary 689 720
Opening adjustments 5 2
Economic vanances 6 (47)
Claims vanances 4 -
Expense variances (24) 17)
New business (1) {16)
Impact of changes to valuation assumptions 25 12
0B pension cash benefits basis change 69 -
Movement in group undertakings* 57 68
Interest on subordinated debt {23) (23)
Mutuat bonus (27) (24)
Change 1n Risk Capital Margin 51 {3)
Other 23 17
Excess capital at 31 December 854 689

* Mavement in group undertakings relates to the change in the net asset value of the subsidianes due mainly {o Profits generated and

movements between adrmissible and inadmissible assets
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Risk appetite

We have embedded our approach to risk
management through our nsk appetite The nsk
appetite for capital management 1s that we will
hold sufficient solvency capital to ensure that the
group can continue to trade following a severe
adverse movement in markets See further details
on nsk management on pages 486 to 57

Capital management actions 2015

During 2015 we have taken a number of actions
to improve our capital positton and to reduce
the sensitivity of our caprtal position to market
movements including, in the latter part of 2015,
the general insurance business entenng into a
loss portfolio transfer agreement resulting in
reinsurance of 20% of its booked reserves A
whole account 20% quota share arrangement
effective 1 January 2016 has also been placed

Stress and scenario testing

In addition to calculating capital on the required
regulatory regime, we undertake a series of
stress and scenano tests to ensure the
robustness of our solvency position in regard

to different levels of new business growth,
movements in iInvestment markets and changes
In other assumgptions such as the expected
lifetime of our enhanced annuity customers

In looking at movements in investment markets
we consider a number of single stresses (e g a
significant fall in equities) but more importantly

because investment markets are highly correlated
we consider how they will move together in
stressed conditions For example, fails in

equity markets will generally also see nses in
credit spreads on corporate bonds We buiid a
distnbution of expected market events and we
test a number of points on the distnbution 1 e

1 n 10 year events, 1 1n 100 year events,

1 in 200 year events In addition we run a number
of ‘real world’ scenarios to test the robustness

of our business model For example, we made
use of the scenario used In the Bank of England’s
annual stress testing exercise for the banking
sector, which investigated a global downturn

and persistent low yield environment tn 2015

We use the outcomes of the stress and scenano
testing to develop the management actions

we would undertake If our capital or other
performance measures move outside of our
defined nsk appetite

The impact of some of these stresses 1s shown
below and in note 4 of these financial statements

In order to plan for the future operations of the
group, forecast plans are produced including
stress and scenarno testing to provide the board
with assurance that the group wiil be able to
withstand adverse events If they arnse Selected
market scenarios modelled and reported to the
hoard, together with the impact on excess capital,
are shown below

Market Movements Impact on Excess
Equity Property Fixed Interest Credit Spread Capital (Em)
Scenario 1 -9 1% -8 1% 0 0% +1 87% (99)
Scenario 2 -11 8% -10 6% 0 0% +2 40% {122)
Scenario 3 -19 3% 17 7% 0 0% +3 75% (196)
Scenano 4 0 0% 0 0% -0 6% 00% (121}

Solvency Il

From 2016 our regulatory capital position will
be reported under the new Solvency il regime
The developments required for the transition to
the Solvency Il regime were a key focus for the
group throughout 2015 The group 1S ready to
comply with the Solvency Il requirements with
effect from 1 January 2016

Lv= will calculate 1ts regulatory caprtal position
using the Solvency |l standard formula approach
from 1 January 2016 LV= will work with the
Prudential Regulatory Authonty (PRA) to agree

a timeline to transition to the internal model
approach at a future date {n addition LV= has
received PRA approval to utilise transitional rehief
and the volatility adjuster under the Solvency I
regime from 1 January 2016 The group 1s working
with the PRA to agree the use of the matching
adjustment at a future date Using the matching
adjustment will result in a better aignment of
matched assets and long-term lhabiiities on a
regulatory basis The internal model approach

should provide a more appropnate basis for
measuring the group's capital requirement than
the standard fermula approach and 1s also better
aligned to the group’s economic capital basis

Whilst LV= will use the Selvency Il standard formula
approach to determine its regulatory capital
position from 1 January 2016, it will continue

to manage the group's business primarly on an
economic capital basis, within risk appetite on a
regulatory basis

Work 1s underway to calculate the group's capital
position under Solvency Il as at Lst January 2016
The group will be reporting this information to
the PRA 1in May 2016 and as at the signing date
of the Annual Report it is difficult to estimate

the final Solvency Ii capital position at 1 January
2016 However the group currently expects that,
as at that date, it will be reporting a surplus of
approximately 35% over the standard formula
capital requirement Work 1s aiso underway on

a number of capital optimisation imitiatives which
are aimed at increasing this surplus
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This 1s lower than the surplus reported under
Solvency |, Pillar 1 above, refltecting methodology
differences between the two bases (including
the impact of the Risk Margin under Solvency )
and also the impact of using a discount rate for
long-term habilities incorporating the volatihty
adjustment rather than one which 1s more closely
aligned to the rate expected to be earned on the
matching assets

Liguidity management

Liguidity management 1s reguired to ensure
that the group has sufficient financial resources
avallable to meet its obligations when they

fall due

The group generates cash from profitable
trading in the general insurance business and
from realised margins on in-force long-term
insurance policies Surplus cash 1s used to
fund new business growth and central costs
Investment fluctuations will also affect the
lguidity of long-term insurance funds

When reserves are strengthened or released at

a fund level, assets are either transferred from
or paid to the Estate Fund The transfer of assets
into or out of the funds will reduce or release
assets to be used as surplus cash In addition,
surplus capital 1s held at subsichary level to
ensure that individual entities are adequately

LVFS operational liquidity

capitalised and have sufficient hquidity to meet
their obligations as they fall due

Operational liquidity

The table below summarnses the operational
liquidity generated for the Estate Fund

Operational iguidity 15 generated from movements
In free assets in the year (Including cash and cash
equivalents and surplus assets within funds in
excess of matched liabilities) Operational hquidity
excludes amounts attnbutable to RNPFN and also
intra-group capital investments and repayments

The general insurance business returned funds
of £37 miflion to the group

Increased new business sales of pensions and
protection products have increased the level of
new business cash consumption However, this
has been offset by cash generated from sales of
flexible guarantee bonds and annuities, although
the latter being at lower levels than in 2014

The movement in non-recurning 1tems reflects the
favourable impacts of one-off model and valuation
changes in the hentage business

Going forward we aim to maintain our strong
operationa!l hiquidity position and to bring the hife
business into a cash generating position

£m 2015 2014
General insurance surplus cash remitted a7 37
Life {10) (11
Group items* {24} (24)
Tax paid (4} 9
(Outflow)/Inflow before non-recurring Items, debt Interest (1) 11
and mutual bonus

Non-recurrning items* * 34 (1)
Net Inflow before debt interest and mutual bonus 33 10
Debt interest pad (23) 23)
Mutual bonus (27) (24)
Net outflow*** {17) (37)
Operatlonal liquidity held at 31 December 507 524

*  Group Items comprise centrally managed costs and alsa the net impact of the hertage with profits business
*+  Ingludes net impact ¢f assumplion changes ano investment gains in ife and heritage and dividends and capital repayments from non

general insurance subsidianes
**+ Excludes intfa group capital investments and repayments

Qutlook

The results for 2015 were particularly pleasing,
with both of our trading businesses contnbuting
to overall operating profit despite challenging
market conditions

Our strong brand and increasingly customer centric
approach mean that LV=is well placed to retain
existing customers and to attract new business
The combination of offering products which people
want alongside market leading customer service

means that we can expect to see continued strong
profit contnbutions being delivered across the
group for the foreseeable future

The developments required for the transition to the
Solvency Il regime have been a key focus for the
group for the last few years The ngour applied to
this preparatory work and the careful management
of the group’s capital position mean that we

are confident that the LV= group will continue to
operate successfully under the Solvency Il regime
dunng 2016 and in the longer-term
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General
Insurance
Review

e are the third /afgesz‘
private car insurer in

the UK with arcund,
12% market share.

John O'Roarke
Managing Director of General Insurance

2015 represented another year of solid progress for our general
insurance business We increased our policy count by over
100,000 pohicies and ended the year with more than 4 7 mullhion
policies in force Qur financial results were satisfactory in the
context of challenging market conditions but were 'mpacted by
the combined effects of sustained low investment returns and
the severe flooding which affected the northern parts of the
country in December

While pricing in the private motor market finally began to harden
from the middle of the year, the impact of the rate increases
achieved was eroded by an acceleration in market claims
inflation and the level of large value claims This was driven by
a number of factors, including an increase in underlying claims
frequency as falling fuel prices and resurgent economic activity
led to an increase 1n vehicle miles driven The market also saw
an increase 1n subrogated costs as some market participants
responded to the Competition and Market Authonty's Private
Motor Market Investigation by inflating non-fault repair and hire
car costs Set against this backdrop, our view is that the market
remains under-priced and will need to impose further rate
Increases in 2016

Our 2015 operating profit of £72 million was down 22%
compared to 2014 due to the lower investment returns noted
above and the impact of £36 million of fiood-related claims

on underwnting profits The underwnting result benefited once
again from significant favourable prior-year reserve development
amounting to £93 million, atbert £16 millton lower than the
equivalent figure in 2014 While we expect to see continued
positive reserve run-coff in future years it will be at a lower

level than that experienced in recent years We have therefore
continued to strengthen current year underwriting margins

by increasing motor premium rates We increased motor

new business rates by 14% and 13% in the direct and broker
channels respectively We also took the opportunity to increase
premium rates at renewal but at a lower rate than new business
In order to recognise the importance of customer loyalty

and longevity

Private motor insurance remains our most significant business
Iine and we are the third largest private car insurer in the

UK with around 12% market share, based on the number

of vehicles insured Our strategy to lessen our dependence

on motor continued apace 1n 2015 and more than half of the
net growth in policy numbers came from non-motor lines

The two core businesses of direct and broker now underwrite
3 3 mitlion and 1 4 milhion policies respectively In contrast to
2014 when both businesses contnbuted equally to operating
profit (at £46 million each), the relative profit contributions
this year were very different The direct business recorded

a record operating profit of £91 million driven by a very

strong underwnting result of £76 million However in broker,
the commercial business was adversely impacted by the
extreme weather conditions in December with flood and storm
claims amounting to £23 million This, combined with weaker
underwnting results in private motor, meant that our broker
channel business reported an operating loss of £19 million
We anticipate that the rating and underwnting actions we took
In 2015 will restore this business to profitability in 2016
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Results for 2015 Personal motor 4 Home M Other s Commercial da

£1,013m £175m £39m £245m

B9% 12% 3% 16%
Gross written premiums 2015 - £1,472m

Gross written premiums 2014 — £1,3%94m
£948m  £1B2m £37m  £227m

68% 13% 3% 16%

(£9m) £73m £4mE£4am
13%  operating profit 2015 - £72m 101% 6% 6%

Operating profit 2014 — £92m £45m £28m £5m £14m 3
49% 30% 6% 15% £
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3.011K 850k 737k 131k

In-force policles 2015 — 4 7Tm 64% 18% 15% 3%

.
[=]
g |
In-force policies 2014 — 4 6m 2,963k BaBk 639k 125k %
65% 18% 14% % 2
1]
o
1=
p-d
g
£m 2015 2014 g
Underwriting result 44 51 ®
Investment return 28 41
Operating profit 72 92
Centrally managed costs - {1}
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (2) {2}
Profit before tax 70 89
2015 2014
Direct operating profit £91m £46m
Broker operating (loss)/profit £(19)m £46m
Loss ratio 66 3% 71 8%
Expense ratio 29 8% 24 3%
Combined ratio 96 1% 96 1%
‘ Investment returns* 1 3% 2 0%
Direct premium income £837m £789m
THE BRITISH Broker premium income £635m £605m
INSURANCE
AWARDS Pre-tax return on capital 9 5% 12 3%
2015
L . Direct in-force policies 3 3m 3 2m
AWARD Broker in-force polictes 14m 1 4m

Fhe J'yfl..ltin warl rf achisvomint
* Quoted gross of expenses
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Total in-force
policies

4.7/m

+0 im

Road Rescue
customers

925k

+108k

Broker
Commercial
premium written

£2441m

+8%

Despite active management of the investment
portfolio during 2015, the continuing low interest
rate environment meant that we were only able
to generate a total return of 1 3% on our invested
assets, compared to 2 0% in 2014

Once again a key driver of our continued
portfohio growth was the fugh level of personal
recommendations made by existing customers
For the second year running YouGov confirmed
that we remain the most recommended insurer
in the UK We believe this achievement denves
directty from our policy of providing fairly-priced
Insurance products and exceptional customer
service Also, the customer satisfaction surveys
carned out by the Institute of Customer Service
(ICS) showed that consumers continue to rank
us as one of the very best insurers in the UK
for customer satisfaction This s a tremendous
accolade for all our customer-facing people and
the leadership teams who support them

The private motor market continues to be affected
by the activities of claims management companies
encouraging the submission of spurnious claims
for whiplash It 1s encouraging therefore that

the Chancellor's Autumn Statement set out
Government plans to address the compensation
culture, possibly by removing the entitlement to
cash compensation for minor personal injunies
We fully support the government’s plans and have
made a public commitment to pass on all savings
to customers through lower premiums

Direct

The number of policies held by our direct
customers Increased for the eighth year in

arow In-force policies grew by over 100,000

to 3 3 milhon Motor insurance policies ended
the year up by just over 45,000 at 1 95 million
in-force policies reflecting an easing of
competitive pressures in the second half of the
year Once again, the strongest growth came n
our road rescue business where in-force policies
grew by 94,000 to 648,000 In addition to these
stand-alone road rescue policies, we also sell
road rescue as an add-on to our motor insurance
polictes These additional sales mean we now
have 925,000 road rescue customers in total

In home Insurance, policies grew by 6% to
624,000 in-force policies Despite the growth

in policy numbers, home premium income fell
back slightly, by 1%, due to falling average
premiums, to £136 million

Broker

In the broker channel we remained cautious

on personal motor, holding policy volumes broadtly
flat while increasing gross premiums written by
6% to £355 million through selective rate
increases Similarly in broker home insurance
we focused on the mamtenance of underwnting
discipline rather than velume and allowed
business to move to other panel members,

with the result that gross premiums fell by

14% to £38 milion Our commercial business
continued to expand and we achieved our eighth
consecutive year of significant premium growth
with total commergial premium written up by
8% to £241 mullion Underwriting profits in the
commerclal business were adversely impacted
by the end of year weather events

Looking ahead

We believe that 2016 will bring more attractive
trading conditions as private motor insurers push
through further premium rate increases in order to
offset claims cost inflation Qur general insurance
business i1s well positioned to take advantage of
these conditions with its reputation for excellence
in customer service and fair pricing for both new
and renewing customers We expect to see
further growth in policy numbers and aim to

see improving returns for LV= members over

the medium-term
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Life Review

Our cystomer centric
and, agf/e culture helps
differentiate us from
the competition.

Richard Rowney
Managing Director of Life and Pensions

Retirement Cperating profit Protection sales

Solutions sales
£1,552m £dlm £2r2m

+21%

Helping our customers protect their
health, wealth, family and wellbeing

Our core vision remains unchanged — we continue
to strive to be Britain’s best loved insurer,
acting as a challenger brand on the side of

our customers We have been delighted to be
recognised by consumers and the industry as
the Most Trusted Life Insurer {(MoneyWise) and
the Most Recommended Insurer (YouGov) for the
third consecutive year In addition we were proud
to be awarded Outstanding Achievement from
the Financial Adviser Service Awards alongside

a further twenty five awards for our range of
products and services

Such outstanding service ¢an only be delivered
by having an engaged and inspired workforce
2015 saw record levels of employee engagement
with 97% of our colleagues expressing thewr betief
In our brand and values Our customer centric
and agile culture helps differentiate us from the
competition and this has never been more tested
than n responding to the pension freedoms which
came nto effect in April 2015 We responded
swiftly to our customers’ needs, sustaining market
leading service when call volumes surged across

the market, and were the first to market with
our blended LV= Retirement Account propesition
and online regulated advice service LV=
Retirerment Wizard

QOur protection business has also had a strong
2015 again showing encouraging growth in
relatively flat markets We leveraged our expertise
In iIncome protection to enter new markets by
launching LV= Business Protection, offering
specialised and good value protection, advice
and tools to business customers across the UK

We are increasingly being recognised as thought
leaders within the industry and have worked
closely with the Government and our regulators
to help shape the industry and make decisions
that are i the best interest of our customers
and members In 2015 our managing director,
Richard Rowney, joined the expert panel on

the Financial Advice Market Review to develop
ways of making financial advice work hetter

for everyone
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2015 Results

Definitions Overall the hfe business has delivered As a result, new business contributton before
Present value an operating profit of £41 mullion, up from investment has nearly doubled to £47 million
of new business a £7 million operating loss in 2014 (2014 £25m) demenstrating profitable
premiums growth across the business
(PVYNBP}) New business volumes have grown significantly,
The total of new particularly In pensions as consumers increasingly  Operating profit has alsc benefited from
single premium utihise our draw-down expertise We have seen favourable one-off model and valuation
sales received in good growth in our specialist savings business changes of £23 million (2014 £14 milion
the year plus the with bond sales being particularly encouraging, adverse movement) Of this, £16 million relates
discounted value, and n protection we've expenenced strong growth to changes in protection business reinsurance
at the point of across all our major product lines
sale, of the regular
premiums we Results 2015
expect 1o receive
£m 2015 2014
over the term of
the new contract Operating profit/{loss) 41 (7)
sold in the vear. Pensions business IFRS adjustment (5) 1
For Equity Release Short-term investment fluctuations (27) (10)
this represents Centrally managed costs {2) (2)
the amount of Amortisation of acquired Intangibles {1) (1) w
loans provided. Profit/(loss) before tax 6 {19) g
s
[e)
New business Pm“;:e‘::::‘:'(:z:;:?I"e“ Single premlums New regular premiums §
New business g
- 2018 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
contribution. i in om im e o
e contribution
to underlying Pensions 801 636 708 569 14 11
operating profit Annurties 309 387 309 387 - -
as a result of new Flexibte Guarantee Bonds 379 153 379 153 - -
business written. Equity Release 63 105 63 105 - - o
Total retirement solutions 1,552 1,281 1,459 1,214 14 11 g
Protection 272 217 - - 35 31 Z
New business Total life 1,824 1,498 1,459 1,214 49 42 §
mafgin PYNBP Annuities sales comprised
. Enhanced £1186 milhon (2014 £205 mullien)
The new business Traditional fixed term £193 million (2014 £139 millon) and
contribution as Our one year fixed term annuity product was sold to support consumers in advance of the budget reforms cerming Into effect
LV= ne lenger sells this product naw that reforms are n force (2014 £43 millign)
a percentage
of sales on a New buslness Contnbut|0n Néw business margin
PVNBP basis.
2015 2014 2015 2014 b4
£m £m % % ;
New business contribution before investment 8
Internal rate of in new propositions 5
return {IRR) Pensions* 6 1 1 - @
The dascc:jlnrt] Annuities 4 3 1 1
:;te atw "i : Flexible Guarantee Bonds 9 3 2 2
¢ present vaiue Equity Release 7 8 11 8
of ali expected
future revenue Total retirement solutions 26 15 2 1
is equal to the Protection 21 10 8 5
L Total life before Investment in new proposlitions 47 25 3 2
expected initial
investment to Investment in new propositions (17) {11)
T Net new business contnbution 30 14 2 1
* Calculated on a value add basis 1 e before pensions business IFRS adjustment
Payback period New business internal rate of return and
The length of
time :ec?uired paybaCk penOd ona SOIVenCy I bBSIS Intemal rate of return Payback perlod
for the expected 2015 2014 2015 2014
% % Years Years
cash flows from
new business 1o Pensions 8 7 10 10
equal the amount Annuities 20 11 5 8
of cash required to Protection 14 18 6 6
write the business. Total ife 13 12 7 8

The numbers above are calculated on a Solvency | sasis Going forward we will be managing our business and calculating cur return on a
Solvency Il basis
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Retirement solutions

The retirement business has successfully recovered in 2015
as consumers increasingly begin to make decisions about their
retirement that were previously deferred from 2014 untd the
new pension freedoms came Into effect in Apnl 2015

Whilst consumers become accustomed te therr range of options
and choices ahead, we believe LV=1s well placed to fulfil these
needs We were first to launch our blended LV= Retirement
Account proposition which combines innovatwe products

such as the LV= Fixed Term Annuity and LV= Flexible Guarantee
Funds Blending allows our customers to have personalised
solutions that meet their individual needs Our innovative
Retirement Account solution can give the assurance of a regular
income, the flexibility to draw-down cash and/or the ability

to keep a proportion invested all in one product This unique
proposition provides the full breadth of retirement options,
designed in a way to give customers the best passible

outcome for their hard-earned savings

Total new business sales have increased by over 20% to

£1 5 billion Pension sales have increased significantly as
they become a core part of a blended portfolio, as well as our
Flexible Guarantee Bond {Investment proposition) and Funds
{Retirement Account proposition) which have increased to
£379 milhon in 2015 (2014 £153 million) As expected
enhanced annutttes have continued to decline as consumers
utihse the benefits of a guaranteed income later in hife

when income certainty 1s more important

New business contribution before investment in new
propositions has increased for the retirement business

to £26 milion (2014 £15 million), reflecting both increases
In sales and margtns

We secured a majonty stake in Wealth Wizards Ltd in August
to support the development of digital regulated advice solutions
supporting our aim to make financial advice affordable and
accessible to the mass market Through this partnership

weg have been first to market with Lv= Retirement Wizard,

a fully automated and regulated advice solution offering
online advice at a low fixed cost with a money-back guarantee
Wealth Wizards also have their own branded Pension Wizard
to help consumers maximise therr long-term savings in the
build-up to retirement, and are developing further innovations
in the advice sector

Since the acquisition we have seen a significant rise in interest
for automated advice across the mdustry and have been
exploring a number of different partnerships which we will begin
to launch in 2016 Our new LV= Corporate Solutions brand
packages together a number of our at-retirement solutions,
including our automated advice services, defined benefit
scheme solution (Pension Compass), and wider education and
guidance tools for the corporate market, to allow partners and
their customers to access the full range of pension freedoms

Following the success of our new propositions, we are
continuing to invest more in our back-office systems and
processes to create easy-1o-use solutions for our customers,
partners and people We have made a significant investment
In our digital strategy and believe that this will help sustain
growth in future years

We remain confident that through ocur strong mndustry lobbying,
backed up with market leading propositions, and continued high
levels of customer satisfaction we can continue to challenge
the industry and drive changes that mean everyone can get
more from their hard-earned savings

Protection

We are pleased to report further growth in our protection
business with new business sales up 25% on 2014 to

£272 million against a relatively flat market Qverall business
performance was impressive, more than doubling new
business cantnbution before investment to £21 million
(2014 £10 miliion) through a combination of strong sales
and good cost control, as well as additional benefits
achieved through restructuring re-insurance and a review

of mortality assumptions

We continue to strongly campatgn on the wide ranging benefits
of iIncome protection, which provides a safety net for consumers
If they are unable to work because of an aceident or sickness
We support imtiatives such as ‘7 Families’ which aims to raise
public awareness of the financial impact of long-term iliness

or disability and to demonstrate the value of rehabilitation

and counselling to help people get back to work We have also
increased our training and support for intermediaries and are
improving our online educational tools

We have taken the step to widen our proposition for small
and medium business owners 1n the second half of 2015

by launching LV= Business Protection We have developed

a differentiated proposition with specialist advice, tools and
education which has received an excellent response from
advisers and customers Following this success we continue
to explore further opportunities to develop Into adjacent
markets where we believe our customer focus and brand
could gain traction quickly

To support our goal of providing good quality propositions

at a good price, a key priority in 2015 was o review the
protection business modet with a focus on lowering cost and
Increasing agility The newly designed operating model has
enabled increased automation, faster and cheaper innovation,
and a more intuitive new business platform which 1s due to
launch in 2016

With the benefit of a more agile business model, we have
brought together an advisory panel of industry experts to help
us review digital trends and innovation to develop new ways of
engaging consumers with protection With our deep consumer
understanding, trusted brand and technical expertise we believe
we are best placed to embrace technology and innovation in

a historically conventional industry

Looking ahead

We do not expect growth to be sustained at 2015 levels as
undoubtedly the competition will respond with disruptive
solutions There appears to be no let-up in the pace of
regulatory change, the launch of the secondary annuity
market and forecast tax changes are all areas that will keep
the Ife industry busy over the coming years We do however
believe that we are well positioned and have laid some strong
foundations for future profitable growth

Our agility and understanding of the needs of our customers
has enabled us to move faster than the competition and we
reman confident that we will see continued success over the
medium-term We continue to explore and embrace emerging
trends such as robo-advice which we believe can make financial
services more accessible to the general public By leading the
market i1 this way we can continue to lobby the industry from
an informed position, supperting our vision of being Britain's
Best Loved insurer by ensuring the best possible cutcomes

for our customers and members
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Heritage Review

Notes
1 The pay outs are based on

the following policies
Endowment - Policyholder
aged 30 next birthday at
entry monthiy premium
of £50 maturing
1 February 2015
Pension {regular) —
Policyholder retwing
at age 65 menthly
premium of £200
maturing 1 January 2015
With Profits Growth Bong —
An investment of £10 000
as at 1 November 2015

2 The industry pay outs are

taken from the maost recent
past performance surveys
and relate to maturities and
bond surrenders during 2015
The sources are
Endowment - Money
Management survey
published March 2015
Pension (regular) — Money
Management survey
pubhshed February 2015
With Profits Growth Bond —
Money Management survey
pubhshed January 2016

Results 2015

£m 2018 2014
Other products underlying operating loss 3 (2)
Model and valuation changes 91 11
Operating profit 88 9
Short-term investment fluctuations and related tems* 11 30
Centrally managed costs - {1}
Profit before tax 99 38

* Short term investment fluctuations and related 1tems contains the favourable impact of tax deducted from policy asset shares and the RNPFN

fund totalling £l million (2014 £34 millon)

In 2015 the guarantee bond business moved to
the life business allowing heritage to focus on
those policies that are not actively marketed

The heritage business includes ordinary branch
and industrtal branch with-profits policies along
with some non-profit business and it also Includes
with-profits and unit-linked business acquired
from the Royal National Pension Fund for Nurses
(‘RNPFN'} The with profits policies are a mix of
both unitised and conventional business Sales of
the few open categones in 2015 were £9 million
on a PVNBP basis (2014 £15 million) Total
policies in-force are 654,000 of which 610,000
are with-profits and reserves are £4 3 billion

Hentage operating profit of £88 million (2014
£9 millign) ts driven by model and valuation
changes of £91 milhon (2014 £11 million)

Of this, £69 million relates to the methodology
used to value the habilities for OB pension
policies, which was adjusted during the year to
reflect a change in the basis used to calculate the
amount payable when the policyholder elects to
take the proceeds from the policy as cash rather
than as an annuity Continued cost control has
ensured that costs are being managed in line
with the predicted run-off of the business

The main with-profits fund achieved an investment
return of 3 8% for the year This was a strong

performance In the face of difficult market
conditions, out-performing market benchmarks
by 1 1% This 1s the fourth year running that the
fund has delivered returns above benchmark

In December 2014 we agreed terms with
Teachers Assurance to take cver the majonty
of its bustiness interests Like LV=, Teachers
Assurance 1s a member-owned mutual friendly
society Everything 1s in place to complete the
transaction in the first half of 2016, subject
to regulatory approval Teachers Assurance
currently manages 60,000 policies

We are examining carefully the findings of the
recent Financiat Conduct Authority (FCA) review
published with regards to the treatment of long-
standing customers, whose policies are no longer
being actively marketed We aim to treat all our
customers fairly, nonetheless we will be paying
particular attention to the FCA's concerns

Heritage with-profits pay-outs and
tindustry comparison

Recent maturity and surrender values for LVFS
with-profits policies show that LV= continues

to perform strongly, exceeding median pay-outs
for all of the policy selected categories and
achieving top quartile pay-outs in five of the
nine categories, when compared aganst
industry pay-outs

Lv=P Median p

) £7,830
ONS
£ £13,902
€L
4 " s
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2
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Risk
Management

The effective management
of the risks we accept
supports the de//‘:/erg

of our strateqy and
protects the value that

we create for members.

Steve Haynes
Chief Risk Officer

In operating 1n the life, general iInsurance and heritage sectors
LV=: takes on a range of nisks that need to be understood and

well managed These risks anse from the type of products we

provide, the commitments we make to our customers, and the
general environment in which we operate

Our approach to managing our nsks

The effective management of the nsks we accept supports
the delivery of our strategy, protects the value that we create
for members, and helps us to identify opportunities where
we can make better use of our capital

Qur sk management approach has the following

core components

1 A nsk appetite framewerk which sets out the type and
amount of risk the group 1s able and willing to accept,

2 A risk management system that 1s used to identify,
assess and manage the nsks in accordance with
the nisk appetite framework, and

3 A nsk governance culture which encourages all
LV= employees to engage actively in risk management
through the operation of group-wide risk policies,
standards and procedures

Our nsk appetite framework
The value of the business comprises the net value of the
assets and labilities (‘Balance Sheet Value') plus its brand
and reputation {'Franchise Value’) and therefore the nsk
appetite framework is focused on safeguarding these
value drivers by aligning nisk to them

Value of
the Business

* Risks to the
Value of the
Business

Balance
Sheet Value

¢ Value of Capital
Resources falls

» Increased Capital
Requirement

s Liquidity

Risk Appetite
statements for risk
of loss of balance
sheet value

Franchise
Value

* | 0ss of reputation

s Lack or loss
of capability

* Failure to
meet stakeholder
commitments

Risk Appetite
statement for
risk of loss of
franchise value
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As a result of this approach the board has approved the following five risk appetite statements

Financial Strength
{Balance Sheet valug)

Solvency Strength
(Balance Sheet value)

Liquidity
(Balance Sheet value)

Reputation & Capability
{Franchise value)

Stakeholder Commitment
(Franchise Value)

These risk appetite statements are supported by

Lv=will hold a levet of capital surplus that 1s equivalent to being assessed as an
S&P ‘A’ rated firm

LV= has no appetite to breach the regulatory Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR)
and 1s only prepared to breach the Sclvency Capital Requirement (SCR}) in the event
of a severe financial market led scenarno

LV=will hold sufficient hguid capital resources to ensure 1t can meet its hquidity
requirements In both normal and stressed circumstances

LvV= will seek to aveid risks that matenally impair its reputation, while ensuring that
1ts treatment of customers and 1ts operational capablities are designed to deliver
fair customer outcomes

LV=will, in stressed market conditions and over a cumuiative three year penod,
aim to generate sufficient profit after tax to meet 1ts planned mutual bonus and
debt interest payments without recourse to retained earnings

LV= has an internal capital model that calculates the amount

Risk preference statements which qualitatively set out
the risks we believe we are capable of managing in order
to generate a return, the nsks we can support but which
we share with third parties, and the risks we seek to avoid
or minimise, and

Risk hmits (or tolerances) and triggers which quantify
specific deciston points, chiefly to provide an early warning
to initiate actions which should ensure the nsk appetite
boundaries are not breached

Our nsk management system
The nisk management system 1s compnised of four core steps
as detailed in the following figure

Management

System

Identify Risk identification 1s carned out on a regular basis,
including as part of the business planning process and

any major business imitiatives The process draws on a
combenation of internal and external data and considers
both normal conditions and stressed environments

Risks are recorded on a business-wide risk register

Assess. We measure risk on the basis of the capital

we believe we need to hold (as well as other bases If
appropriate) This supports our assessment of therr
significance relative to the potential return that can

be earned from taking the risk, and therefore enables

us to appropnately direct resources to their management

of capital required in respect of each nsk This assessment
1s performed at an ndividual risk, business hne, entity,

and group level and i1s based on the level of capital we would
need to hold to survive an extreme risk event (assessed as
being a 1 in 200 year event) The calcutation i1s then adjusted
to recognise any inter-relationships between all the risks
within LV= to determine a group-wide capital requirement
This model is then used to support the calculation of the
group's own solvency assessment and the regulatory
required level of capital, where these differ a reconciliation
1s produced and considered in detail by the board

There are some nisks, such as iquidity, strategic and
emerging, against which nisk capital 1s not held and which
are therefore excluded from the internal capitai model
These risks are assessed against measures agreed by
the board that are aligned to the risk appetite statements

Control Regular monitoring of the key nsks 1s performed
to ensure that the nsk management and mitigation
approaches applied {accept, avoid, transfer, control}

are effective Monitoring includes reviewing (a) our nsk
exposures against the applicable appetites, and (b)

key risk indicators against operating and financial risk
limits and tolerances Early warning indicators are monitored
as triggers for management decision, such as putting into
effect pre-prepared contingency pians We monitor the
effectiveness of controls in place to manage operational
risks, including compliance with the group’s policies and
minimum standards

Report Risk reporting 1s captured in the quarterly Group

Risk Information Pack and through regular reporis to the

board and the Risk Committee by the chief nsk officer

The content 1s focused on

— The current and projected risk and solvency profile
of the group

- The output of the most recent stress testing and
scenario analysis

— A revtew of the current and projected performance
against rnisk appetite

- A review and impact assessment of the principal risks

— Analysis of nsk experience and risk events

- The performance ratings captured by the conduct
risk dashboard
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Our nsk governance

Qur nsk governance framework operates through
group-witde nsk policies and busiess standards,

the rnisk governance structure set out below, and clearly
defined roles, responsibilities and delegated authorities

The figure below sets out the summary governance framework
that was in operatien during 2015

Risk Audit
Committee Committee

Investment
Committee

Selected board
commttees

Group Executive , \ Group Asset

XN ~ & Liability
j Committee
\‘ Other committees
Group Valuation

& Internal Model
Committee

Risk Committee

Selected executive
committees

Risk &

Internal Audit Actuarial

Compliance function functien

functions

In this framework the board retains primary responsibility
for strategy, performance management and rnsk control and
it has therefore established the Risk Commitiee to assist
in providing leadership, direction and oversight in respect
of the group's principal risks The board delegates day-to-
day risk management to the chief executive, who allocates
operational aspects to executives within the group through
delegated authornty mandates Line management in the
husiness s accountable for risk management, which together
with the risk function and internal audit form our three lines
of defence of risk management

+ First Line Business operating functions which includes
product development, underwriting, sales and distribution,
customer service, claims handling, finance and capstal
management, IT, human resources and legal

The first hine 1s accountable for the management of all
risks relevant to the business of the function or area and
the management of this 1s facilitated through executive
committees and the Group Asset and Liabifity Committee

* Second Line Group risk management function which also
includes regulatory compliance and group financial cnime

The second line 1s accountable for providing objective
challenge and oversight of the business management

of all nsks and for developing and maintaining the nsk
management framework The management of this 1s
achieved through the operation of the Group Executive

Risk Committee and business/support unit nsk committees
which monitor and keep risk exposures under regular review

These committees are supported by the chief nsk officer,
who has responsibihty for estabhshing and embedding

a capital management and nsk oversight framework and
culture consistent with our risk appetite that protects and
enhances the group's balance sheet and franchise value

In addition through the group compliance function the chief

risk officer provides venficabion of comphance with regulatory

standards and informs the board, as well as the group’s
management, on key regulatory i1ssues affecting the group

« Third Line Group internal audit function

The third line I1s accountable for providing reliable
independent assessment and reporting to the Audit
and Risk Committees, board members and executive
management on the adequacy and effectiveness of
the nsk management and controt frameworks operated
by the first and second Iines of defence

Risk Policles

Our nsk policies set out specific requirements for the
management of the principal rnisks of the group along with
the nisk management framework that must be followed
The chief executive along with the business and support
unit directors annually confirm to the board that they
have implemented the necessary controls to evidence
compliance with the required systems and controls set
out in these policies

Risk Culture
A core component of effective nisk governance 1s the nisk
cuiture within LV= This culture 1s retnforced through our staff
having clear roles and responsibilities, the right skills and
capabilities, and the appropniate incentives and rewards
We stnive to embed a nisk-aware culture and values in our
business in three main ways
# by the leadership and behaviours demonstrated
by management,
s by bullding skills and capabilities to support management,
and
* by including nsk management (through the balance
of nsk with profitability and growth) in the perfermance
evaluation of key identified individuals
The remuneration strategy at LV=1s designed to be consistent
with s risk appetite, and the chief nisk officer advises the
Remuneration Committee on adherence to our nsk framework
and appetite
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The principal nsks to which LV=1s exposed
The principal risks to which LV=1s exposed have not changed significantly during 2015, and are detalled in the tables below
in four broad grouptngs

product risks,

financial market nsks,

operattonal nsks, and

general environment (strategic and emerging) risks

The table below sets out a description of each risk, the board's preference for each risk (is 1t a nsk we look to accept,
avold, transfer or control), and the nsk management n place to control the risk The largest three nsks are Life and health
insurance longevity nsk, general insurance reserving risk and credit risk from investing in fixed income assets

Product Speciflc Risks

Risk Type Risk Preference Risk Management ]

Life and health insurance nsks arise principatly from the sale
of our protection and retirement products The most matenal
risks are

= Longevity (top three risk) = Mortalty

¢ Morbidity s Persistency

+ Expense

In determining the price of our protection and retirement
products and when reporting the results of providing these
products we need to make a number of assumptions on our
customers longevity, mortahity, and/or morbidity

In addition, we need to assess how long the customer will
retain the product with LV= {persistency risk) and on the
expected costs of providing and supporting the product
and our customer (expense rnisk)

The risk to LV= arnses from the actual outcome being different
to our assumptions

General Insurance risks arise principally from the sale of our
motor, home, and commercial iInsurance products The most
matenal nsks are

s Premium * Reserve {top three risk)

* Large loss + Natural catastrophe

In designing and pricing our general insurance products we
make a number of assumptions about the expected number
of claims, the average cost of each claim, and the average
premium we will receive (together these risks are defined

as premium risk}

We also assess each year the expected level of claims we will
have to pay based on events which have already occurred but
where claim settlement remains outstanding (reserve risk)

We also make assumptions as to the number and average
cost of motor insurance claims with a value greater than

£1 mullion and also the number and average cost of those
that will be settled not as a lump sum but by regular payments
for the remainder of the policyholder's life (large loss nisk)

LV= may also be exposed to claims ansing from natural
catastrophe events (e g extreme weather} and an assumption
1s made as to the number and seventy of such events
{natural catastrophe risk)

In all the above instances the nisk to LV= arises from
the fact that the actua! outcome will be different from
our assumptions

We will take Iffe and
health insurance risks
where we have the
appropriate core skilis
In pricing, underwriting
and reserving

We like longevity,
mortality, and morbidity
risks as they diversify
well (1 e have httle or
no correlation) aganst
other risks we retain

Persistency and expense
risk are unrewarded and
will generally be reduced
to as low a level as 1s
commercially sensible

We will take general
insurance nsks

where we have the
appropnate core skills
in pricing, underwniting,
and reserving

We seek general
Insurance risks as they
diversify well against
other nsks we retain

Risk appetites set to imit
exposures to key life and
health insurance risks
Extensive use of data,
financial models and
analysis to improve pricing
and risk selection

Product design that ensures
products and propasitions
meet customer needs

Use of reinsurance to
transfer some of the
longevity, mortality,

and morbidity nisks

to other insurers
Documented claims
management philosophies
and procedures

Risk appetites set to iimit
exposures to key general
Insurance risks

Extensive use of data,
financial models and
analysis to improve pricing
and risk selection

Clearly defined delegations
of underwriting authority
with indmadual hmits
Product design that ensures
praducts and propositions
meet customers’ needs
Documented claims
management procedures
Use of reinsurance to
reduce the financial impact
of a catastrophe and
manage capttal
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Financial Market Risks

Risk Type Risk Preference

Credit nsk (top three risk) anses from investing n fixed
income assets {government and corporate bonds) where there
15 a risk that the (ssuer may default on interest or capital or
the bond may falf in value

We nvest In fixed iIncome assets in order to match our
habilities to certain policyholders (principally holders of
annuities but also holders of certain hentage and general
Insurance policies)

The risk te LV= anises from changes in the value of the assets
(e g driven by company/sector downgrades, reduced market
llguidity) which are not reflected in the value of the underlying
policyholder habsilities

Other investment nsk arises as part of our general investment

performance and product pricing The most material rnisks are
* Equity price

* Property

s Interest rate

The nsk to Lv= arnises from the perfermance of the
investments being different from that assumed in

the planning and pricing processes

Liquidity risk anses from the possibiity that, either because
of the nature of the investments hetd or adverse market
conditions we are unable to realise sufficient cash to be able,
although solvent, to meet our commitments to customers

or third party partners when they fall due or can only secure
them at an excesstve cost

Credit counterparty risk arises from the hotding of investment

assets, hedging risks associated with certain investment
assets, reinsuring certain product related risks to third
partes, from normal trade credit such as brokers and
premium finance

The rnisk to LV=1s that a counterparty defauits on its
obligations or fails to meet them in a timely manner

We wiil take credit
risk as we believe we
have the expertise
to manage It

As an insurer, we benefit
from being able to invest
for the long-term due

to the relative stabihity
and predictability of our
cash outflows

We actively seek some
market risks as part
of our Investment and
product strategy

We have a limited
appetite for interest
rate and inflation
risks as we do not
believe that these are
adequately rewarded

We have no appetite
for not meeting our
commitments and
therefore sufficient
liguid financial
resources are
retained to meet
payments in both
normal and stressed
market conditions

In our life business we
seek the additional
return that (s provided
by Hliquid assets,
where this matches
the term of our annuity
liabifities This results
in taking some credit
counterparty nsk (e g to
commerctal and equity
release mortgages)

We have limited
appetite for other credit
counterparty nsk,

but accept this risk
selectively to optimise
risk-adjusted returns

Risk Management

Risk appetites set to hmit
overall level of credit risk
Credit mit framework
imposes hmits on credit
concentration by tssuer,
sector and type of
instrument

Investment restrictions
on soverelgn and corporate
exposure to some
Eurozone countries

Credit risk hedging
Specific asset de-risking

Risk appetites set to

{imit exposures to key
market risks

Active asset management
and hedging by the

group Investment
management team

Asset and frabihity matching
limits to manage the impact
of interest rate changes

Risk appetite set to ensure
minimum hquidity ratios are
maintained in normai and
stressed market conditions
Asset hability matching

to ensure cash flows are
suffiment to meet habilities
Limitations on the level and
quality of collateral that
can be held in respect of
hedgmg arrangements

Risk appetite set to imit
counterparty exposures
and concentrations
Investment restrictions
on sovereign and corporate
counterparty exposure to
some Eurozone countries
Investment restrictions
on aggregate and fund
credit qualty

Specific controls to
manage exposure

1o asset counterparties
and reinsurers
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Operaticnal Risks

Risk Type Risk Preference Risk Management

Operational nsk anses from all aspects of running the

business The pnncipal categornes of operational risk

for LV= are

* Fraud and cnme

* information security

+ Legal and regulatory

s People, processes,
and {T systems

Financial processes
Bustness interruption
Customer/conduct
Outsourcing

tn order to process large volumes of transactions, we are
dependent on various IT systems and platforms, across
numerous and diverse products We ailso operate under the
ever-evolving requirements set out by different regulatory and
fegal regimes (including tax}, as well as utiising a significant
number of third parties to distribute products and to support
business operations

Our IT, data management, complance and ¢ther operational
systems and processes incorporate controls that are
designed to manage and mitigate the operational risks
assoctated with our activities This includes threats such

as computer viruses, attempts at unauthorised access,
fraud and cyber-security attacks

The rnisk to LV= occurs through the losses that could occur
If the internal control framework to manage these core
business processes fails

Operational risk will
generally be reduced

to as low a level as 18
commercially sensible,
on the basis that taking
operational rnisk will
rarely provide us with an
upside, and operational
falures may adversely
impact our reputation,
Iimpairing our abilty to
attract new business,
or {ead to poor
customer outcomes

s Assurance activity and

informatton on the
operation of the controls
from management, internal
audit and nsk functions,
supported by operational
risk and audit registers and
first ine control logs
Attestation process that
reports to the board on the
effectiveness of controls
Risk reporting and root
cause analysis processes
In respect of all reported
operational losses
Significant Investment In
financial crime and fraud
management resources
Scenario based approach to
determine the appropniate
level of capital to hold for
operational nsks
Consideration of how
operational risks might
matenalise in a stressed
situation {for example a
catastrophe) in addition

{o day-to-day normality
Monitoring and reporting
on the impact of our
operational processes

on our customers
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General Environment (Strategic and Emerging) Risks

Risk Type Risk Preference Risk Management

Lv=1s exposed to a number of strategic and emerging risks
that will typicaily be driven by one of or a comhination of the
following environmental factors

* & & 0 & @

Poltical events
Environmental changes
Soctal and welfare changes
Technology change

Legal changes

Economic events

We assess these risks from two perspectives
1 Do they change the markets we operate in such that

they became incompatible with our strategic objectives

2 Do they limit Lv= from operating effectively tn its

chosen markets

The general ervironment nsks that LV=1s monitoring include

Chmate change — potentially resulting in higher than
expected weather-related claims and inaccurate pricing
of general insurance risk

New technologies - fallure to understand and react to
the impact of new technology and its effect on customer
behaviour and how we distnibute products

Regulatory change — our businesses face considerable
regulatory change as a result of Solvency I, our corporate
structure as a mutual and developments in regulation
relating to customer outcomes and value for money,
which could affect how much capital we hold, how we
operate and how we sell and distnibute our products

Political nsk - the Government in the UK incentivises
long-term saving and private pension provision through
tax benefits, while also providing an alternative through
state provision In some markets there are (or could be
In the future) restrictions and controls on premium rates,
rating factors and charges Any change in public policy
could influence the demand for, and profitability of,

our products

Cyber cnme — cnminals may attempt to access our IT
systems to steal or utihse company and/or customer data,
or plant malware viruses, in order to access customer or
company funds, and/or damage our reputation and brand

Prolonged low interest rate environment - if current
low interest rates continue for a prolonged period it will
adversely affect the margin we can earn hetween the
returns we can offer customers and the return we earn
on our Investments, as well as the attractiveness of
the returns we can offer to new customers

The board operates * Regular review of emerging
a comprehensive risk nsk registers
management system e Scenano, war-gaming, and

to help the business

manage these inherent

risks of operating in .
its chosen markets

workshop sessions with
internal/external experts
Stress testing analysis
and assessment

+ Only taking risks the
group has the ability to
understand and manage
Annual business planning
and strategy cycle with
regular review of key

nisk indicators

Controls to minimise
risk concentrations

The risk management

system Is designed to

help the board 1dentify, .
assess, and manage

such risks as soon as

they become a realistic

threat to the group .

New and emerging latent claims - new claims on policies
written a long time In the past may arse as a result of
court judgements extending hability, new legislation,

new historic evidence and interpretation, emerging
medical science on health effects of long-term exposures
to chemicals etc

Medical advances and healthier life styles — medtcal
advances and healthier life styles may increase life
expectancy of our annuitants and thus future payments
over their Iifetime may be In excess of the amounts

we currently expect

Pandemics, new diseases and antibiotic resistance —
the adverse impact on mortality could adversely affect
the profitablity of our hife protection products and might
also disrupt our operations

Big Data — failure 10 keep pace with the use of data
to price more accurately and to detect insurance
fraud could lead to loss of competitive advantage
and financial losses

Changes In customer behaviour — changes in the legal
environment or as a result of advances in technology
may change the rates at which customers exercise
options embedded in their contracts or enabte them

to take advantage of additional information availlable to
them to exercise options in a way that 1s adverse to us
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The board assessment of our nsks and risk
management processes

Assessment of the risk and control environment

The board has overall responsibility for the group’s rnisk and
control environment and to support its management of nsk the
board utthses Audit and Risk Committees The Audit Committee
15 responsible for monitoring the internal control framework,
which ensures the nisks accepted are managed within risk
appetite, and the Risk Committee 1s responsible for the
effective operation of the nsk management system

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee recelves regular reports from the group
internal audit director which set out the results of the audits
performed in the period since the last meeting These reports
highlight in particular significant control weaknesses or failings
along with the recommended action to improve the control,
and common or systemic themes ansing from audits across
the group This reporting enables the Audit Commuttee to gamn
an understanding of whether the internal control processes
are cperating as expected and to report on this assessment
to the board

An overview of the activity of the Audit Committee in 2015
1S set out on page 81

To support this activity the chief executive and his direct
reports make an annual attestation and associated exception
report to the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the
risk management system and controls being operated

The attestation process 1s led by the chief risk officer

The attestation prowides the following assurance to the

commuittee, along with any matenal exceptions

* All matenal nsks and controls have been identified,
assessed and managed,

* Appropriate systems and controls have been implemented,
which are adequately designed to manage the group s risk
exposures and are capable of detecting, preventing and
limeting fraud and error

+ All reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that all
materal risks and key controls for business units, including
all types of principal nsks {1 e strategic, financial and
operational), have been identified, assessed and recorded,
along with the associated key controls

* All nsks outside of nsk appetite have been identified and
have appropriate mitigation plans in place to bring them
within appetite, or they have been formally sk accepted,
or they are included n the exception report

* An assessment of the internal control environment within
each area of the business has been performed

* Adequate controls are in place to mitigate identified nsks
« Al nsks are owned and understood

« All matenal control weaknesses that management are
aware of are listed in the exceptions report

¢ There are no materal areas of non-compliance with
group policies

Risk Committee

The principal role of the committee 1s to assist the beard

in discharging 1ts nsk oversight responsibilibies by

¢ Focusing on current nsk exposure, future risk strategy
and the embedding and maintenance of an appropriate
culture in relation to the management of nsk, and

» Provtding assurance to the board on the effectiveness of nsk
management and of the nsk management framework of the
group and acting as the main conduit between management
and the board on risk matters

In support of this the committee receives a regular report
from the ctief nsk officer on changes n the nsk profile,

the performance against risk appetite, material risk events,
and the operation of the nsk management framework

The Risk Committee also reviews at each meeting the
principal risks of the group and their assessment against
the board’s appetite for such risks A summary of the activity
of the Risk Committee 1s shown in the table overteaf

Board assessment

Based on the reports of these committees, the attestation
from management, a detalled review of the exceptions report,
and any additional reviews undertaken by the board itself,
the directors make their assessment of the effectiveness

of the nsk management and intemal controls systems and
this 1s provided in the Directors’ Report on page 94
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The main areas of focus for the Risk Committee in 2015 are set out in the table below

Oversight of the * (ne-to-one interviews with the managing directors of the general insurance and life businesses,
principal nsks the chief executive, the group finance director, the chief information officer and the group
of the business internal audit director

# Receving regular reports on the information secunty risk and control environment

+ Specific review of the nisks posed by the ending of the arrangements with the ABC
menority shareholders

Oversight of the » Agreeing STSA plan for the year

operation and output

of the Stress Testing * Challenging and advising on testing to be performed as part of the business plan

and Scenano Analysis

(STSA) Framework ¢ Reviewing the results of testing as part of the review of the business plan

Monitoring the e Reviewing a quarterly ALCO report from the group finance director, who chairs the Group ALCO

investment nsk
activities performed
by the Group

Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCO)

Oversight of, including ¢ Review of the principal nisks of the group
assessment and

challenge of, the * Regular reports received from the chief risk officer
risk management
framework + Approval of nisk policies

« Review of the effectiveness of the risk governance framework

Reviewing * Review of nsk appetite statements and associated nsk strategy pninciples
performance against

risk appetite and « Regular reports received from the chief risk officer

proposing changes

to nsk appetite ¢ Rewview of the capital management framework

statements and hmits

Oversight of « Regular reports received from the head of group compliance
all regulatory
compliance matters

Oversight of the « Regular reports recewved from the chief risk officer and the head of group comphance
group’s conduct

risk framework s Detalled review of the product governance and conduct arrangements operated by
and dashboard the busingss units

Oversight of the ORSA e Reviewed reports presented by the chief nisk officer on the proposed ORSA process
process and review
of the ORSA report « Reviewed the intenim and full year ORSA report

Review and chaltenge » Held an ad hoc meeting to review the detailed terms of the remsurance contract
of the new general

Insurance reinsurance * Recelved follow up papers responding to the chailenges raised by the committee
arrangements

Assessment of e Performed a review of the members and attendees on the committee’s effectiveness
the effectiveness
of the committee
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Assessment of the principal risks

Business
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The board has responsibility for assessing the principal nsks
of the group and whether the associated nsk management

As part of the ORSA process the board and the Risk Committee
have undertaken the following activities during 2015 to identify

and internal control systems are capable of ensuning that and assess the pnneipal risks both in 2015 and over the next oy
these risks can be managed without matenally threatening three years, along with their associated impact on solvency 5
the business model, future performance, solvency or hiquidity and liquicity §
Where in extreme scenarios It is assessed that the principal * Agreed a programme of stress testing and scenaro activity a
rnsks could provide a threat then the board has responsibility to be perfermed in accordance with the group's stress
for ensunng appropnate plans are in place that enable, testing and scenario framework This includes the following
with reasonable expectation, the group to continue in specific scenarios performed as part of the business plan
operation and to meet 1its habilities as they fall due over review and assessment, all of which have been estimated
the perniod of review defined in the Directors’ Report to reflect a 1 in 200 year nsk event

— An economic downturn scenario that has heen taken from o
The board, with suppert from the Risk Committee and the the Bank of England stress testing exercise 2015 In this <
chief risk officer, undertake a regular and robust assessment scenario global growth disappoints maternally, triggering §
of the principal nsks This assessment 15 a central component a severe and rapid deterioration in market sentiment g
of the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA) process in globally and dnving a significant flow of monies into safe &

operation across the group, which 1s shown in the figure above

The ORSA process compnses the activities set out in this
figure, with each comprising a number of established processes
within LV=, such as the regular identification and review of

the principat risks and the current and future assessment

of the solvency and hquidity of the group The output of these
processes s detailed within regutar management information
and reports presented to and considered by the board

The board reviews these records and documents as they
become avallable, and this forms the basis of the ongoing
ORSA assessment

The ORSA 1s not a one-off process - the activity takes place
throughout the year, with the latest assessment set out In

a gquarterly report as wel! as the annual ORSA report, which 15
normally produced following completion of the business plan
process in December

haven assets dunng 2016 resulting in a fall in equity
markets. wider credit spreads and a fall in government
bond yields

— A downturn in the moetor insurance market leading
to adverse combined and loss ratios in 20186,
with sub-business plan trading performance in 2016-
2017 which in turn reduces funds under management and
therefore the level of investment income in 2016-2018

— Researchers find an effective treatment for a prevalent
cancer early In 2016 It either saves or matenally
prolengs lives of those diagnosed, requiring life insurers
to matenally increase the amount of capital they hold
against longewity risk This new treatment 1s then
fast-tracked into the National Health Service ensunng
It can be applied to the majonty of the UK population

In addition the board has assessed the resilience of the
business plan under a number of individual and combined
stresses at both a group and entity level These stress tests
covered changes in corporate bond spreads, changes in

the level and profile of interest rates, changes in the price
of equities, as well as the impact of achieving alternative
volumes of business sales
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» Reviewed and updated the nsk appetite statements and nsk
Iimits for the nsk dimensions set out on page 47

* Reviewed and challenged in detall the register of financial
market, iInsurance, operational, strategic, and emerging
nsks and agreeing which of these are the pnncipal nsks
of the group This process includes an assessment of the
impact of the risk, the current and prospective opportunities
to mitigate the risk, and the controls in piace to manage
the nsk

e Performed an in-depth review of the product nsks of the
group as a result of the product portfolios, including their
impact on customers This cavers both current and past
products and assesses the governance and decision making
undertaken by management along with an assessment of
the level of conduct risk being taken by the group and the
effectiveness of the associated controls

» Undertaken an in-depth review of the loss portfolio transfer
and quota share reinsurance arrangements implemented
in December 2015 and detailed on pages 137 of the
annual report This covered the business operational and
performance risks as well as the associated nsk transfer

« Received a report from the chief nsk officer on the impact
of the proposed business plan for the penod 2016 to 2018
on the nisk and solvency profile of the group along with the
report from the chief nisk officer setting out the results of the
ORSA process operated during 2015 Both of these reports
were considered in detaill with the impact on the principal
nsks, solvency and liquidity of the group being escalated to
the board

o Considered a report from the chief nsk officer setting out the
results of a war-gaming scenarno undertaken by management
on solvency, the results of the reverse stress testing activity
and a schedule of the actions available to the board should
a matenal adverse rnisk event impact the group

As a result of the activity undertaken by the board and the
Risk Committee the directors confirm in the Directors’ Report
that they have performed an appropriate assessment of the
principal nsks facing the group Based upon this assessment
and the associated stress and scenano testing the directors
have made a statement regarding the viability of the group in
the Directors’ Report on page 94

Outlook for 2016

Since 1 January 2016 a new regulatory regime, known as
Solvency Il, has applied to all UK and European insurers

The group has been preparing for this new regime since 2010,
significantly enhancing its risk management framework and
system, and internal capital model to ensure they meet all the
new regulatory requirements The board will be making a formal
application to the PRA to use its own risk based capital model
as the basis for determining the regulatory capital requirement
under Solvency I, in the second quarter of 2016 Untl this
moadel i1s approved by the PRA, the group's regulatory capital
requirement 1s being calculated by reference to the standard
formula model

The board 15 confident that the group has implemented all the
required changes to ensure compliance with Solvency Il from
1 January 2016

Dunng 2018, the nsk management focus of the group,

and 1n particular the Risk Committee will include the following

¢ The continued development of the group's risk based
capital model,

» The development of the assessment of the principal nsks
of the group,

s The effectiveness of the nsk management framework
and system to 1dentify, assess, and manage the principal
risks of the group,

s The effectiveness of the integrated assurance
framework in controlling the principal nsks of the
group within risk appetite,

+ The level of customer risk and whether this 1s likely
to support the group’'s aim of ensunng 1ts treatment
of customers and 1ts behaviours deliver fair
customer outcomes
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in the values — that's what
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Corporate
Responsibility .
Report

Julia Tyson
Group HR Director

We exist to protect the z‘/uhgs that people love and we believe
we're best placed to do this 617 operating in a respons/b/e and
ethical manner. This means /aabhg after our peaple, jnvesting in

our communities and, ca,n'ng about our /‘mpa,ct on the environment-

N~
o o Prevented
0
o | 91/0 @Overf.lm Q .£618m
of our people agree that in commumty and in potential fraugulent
we support our local member support claims

communities

¢ 28,000 5% BH £50k

Job applications reduction in waste distributed through our
received across the business Member Community
Fund

Qur approach to corporate responsibility We have a duty of care to be a good corporate

Bomng the nght thing for our members and citizen, this means that we consider our social
customers 1s at the heart of our business and environmental impact to be as important
Our approach to corporate responsibility helps as our economic performance In an increas:ngly
us to focus on the areas that show why, as a competitive market this approach means we
mutual, we're different from other businesses are best positioned to meet customer needs,

retain and attract the nght talent and differentiate
our brand




We focus our corporate responsibility strategy
around four key areas:

mission:
To be Britain’s
best loved
imsurer

yoday ageiens

89UELISA0D

Responsible

! . Our people and culture
business practice peop

Talent management
Employee engagement
Reward and recognition
Health and wellbeing
Diversity and inclusion

Codes of conduct

Treating customers fairty
Supply chain management
Fighting financial crime
Responsible investment

Investing in our Saf . .
communities afeguarding our environment

Managing our waste
Sustainable business travel
Energy and water conservation
Reducing our carbon footprint

SIUNOIDY INQ

Community investment
Community sponsorship
Community fundraising
Member support

7 fove the 1%6//‘}':3 that it
Tve helped one customer
or co//ea@qe e made a

Caring

Caring about our customers and their difference, na matter how

loved ones when they need us most. i
b/\q ar S'MCL/K Melanie Davies, Bristol office
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Responsible

business practice

We take
fnancial

crime and, its
harmtyf eftects
extremely
Serqus/lj.

Good business conduct

Our people are our business and we expect
the tighest professional standards of conduct
from them We ask every employee 1o manage
and conduct business with due skill, care and
diligence, acting with integnty and beyond what
is required to meet our legal and regulatory
obiigations We focus on educating our people
through mandatory traintng, so that they can
manage 1ssues that adversely impact society
and our business such as bribery and corruption,
data protection and financial crime

It 15 iImportant that our culture fosters open
and honest dialogue and our ‘Speak Up’ policy
provides our people with a confidental vehicle
in which to call out behaviours and practices
that are inappropriate

Fighting financial cnme

We take financial crime extremely seriously and
aim to protect our customers, members and
employees against 1its harmful effects We have
invested significantly in establishing a leading
counter fraud infrastructure including specialist
teams who respond to policy and claims fraud,
as well as cnme systems and controls to ensure
LV=1s protected We also proactively manage
cnme intetligence and analytics to support our
investigation and wider business teams with
strategic insight LV= works closely with external
organisations hike the Insurance Fraud Bureau,
Insurance Fraud Enforcement Department,
CIFAS and other regulated bodies to support
the wider industry fight agamnst fraud

Overall, our robust and insightful management
of financial cnme protected LV= from potental
fraudulent losses of £61 8 million In 2015

Putting customers first

We follow the Financial Conduct Authonty (FCA)
‘Treating Customers Fairly’ principles, which aim
to ensure that customers recewe a fair outcome
when they deal with financial services companies
The principles mirror our own ethos to look after
our customers’ and members’ best interests

Offering electronic payments to
settle a claim faster is just one
example of responding to what
our customers want.

Actively seeking feedback, and responding to
customer msight 1s important as it helps us
to adapt to our customers' needs We pride
ourselves on going above and beyond the
expectations of our customers to create the
‘wow’ factor and differentiate ourselves from
our competitors

When a customer expresses dissatisfaction,

our employees are equipped to resolve 1ssues
and deliver improvements quickly Every month
we reach out to around 10,000 customers,

who have been in contact with us about therr
policy, to find out how they felt about the level

of service they received Where a customer gives
a negative response a ‘hot atert” 1s tnggered
and we will iImmediately contact the customer

to investigate the matter more fully

Sometimes things don’t always go to plan and
when a complaint anises, as well as trying to
solve the problem as quickly as possible, we

also analyse the i1ssue to identify preventable
measures and share our learnings across the
husiness to prevent the problem from reoccurnng

This root cause analysis allows us to amend
processes so they are less likely to impact
our customers again

The table below details the number of complaints
we received and the number referred to the
Financial Ombudsman Service (FOS) in 2015

Complaints § OQuicome
referred 10 n LV="s
FOS favour

Comgplaints

received

General 57038 602  753%
Insurance

Life* 3,015 76 81 8%
Herltage 519 28 B7 7%
Legacy

businesses** 1:3%7 33 86 4%

* Includes protection relirement sofutions tied advisors
whole of market

** Includes bank
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Last year we demonstrated our ethos

of closer working relationships when

we brought together our claims suppliers
at an annual conference

At the meeting we were able to share our
vision and values, together with our business
drnivers and work on common issues

Working together on a shared outcome
helps us and our partners to understand
our objectives and drive better performance.

Supply chain management

Partnering with organisations that have the same
values and principles as us is essential as 1t
enables us to deliver on our brand promises

Qur culture of partnering with reputable supphers
means that we've fostered an environment
where we can work together on achieving the

Responsible investment

With £8 5 bilhon funds under management,

we're a significant investor on behalf of our
members and customers We've partnered with
Columbia Threadneedle Investments (CTI} to
manage our assets with the goal of returning
long term financial benefits The business follows
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best cutcome for our members and customers governance and responstble investment principles @
and procedures based on the United Nations 8

{ts important that we find the right partners to backed Principles for Responsible Investment §

help us deliver good value products and services (PRI} and 1s a signatory to the UK Stewardship 3

At procurement stage, our due-diligence process Code on corporate governance

ensures that alt partners are financially stable,

comphant with legislation and follow our codes of In evaluating which investment vehicles are

conduct and ethical approach We also regularly best for Lv=, CTl ensure that decisions reflect the

review our suppliers approach to infermation approach LV= takes to responsible investment

security, disaster recovery, empioyee referencing, They make investment decisions that are o

and their own supply chains not based solely on financial performance, <
they also take Environmental, Sociat and 5

Over the coming year we are implementing Governance (ESG) factors into consideration §

a Suppher Relatonship Management (SRM) Core to CTI's investment philosophy 1s the @

process The objective of SRM 1s to have a better
management framework to assess and monitor
a supplier's performance and capabilibes

In accordance with the Modern Slavery Act 2015,
LV=1s committed to improving our practices to
combat slavery and human trafficking We will

be conducting a comprehensive review to identify
and assess potential risk areas in our supply
chains and introducing systems which mitigate
the nsk of slavery and human trafficking

belief that well-governed companies are better
positioned to manage rnisks and challenges
inherent in business, are likely to be able to
capture better opportunities for growth, and,

as such, they are likely to outperform competitors
over the long-term The consideration of ESG
1ssues 1s integral to 1ts iInvestment analysis

and decision making process they and are
evaluated when researching potential

companies to invest In

CTl considers a holistic understanding of nisks and
opportunities associated with certain companies,
sectors, or themes, as part of generating
sustainable returns for clients hke us

CTl are also active owners, voting on ESG 1ssues
and placing substantial value on transparency
of communication and information by corporate
entiies with frequent and detailed dialogue

with corporations around the globe
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Tax

Tax has a significant impact on our business, from the tax
regime applicable to the financial results of the Society and its
subsidiaries to the taxation of our products and policyholders
We recognise our responsibility to manage this efficiently

and appropnately

The core principles of our tax policy are as follows

s To comply with tax laws and regulations,

s To manage our tax affairs efficiently and proactively,

o To mamtain an open and transparent relationship with
the tax authorities, and

« To undertake tax planning to ensure an efficient tax position,

but not to undertake planning which may be perceived
as not withun the spint of the law

Tax governance

The board recognises 1is responsibility to comply with tax laws
and has approved the tax policy, for which the group finance
director 1s accountable

The head of taxation 1s responsible for the day-to-day
implementation of the tax policy which 1s also approved
and adhered to by our subsidiary companies

Total UK tax contributlon

Our contribution to the UK Exchequer s significantly

more than the UK corporation tax that we pay on profits
During 2015, through our operations and commercial activity,
we have pald and collected taxes In excess of £270 mullion
(2014 £216 million) The composition of the total taxes
borne and collected by the group 15 given below

2015 £m

2014 £m

P Insurance premium tax 88
P Employee payroll taxes 69
P Annuity payroll taxes 72

p Insurance premium tax 85
P Employee payroll taxes 69
b Annuity payrofl taxes 44

P Corporation tax 31 p Corporation tax 10
p VAT 5 P VAT 3
P Business rates 3 P Business rates 3
P Stamp taxes 1 p Stamp taxes 1
p Other 1 b Other 1

Tax transparency

The combination of complex legislation and prescriptive
accounting standards can sometimes make 1t difficult for
larger groups to explain the relationship between their profits
and the tax they pay For us, further complexity 1s added by
the fact that we are an insurance group headed by a friendly
soclety Mutual insurance business wnitten in a friendly society
15 not subject to corporation tax on profits in the same way as
insurance business written in a shareholder owned company
would be Business written in the Society I1s exclusively mutual
business and therefere, corporation tax payable by the Society
only relates to policyhalder tax (tax paid on the net investment
return) levied on certain types of business The vsual
relationship between accounting profits and the corporation
tax charge does not therefore hold true for the Society

For the group subsidiary companies, corporation tax

1s generally charged on trading profits ansing in the year

There can also be targe differences between the tax charge
disclosed in the income statement and tax actually paid

to HMRC in the year, disclosed in the cash flow statement
This 1s partly due to when corporation tax 1s paid to HMRC,
but also as a result of uming differences between the
accounting treatment and tax treatment of certain items

of Income and expenditure These differences are
recognised as deferred tax in the financial statements

A reconciliation between the tax charge in the income
statement and tax paid disctosed in the cash flow
statement 1s given below

£m 2015 2014
Tax charge per income statement 6 47
Accounting adjustments including 2 (23)
deferred tax
Tax instalments repayable/(payable) 7 (16)
next year
Tax instalments from prior years'

16 2
charge paid In this year
Tax paid per cash flow statement 31 10

Total contnbution
10 the UK Excheguer
in 2015 from LV=

£270m

2014 £216m
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o Our people and culture

Qur members and customers trust our people to help them
with some of the most important financial decisions they

will make in hfe Creating an inclusive culture which encourages
our people to be the best they can be 15 crucial for our

ONgoing success

Cur customer focus 15 articulated through the use of four
simple values — values that help us work towards our ultimate
goal to be 'Britain’s best loved insurer’

~

Make it teel specia/

We go to great lengths to delight our customers —
delivering @ memorable expenence and creating a
‘wow' factor every time they have contact with us

Know your stut¥

We want every single person that works here
to be the best they can be and keep their finger
on the pulse

Treat peaple like family

We believe that treating people like family helps
build a place where people love to work

Don"t wait to be asked

We encourage our people to take the inthative,
empowering them to take personal responsibility
and dnive the business forward

Recruiting and retaiming talented people

During the year we received over 28,000 applications for 1,800
roles, which we believe demonstrates that people really want
to work for LV= or progress within the business

Alongside the delivery of all operationai
recruitment activity, we placed a
significant emphasis on understanding
the resource requirements for
departments that needed more

niche or highly techrical skill sets

Due to the success of an innovative
recruitment campaign for our actuanal
team, we were recognised at the
prestigious 2015 Recruiter Awards,
for '‘Best Recruitment Team’

J Recruder
~ Ay ARDS

In 2015 we redefined our employee value proposition,
essentially to understand why our people love working for LV=
Our exciting new employer brand launching in 20186, will help
us to ensure that we are attracting and huinng the nght talent
for years to come

We are committed to supporting our people in achieving

their potential and realising their ambitions Our culture of
continuous improvement means that we give our people the
tools and resources to do their job, whilst offering coaching and
role progression programmes designed to enhance therr skills
and broaden their career opportunities The importance we
place on ‘growing our own talent resulted in over 700 people
moving Into an alternative role within the business last year

We are committed. to 66/7’73 an emp/ager of chaice and, we believe in creating
an environment where our peop/e are valued and empowered, to do their Jbb.




Highly engaged employees Engage sv

We are committed to being an employer of choice and we We're delighted that in our 2015 employee
believe that by providing an environment where our people survey 'Engage’, our people rated us highly
are valued and empowered to do their job, they will provide in the following key areas:

an cutstanding service to our customers.

and their needs, a place where our employees are encouraged

to make their own decisions so they can demonstrate *

the Lv= difference and feel good about working for us.

The Institute of Customer Service recently recognised our _ ; 0

people engagement work by awarding us winners in the 95 /O

category ‘HR Employee Engagement Strategy 2015'. Al ) . say we support /
\_ dwversity in the /

Cur annual "Engage’ survey is a prime measure of how .. workplace 7

we are exceeding in setting the right culture. For the

eighth year running cur overall employee engagement

has increased. At 86% it is 5% above the norm

for high performing crganisations and 13% above

other UK financial services organisations.

We have built & culture that values its people, their opinions ) . *

%

.
3%
support our brand
and values

o
Q
Z
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o
@

90%
say we are
customer

focused

S1UN029Y INQ

87%
think we have a

supportive
culture




LV= Annual Report 2015

Rewvard and rccognition

We regularly review our pay levels to ensure they
are competitive both internally and externally with
market rates. All our employees are paid at teast
the Living Wage Foundation rates of pay. In 2015,
the average full time employee salary was £30.800
(2014: £30,000). In addition to basic pay, all our
employees participate in an incentive scheme which
is structured around hoth individual and business
performance. tn 2015 the average bonus was
11.8% of salary.

All employees automatically become members

of the LV= Pension Plan when they start working

for us. They also have access to the LV= Pensions
Village which allows them to track their contributions
and the potential to influence their retirement plans.

We understand that the needs of our employees
are different: we are therefore committed to giving
all employees the opportunity to select benefits
tailored to their individual needs.

Recognition plays a significant part in our employee
proposition: we offer a peer to peer platform, built
on our values, 1o enable employees to recognise the
contributions of others. Nearly 30,000 e-cards were
sent in 2015, reflecting our collaborative working
envircnment. We actively encourage employees to
make suggestions to improve customer experience
through cur "Innovate’ platform which was launched
last year. Since ‘Innovate” was launched our
employees have submitted 1.360 ideas, hoth hig
and small, with over 370 ideas progressing towards
or already implemented.

Wellbeing

To achieve our vision to be Britain's best loved
insurer, we need to be best loved by our people.
Ensuring that we have a happy and healthy workforce
guides our wellbeing programme which focuses on
promoting greater physical and mental health. helping
managers deal with stress and building individual
resilience. Not oniy is this good for our employees
but LV= benefits too with a more engaged and
motivated workforce.

Through our annual employee survey, ‘Engage’,

we monitor the impact that our approach to
wellbeing is having on our people. We're proud
that as a result of our focus, our peopie are telling
us that we're helping to create a positive culture
where people are better able to balance their
work and personal lives.

LA ]

e 84%
of our people think that Lv=
cares about their wellbeing*

+5%

than other high performing UK
organisations

tFrom our 2015 "Engage’ survey
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Diversity and inclusion

QOpen, honest and fair That's how we treat our people

We've worked hard — and centinue to work haid — to create

a positive, inclusive atmesphere, based on respect for people’s
differences We're committed to equality of opportunity and
treatment for all those who work for us

As a customer centric business we also recognise that our
people need to understand and reflect the diversity of our
customers so that we are better positioned to serve them

We know that when an employee can bring their best and true
self to work, they bring a diversity of thinking into the business

OQur Diversity and Incfusion programme seeks to challenge

the business to provide inclusive products for our customers,
and to ensure our work envirgnment |1s accessible and inclusive
for all — from the culture we create to the people processes

we operate

COver the last 18 months, led by our Executive Committee,
we've built a governance structure and strategy to focus
our work As every aspect of diversity matters to us, we ve
engaged our people to inform our approach and have made
real progress — focusing on the themes of gender, sexual
ortentation and disability

A year of PRIDE

Treating people with dignity and respect and creating an
environment where they feel comfortable is vital as we
believe people perform betier when they can be themselves
Qur Lv= Pride champions provide an internal network across
our sites for colleagues who identify as lesbian, gay, bisexual,
transgender or questioning (LGBTQ), are an ally, or are looking
for more information Including ‘Q’ ensures our approach s
inclusive of those questioning therr sexual erientation or
gender identity Building awareness 1s integral to establishing
an LGBTQ confident environment so our LV= Pride champions
this year delivered a sernes of drop in sessions across our

* “I've never heen

: happier or more
comfortable than
| am now - and |
have LV= to thank
for a lot of that.
The support I've
had here from
everyone has been
incredible and I'm
lucky enough to

have a great line manager who supporis me
to get involved in lots of great things.

We have a brilliant Pride Network, which is
sponsored by our CEO, and as members we
all wear rainbow lanyards. That way people
know they can come to us confidentially with
any issues they might be facing, whether it's
a parent who needs advice on how to talk

to a son or daughter who's coming out or
someone struggling to find the confidence

to be themselves.” Debbie Cannon

sites so that colleagues could learn more about the topic,
and we could draw on their valuable ideas and insight

We also extend our engagement to other organisational
networks and chanties to deepen insight into what matters
for cur people and customers, as well as sharnng the great
work that we already do

In March LV= became a Stonewall Diversity Champion member
Joining Brtain's leading best practice forum for sexual
orientation and gender identrty gives us access to expertise,
guidance and resources, and bullds wisibility of our commitment
to LGBTQ equality for our colleagues, our customers and

our members

Disability

Qur focus on disability has gathered momentum over the last
year as feedback from our regular employee Bisability Listening
Groups further informs our strategy From these discussions
we've acted on some key areas practical improvements

to the working environment, sharing stones from colleagues
who have a disability, raising awareness of less visible
impairments - including mental health, and accessible
products for customers

One significant outcome has been the impact of our Customer
Equalty Forum to inform disabiity related 1ssues The forum
acts as a central point for the business to improve accessibility
and prevent disadvantage Last year we asked our people to
feed back on ways in which we could do thungs differently for
customers with a disability, leading to a number of suggested
improvements that are now under review

We're members of the Business Disability Forum, a leading
charity which helps businesses become disabihity-smart
We're proud that our achieverments in this area were
recognised at their 2015 Disabihty-smart awards

Business
Disabillity
Farum

We've changed the way disability modifications
1o a customers’ vehicle are presented when
looking for a quote on our website This

has stopped these customers paying more

for these essential modifications or being
dechned for a pohicy
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Acting with PACE

Standing for Potential, Ambition, Connections and
Empowerment our LV= PACE network I1s one of the

key drivers to bullding a sustainable talent pipeline of
female leaders within the business With an ever growing
membership from both our male and female workforce, the
network has been pivotal in helping people recognise the
value that gender diversity brings to an organisation As well
as enabling women to take ownership of their careers, and
to forge connections with senior role models, the network
provides opportunities for mentoring and work shadowing
Many male colleagues are members, and value the insight
they gain about the challenges that women face in building
careers With regular speaker events from inspirational
women, and men, our growing network is integral to ensuring
that we support equal opporturuties for everyone

10

PACE employee events

603 people

attended

VA 4

ve /11
employees signed up
to the PACE network

Gender pay gap

Under new plans announced by the Government in February
2016 firms with over 250 employees will need to report pay
differences between therr male and female counterparts
from 2018 In advance of these new guidelines we will
begin to report the gender sphit at each level within Lv=

Proportionately the spht between the overall number of
males and females working for LV=, as at the end of 2015,
was 53% female/47% male From a job role perspective
where a band A 1s most Junior and band E most senior,

the pyramid below shows the ratio of female employees

in each band

Overall gender split at LV= %

53% female 9

Band E

Band D
Band C

Band B

2016 and beyond

Last year we laid the foundations for our mutti-cultural
programme, engaging with our peopte on ethnicity,

and profiling religious celebrations throughout the year
We wall build from this in 2016, in addition to matuning our
multi-generational programme so that the aspirations and
expectations of each age group — from baby boomers to
mtlennials — are reflected in our plans and prierities

o Investing in our communities

In hine with our mutual heritage we've never forgotten the
importance that we play in bringing our financial and practical
support to benefit others Qur culture of investment, partnering
and fundraising reflects our belief that to thrive as a business,
we need to heip our communities to thnve too

Community investment

With over £490,000 distrnibuted 1n community investment during

2015 to good causes, chanties and projects we're proud of the
impact that our support 1s making up and down the country

Our people are leading the way in delivering our community
investment agenda Qur network of 16 Regional Community
Committees is made up of over 80 employee volunteers
who last year helped around 300 causes

We realise the benefit that shanng the skifls and expertise of
our peopte brings to both good causes and reciprocally back to
Lv= So as well as giving financial support, more than 3,400
hours of employee time was donated across our communities
In 2015 we launched an employee volunteering hub providing
even more opportunities for individuals and teams to go out
and lend their support As well as providing valuable support
to good causes, chanties and community groups, our approach
to volunteering helps to deepen employee engagement and
dnive a positive culture

£1,042,505

Community and
member support

» Community investment £490,215
P Community partnerships £109,003
b Community fundraising £265,042
P Member relations £178,245
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Leeds light
the way

Qur Leeds
Community
Committee
has once
again been
rallying our
people during
2015 to
raise funds for local charity Candlelighters.
Candlelighters gives much needed support to
Leeds families in their fight against children's
cancer. Now in its fourth year of support, the
Committee runs regular events including
raffles, bake sales and tombolas.

Last year this resulted in over £3,500 being
raised for the charity, bringing the total
donations raised by our Leeds team over
the last four years to an amazing £10,000.

Community partnerships

Our newest partnership 1s with Age UK in support of thewr

‘Call in Time’ programme With over 1 milhon older people in
the UK not speaking to a family member, friend or anyone they
know for periods of a month or longer, we felt we could lend our
support to help enhance the hves of those already in a position
of loneliness and 1solation Empathy i1s at the heart of Lv= and
‘Call in Time’ enables our peopte to broaden how they use therr
customer support skills By giving up thirty minutes a week

1o make a call they are reaching out to those most In need

of personal contact

Established local partners LV= KidZone and LV= Streetwise
continued ther important work with children 1n and around
Bournemouth Working with Bournemouth Council the beach
safety scheme, LV= KidZone, reunited 116 lost children
with their families during the summer Cver 8,000 children
passed through the doors of the interactive safety centre,
LV= Streetwise, learning about safety dangers inside and
outside of the home

Our sponsorship of the entrance pavilion at the Mary Rose
Museum continued last year With in excess of 1 milhon wisitors
since 1Its opening 1n 2013, our support 1s helping to preserve
this iconic shup and its artefacts for future generations

A Garden
for Ruby

Working with
the charity
well Child,
ateam

from LV=
Brentwood
helped to
transform

a garden space for local girl Ruby. Suffering
with a severe brain condition, Ruby is unable
to walk or talk. Our volunteers spent two days
transforming the family’s garden by building
an outdoor space which is accessible by
wheelchair and is fun for Ruby to play in.

“We can’t put into words what this means.
We can't thank you enough.” John, Ruby’s Dad

The LV= Brentwood Half Marathon reached its 4th year with over
3,500 local people taking part 1n the 2015 run

Working with Suffolk College our Ipswich team are in therr third
year of ‘Choose LV=, a partnership which supports 16-18 year
olds to make informed career decisions and introduce them to
the opportunities that the world of iInsurance presents

Community fundraising

Raising money for chanties 1s well established across LV=

and we make sure we do everything we can to help our peaplte
in therr fundraising efforts Over 250 employees accessed our
pound for pound matching scheme raising more than £150,000
for causes close to their hearts, with an addittonal £70,000

in matched funding from LV= In 2015 our salary sacrifice
scheme Pennies for Charity attracted a phenomenal 47%

of our people donating the odd pennies from their pay every
month which, together with our Give As You Earn scheme
raised just over £60,000

Qur people dnive the agenda when 1t comes to our national
chanty support and they never fail to get behind our partners
Children in Need and Comic Relief For BBC Children in Need
over 230 LV= people volunteered for our call centre support
from our Huddersfield, Leeds and Bournemouth sites,
handling 5,267 calls and taking nearly £150,000 in
donations and pledges during the evening

Chloe from our LV= Exeter office has been making calls
as part of the ‘Call in Time’ scheme since October.

“t was a Iitle nervous on my first call to Marguernte but we spoke
about our families and the 30 minutes fiew by She looks forward
to cur chat each week and 1s always so grateful | honestly believe
that it benefits us both — it gives Marguerite somebody to talk to
and 1t gives me a real buzz knowing I'm making a difference to
somebody else’s life and her friendship is really special to me
Qver Chrnistmas | received a personalised card from Marguerite
which now takes pride of place on my desk at work "
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Member relations

As covered in the members section on page 6 we have
a number of exclusive member benefits Overall in 2015
we spent £178,245 n pursuit of creating support and
value to members

Member Care Line The Member Care
The Member Care Line 1s a free benefit offering legal, medical Line offers free
and counselling services to our members over the phone telephone legal advice
Expert help is available 24 hours a day, every day and In for members.

2015 the care hine handled 1,671 calls from members
seeking guidance and advice

Member Support Fund

The Member Support Fund provides grants to members

in financial hardshup Applications for financial assistance
are reviewed by a small committee of LV= members who
approve requests for support In 2015 the fund awarded
grants to 48 members and their families, totalling £58,245

Member Community Fund
The Member Community fund helps support good causes
which are important to our members Any member can

nominate something or someone close to their hearts and The Member Support
four times a year we make an award of £10,000 (with an Fund paid for a full
element of discretion) to good causes, chanties or indwiduals time carer 10 take
where we believe we can make a significant and lasting her disabled daughter
difference |n 2015 we donated £50,000 to good causes for a break at

put forward by members Center Parcs.

AGM donation charity

Every year we donate an amount to chanty that is raised
through the number of AGM votes we receive Depending on
the overall turnout we pledge to donate between £15,000
and £25,000 te a charity nominated by a member who
casts a vote In 2015 Cancer Research UK benefited from
‘our donation

A Member Community
Fund award went to
Warsash Sea Cadets
to allow them to buy
a rib safety boat.

We are extremely grateﬁ{/ for ??;% g?&%ﬁ%H
the doration from L= Tt shows 4% UK

the gererusity of the argarisation,

and, the members who voted, for

us o receive the donation Charity donation as
James Teodorinl, Cancer Research UK a result of AGM votes.
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As a responsible business we are continually
stniving to reduce the impact that our operations
have on the environment Improving efficiencies
across our business, particularly around energy
usage and waste management s not only good
for the environment but it helps us himit the
costs associated too

To better understand, manage and influence

our impacts, in 2015 we embarked on the
development of an environmental management
system To deepen our understanding we
conducted a full review of gur environmental
management policy and practice, analysing data
on the areas where we have most impact on the
enviranment The review has identified three key
areas of our business operations that we have
most influence over

» Waste management

* Energy usage

* Business travel

Last year we became an associate member of the
All Party Parhamentary Environment Group With
membership made up of MPs, Members from the
House of Lords, Non Governmental Organisations
(NGOs) and business, the group meets five times
a year to hear from Ministers, Parliamentarans
and key experts In the environment sector

the all-party
parfiamentary
environment

group

I\

49 tonnes

of paper saved =
833 mature trees

&
we 85%
of our people think
that LV=1s an
environmentally
responsible
company

Waste management

Over the last year we ve been looking at ways that
we can reduce waste and raise awareness about
the responsibility that we as a business have

in managing this We reported 1,570 tonnes of
total waste produced in 2014 and this has fallen
1o 1,484 tonnes 1n 2015 —resulting in a 5 1%
reduction year on year Over half of the reduction
N waste has been due to reduced paper usage,
with 49 tonnes saved

Energy usage

Through our annual carbon reduction commitment
we were delighted to have reduced our energy
tonnage by 29% We have also undertaken an
energy saving audit for each one of our sites

with further identified energy saving opportunities
These will be incorporated into our environmental
planning going forward

Business travel

Cur internal travel portal continues to give our
peocple vialle options to travef less or in ways
that have less impact on the environment

We offer a lift share scheme so that colleagues
can share journeys to other LV= offices The roll
out of our video conferenging faciities continued
and more employees now have access to this
technology Our train and bus season ticket loans
encourage our people to use public transport
when commuting to and from work And our ‘Bike
to Work' scheme s a great way to get our people
cycling, whilst our support for national activities
such as 'Walk to Work’ and ‘Bike to Work' week
helps our people try alternative forms of travel
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate
Governance
Report

Qur approach to
Corporate Governance

The Board

uoday oifalens

Board Committees
Directors’ Report

Report on Directors’ Remuneration

IUBLIBACD

The following pages outline our corporate governance
framework and cur approach to remuneration.

SJUNGDOY INQ

St/

Use our expertise to deliver solutions
to financial issues that people come
across throughout life.

L= area iqa/z‘z‘zf insurance
company who offer a great
product at reasonable prices.
7 have been very pleased, with
their service aver many years.

Gareth from Leicester
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N

Our approach to
Corporate Governance

We comply with Compliance with the Annotated Code
the UK Corporate for the year ended 31 December 2015
Governance Code,  The board considers that we comply with the
Annotated Version applicable pninciples and provisions of the

for Mutual Annotated Code with the following exceptions
Insurers {the
‘Annotated Code') I a decision taken by the board to aliow the

chairman to be a member of the Audit
Committee The Audit Committee membership
includes three independent non-executive
directors as required by the Annotated Code
and the chairman’s membership of the
committee 15 1n addition to this The Annotated
Code recommends that the chairman may

only bhe a member of the Audit Committee in
‘smalier companies’ However, the chairman
has recent and relevant financial experence
and makes a valuable contribution to the

Audit Committee The chairman was a member
of the Audit Committee prior to tis appointment
as chairman of the board in 2013

It a decision taken by the board that only
the chairman wifl offer himself for annuai
re-election by members at the Annual General
Meeting The board has determined that the
annual election of the chairman provides an
adequate means for members to register
concern with the performance of the board
directors who continue to stand for re-election
at least every three years

! For mutual nsurers smaller
companies are defined by the
Annotated Code as mutual

Alignment of the board to the

group's culture, values and

governance arrangements

The role of the board is to set the tone from

the top on the group's governance, culture and
values and to be collectively responsible for the
long-term success of the group For the board this
means not only ensunng that we comply with all
relevant laws and regulations and ensunng that
we have high standards of internal control and
risk management, but that we run our business
with integnty The board ensures that the group’s
values are adhered to in everything we do and
that we will deliver on our strategy to be Britain's
best loved insurer by keeping our customers at
the heart of our business and ensuring that our
workforce 15 positively engaged

Working as a collective board

During the year, the board comprised a non-
executive chairman, five independent non-
executive directors (until the resignation of John
Edwards in September 2015) and four executive
directors who collectively possess an appropnate
balance of expertise In the financial services
industry, including general insurance and life
insurance, investments, risk and governance

This ensures a balance of skills, understanding
and perspectives relevant to the group s business
As members of a unitary board, the non-executive
directors meet, without the executive directors
present, to constructively challenge and help
develop proposals on strategy The particular
skills and expertence that each director brings

to the board are included on pages 78 to 79 and
the composition and tenure 1s summansed below

tnsurers which fali below the Board member Board member balance Board members’ tenure

threshold for comphance with
Solvency Il ths 1s not the

case for the Society (until 24 September 2015)

Executive Male

composition {until 24 September 2015} (until 24 September 2015)

E 0-3 vEE1E]
46 years

Wie thorefare satisty the Annotated 207 female representation on the In accortance with the Sociely’™s

Code’s recommendation that at least hoard.
half of the board shoutd consist of
ann executive directors.

From 25 September 2015,
Executive: 4. Non Execulive: B

Rules, all directors offer themselves

From 25 September 2015, for re eleclion cvery 3 yoars,
Malg, 7. Fomate: 2

The eharman voluntarnly offers
himsetf lor re election annually.

From 25 September 2015,
A6 years, 4
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Appratsing the board's performance

Every year the performance of board members 1s reviewed
both individually and as a collective The senior independent
director, with the assistance of the non-executive directors
and taking into account the wiews of the executive directors,
reviews the performance of the chairman and the chairman
reviews the performance of all other directors

Dunng the annual review, each director 1s also encouraged
to highlight any potential skills gaps or areas of development
s0 that training can be provided in order to ensure each
director's continued understanding and expertise The
chairman, 1n his capacity as chairman of the Nomination
Committee, reviews and agrees individual training and
development aims with each non-executive director

Board effectiveness

The Annotated Code recommends that mutual insurers of
our size commit to an externally facilitated review of board
effectiveness at least every three years

An external review of the board was undertaken by an expert
consultant in the area of board effectiveness, Coletta Tumelty,
during the year Ms Tumelty has no connection with the Society
other than the appointment to review the board s effectiveness
and providing ad hoc management advice and support

The board agreed a number of actions, bullding on earlier
themes and an update on progress made against some
of the key outputs 1s set out below

Quiputs from the 2015 board evaluation Action taken

Declsion-making

Ensure time 1s scheduled to review major past board
decisions to dernve learning and inform future actions
and debate

Successlon planning and board composition

To ensure succession planning takes into account the
importance of diversity of the board and early discussion
of succession planning

Strategy

Buitd upon the strategy process, ensunng sufficient
time 1s allocated in the board agenda to discuss
strategic topics

Information and support

Continue to make improvements to the form and
focus of board papers to assist the board's collective
decision-making and challenge

Effective challenge
Extend effective challenge around proposats and
strategic projects

The board will schedule time 1n future board meetings
to review major past board decisions

Continued focus on the recruitment process to promote
diversity on the board, recruiting from diverse professional
backgrounds and personalities with a track record of
providing challenge

Meetings with management are arranged outside of board
meetings to facilitate further discussions on strategy,
aims and objectives

Additional meetings of non-executive directors provide
greater input into the development of future board agendas

Continued progress on developing the forward plan for board
meetings and improving hoard papers, 10 particular the
executive summaries so that these signpost risks, concerns
and areas for discussion to facilitate challenge by the board
Training will be scheduled for those prepanng papers and
feedback will be provided by the board

A tailored training programme has been agreed including
training on Sclvency il and key governance topics

Schedule sufficient time dunng board meetings to allow
thorough challenge by both the non-executive and executive
directors, around proposals and strategic projects
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The Board

David Neave
Non-Executive Director

Mark Austen
Chairman

Philip Moore
Group Finance
Director

Richard Rowney
Managing Director
of Life and Pensions

Mike Rogers
Chief Executive

Cath Keers
Non-Executive Director

John O'Roarke
Managing Director
of General Insurance

James Dean
Non-Executive Director

Caroline Burton
Non-Executive Director




Strategic Report Governance Our Accounts

N

@
>
©
o
=
o
=
=
@
4
]
(G
o
-
o
s
=3
o
=
o
[5]




78

LV= Annual Report 2015

Mark Austen (66) Chairman

Mark was appointed chairman of LV= at its 2013
AGM after being an \ndependent non-executive
director for the Society since 2006 Mark
qualified as a chartered management accountant
In 1972 and spent the majonty of his career at
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP managing their
global financial services consulting business

His broad range of skitls includes advising
organisations on their strategies, acquisitions,
operations, HR policies and technology Mark

1s also a non-executive director of Alpha Bank
London Ltd

Chairman, chair of the Nomination Committee
and member of the Audit, Risk, Investment
and Remuneration Commuittees

Mike Rogers {51) Chief Executive

Mike spent 20 years working for Barclays

Bank where he carned out a vanety of roles

In the UK and overseas Among his senior
appointments at Barclays, Mike was managing
director of Small Business, Prermier Banking and
UK Retail Banking achieving a post-graduate
Diploma in Leadership from Exeter University

in 1995 In May 2006 he joined LV= as chief
executive leading the business into profitability
and transforming it into the vibrant and successful
mutual it 1s today Mike is also a non executive
director for RBS Group and 1s a member of the
Board of the Association of British Insurers (ABI)
and the ABI's representative on the Prudential
Regulation Authority s (PRA) Practitioner Board

Member of the Investment Committee
and Nomnation Committee and chairman
of varrous LV= group subsidianes

Philip Moore (56) Group Finance Director
Having held executive positions at several leading
financial institutions both in the UK and abroad,
Phthp's career in finance has spanned over 30
years He has acquired extensive knowledge in
areas such as nisk management, mergers and
acquisitions, finance and actuarnial and asset
management Philip was chief executive at Friends
Provident until 2007 and cheef risk officer and
group finance partner at Pensions Corporation LLP
between 2008 and 2010 He was appointed group
finance director of LV=1n 2010 As well as being
part of the board and executive team at LV=,
Philip 1s also a non-executive director and
chairman of the Audit Committee of Towergate
Insurance and a trustee and chairman of the
finance committee of the Royal British Legion

Member of the Investment Committee and
director of various LY= group subsidianes

~ 17 Richard Rowney {45)

Managing Director of Life and Pensigns
Richard spent 14 years at Barclays Bank holding
a number of sentor posittons across corporate
and retall banking including overseeing tntegration
of the Woolwich and Barclays retail banks

He joined LV=1n 2007 as chief operatng officer
where he transformed the operational support
areas 10 ensure they could suppert the fast
growing trading businesses going forward
Richard was appointed managing director

of life and pensions in 2010 and has led the
transformation of this business to create one

of the UK's leading protection and retirement
specialists Richard works closely with the local
community and 1s an independent director of
the Dorset Local Enterpnse Partnership

Director of various LV= group subsidiaries

John O'Roarke (58) Managing Director
of General Insurance

John qualified as a chartered accountant and
has spent 30 years in the insurance industry

He worked for Churchill Insurance for 13 years
where he was finance director and then managing
director, leading the company to become one of
the UK s best known insurers John was appointed
chief operating officer of RBS Insurance in 2003
but left in 2005 to set up ABC Insurance, acquired
by LV=n 2006 He became managing director

of LV= general insurance the same year, leading
the team that has quadrupled the size of the
general iInsurance business and produced strong
profit contributions John is alse chairman of the
Insurance Fraud Bureau

Director of vanous LV= group subsidiaries

John O’'Roarke will be leaving LV= dunng 2016
Steve Treloar will succeed him as managing
director of general Insurance (subject to
regulatory approval) Steve joins L= from
Aviva where he was most recently managing
director of personal lines Prior to this he

has held a number of senior roles at Aviva
and RBS insurance over a 19 year career
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James Dean {58) Non-Executive Director
{Sentor Independent Director)

James joined the hoard in 2012 and was
appointed as the semor independent director in
September 2015 He s a chartered accountant
and s recognised as an expert In Insurance
accounting having spent much of his 30 years’
expenence 1n audit and advisory roles As a
senior partner at Ernst & Young LLP he dealt

with clients such as AXA UK plc, Prudential ple,
Legal & General Group ple, RSA Insurance Group
plc and Aviva ple, serving on boards outside the
firm including as chairman of the ICAEW Insurance
Committee He i1s also a former global IFRS leader
for the insurance sector of Ernst & Young LLP

and holds a non-executive director appointment
at Rathbone Brothers Ple and 1s chairman of the
Stafford Railway Building Society

Chairman of the Audit Committee and member
of the Risk and Nomination Cammittees

As the senior independent director, James
provides a sounding board to the chairman and
15 avallable to members If they have concerns
which contact through the normal channels

of chairman, chief executive and other executive
directors has failed to resolve or for which
contact 1s inappropnate

Caroline Burton (66)

Non-Executive Director

Caroline joined the board in 2011 She has

a hife insurance background and s a highly
experienced figure in the asset management
industry having spent 26 years with Guardian
Royal Exchange plc, where she was in charge

of investments from 1990 until 1999

She acts as a pensions and business adviser
for a number of pension funds and charties and
her expertise puts her in good stead to monitor
the management of LV="s assets She is chairman
of TR Property Investment Trust plc and a
neon-executive director of BlackRock Small
Companies Investment Trust plc

Chairman of the Investment Committee
{from 12 June 2015) and member of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees

Cath Keers (50) Non-Executive Director
Cath has over 20 years marketing and sales
expertence having worked at BSkyB Ltd,

Next plc and Avon Cosmetics Ltd tnh 2008

she won a hfetime achievement award for her
outstanding impact during her career at 02,
where she was customer director in charge of
refocusing the orgamsation's customer strategy
She brings a wealth of retail industry expertise
to the LV= board, which she joined in 2010,
and holds other non-executive positions at Royal
Mail Group Ltd and the Home Retail Group plc
{for Homebase and Argos)

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and member of the With-Profits and
Nomination Committees

David Neave (58} Non-Executive Director

-  David has 35 years of experience in the general

tnsurance industry, with a particular specialism
in personal lines and technical expertise in a
range of functions including underwriting, claims
and partnerships Dawid started his career at
Royal Insurance Group ple, which merged with
Sun Alliance Group plc In 1996 to hecome

the insurance group RSA He held vanous

roles including managing director of cerporate
partnerships and claims services director for
the overall UK business Most recently he was
managing director of general insurance for the
Co-operative Banking Group Limited, resigning
In 2012, after seven years in the role David
joined the LV= board in 2013 He has also been
chairman of the Insurance Fraud Bureau and the
ABI Financial Cnme Committee and a director of
the Motor Insurers’ Bureau and the International
Co-operative and Mutual Insurance Federation
He 1s also a non-executive director of FirstPort
Insurance Services Limited and a member of
Accenture's insurance adwisory board

Chairman of the Risk Committee and member
of the Audit and Nomination Committees

Dawvid Barral {54) Non-Executive Director
(appointed 7 March 2016)

David has had a 35 year career In financial
services and joins us from Aviva Plc where he
was the chief executive of UK and Ireland Iife
insurance, the largest business unit within

the Aviva group Previgus poasitions include

sales director, marketing director and chief
operating officer David brings a mix of strategic,
transformation and operational experience with

a strong focus on customers, risk and governance
He i1s a former chairman of the ABI Retirernent and
Savings Committee and a regular contributor to
Speakers for Schools, the independent education
chanty Dawvid 1s also the non-executive chairman
of Virgin Wines

The terms of appointment for the non-executive
directors are avallable for review, upon request,
from the Society’s registered office and before
the Society's AGM

Executive directors may be invited to become
non-executive directors of other companies,
subject to the agreement of the Society

These appointments provide an opportunity

to gaun broader experience outside LV= and
therefore benefit the Society Prowviding that
appomntments are not hkely to lead to a conflict
of interest, executive directors may accept
non-executive director appotntments and
retain the fees received

Each executive director’s external commitments
are hsted above All non-executive directorships
have been approved by the board and are deemed
not to conflict with the Society's business

Each executive director retains the fees received
from the external appomtment Details of such
fees are made available on page 101
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Each committee is provided with sufficient resources 10 undertake its duties.

A full list of duties and the activities undertaken during the year can he found
on pages 81 to 88.

The terms of reference for the board committees are reviewed each year
and published on our website. They can be viewed at LV.com/boarddocs
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Beard and Committee membership and attendance in 2015
Against each name in the table below 1s shown the number of meetings at which the director was present and the number
of meetings that the director was eligible to attend

Liverpool

Victona

Frniendly

Society sk Investment Remuneration Nomination With-profits

Board* Committee Commitiee Committee Committee Committee Committee
Mark Austen 13/13 11/13
John Edwards
(resigned 24/09/15) 9/9 n/a 2/3 3/3 n/a 1/1 4/4
Cath Keers 11/13 n/a n/a n/a 6/6 2/2 4/6
Caroline Burton 12/13 12/13 n/a 3/3 6/6 2/2 n/a
Mike Rogers 13/13 n/a n/a 3/3 n/a 2/2 n/a
Phiip Moore 13/13 n/a n/a 3/3 n/a n/a n/a
John O'Roarke 9/12 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Richard Rowney 13/13 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
James Dean 13/13 13/13 4/4 n/a n/a 2/2 n/a
David Neave 13/13 13/13 4/4 n/a n/a 2/2 n/a

n/a Not apphcable * Excludes committeas of the board but includes ad hoc and strategy and pfann ng meetings

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include all the
matters required under the Annotated Code and follow FRC
guidance Comphance with the committee s terms of reference
1s reviewed annually to ensure the committee has discharged all
of 1ts responsibilities through the year

O Audit Commuttee

The membership of the Audit Committee at the end
of the year was

¢+ lames Dean (chairman)

* Mark Austen

* Caroline Burton
L ]

The primar rposes of the Audit Committee are to
David Neave p Y purpos

s Review the effectiveness of the group s internal controls
and rnsk management systems alongside the work of the

The company secretary acts as secretary to the Audit Risk Committee

Committee The Audit Committee Is required to meet at least
three times a year, In accordance with its terms of reference,
and has an agenda hinked to events in the group’s financial
calendar including approving any press releases to the market
on financial reporting During the year, the committee met

13 times which included approval of all quarterly financial and
trading disclosures The commitiee 1s expected to meet seven
times in 2016 Other individuals may be invited to attend all
or part of any meeting as and when appropnate including,

but not limited to, the ctuef executive, the group finance
director, the internal audi director, the chief nsk officer,

the group financial controller and the group chief actuary

¢+ Review assessment of nsk models and the
assumptions underpinning the ICA approach used
to meet regulatory requirements

« Review the financial reporting grocess and outputs so
as to ensure the balance, transparency and integrity of
pubhshed financial information and the group’s process
for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations
affecting financial reporting

* Review the effectiveness of the internal audit functron

whose remit covers all nsk classes
The external auditors (currently PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP ( )

(PwC)) attended all of the committee’s main meetings in 2015,

+ Review the effectiveness of the external audit process
except when thewr own performance was being reviewed

(the remit for which 1s external reporting matters) including
the appointment and ensunng the independence of the
external auditor and the use of the external auditor for
non audit work

The board considers that all the members of the committee
are independent {with the exception of the chairman,

Mark Austen, due to his length of tenure) and bring significant
and relevant skills and expernence to the function of the
commuttee All members undertake induction traning and
continuing professional development James Dean,

in particular, as the chairman and a former semior partner

at Ernst & Young LLP, has the requisite ‘recent and relevant
financial experience’, as recommended by the Annotated Code

+ Engage independent counsel and other advisers as It deems
necessary to assist In the carrying out of its duties
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Significant judgements, key assumptions and estimates
The Audit Committee pays particular attention to matters it considers to be important by virtue of their impact on the group's solvency,
results or remuneration of senior management, or the level of complexity, judgement or estimation involved in therr application on the
consolidated financial statements The main areas of focus during the year are set out in the followmng significant 1ssues table below

Audit Committee action in year Conclusion / outcome

Financial reporting

Goodwlll

The appropnateness of the £220m
carrying value of goodwill that we hold
on our Statement of Financial Position

Pension scheme accounting

The methodology and assumptions used
for accounting for the group pension
schemes, the net pension benefit

asset for the LV scheme 15 £87m

and the pension benefit obligation

for the Ockham scheme 15 £3m as

at 31 December 2015

Financial reporting developments
The Association of Financial Mutuals
updated the Annotated UK Corporate
Governance Code with the purpose
of enhancing disclosures regarding
the long-term viability and strategy
of companies and also requinng
robust assessment and monitoring
of principal risks

The committee has reviewed the results
of the annual iImpairment assessment which

compares the recoverable amount against the

carrying value for both the general insurance
and Iife businesses as separate cash
generating units Consideration has been
grven to the appropriateness of value in use
calculations, inciuding discount

rates apphied

The committee has considered the
assumptions used for calculating

IAS 19 ‘remeasurement of defined
benefit schemes’ and approved changes
made where appropriate

The committee also considered whether it
was appropnate to recognise the pension
benefit asset for the LV scheme by reviewing
the recoverability of this asset

The committee has reviewed the update

to the Annotated Corporate Governance
Code 1ssued in November 2014 and
adopted in 2015 The committee has
assessed the governance processes and
procedures in place within LvV= with respect
to the requirements of the new Code

The committee has also considered the
appropriateness of making the viability
statement over a penod of three years

The committee has concluded that
methodologies used to measure
the value of goodwill held on the
Statement of Financial Position

are appropriate Results of these
calculations confirmed that carrying
values were supportable and
therefore no additional impairment
was required

The committee 1s satisfied that
remeasurements have been
calculated using appropnate
assumptions and as a result the
penston accounting i1s appropriate

The commitiee agrees that it is
appropriate to recognise that
the pension benefit asset

1S recoverable

The committee considered that
the policies and procedures In
place at LV= are sufficient and
appropriate to enable LV=10
confirm that we have implemented
the requirements of the new

Code 1n 2015 including enhanced
disclosures within the Annual
Report The committee 1s
satisfied that a period of three
years 1s appropriate for the viability
statement

Insurance liabilities (Life £7.771m, General Insurance £1.353m}

Assumptions used to estimate
retirement product {iabilities

The pension reforms that were effective
from Apnl 2015 have had a significant
impact in the at retirement market,
necessitating consideration of the
appropriateness of the assumptions
used to value the liabibties held for
retirement products

The committee has reviewed management’s
assessment of the impact of the changes in

the at retirement market on the assumptions

within the habifity calculation for retirement
products following the changes which have
arisen as a result of the pension reforms
effective from Apnt 2015

The committee concurred
with management as to the
reasonableness of the revised
assumptions used to value
the ilabihties 1n respect

of retirement business
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Insurance liabilities (Life £7,771m, General Insurance £1.353m}

OB pension cash benefits

The valuation methodology includes

an assumption on the level of pohicy
holder benefits which wili be taken

as cash as opposed to an annuity
Uncertainty attaches to the impact

on this assumption of future levels of
take up as a result of pension reforms
which came n to force in 2015 and the
planned creation in 2017 of a market
for the sale of in-force annuities to third
parties [n addition, there was a change,
which was approved by the Society's
board in November 2015, in the basis
for calculating the amount of cash
settlements Although the assumption
for the overall level of cash take ups
remained unchanged from the previous
year the net impact of the change of the
basis of calculation had a positive impact
on heritage operating profit of £69m
The change has been shared with

the Financial Conduct Authonty (FCA)
whose formal response 1S awaited

Changes In unlt costs

The calculation of the insurance
contract hlabilities 1s impacted by
changes in unit costs, which are
reviewed annually A full review of
the methodology I1s planned for 2016
Pending the review, unit costs have
been maintained at 2014 levels
(adjusted for inflation)

Qther key life assumptions

and methodology matters

The calculation of the group s
long-term insurance contract
llabilities requires other assumptions
in addition to those above to be
made for future experience

The governance around the setting of
the general Insurance claims reserves
and the ultimate leve! of claims
reserves held at the year end

This area 15 inherently subjective

In addition, specific market factors
such as claims farming, settlements
via periodic payment orders {PPOs}
and Ministry of Justice clarms reforms
increase the uncertainty around future
settlement costs and the valuation of
general insurance contract habilities
(£1,353m as at 31 December 2015}

The committee considerad the assumptions
concerning the level of cash benefit take up
in the light of current and past trends and
also the uncertainties attached to future
policy holder behaviour The committee also
considered the adjustments made to the
methodology used to value the OB Pension
habihties to attow for the new cash benefits
basis and the impact these changes had on
the valuation result

The committee noted that any matters arising
from the FCA’'s response would be addressed
when recelved

The committee reviewed the unit cost
assumptions for the 31 December 2015
valuation and discussed with management
the validity of this approach The proposed
unit costs were reviewed against the

2015 actual costs and the expected

costs from the 2016-2018 business plan
These comparnsons supported the
approach adopted

The committee reviewed reports from
management proposing a number of changes
to the calculation of the long-term insurance
contract iabilities The committee considered
market data and has also reviewed the
benchmarking provided by the external auditor

As a result of this the committee agreed a
number of changes to the calcutation of the
long-term insurance contract habilities These
included proposed changes to the mortalty,
morbidity and persistency assumptions for
certain products so as to reflect more closely
the emerging experience

A specific LVGIG Audit Committee (with the same

membership as the LVFS Audit Committee) acts
as committee of the LVGIG board

This commiitee receives and reviews detailed
reports from general insurance management
which support the level of claims reserves
held The LVGIG Audit Commuittee then

forms its own conclusiens and makes
recommendations to the LVGIG board on

the level of general insurance reserves that
should be held The LVGIG Audit Commuttee
reviews work performed by external experts
as part of the process of reaching an opinion

Audit Commiitee action in year Conclusion / outcome

The commitiee was satisfied
that the valuation methodology
carned out by management
was appropnate

The committee agreed with the
conclusions of management

The committee continues to

see refinement of the unit cost
methodelogy as a key area of focus
for management going forward

The committee concurred
with management as to
the reasonableness of the
revised assumptions

Regular reviews of the general
INsurance reserving process have
given the committee comfort that
methods and assumptions used
are appropnate and reasonable
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Insurance liabilities (Life £7.771m. General Insurance £1,353m)

Release of prior year general
insurance reserves

The appropnateness and rationale
behingd the release of £93m of prior
year reserves during 2015

Loss portfolio transfer

in the latter part of 2015 the group
entered into a loss portfoho transfer
agreement resulting in reinsurance of
20% of 1ts general insurance booked
reserves as at 31 December 2015
This had an impact of £242m
Significant accounting judgements in
relation to the transfer of significant
insurance risk were made In determining
whether the agreement should be
classified as a reinsurance contract

Solvency H

The committee has reviewed the ievel
of prior year reserve releases dunng 2015
as they continue to be significant

Detailed explanations from general insurance

management have been recewved and
reviewed Reports from external experts
have also been reviewed

The commitiee reviewed a summary from
management which, after considenng the
timing of all cash flows under the contract,
concluded that it transferred significant
insurance rsk

The committiee reviewed whether or

not the judgements made by management
were reasonable and, after taking into
account the relevant financial reporting
standards, whether the contract resulted
n the transfer of significant insurance risk

Audit Committee action in year Conclusion / outcome

The committee I1s satisfied

with the process put in place
by management to analyse

the prior year release and
make appropriate modifications
to the reserving process

The committee concluded that
the accounting for the loss
portfolio transfer as remnsurance
1S appropriate based on relevant
financial reporting standards
and the terms of the
reinsurance agreement

Balance sheet assurance

The PRA required larger insurers and all
firms that are applying for internal model
approval to obtain iIndependent assurance
over their Solvency |l balance sheet

The PRA required that a two-step
assurance process was conducted

Solvency Il preparatory phase reporting
As part of the preparations for the new
reporting requirements under Solvency
II, larger insurers were required to
participate in a preparatory phase

in order to demonstrate that the
appropriate reporting processes were

in place ahead of Solvency Il go-live

Solvency ) applications - Transitional
deductfon and volatility adjustment
Transitional deduction allows insurers
to phase in, over 16 years, any Increase
in technical provisions caused by the
introduction of Solvency | The volatihity
adjuster offers insurers protection from
the volatility associated with short-term
market movements in bond spreads

Matching adjustment

The committee discussed the features
and potential henefits to the group of
seeking PRA approval to use matching
adjustment as part of managing the
assets backing 1its non-profit annuity
portfolic Matching adjustment forms
part of the Solvency Il long-term
guarantee package and enables entities
to take account of ilhquidity premtum,
inherent in credit asset prices,

when valuing associated long-term
insurance habilities

The commuttee reviewed the findings from
step one during March 2015 and provided

oversight of the resolution of issues identified

In this review

The committee reviewed the finat report
in December 2015

The committee was asked to review and
agree the future governance for the regular
submission of the quarterly reports

The committee was asked 1o review and
approve the preparatory phase subset
of Solvency Il reporting for submission
to the PRA

The committee considered the impact on
capital that would arise were LV= granted
approval to use these measures

The committee has overseen the
development of the necessary application
packages for submission to the PRA

After considering the rationale and
operational implications for matching
adjustment, the committee concluded that
the group should seek PRA approvai

for matching adjustment

The commuttee approved the
submission of the step one report
to the PRA

The committee approved submission
of the final report to the PRA which
demonstrated that cur Solvency |
balance sheet was constructed in
line with Solvency Il rules

The committee approved
the quarterly submission
governance framework

The committee approved the
submission of the preparatory
reporting to the PRA

The committee recommended
applying for these measures
to the board

The commitiee reviewed the
application packages for both
these measures and recommended
to the board that they approve thesr
submission to the PRA

The committee reviewed and
discussed the formal application
and recemmended its submission
to the PRA in December 2015
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Audit Committee action in year Conclusion / outcome

Solvency Il

Solvency Il validations The committee assessed the results of The committee concluded that the
A regular cycle of model validation 1s validation testing which covered all of the internal Model 1s appropnate for
undertaken which includes monitoring matenal components of the Internal Model producing the ICA but identified
the performance of the Internal Model, and the systems of governance operated and reported to the board a
reviewing the ongoing appropriateness across the group number of hmitations such as

of Its specification and testing its
results against experience

Summary of key activities during 2015 by which

the Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities

Internal controls

s Monitored the group's Internal controls by considenng a
number of reports on the key controls and nsk management
functions and identified key issues, initiating actions for
these to be resolved,

¢ Considered the results of in-depth testing carried out by
management and internal audit and also reports from the
external auditor on internal controls and findings from audit
procedures, for example analysis of Journals Specifically,
focus was directed towards testing for fraud in revenue
recogmtion The results of testing led the committee to
conclude that controls in this area are robust,

« Conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of all
material internal control processes including financial,
actuarial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management systems, which was carrnied out by the group
risk management function The review’s aim was to assess
the effectiveness of the control environment and identify
any areas for improvement, and

* Reviewed the arrangements through which employees
can raise concerns about possible irregularties relating
to financtal reporting or other matters including reviewing
all whistleblowing reports

Financial reporting

= Analysed and scrutinised the key accounting policies,
Jjudgements and actuanal assumptions with management,
the external auditors and the actuanal function holder,

s Reviewed procedures for dealing with any complaints
regarding accounting, reporting, internat control or
auditing matters,

* Considered management's regular reviews of the going
concern status of the group, ensurnng that appropriate
capital and hquid assets are 10 place to allow the group
results to be reported on a going concern basis,

= Monitored the financial results communicated to members,
including the Annual Report,

» Reviewed and recommended all external financial reporting
for the Society {including press releases and any interim
announcements put onto the regulatory news service of

« The nature and quality of the
evidence and documentation
supporting expert judgements,

¢ Improvemnents required to
the longewity and general
insurance components
of the Internal Model

the London Stock Exchange) to the board (or the Disclosure
Committee) together with supporting narrative, ensuring
estimates, judgements and reporting tssues are conssdered
s0 that there 1s appropnate balance, transparency and
integrity of information contained in the Annual Report,

At the request of the board, the committee considered

whether the 2015 Annual Report was far, balanced and

understandable and whether 1t provided the necessary

information for stakeholders to assess LV="s position,

performance, busingss model and strategy In reviewing

the Annual Report the Audit Committee has concluded that,

when taken as a whole, it meets the fair, balanced and

understandable test and provides the information necessary

for members to assess the Society's position, performance,

business model and strategy The committee reached this

conclusion by ensunng that

— The key events or transactiens which affected the group's
financtal performance or position are properly disciosed
and described

~ The group’s financial performance and position overall
15 fairly descnbed with an appropnate balance between
good news and bad news

- The mam rnisks to which the business 1s exposed
are discussed within the Annual Report and disclosed
where necessary

— The group's business and sources of income are described
together with any changes n the period

- The factors which may affect future performance such
as business trends and areas of volatiity are identified

- The maternial estimates and areas of uncertainty
are highlighted

~ There 1s consistency between the narrative and financial
reporting sections of the Annual Report and with the
half-year results published in 2015

— The commttee and board have sufficient time to review
the Annual Report and provide input

- Financial and factual venfication of the financial
statements was carried out internally

Recommended to the board the Society's PRA annual return,
ICA submissions and Valuaticn Reports, and

Recommended to the board the design, calibration, validation
and results from the group and iis subsidianes internal
capttal mode! (including ICA and ORSA)
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Internal audit

* Reviewed the effectiveness and activities of the group
internal audit function by commissioning an external
quality review This review, carried out by Ernst and Young
LLP, confirmed that the function was well-established
with advanced practices and no significant areas for
development Overall the committee was pleased with the
outcome of this review which provided a good endorsement
of the function, the quahty of its work and its compliance
with the appropriate guidance,

s Ensured that significant findings and recommendations
made by group internal audit and management’s proposed
responses were recelved, discussed and appropriately
acted upon,

* Reviewed the proposed internal audit plan for the coming
year to ensure 1t reflected the priorities in the group’s
plans and was derived from a nisk-based assessment of
the business and a review against the group s nsk profiles
Changes to the group internal audit plan were reviewed
and approved on a quarterly basis,

* Met privately with the internal audrt director,

+ The committee was satisfied that the group internal audit
function had the appropriate resources and access to
suitable external consultancy resource where necessary, and

* An annual programme of internal qualty assurance was
completed and actions ansing were implemented to continue
to improve the effectiveness of the function

External audit

* The committee reviewed an evaluation of the effectiveness
of the external auditors, which was prepared by internal audit
using input from across the group Key stakeholders involved
in the 2014 year end audit process were interviewed and/
or completed a questionnaire to evaluate the effectiveness
of the external auditors’ processes and key individuats, and
also to identify opportunities to enhance the effectiveness
and added value from the external auditors Areas assessed
were expertise, communication, team, and delivery
The committee concluded that the external auditors were
effective and recommended the reappointment of the
external auditors for a further one year term, agreeing
the terms of engagement, scope and audit fee for the
forthcoming penod PwC has been LV="s auditor since 2008
The committee noted that the current FRC transitional
guwidance indicates that the group should tender the audit,
at the latest, in time for the 2018 AGM The committee
will continue to consider annually the need to go to tender
for audit quality and ndependence reasons Subject to the
outcome of this process continuing to be satisfactory,
it 1s currently expected that PwC will remain in office
and a resolution to reappoint PwC for the 2016 audit
will therefore be proposed at the AGM,

¢ Reviewed the policy for and monitored the use of the
external auditors for any non-audit related work to ensure
its continued independence was not prejudiced and to
ensure that the proviston of such services did not impair
the external auditors objectivity Any engagement above
£100,000 requires prior approval by the chairman of the
Audit Commrttee and must be reported to the committee
al 1ts next meeting The fees paid or invoiced for non-audit
activities in 2015 were £747,000 which was 27% of the fees
paid to the external auditors in 2015 In addition to this fees
paid or invoiced for non-audit assurance services in 2015
were £933,000,

*« Reviewed and approved the external auditors’ proposed
audit scope and approach for the current year as set
out in its 2015 audit plan, in the light of the group's
present circumstances and changes i regulatory
and other requirements,

* Discussed with the external auditor any audit problems
encountered in the normal course of audit work,
including any restrictions on audit scope or access to
information as part of ensunng that significant findings
and recommendations made by the external auditors
and management’s proposed response were received,
discussed and appropnately acted upon, and

+ Met pnvately with the external auditors, PwC

Committee's effectiveness

The committee reviews 1ts own effectiveness annually

and, dunng the year, this review was led by the committee's
chairman The committee also reviews the effectiveness

of each meeting prior to conclusion to ensure

cantinuous improvement

Achievements in 2015

Oversight of preparations for Solvency Il and implementation
of Solvency |l reporting, including review of the governance
for Solvency Il reporting and assumption setting

Reviewed and approved the Sclvency Il balance sheet
assurance report, prepared by the auditors, prior to
submission to the PRA

An external review of the effectiveness of the internal audit
team was undertaken and an action plan agreed

Reviewed and approved the submussion of iICA+ for
group and life in September 2015 and general insurance
in December 2015

Reviewed the updated Annotated Corporate Governance
Code and the application of the new Code requirements,
specifically going concern, viability and the assessment
of principal nsks

Priorities for 2016

Continued focus on the areas outitned in the significant
Issues table on pages 82 to 85

Oversight of the Teachers Assurance acquisition
and review of the subsequent controls and reporting
requirements associated with this transaction

Review and approval of Solvency Il submissions

Consider the impact of the FCA review published with regards
1o the treatment of long standing customers, whose policies
are no longer being actively marketed

Consider the impact of IFRS 9 *Financial instruments’
which addresses the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and financial habilities

Consider the appropnateness of the current IFRS
treatment under the Solvency H regime
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© The Risk Committee
The Risk Committee met four times in 2015 and I1s expected
to meet four times in 2016

The Risk Commuittee 1s made up of

e David Neave (chairman)

* Mark Austen

¢ James Dean

¢ John Edwards {until September 2015}

The Risk Committee meets at least four times a year
with other attendees including, but not imited to

the chief executive,

the group finance director,

the chief risk officer,

the internal audit director,

the head of compliance, and

the group chief actuary

The principal role of the committee 15 to consider
the nsks faced by Lv= and advise the board

More details of the group’s policy on nsk management
and the activities of the committee durning the year are set
out in the Risk Management section on pages 46 to 57

© Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee met six times duning 2015
and i1s expected to meet four imes 1n 2016

The committee 1s made up of three non-executive directors
+ Cath Keers (chairman)

+ Caroline Burton

« Mark Austen

Input ts provided by the HR director, the chief executive
and the chief nsk officer, who attend by mnvitation

On behalf of the board, the committee determines
* The group s policy on executive remuneration, and

* The specific packages for each of the executive directors
and certain semor managers, including the group-wide LTIP
scheme and the divisional LTIP scheme for the general
insurance business

The actimities undertaken dunng the year include
e Monitoring the LTIP schemes against nsk and performance,

« Recommending the annual bonus rates and targets for the
chief executive and other executives based on performance,
market comparison and budget analysts,

+« Appointing Deloitte LLP as the group’s remungration
consultants During the year, Deloitte also provided the
group with advice in relation to internal audit services,
pension advisory services and risk and regulatory advice

¢« Review and approval of the Directors’ Remuneration Report
for the Annual Report,

¢ Evaluating the performance of the committee and individual
members, led by the chairman, and

¢ Updating its terms of reference following a review of the
committee’s effectiveness against the terms of reference

Mare details of the group's policy on executive and senior
management remuneration, and the activities of the committee
during the year are set out in the Report on Directors’
Remuneration on pages 96 to 109

Q@ Nomination Committee

During the year, the Nomination Commuttee comprised all the
independent non executive directors, the chairman and the
chief executive

Mark Austen {chairman)

Cath Keers

David Neave

Caroline Burton

James DPean

John Edwards {until September 2015)

Mike Rogers {chief executive)

The Nomination Committee met twice in 2015 and s expected
to meet three times in 2016

The committee

» Evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge and experience
on, and required by, the board for board appointments and
certain senior management roles, and

* Prepares a descnption of the role and capabilities required
for any particular appointment

Recruitment consultants The Zygos Partnership (TZP) were
instructed to help compile a shortlist of candidates for interview
for the board vacancy following the resignation of John Edwards
TZP has no other connection with the Society and was used
solely for the purpose of assisting with the recruitment

of the board vacancy The committee then recommended
appotntments to the board for approval

Recruitment consultants were also retained to identify

the successor to John Q Roarke as managing director

of the general insurance business At the conclusion

of the recruitment process the Nomination Committee
recommended the appotntment of Steve Treloar to the board

During the year, the committee undertook the
following activities
s Discussed succession planming,

+» Reviewed the Job spectfication of the senior independent
director and time commitment required for the role
and recommended to the board the appointment of
a new non-executive director to the role,

+ Instructed external search consultants to begin the
recruitment process for a non executive director and
an executive director,

o Discussed the professional development plans and
non-executive director training for 2015,

* Reviewed Its effectiveness against its terms of reference,
and

« Evaluated the performance of the committee’s
meeting effectiveness

woday o8steng
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© Investment Committee

The committee meets at least twice a year (it met three times
N 2015 and 1s expected to meet twice m 2016) and the

chief nsk officer and representatives from the group’s asset
manager, Columbia Threadneedle Investments usually attend
by mvitation

The Investment Committee comprises three

non-executive directors

s John Edwards {(chairman until May 2015 and member
untit September 2015}

« Carohne Burton (chatrman from May 2015)

* Mark Austen

and two executive directors
* Mike Rogers, and
* Philip Moore

The group chief nisk officer 1s also a member of the Investment
Committee Regular attendees include the group chief
investment officer and the group chief actuary

It 1s responsible for

» Developing, recommending and overseeing the investment
strategy for the group, aligned to its business and
nsk strategy,

* Monitoring and rewiewing the operational performance of
Columbia Threadneedle Investments covering its relative
investment performance against mandates set, service
levels, contract terms and conditions including 1ts charges
compared to alternative providers, and

+ Investment activity undertaken by management including
the oversight of the group’s Asset and Liability Commuttee
{ALCO) delegated activities and effectiveness of decisions
and actions

During the year, the committee undertook the

following activities

« Reviewed counterparty nsk and comphance with the
counterparty policy,

+ Monitored the effectiveness of the dervative portfolio
and investment performance portiolio,

* Discussed credit exposure and proposed actions,

» Reviewed the Society’s with-profits investment strategy
benchmarks in comparison to peers,

+ Discussed Columbia Threadneedle Investments’
performance including compliance with delegated
authonties, and

e Evaluated the performance of the committee and individual
members, led by the charrman

O With-profits Committee

The With-profits Committee meets at least four times a year
(it met six times in 2015 and 1s expected to meet five times
in 2016), and comprises

e Graham Bervilie {independent chairman)

Steve Sarjant (iIndependent member)

Cath Keers

John Edwards (until September 2015)

John Perks, the managing director of our retirement
solutions business

Graham Berville has extensive and relevant industry expenence

and was formerly CEQ of Police Mutual and holds a number
of other non-executive positions

Regular attendees include the with-profits actuary and the
chief actuary for the life business

The role of the committee I1s to

+ Bring independent judgement to the assessment of
compliance with the statement of Principles and Practices
of Financial Management, and

+« Monitor how any competing or conflicting interests between

different groups of policyholders are resolved

The committee can engage external professional advisers to
assist in delivering its objectives effectively and draws on the
expertise of the with-profits actuary Input s also provided by

the chief actuary and the actuanal function holder, who attend

by invitation

During the year, and in addition to its core respensibilities,

the committee undertook the following activities

* Reviewed its effectiveness against its terms of reference,

* Reviewed effectiveness against its three-year plan,

¢ Continued with an extensive programme of improvements
to with-profit member communications,

* Considered the impact on with-profit members of various
potential acquisitions and played a key advisory role In
the proposed acquisition of and plans for implementation
for the Teachers with-profits fund,

* Evaluated the performance of the commuttee and individual

members, led by the chairman, and
* Benchmarked its performance with the other significant
with-profits committees in the UK

Executive Committee

The chref executive chairs this weekly committee meeting

to monitor our business performance It also meets in order
to help him meet the responsibitities which the board has
delegated to im and as a precursor to 1its monthly reporting
to the board
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Matters reserved for the board

There 15 a clear list of matters which only the beard can decide
on, other matters are delegated to the chief executive Matters
reserved for the Society's board are outlined in the table below

The board ensures that directors, especially the non-executive
directors, have access to independent professional advice
where they judge it necessary to discharge their responsibilities
as directors and have access to the advice and services of the

In 2016 the board expects to meet at least ten times and
to have two strategy and planning sessions

Under the Society’s rules all directors are required to stand
for re-election at least once every three years Mike Rogers
and James Dean will be offering themselves for re-election
at the 2016 AGM As Mark Austen has served a term beyond
sIx years, Mark s perfermance and independence 1s subject

company secretary to rnigorous review and, as chairman, votuntarly, and in ine
with the recommendations of the Annotated Code for mutual
In 2015 the board met ten times for formal board meetings, insurers of 1ts size, offers himself for re-election each year
once on an additional ad hoc hasis to discuss specific 1ssues

and twice for strategy and planning sessions

establishing the tone from the top for values, culture and ethics,

determtning and overseeing delivery of the group’s strategy,

approval and momtoring of long-term strategic plans and objectives, and

approval and momitoring of the group annual business plan for the coming three years

Strategy and
planning

« appointment and removal of the Society’s chairman, deputy chairman (if appointed), senior
independent director, company secretary, group chief executwe, chief investment officer,
chief nsk officer, with-profits actuary and actuaral function holder and directors of the Society
and 1ts substdianes

Appointment
and removal
of officers

1oday 2idslens

Approval of
+ capital or revenue expenditure exceeding £5 million or greater than £2 5 million where this
expenditure 1s over the agreed budget, or any expenditure deemed to be outside the normal -
course of business, g
Financial + the annual bonus declaration, 3
matters ¢ the Indvidual Capital Assessment and its submission to the PRA, §
 recommendations if any to the Financial Condition Report,
« the Valuation Report and the Annual Report, and
e Solvency Il financial reporting, including approval of the ORSA, the Internal Model and 1ts
embedding, Risk Appetite Statements and Systems of Governance as recommended by
the Risk and Audit Committees
Mergers, * mergers, acquisitions and disposals either by the Society or any of its subsidiaries with S
acquisitions a value greater than £5 millron, and &
and disposals * approval of mergers, acquisitions and disposals and overseeing effective integration g
w
Approval of

* the Notice of AGM (including reappointment of auditors), any proposed amendments to the
memorandum and rutes and related documentation in connection with the AGM,

* the Notice of the results of the AGM and any resolutions to be raised at the Member Panel where
there was a significant vote against,

Governance  approval and penodic review to discuss specific policy statements as the board may determine from

and time to time including princtpal nisk policies (except those delegated to the Risk Committee},

compliance » any poiitical donations (none made),
the membership of board commuittees,

¢ the terms of reference of board committees, subsidiary company boards and the Executive Asset
and Liabiity Matching Committee, and

* policy changes in penston entitlement and staff pension scheme funding
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Board Diversity policy

The board recognises that diversity and inclusion are central
to business success, today and for the future, reflecting

the diversity of its people, customers, members and
communities in which it operates

The board has adopted the following diversity policy
‘LV=recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse board, and sees diversity at board level as an
essential element in maintaning a competitive advantage
A truly diverse board will include and make good use of
differences in the skills, industry expernence, background,
race, gender and other qualities of directors These
differences will be considered in determining the optimum
composition of the board and, when possible, should be
balanced appropriately All board appointments will be made
on merit, In the context of the skiflls and experience the
board as a whole requires to be effective The Nomination
Committee reviews and assesses board composition on
behalf of the board and recommends the appointment

of all new directors to the board’

In reviewing board composition, the Nomination Comnuttee
will consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity
including, but not imited to, those described above,

In arder to mamntain an appropriate range and balance

of skills, experience and background on the board

In identifying suitable candidates for appointment to the
board, the Nomination Committee will consider candidates
on merit against ohjective critena and with due regard

for the benefits of diversity on the board

As part of the annual performance evaluation of the
effectiveness of the board, board committees and indmnvidual
directors, the Nomination Committee will consider the
balance of skilis, experience, independence and knowledge
on the board and the diversity of the board

Dunng 2015 LV= continued to progress its diversity and
inclusion programme based on the research that Brook
Graham Associates, a diversity and inclusion speciahst
consultancy, had conducted on its behalf and the work
undertaken by the group 1in 2014

The purpose and objectives of LV="s diversity and inclusion

programme are

+« To create a culture at LV= where everybody feels
comfortable with being themselves

+ [ts people are seif-aware and accept personal
accountabibity for diversity and inclusion

o The diverse perspective of its people, customers,
members and communities 1t operates in are reflected
in what they do

s |ts people and leaders are as diverse as the customers
and members It serves

Cur progress included the development of the programme
to include five main areas of diversity gender, disabibty,
sexual onentation, ethnicity and multigenerational ensuring
1t reached out to all representative groups of s staff and
customers ahke LV='s commitment starts at the top

of the business with group executives sponsoring each

of the diversity programmes

The board has a strong interest In the development and
progression of women at all levels of the group and in 2015
grew 11s women's network ‘PACE’ (which stands for Potential,
Ambition, Connections and Empowerment) by 100% to over
730 members, 1ts largest diversity and inclusion network
With an ever growing membership from both 1ts male and
female workforce, the network has been pivotal 1in helping
people recognise the value that gender diversity brings to an
organtsatron As well as helping women to learn from more
senior role models, bulld confidence and take ownership for
their own careers, the network provides opportunities for
mentoring, work-shadowing and insight for male colleagues
about the challenges that women face With regular speaker
events from inspirational women and men, the growing
network is working towards the aim of supporting equal
opportunities for everyone Today PACE 1s recognised as

an influentral network for the business and our people

on all gender-related 1ssues

The main achievement of our overall diversity and inclusion
programme to date has been the enabling voice for
minority groups and so creating the opportunity for them to
shape and influence our culture, workplace and customer
propositions resulting in them feehng that they can bring
therr true self to work

We are proud of our association with a range of external
partners who provide us with access to further networks,
research and best practice on diversity and incluston
across the UK These include Everywoman, We are the
City, City Women's Network, Stonewall and the Business
Disabihty Forum

The chairman 1s an active member of the 30% Club which

15 committed to bringing more women to boards This 1S a
group largely compnsing chairmen of major firms commitied
to achieving gender halance at all levels of organisations

A short term goal was for boards to compnse 30% women
by the end of 2015

The Society has not set a specific target but, dunng the
recruitment process for a new non-executive director,
requested a diverse shorthist and long lead-times 10 ensure
women had the opportunity to apply and coutd be considered
for the role During 2015, women made up 20% of the fuli
board and, of the non-executive directors, the Society had
33% female representation

In addition the chairman 1s contributing to “Speakers for
Schools’, an associated programme to encourage all
students, particularly women, to achieve their full potential
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Directors’
Report

(L= aims to maintain
our position as one of the
UK best loved, insurers
by de//'t/er/hg excellent
customer service while
cansfstem‘/g treating

the customer fairly.

Rachel Small
Company Secretary

Business activities and future prospects
LV=1s an incorporated friendly society that,
together with vanous subsidiaries, carries out
insurance and financial services business

in the United Kingdom, through LVFS and its
subsidianies These activities include with-profits
insurance, life protection (both term and whote of
iife), annuities, equity release, motor, home, pet
and travel insurance The directors consider that
all the activities undertaken by the group during
the year were within the Society's rules

and relevant regulatory permissions

The board sets objectives and pnonties supported

by key performance indicators (KPIs) and targets,
which 1t monitors an an ongoing basis throughout
the year

Dunng 2015, the key objectives and prionties
were aligned to our strategic agenda

Sustainzable business model
* Deliver the profit target results for each
individual business unit

* Meet the benchmark target investment return
achieved on our with-profits fund

e Ensure we have suffictent capital to
withstand economic and market shocks on
our regulatory and econormi¢ capital bases
and manage our capital coverage ratic within
the group's risk appetite framework in a
Solvency |l environment

Continue to improve our financial reporting
systems and processes to enhance our profit,
cash and capital reporting and forecasting
models and to support the reporting
requirements under Solvency Il

Oversee preparations and readiness for
Solvency Il and implementation of Solvency
Il reporting and governance This includes
reviewing all applications including Matching
Adjustment, Transitional Relief and Volatility
Adjuster and our external auditor’s balance
sheet assurance report

Continue to develop the effectiveness and
matunity of our Risk Management Framework
and development and approval of the ORSA
and assoclated Validation Report

Review the updated Annotated Corporate
Governance Code and the application of new
Code requirements, specifically going concern,
viability and the assessment of principal nsks

Return value to our membership through our
commitment to delivering a mutual bonus for
eligible members and to continue to support

all our members via member discounts, the
Member Support Fund, the Member Community
Fund and the Member Care Line
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Diversified general insurance eamings

¢ Oversee the development of new general
insurance product offerings and growth
in the SME markets

Grow life to scale

* Oversee the Teachers Assurance acquisition,
which 1s to be completed in the first half of
2016, subject to regulatory approval, including
a review of controls and reparting requirements
associated with this transaction

+ QOversee the Wealth Wizards acquisition

Exploration of adjacent business areas
s (Oversee the launch of Lv=Law and the
LV= Retirement Wizard and Pension

Compass tools

Go digital

« Qversee the go digital agenda including
approval of system enhancement projects
and approval of the launch of a major
programme to improve the general
insurance claims and service model

Build a distinctive and relevant brand

¢ Oversee our refreshed brand across the group
and to make further progress towards our
vision to be Britain's best loved insurer

Become customer centric

* Maintain our position as one of Bntain's
best loved insurers by delivering excellent
customer service while consistently treating
the customer fairly

Broaden and deepen talent pool

= Retain staff engagement scores at or
above those of the high performing organisations
(as defined by Willis Towers Watson) and to
develop and retain our key talent

Performance against these objectives and
priorities 1s regularly reviewed at board meetings

Business strategy

The board has chosen to set out the group's
full strategic report information required under
applicable law and regulations in full which
can be found on pages 13 to 71 of this report

Board directors and interests

The current members of the board and details

of its various committees are shown on pages

76 to 89 together with their dates of appointment

Durning 2015 John O'Roarke was a minority
shareholder in Liverpool Victoria General
Insurance Group with a 22 22% shareholding

in the Qrdinary B Class of shares (equivalent to
approximately 0 25% of the total Ordinary share
capital of Lv= General Insurance Group) and was
a party to a contract for LVFS to purchase his
shareholding during 2016

The shareholding was repurchased by LVFS
in February 2016 Further details are given
n note 52 to the financial statements

We continued to maintain habihity insurance
cover for our directors and officers dunng the
year and as at the date of approval of these
financial statements

With-profits bonus declaration

The board has declared an annual bonus for the
year ended 31 December 2015 at 1% of the sum
assured for iIndustnal branch business and

at 2% of the sum assured for conventional
ordinary branch hfe business Interim bonus rates
will also be at these levels Fina! bonus rates in
2015 maintain our competitive position

Basis of accounting

These accounts are presented using International
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS}, as adopted
by the European Union, drawn up on a going
concern basis Further details about the directors’
responsibilities for the accounts are described on
page 95

Going concern and viability statement
In accordance with the provisions of the
annotated version of the UK Corporate
Governance Cade, the directors are required
to assess the prospect of the group as a going
concern generally over the next 12 months and
also its longer term viabiity

Going concern

Under the annotated version of the UK Corporate

Governance Code the directors are required to

state whether the business I1s a going concern

In considering this requirement, the directors

have taken into account the following

+ The group plan, which was approved by the
board in December 2015 and in particular
the forecast regulatory solvency position
Sensitivity analysis 15 included within this
forecast (for further detail on this analysis
see page 34)

= For the group. regulatory solvency 1s given
more attention than hiquidity This 1s because,
by the nature of its business, the group holds
very substantial liquid assets on its balance
sheet which would enable it to pay claims and
expenses as they fall due for at least a 12
manth period

e The principal nsks and uncertainties that could
impact the group s solvency and liquidity over
the next 12 months (for further detall on the
principal risks and uncertainties assessed in
2015 see pages 49 to 52)

Having due regard to these matters and after
making appropriate enquimes, the directors
confirm that they consider 1t appropnate to
prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis
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The board, sets abjectives and priorities
supported by key perfarmance indicators
(KPIs) and, targets, which it monitors

on an ongoing basis z%roqg/zoqz‘ the year.

Viability statement

The board I1s also required to assess the
prospects of the Society and the group over
a longer penod than the 12 months required
for the going concern review

The board conducted this review for a penod

of three years as this s aligned with the period
used for the internal group plan, which was
approved by the board 1n December 2015 and
which covers the three year period from 2016

to 2018 it should be noted that life insurance

1S a long-term business and the board looks out
on a longer basis than three years 1n certain
areas Beyond a three year honzon the board
does not have an expectation that there will be a
matenal change in the principal nsks affecting the
solvency, hiquidity or performance of the group

The group’s three year plan covers the group's
regutatory solvency position, profitability,
operational liquidity and other key financial ratios
over the penod These metrics are subject to
sensitivity analysis, which involves flexing a
number of the main assumptions undertying

the farecast both individually and in unison

As part of the viability statement review the
directors have carned out a robust assessment
of principal nsks which could threaten the group's
business model, future performance, solvency or
hguidity, paying particular attention to the impact
on the capital position of a combination of risks
1o create a scenario, considering correlation

of risks and evaluating their combined impact
{for further detaii on stress and scenario testing
carrned out as part of the Own Risk and Solvency
Assessment (ORSA) process see pages 55 and
56) In addition, further analysis I1s carned out to
evaluate the potential impact of other principal
risks occurning (for further detaill on principal
risks and uncertainties assessed in 2015 see
pages 49 to 52) Agreeing an appropriate
long-term regulatory capital basis for managing
and reporting the group's capital position 1s

also an important area of focus (see Capital
Management on pages 33 to 35)

The review also considers mitigating actions
available to the group should an extreme
stress scenario occur Based on the results
of this review, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Society and the group will
be able to continue In operation and meet Its
habilities as they fall due over the three year
period of their assessment

Fixed assets
Changes in our fixed assets are shown in note 30
to the financial statements

Margin of solvency

Throughout the year and at 31 December 2015
we held the required capital resources for each
business class as prescribed by the PRA

Independent auditor

A resolution for the re appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditor will
be proposed at the 2016 AGM

Assessment of risk

We look to create vatue for members by
maintaining an appropriate balance between the
returns that we seek and the level and type of
risk we take on In order to achteve these returns

In accordance with the annotated version of the
UK Corporate Governance Code, the directors
have carned out a robust assessment of the
principal nsks facing the group and Society,
including those which would threaten its business
model, future performance, solvency or hquidity

A full overview of our nsk management can be
found on pages 46 to 57 and further details of
the ongoing monitoring and the annual review

of the effectiveness of risk management systems
can be found in the Audit Commuttee report an
pages 81 to 86 Note 4 of these accounts also
provides further detail about our nsk management
and control

Internal contro}

The board has overall responsibility for the group’s
internal control systems and for monitoring
effectiveness Implementation and maintenance
of the internal control systems are the
responsibility of the executive directors and
senior management The performance of the
internal control systems Is reviewed by the
relevant board commitiees, principally the Audit
Commuttee which receves reports from the
internal audit, compliance and risk functions

The Audit Committee report on pages 81 to 86
describes the main features of the internal control
and risk management systems in relation to the
financial reporting process and the process for
prepanng consolidated accounts, which are a
subset of the internal control systems under the
supervision of the board’'s committees

The group’s internal control systems are
designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the
rnisk of fallure to meet business objectives and
can only provide reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or
loss 1n assessing what constitutes reasonable
assurance, the board has regard to matenality
and to the relatonship between the cost of,
and benefit from, internal control systems

The regular review of the effectiveness

of the system of nsk management and internal
control concluded that these systems remain
effective and there were no significant failings
or weaknesses to report



Directors Report 95

Our employees

Detaits about our people, our people policies
including the employment of disabled persons,
our diversity and inclusion programme and
engagement with our staff generally can

be found on pages 64 to 68 of this report,
headed ‘Corporate Responsibility Report

Chantable donations

A full view of our charitable donations and
corporate social responsibility activities can
be found on pages 68 to 70 No political
donations were made in 2015

Statement of disclosure of information

to the auditor

As at the date of this report each director

confirms that

1) so far as he or she 1s aware, there 1s no
information relevant to the audit of the
Society's and the group's financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015 of which
the auditor 1s unaware,

2) he or she has taken all steps that he or she
ought to have taken in hus/her duty as a
director to make him/her aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the
Society’s auditor 1s aware of that information

Directors’ statement of responsibility
The Friendly Societies Act 1992 (1992 Act)
requires a Fnendly Society's Committee of
Management to prepare accounts for each
accounting penod As we are incorporated under
the 1992 Act our board of directors has assumed
the responsibilities and duties of the Commuttee
of Management in relation to these accounts

These accounts must comply with the relevant
provisions of the 1992 Act, and present farrly the
financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Society and the group at the end of
the accounting penod In carrying out this duty,
the directors have chosen to use IFRS as adopted
by the European Union

A fair presentation of our accounts in accordance

with IFRS requires our directors to

e Select suitable accounting policies and ensure
they are apphed consistently,

» Prepare the accounts on a going concern basis,
unless It 1s inappropriate to presume that the
Society and the group will continue in business,

» Make judgements and accounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent,

e Present information, including accounting
policies, in a manner that provides
relevant reliable comparable and
understandable information,

* Provide additional disclosures when
comphance with the specific requirements
in IFRS 15 insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions
on the Society’s and the group’s financial
position and financial performance, and

* State that the Society and the group have
comphlied with applicable IFRSs, subject
to any matenal departures disclesed and
explained in the accounts

The directors are also responsible for maintaining
* Proper accounting regords which are intended
to disclose with reasonable accuracy, at any
tme, the financial position of the Society
and the group,

& Appropriate internal control systems to
safeguard our assets and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregulanties, and

* The integnty of the corporate and financial
information included on our website LY com

Joday 28aens

Legislation in the UK governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and functions
are shown on pages 78 and 79, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief
* The group financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabiltes, financial position
and profit of the group,

« The Business Reviews on pages 28 to 45 of
the Strategic Report include a fair review of the
development and performance of the business
during the financial year and the financial
position of the group at the end of 2015, and

SIUN0DDY D

e A description of the group’s principal risks and
details of the group s nisk governance structure
are provided on pages 46 to 57

Having taken all the matters considered by the
board and brought to the attention of the board
dunng the year into account, the directors are
satisfied that the Annual Report, taken as a
whole, I1s fair, balanced and understandable,
and provides the information necessary for our
members and investors to assess the Society's
and the group’s position and performance,
business model and strategy

By order of the Board of Directors

QO\U\M U

Rachel Small, Group Company Secretary
11 March 2016
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Report on
Directors’
Remuneration

At the heart of our
remuneration framework
is the link to our /on\g ~term
business strateqy and the
/ang—z‘erm sqsfwhabf/ftg
of the St ociety.

Cath Keers
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Annual Statement

Dear Member,

in 2015, LV= has performed exceptionally well
in a very challenging market Our ife business
showed its resilience and sound business model
to generate excellent results, following the
unpredictability of 2014 with the announcement
of pensions freedoms Our general insurance
business faced pricing challenges in an
increasingly competitive industry, but once
again generated strong results, bulding upon
our powerful brand and customer proposition

As the chair of the Remuneration Committee,

I and my colleagues seek to ensure we offer

a reward package that attracts the best people
to lead the group, and that our pay arrangements
appropriately reflect our long-term business
strategy and that variable incentive payouts
reflect the business performance that has

been delivered on your behalf

Pay and the link to our long-term
business strategy

At the heart of our remuneration framework

1s the link 1o our long-term business strategy
and the long-term sustainability of the Society

We currently operate two vanable incentive
schemes for this purpose — an annual bonus
scheme and a long-term mcentive plan (LTIP}

The annual bonus 1s driven by a balanced
scorecard of financial and non-financial measures
coverning risk, people, strategy and customer,

and a proportton of any award may be deferred
and pawd out In a later year, ensunng that our
executives remain focused on both the short-term
and long-term health of the Society Our LTIP,
which measures performance over three years,

15 tntended to reward participants for delivering
high performance in business results which 1s
sustainable over the long-term To this effect,
long-term growth in group profit 1S now the primary
measure used as it 1S a measure that grows
member value, prowides the resources for us

to invest In the Society's future, and can be

used to fund the mutual bonus

For our executive directors, we also require

that two-thirds of any LTIP award 1s deferred

for a further two years following the end of the
performance period, with any such payments
linked to the value of the Society’s with-profits
fund, further ahgring the remuneration executives
receive and members’ interests



Report on Directors Remuneration a7y

Vanable pay-outs and the link

to performance

The annual bonus in 2015 was weighted 60% on financial
measures (normahised group operating profit) and 40% on
individual and strategic measures Group operating profit in
2015 was £195 million, representing 127% growth on the
previous year The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
elements of the group operating profit to calculate a normalised
group operatng profit of £91 million, which resulted 1n full
payment in respect of this measure The individual strategic
measures are tailored for each executive director, but stem
from our balanced scorecard of financial and non-financial
objectives Following our 2015 success, our executive directors
receved on average 81% of their maximum bonus opportunity,
as a clear reflection of therr achievements 1n the year A portion
of each bonus received by Mike Rogers, Philip Moore and
Richard Rowney will be deferred for payment over the next three
years, with the value hinked to the value of investments in the
with-proftts fund, ensunng a continued link to the performance
of the Society

Our success has also been shared with our employees via our
group annual incentive scheme, with the average percentage
bonus receved by our employees being 11 8% of salary

Our 201.3-15 Group LTIP scheme was based on stretching
targets relating to Enterpnise Value growth, with our chief
executive and group finance director also having an efement
of therr award linked to Relative Investment Performance
Annualised Enterprnise Value growth over the three year
performance period was 10%, representing significant growth
but not exceeding the stretching target set by the committee
that would have resulted in maximum vesting This resulted
in a payment of 45% of maximum under this element

Our annualised investment performance over the three year
performance penod has been strong, and has outperformed
the industry benchmark by 117bps The annualised Relative
investment Performance element of the awards given to

the chief executive and group finance director has therefore
generated maximum payments for this part of their awards
We've included more detalls of our LTIP performance on
page 103

In addition to the above, the group also made a one-off
payment to John O'Roarke under the general insurance
divisional LTIP Further details are shown on page 105

Remuneration in 2016

Salary

We review directors salaries at the same time as we look at
salarnes for the whole employee population and we determine
any increases for our executive directors in exactly the same
way as our broader employee group In making any pay
increases, we consider affordability and the pay increases that
we see across our industry competitors When it comes to
individual pay increases, we constder individual performance
and taftent potential, comparnng salanes to similar roles both
externally and internally In 2016, salanes for our all-employee
population will Increase on average by 2% and the salary
increases to be awarded to our executive directors are

in ine with this

Varlable incentlves

The committee continually keeps under review our remuneration

policy, remuneration levels and all incentive arrangements
We have recognised the increased need to focus on strategy
to strengthen our capital position, as required under Solvency
Ik, and to protect the long-term interests of you, our members

With that in mind the committee has approved a change to the
weightings of our annual bonus scheme for 2016, reducing the
emphasis placed on financial objectives from 60% to 55%, and
increasing the wetghting on strategy from 10% to 15% We are

not proposing any other changes to the operation of our annual
bonus or our LTIP for 2016

Recruitment

As confirmed in 2015, John O'Roarke will be stepping down
from the beard and his position as managing director of our
general Insurance business in 2016 We ve successfully
appointed Steve Treloar to replace John, and he will start with
us in mid-2016 Steve's remuneration package will be in line
with our existing remuneration policy that was approved by
members in May 2015, and we will be disciosing full details
in next year's Report on Directors’ Remuneration

Listening to members

We want to hear from you and we continue to make every
effort to hsten to the views of our members to help shape our
remuneration structures at LV= Our Member Pane! 1s made up
of around 40 members We held two Member Panel meetings
in 2015, which were both really well attended and provided us
with great feedback on our policies and how we communicate
with you

We've listened and have incorporated your feedback on the
structure of our Report on Directors’ Remuneration this year
We've simpiified the structure of the report to make it easier
to read and we hope that you'll find it to be more user-friendly
and informative as a result We're continuing to look at ways
to improve how we report to you, and we d welcome your
feedback on both the changes to our report this year and
also any other areas where you think we can improve

We have always aimed to comply with the highest standards
of corporate governance and, whilst we have made structural
changes to the Report on Directors’ Remuneration, 1t has
again been prepared in line with the reporting requirements
which apply to listed companies Since we are not proposing
any significant changes to the remuneration policy that was
approved by members at the 2015 AGM, at the 2016 AGM
we will only have one remuneration resolution put to a
member vote, being the adwisory vote on the 2015 Report
on Directors Remuneration

| hope that as members you will support the resolution to
approve the payments made in the year under review at this
year's AGM As always, the committee and | are keen to receive
feedback so we can take on board your views when setting
future policy

Yours sincerely

A

Cath Keers

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

uoday sIgMens
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N
Remuneration at a glance it
Missed target @
Lv= financial performance in 2015 L.V= non-financial performance in 2015
£195mM operating profit st
2014 £86m b gp . 1 UK best loved .

2014 2™

195% capital cover ratio €

2014 171%

0
3. 8% heritage with-profits v ﬁgﬁmﬁggﬁﬁ?ﬁient'

senchmars 27%  TUNA performance

Financial measures used for the annual bonus plan and long-term incentive plan
The chart below shows how the actual performance of the financial measures under the annual bonus scheme
and 2013-2015 LTIP scheme compared with the targets set

2015 Annual Bonus

Threshold £55m Target £69m Maximum £82m Payout %
of max

Normalised group
operating profit® £91m 100%
(1} The group operating profit after removal of one off items {see page 102)

2013-2015 LTIP

Threshold 7% Maximum 18% Paycut %
of max

Group Enterpnse
Value growth (pa ) 45%

Relative Investment Threshold Obp Maximum 60bp Payaut %
Performance (p a relative of max

to benchmark) 117 bp 100%

How much our executive directors earned in 2015 from our ongoing remuneration policy

amnuat | Longtern [EGLCENN

Total bonus incentives

remuneration (% of (% of P Moore _
(£'000) maximum) | maximum)
R rowney

M Rogers £1,870 86% 59%
1 O'Roarke —
P Moore £1,100 81% . 59%
P Salary, pension b Annual bonus
R Rowney £980 92% 45% and other benefits P Longterm tncentives
J O'Roarke® £616 65% -

{1) In addition to this remunerauon from our ongoing policy } O Roarke received remuneration from the general insurance LTiP totaling £10 1 milien
For further details see page 105
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Remuneration Policy

Our Remuneration Policy was approved by members at the AGM held on 21 May 2015 There are no proposed changes to the
Remuneration Policy and we will continue to follow the already agreed policy in 2016 except for the change to annual bonus
weightings, described in more detall on page 107 The full Remuneration Policy can be found in the LV= Annual Report 2014
The key elements of our remuneration framework are set out below

Salary

Benefits

Pension

Annua! Bonus

Group long-
term incentive
plan (LTIP)

Deferrat

Malus /
clawback

Salaries are reviewed annually (but not necessarily increased) taking

account of several factors including individual experienge, responsibilities,

function and sector, along with indnadual and group performance

Include car allowance, medical insurance, iIncome protection cover,
and group product discounts, which are available to all staff and
directors on equal terms

Directors can elect to join a defined contribution pension scheme
or receive a cash sum in lieu of pension contrnbutions

The annual bonus pot 1s measured agamst annual group and divisional
financial objectives, accounting for 55% of the assessment, and a
balanced scorecard of objectives covering nsk, people, strategy and
customer, accounting for the remaining 45%

LTIP pay-outs will be made in cash One-third of any payment will

be made after three years when the scheme vests, one-third will be
deferred for a further year and one-third will be deferred for two years
after vesting

For 2016 awards will be based on performance over three years and
measure group adjusted average pre-tax profits and group relative
investment performance for the chief executive and finance director,
and group adjusied average pre-tax profits for the other directors

No prescnbed maximum

Up to 22% of salary

Chief executive maximum
payment of 150% of salary

QOther directors maximum
payment of 120% of salary

Maximum pay out 1s capped at
two times the onginal award,
the value of which 1s up to

Chief executive
100% of salary

Other board executives
T5% of salary

At least 40%-60% of the vanable remuneration paid to executive directors 1s delivered in long-term pay
If thts ratio 1s not met through the LTIP, then a portion of the annual bonus payment for that year will
be deferred for three years and the value tied to the value of investments in the with-profits fund

Deferred payments are subject to recovery provisions, at the discretion of the committee, where it has
come to light that awards were made in error or where new information 1s made avallable that would

have changed the value of the enginal award

Details of our peolicy on recruitment and promotions, service contracts, payments for loss of office, and non-executive directors
can be found in our full Remuneration Policy as set out in the LV= Annual Report 2014

Joday ndaiens
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rang

Meeting

Annual Report on Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee determines the broad policy
for remunerating the executive directors and agrees the
remuneration of each executive director and other semor
managers The committee reviews remuneration policy and
strategy at least once a year and all incentive and benus
schemes are established and monitored by the committee

Members of the committee are provided with regular training
and topical briefing sessions on developments and trends

In executive remuneration, particularly as this relates to the
financial sector

Committee membership, attendance and advisors
to the committee

During 2015 the committee members were Cath Keers,

who chaired the committee, Mark Austen, and Caroline Burton
The chief executive 1S invited to meetings except when his own
remuneration 1s being discussed Other senior employees,
such as the chief nsk officer, the human resources director
and the head of reward, regularly provide adwice to the
committee and normally attend meetings by invitation

During the year we took the decision to undertake a review of
our committee advisors New Bridge Street {(which 1s part of
Aon plc) was the independent external adviser to the committee
prior to the review Following a cempetitive tender process, the
committee appointed Deloitte LLP as their advisors with effect
from 16 June 2015 Dunng the course of the year, Deloitte LLP
provided advice to the committee on remuneration levels and
structures, and attended committee meetings at the invitation
of the committee The committee undertakes due diligence
periodically to ensure that our committee adwisor remains
Independent of the Society and that the advice provided 1S
impartial and objective Both New Bridge Street (NBS) and
Deloitte LLP are members of the Remuneration Consultants’
Group and, as such, voluntarly operate under the code of
conduct in relation to executive remuneration consulting

In the UK

The total fees paid to NBS in respect of services that
materally assisted the committee dunng the year were
£33,190 Dunng the year, Aon plc provided other services

to the Society including pension scheme advice, however the
committee considers that adequate structures were n place
to ensure the independence of the advice received from NBS

A meeting
members

The total tees paid to Deloitte in respect of services that
materially assisted the committee during the year were
£43,620 While fee estimates are required for bespoke pleces
of work, fees are generally charged based on time with hourly
rates in line with the level of expertise and semority of the
adviser concerned During the year, Deloitte also provided the
group with advice in relation to internal audit services, pension
adwvisory services and nisk and regulatory advice

Committee activities in 2015

In 2015 the committee met six times The matters which

were addressed included

o Review of the overall policy relating to directors’
remuneration,

* Review of all-employee remuneration policy, structures
and levels,

e Review of salary and bonus levels,

s Review of the sales incentives scheme, operated within
the Iife business,

o Preparation for the incoming Solvency i regulations,
* Preparation of the report on directors’ remuneration, and
e Qther routine matters throughout the year

All-employee remuneration

The committee also takes an active role In overseeing
remuneration arrangements for the wider employee population
LV= has committed to paying at least the Living Wage
Foundation’s mimimum hourly rates of pay to all employees,
with employees paid a minimum of £8 25 per hour outside
London and £9 40 in London

Lv= conducts regular salary benchmarking, both internally and
externally against the wider market, to ensure our employee
pay rates remain competitive We also offer all employees the
opportunity to participate 1n an incentrve arrangement (bonus or
sales Incentive} as weli as the opporturuty to individually select
the benefits they receve as part of their total reward package
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Remuneration for the past year {year ended 31 December 2015)
Summary table of executive directors’ remuneration - Audited
The remuneration of individual directors, including that of the highest paid director, was as follows

General
Taotal from insurance
ongoing division
Salary Other Annual Long-term remuneration long-term
£000 and fees | benefits' | Pension? bonus? incentives® policy incentive®
M Rogers 2015 538 17 118 700 597 1,970 - 1,970
2014 528 15 116 836 371 1,666 - 1,666
P Moore® 2015 368 15 51 360 308 1,100 - 1,100
2014 360 14 50 270 191 885 - 885
R Rowney 2015 326 15 72 360 207 980 - 980
2014 320 13 67 200 - 600 - 600 %
®
JO'Roarke 2015 300 15 €6 235 - 616 10,126 10,742 “i
2014 294 13 65 300 - 672 - 672 T
Total 2015 1,532 62 307 1,655 1,110 4,666 10,126 14,792
2014 1,502 55 298 1,406 562 3,823 - 3,823
Notes

1 Benefhts include car allowance medical insurange income protechion ¢over and life ¢over

2 This comprises the value of any payments by LV= into the defined contnbution section of aur pension scheme and any cash allowance paid in lieu of fargone contributions
as approprate A breakdown can be found in the Pensions section on page 105

3 This relates to the payment of the annual benus for the year ended 31 December 2015 Further details of th s payment are set out below For M Rogers P Moore and R Rowney
an element of these full year amounts wiil be subject to deferral

4 Th's rejiates to the vesting of the 2013 LTIP aware The performance period for this award ended on 31 December 2015 Two thirds of the figures shown are deferred to be paid
in equat tranches In April 2017 and Apnl 2018

§ This relates to the vesting of the general iInsurance divisionzl LTIP award Further details regarcing this scheme can be found on page 105
& P Moore also received fees relating 1o external nan executive d'rectorships totalling £85k

JJUBLIINOD

Summary table of non-executive directors’ remuneration — Audited

Non-executive directors receive no henefits or pension contributions and do Salary ';:,’

00 not participate in variable incentive schemes and fees Total §

o

[ =

M Austen 2015 181 181 Z
2014 177 177
D Neave 2015 70 70
2014 68 68
J Edwardst 2015 53 53
2014 73 73
C Keers 2015 69 69
2014 67 67
C Burton 2015 69 69
2014 64 64
J Dean 2015 70 70
2014 68 68
Total 2015 512 512
2014 517 517

1 Resigned on 23 September 2015
The aggregate remuneration paid to the Society’'s directors in 2015 was £15,304k (2014 £4,340k)
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Annual bonus for the year ended 31 December 2015 — Audited
The annual bonus for the year under review was based on performance against annual group financial objectives, risk metrics
and a balanced scorecard of personal objectives Detalls of actual performance against targets are as follows

Weighting Threshold £55m Target £69m Maximum £82m Payout %
of maximum

Normalised group
operating profit 60% 100%

The Society operates a performance range for profit targets (see chart above) which 1s considered to be stretching at all levels
Threshold 1s the level of performance that must be achieved to release 70% of the bonus pot Target 1s the level of performance
that must be achieved to release 100% of the bonus pot Maximum rs the fevel of performance that must be achieved to release
130% of the bonus pot

The Remuneration Committee adjusts reported operating profit when measuring actual performance agamnst target to remove
certain one-off items The review in 2015 reduced group operating profit of £495 million to the normalised group operating profit
shown above of £91 million

The Remuneration Committee looks at the performance of the business in the round to understand any internal and external factors
that have impacted performance and the broad trajectory of the business and market conditions, for example, before determining
the appropriate level of bonus to be released

For J O'Roarke, bonus profit targets are based on the performance of the general insurance business The genera) insurance
operating profit of £72 miilign in 2015 generated a payout of 75% of the maximum

The table below gives a broad indicator of how each executive director performed against thew individual and strategic objectives
aleng with a description of those objectives The total bonus awarded to each directer and the percentage deferred s also set out

Total Payable

actual in 2015 | Deferred
bonus (% | (% of {% of
Individual and strategic objectives (40% weighting) maximuim) Jof salary) | satary) salary)

s Continue to deliver strong progress against the key
strategic themes, based on the five-year strategic plan

s Ensure the capital sustatnability of the group,
including Solvency H

s Operate within the group’s nsk appeute - capital,
earnings, iquidity, brand, regulatory, operational

s Delver exceptional customer satisfaction scores,
to be Britain's best loved insurer
Deliver the group's financial plans and targets
Continue to demenstrate leading employee
engagement scores at the fevel of high
performing crganisations

M Rogers 65% 129% 92% 37%

s Improve finance's operational performance by
implementing systems enhancements and delivering
process Improvements

+ Meet all delivery milestones to ensure full compliance
with regulatory requirements for the group, including
Solvency

s Develop an updated investment strategy for general
insurance funds and design and defiver the with-profits
investment strategy

s Deliver the financizal plans and targets for the group

P Mocre 52% 7% 69% 28%

s Lead the strategic growth of the life and retirement
business, including successfully launching new products
and services to stay ahead of the market

+ Build a distinctive and relevant brand, ensuring high
levels of customer satisfaction

R Rowney s Deliver a market-leading digital solution, through the 79% 110% % 36%

use of strategic partnerships

* Operate within nsk management framework,
consistently delivering best outcomes for customers
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Total

actual Deferred
bonus (% (% of
Individual and strategic objectives (40% weighting) maximum) fof salary) salary)

* Deliver agreed profit and capital targets through
the continued growth of SME, home and commercial
motor proposition, to support core personal
motor product

* Successfully implement new iitiatives, such as L=
Legal Services

» Implement opportunities to upgrade digital capabilities
and deliver enhanced customer experience

+ Deliver the general insurance people agenda,
inctuding ensuring robust succession planning
In place for senior roles

J O’Roarke

50% 78% 78% 0%

Risk 1s taken into account when appraising all performance measures and the committee may reduce or cancel any bonus
payment if 1t considers that nsk exceeded acceptable levels In addition, no bonus payments will be made unless the group
achteves a pre-determined level of profits

Any vaniable pay amount deferred will be paid in equal parts over the following three years Dunng the deferral period, the value
of deferred amounts will be tied to the value of members’ invested funds, thereby creating a link to ongoing performance

Group LTIP payments made in the vear (2013 - 2015 scheme) — Audited

The group LTIP scheme which started on 1 January 2013 s based on performance to 31 December 2015 For the 2013-2015
scheme, the pay-out 1s based on both the growth in Enterprise Value (75% of award for M Rogers and P Moore, and 100% for
R Rowney} and the Relative Investment Performance (25% of award for M Rogers and P Moore) The performance condition
and actual performance for the award vested I1s as follows

M Rogers and P Moore

Weighting Threshold 7% Maximum 18% Vesting
Group Enterprise
Value growth (pa) 75% 10% 90%
Relative
Investment Weighting Threshold Obp Maximum 60bp Vesting
Performance (p a
relative to benchmark) 25% 200%
Total vesting percentage (M Rogers and P Moore) 118%
{(Maximurm 200%)
R Rowney
Wetghting  Threshold 7% Maximum 18% Vesting
Group Enterprise
Value growth (pa ) 100% 10% 90%
Total vesting percentage (R Rowney) 90%

The vested awards are subject to a claw-back provision (Maximum 200%)

30UBLIBA0D Hoday sifaens
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Group LTIP awards made In the year {2015 — 2017 scheme) —

- TVDe of award

Face velue

of award

™M Rogers Cash 100% of salary
P Moore Cash  75% of salary
R Rowney Cash  75% of salary

Group LTIP - Performance of current schemes

- Enterprise Value growth ! Relative Investment Performance ?

Award at
threshold
(% of base
LTIP Scheme Threshaold award) Maximum
2013-2015 7% 50%  18%
scheme
20142016 6%  50% 10%
scheme

- Growth in group adjusted average pre-tax profits Relative Investment Performance ?

Award at
threshold
(% of base
LTIP Scheme Threshold EVEH Maximum
2015-2017 5% 50% 13%
scheme

- Audited

% of face value of award that would
vest at threshold performance

Growth in group EEIENTIT

Basis of award | adjusied average Invesiment
(£'000) pre-tax profit Performance

530 50% 75%

271 50% 75%

240 50% n/a

Maximum
award %

200%

200%

Maximum
award %

performance
3

Award at
threshold
(%of base

award)

Cumulative

Threshold

10% 0 bp 75%

12% O bp 75%

Award at
Cumulative threshold
performance {(tof base
> § Threshold award)
See note
Ob 75%
5 below P

200%

% of face value
of award that
would vest

at maximum
performance

200%
200%
200%

Maximum
award %

Maximum

=60 bp

260 bp

Maximum
award %

Maximum

260 bp

200%

200%

200%

Vesting
determined by
performance
over

3 years to
31 December
2017

Cumulative
perfaormance
L]

117bp

57bp

Cumulative
performance
qa

107bp

For scheme participants measured on investment performance 75% of therr award 1s based on Enterpnise Value performance and
25% on Relative Investment Performance for all scheme years

1 Annualised growth In group Enterprnise Value for LTIP purposes

2 Annualiset investment perfarmance return relative to benchmark return

3 Annualised growth in group Enterpnise Value for LTIP purposes from start of scheme to 31 December 2015

4 Annualised investment performance return relative to benchmark return from start of scheme to 31 December 2015

5 Annualised growth In group adjusted average pre tax profits fram start of scheme te 31 December 2015 Group pre tax profit far 2015 was £124 muillion with growth being affected
by a number of non recurring 1tems Thes 1s not necessanly indicative of the final out turn which will be assessed after 31 December 2017

Group LTIP summary of awards and amounts vested during 2015 - Audited

£I000

Unvested

awards at

| ETIVETSY

20151

M Rogers 2013-2015 508
2014-2016 521

2015-2017 -

P Moore 2013-2015 260
2014-2018 266

2015-2017 -

R Rowney 2013-2015 230
2014-2016 236

2015-2017 -

Awsards
made
in the year

Additicnal/
(reduced) To he paid
value on in respect
vesting of of 2013-
2013-2015 2015
scheme scheme
- 89 597
48 306
(23) 207

240

Of which
deferred

1 Unvested awards are shown at the base award fevel Unvested awards at 1 lanuary 2015 are In respect of awards granted in 2013 and 2014
2 Unvested awards at 31 December 2015 are in respect of awards granted in 2014 and 2015

Unvested
awards

at 31
December
20152

521
530

266
271

236
240
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General insurance divislonal LTIP payments made in the year (2013 - 2015 scheme} — Audited

During 2013, certain key management personnel within the general insurance business subscribed for 4 5 million £1 'B’
ordinary shares in Liverpoo! Victoria General Insurance Group Limited (LVGIG) Pursuant to the Artictes of Association of LVGIG
the Society was required to purchase these shares in 2016 for a price equal to mimimum value plus a percentage of the increase
In the market value (plus ordinary dividends paid) of the general insurance business from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015,
as set out below

a) 0% If the growth rate s less than 9%,

b} 5% If the growth rate 15 9%,

c) Between 5% and 15% on a straight line basis to the extent the growth rate 1s between 9% and 19%, or

d) 15% If the growth rate s greater than 19%

The annualised market value increase over the scheme period was agreed at 15 7% resulting in a total amount to be paid
to John O Roarke in respect of this scheme of £11 1 million (representing remuneration of £10 1 million and return of initial
investment of £1 milkon) This amount was settled in full in February 2016

See note 52 for further detalls of the general insurance LTIP scheme

Pensions - Audited

Since the closure of the defined benefit (DB) section of our pension scheme to future accrual in 2013, executive directors have had
the choice of receiving contributions into the defined contribution (DC) section of our pension scheme or being paid an equivalent
cash allowance Durnng 2015, all executive directors recewved cash payments in heu of pension R Rowney was a member of the DC
scheme until 1 September 2014 and received cash payments in respect of pension payments above the statutory annuat allowance
for pension contributions On 1 September 2014 he left the pension scheme and has recelved cash payments in hieu of pension
from that date

Details of pension remuneration for the executive directors at 31 December 2015 are shown in the table below

Pension value from cash

£000 allowance Total pension value
M Rogers 118 118
P Moore 51 51
R Rowney 72 72
J O'Roarke 66 66
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Additional information on 2015 remuneration

Percentage change in remuneration levels

The table below shows the movement Iin the salary, benefits and annual bonus for the group chief executive between the current
and previous financial year compared to that of the total bull for the same elements for all employees

2015 2015 2014 2015 2014 %
(£'000} {£000) (£:000) (£000} [ (£000}{ change

Chief executive 541 530 2% 17 15 13% 700 636 10%

% change based on a static

population excluding the CEQ 2% 2% 15%

Ratio of CEO pay to average

employee FTE salary 181 181

Relative importance of the spend on pay
The table below shows the group’s actual spend on pay {for all employees) relative to the mutual benus, which represents

a signuficant, discretionary disbursement of profit to members
Total remuneration
2014 %
f£m | change
248 9

Mutual bonus 27 24 13

Staff costs 270

Chief executive's remuneration over seven financlal vears

The total remuneration figures for the chief executive during each of the last seven financial years are shown in the table below
The total remuneration figure includes the annual bonus based on that year's performance and LTIP awards based on three
year performance pertods ending in the relevant year

The annual bonus pay-out and LTIP vesting level as a percentage of the maximum opportunity are also shown for each
of these years

S 000 | 2oi0]  zota| 2012 | 2ois| 2014 | zois)

Total remuneration {(£'000} 097 1,247 2177 2,622 2,364 1,666 1,970
Bonus % of maximum awarded % 7% 86% 95% 100% T4% 80% 86%
LTIP % of maximum vesting % 0% 0% 100% 100% 90% 25% 59%

Payments to past directors
No payments were made to past executive directors during the year ended 31 December 2015

Directors' loans
As at 31 December 2015 there were no loans cutstanding to directors
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Results of members’ votes on remuneration resolutions at 2015 AGM
At the Society s AGM in May 2015, two resolutions on remuneration were approved by members

2014 Directors’
Remuneration Report 90% 5% 5%

p Infavour
Directors’ p Against

Remuneration Policy 89% 6% 5% » Abstained

20124 Directors Policy on Directors

Remuneration Report Remuneration

Votes cast In favour 44,532 43,766
Votes cast against 2,378 2,826
Abstensions 2,415 2,732
Spotlt papers 4 3
Total votes cast 49,327 49,327

Remuneration decisions taken in respect of the coming year {year ending 31 December 2016)
Executlve director base salary

The Remuneration Committee agreed to increase executive director base salary levels by a maximum of 2% with effect from
1 April 2016 Current base salary levels and those which will apply from 1 April 2016 are as follows

Joday agaens

wef 1 Apri 2016 wef 1April 2015 Percentage increase

M Rogers £551,400 £540,600 2%

P Maore £376,800 £369,400 2%
R Rowney £334,300 £327,700 2% g
J 0 Roarke £301,700 £301,700 0% g
[+

Performance targets to be applied for the annual bonus and group LTIP {2016-2018 Scheme) in 2016

For 2018, the annual bonus will continue to be based on a balanced scorecard of group financial and non-financial objectives
The key change for 2016 1s that the financial objective weighting has been reduced from 60% to 55%, with the non-financial
measures accounting for the remaining 45% We have increased the weighting on our strategic non-financial measure to 15%,
to reflect our focus on long-term member interests, and have introduced a measure for diversity and inclusion, reflecting our
commitment to recognising how a diverse workforce can strengthen LV="s business, both now and in the future

The weightings of our 2016 scorecard are shown below

o
<
5
-
7]
o
=]
c
=
-
w

Financial Normalised group operating profit 55%
Strategic Progress made towards delivery of five-year strategic objectives 15%
Customer and Member Customer satisfaction and 'Best Loved' metries 10%
Risk and Complhance Treating customers fairly and operating within the group's risk appetite metrics 10%

High employee engagement versus high performing organisations

Diversity and inclusion metnc 10%

People
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The LTIP awards to be granted in 2016 will be subject to a performance condition relating to growth in group adjusted average
pre-tax profits and, for the chief executive and group finance director, a proportion of the awards will be linked to the group's
Relative Investment Performance

Performance condition Weighting

Growth in group adjusted average 75% for chief executive and group finance director
pre-tax profits and 100% for managing director, life and pensions

Group Relative Investment Performance 25% for chief executive and group finance director only

The group LTIP scheme will only pay out if the growth within group pre-tax profit (adjusted for exceptional items and excluding the
effects of short-term fluctuations in investment performance of the with-profits fund) over the scheme period exceeds a threshold
target growth rate

Group Relative Investment Performance relates to the annualised performance return of the with-profits fund The scheme will only
pay out for this element If the performance return 1s greater than benchmark

Non-executive directors’ fees

Fees for the non-executive directors are determined by the board, based on the responsibility and time committed to the group's
affairs and appropriate market compansons Individual non-executive directors do not take part in discussions regarding ther
own fees Fees are reviewed annually and changes are implemented from 1 fune each year

A summary of current fees 1s as follows

wef 1lune 2015

Chairman £182,000
Base fee £52,000
Additional fees

Senior independent director £5,332
Investment Committee charr £8,531
Committee charr fees £12,797
Membership of Audit/Risk/Remuneration Committee £5,332
Membership of Investment Committee £3.663
Membership of With-Profits Committee £4,266

Fees effective from 1 June 2016 wilt be approved in April 2016

The directors approved the Directors' Report on Remuneration on 11 March 2016

—y,

Cath Keers

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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N
Glossary

LV= Use of non-GAAP* measures

Non-GAAP
measure Why we use a non-GAAP measure Definition

Because V=5 a mutual, any ‘left-over’ profit it has is transferred
to the Unallocated divisible surplus, leaving a final balance for
profit each year of £mil Fhis would mean that If we applied the
strict GAAP definition our profit before tax would simply be equal
and opposite to our tax charge We bebeve that this would be a
confusing and meaningless figure for users of our Annual Report
and we therefore try to provide an alternative measure for profit
before tax which readers would recognise and which would allow
meaningful compansons with the profit before tax disclosed by

Qur operating profit measure 1s the key performance measure
for profitability for the LV= group, life and general insurance

linked to this metric For the group this measure represents

For the general insurance business this measure represents

products LV= reports selfinvested pension plan operating profit

Certamn liguid assets reported in the Statement of Financial

Profit

before tax
other companies

Operating

profit
businesses and executive remuneration in these areas I1s
the longer-term return from all its businesses and the cost
of ongoing central overheads such as support functions
the return from insurance activities, 1 @ underwriting profit
and investment returns

Pensions In order to pronde comparable reporting across 1ts pension

business

IFRS on a value-add basis

adjustment

Centrally LV= reports some of its costs below operating profit

managed

costs

Operational

liquidity

Position are required to match reserves and therefore do not
provide a true measure of the available hquidity of the group 1 e
the ‘free’ funds available to meet its obhgations as they fall due

Qur measure of profit before taxis
defined as profit before tax, mutual bonus
allocated, and transfer to Unatllocated
divisible surplus

Operating profit can be defined as profit before
tax adusted for any short-term investment
fluctuations, which represent the difference
between the long-term average return
currently expected from assets and the actual
investment return achieved on these assets

In the current period, and also any centrally
managed costs (see below) and amortisation
or impalirment of acquired intangibles

The adjustment required to convert
selfanvested pension plan operating profit
from a value-add basts to a pure IFRS
(Income-expenses) basis

These are the costs which are not associated
with running the trading business of the group
These costs tend to be one-off costs and

are often connected to strategic mitiatives

of the group

Operational liquidity i1s generated from
movements in free assets in the year (tncluding
cash and cash equivalents and surplus assets
within funds in excess of matched habilities)
Operational liquidity excludes amounts
attributable to RNPFN and also intra-group
capital Investments and repayments

= GAAP means Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 1 e the strictly technlcal measure if you follow the accounting standards

AtoZ

ABI Associatton of Briish insurers

AFS Association of Friendly Societies

Asset shares Asset shares reftect

the amount of money paid into
with-profits policies by way of premiums
and investment returns, less the costs
of adminsstering those policies

Assoclation of Financial Mutuals (AFMV)
The trade body that represents mutual
insurers, friendly socreties and other
financial mutuals in the UK It was formed
in January 2010 after a merger of the
Assaciation of Friendly Societies and the
Association of Mutual Insurers

BiS Department for Business Innovation
and Skills

Capital resources The amount of
capital that we have to run our business

Columbia Threadneedle Investments
A leading international investment

manager with a strong track record of
outperformance across asset classes
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Enhanced annuity An enhanced annuity
1s essentially a conventional annuity
which provides a higher level of iIncome
to the purchaser To qualfy for an
enhanced annuity, the purchaser’s state
of health or medical history must be
such that their ife expectancy 1s lower

Finaneial Conduct Authority (FCA)

A regulatory body formed as one of the
successors to the Financial Services
Authonity (FSA) It focuses on the
regulation of conduct by both retail
and wholesale financial services firms

FTSE FTSE s an independent company
that provides indices to measure how
stockmarkets and other financial markets
perform in the UK, the FTSE 100 index
15 widely used by the media to report on
the valuation of the largest 100 quoted
companies on the UK Stock Exchange

GWP Gross written premiums

ICA Individual capital assessment Is
the process by which the Prudential
Regulatory Authonty {PRA) requires
Insurance companies to make an
assessment of the regulated company’s
own capital requirements, which Is then
reviewed and agreed by the PRA

IFRS International Financial Reporting
Standards are used to ensure a
company’s reported accounts are
prepared 1o common standards
across the world

ILAG Investment and Life
Assurance Group

Industrial branch Part of our hertage
business and typically contains

small premium whole of life and
endowment policies

Loss Portfolio Transfer (LPT) in a loss
portfolio transfer a reinsurer assumes
and accepts an Iinsurer s exsisting open
and future claims hahilittes through the
transfer of the insurer's loss reserves

LVFS Liverpool Victona Fnendly Society

Mutual A business that s owned by its
members rather than by shareholders

Mutual bonus A discretionary
enhancement {0 asset shares to share
the results of the group’s performance

OEICs Open-ended investment
companies are Investment funds
similar to investment trusts They are
open-ended because they can take
money from new investors at any time

Equally they can pay back investors
whenever the investor chooses 0OEICs
often adopt an umbrella structure where
the investor can get access through the
umbrella fund to a number of sub-funds
which invest with different objectives

Ordinary branch Part of our hentage
business and typically consists of
traditional with-profits endowments,
whole of life policies, annuities

and pensions

Pension annuity An annuity uses the
proceeds of a pension fund to provide
an income for a fixed-term or the rest
of your life

Perniodic payment orders (PPOs)

An annuity style award paid to claimants
instead of a lump sum, where indexed
payments can be varned to meet likely
future changes in circumstance

This transfers mortahty and investment
risk from the claimant to the insurer

PHI Permanent Health Insurance

1S an insurance policy paying benefits
to policyholders whao are incapacitated
and hence unable to work due to iliness
or accident

Prudential Regulatory Authority (PRA)
A regulatory body formed as one of the
successors 1o the Financial Services
Authority (FSA) It 1s responsible for the
prudential regulation and supervision
of financial services firms

Protection A policy providing a cash
sum on the death or cnitical illness
of the Iife assured

PVIF Present value of acquired in-force
business occurs when a life insurance
company makes an acquisition Part of
the purchase price represents the value
of the insurance contracts in the target
company This 1s, in effect, the present
value of the policies acquired

Quota Share (QS) A type of pro rata
reinsurance contract in which the insurer
and reinsurer share premiums and
losses according to a fixed percentage

RCM Risk capita! margin 1s the
additional capital a firm would need

to hold to cover the effects of a number
of ‘What 1f?" scenanos that have been
prescribed by the PRA These scenarnos
assess the capital implications from
combined movements in financial
markets (equity, property, credit spreads,
interest rates} and persistency of

the business

RNPFN Royal National Pension Fund
For Nurses

Risk appetite The amount of nsk that
a business 1s prepared to accept or keep
when carrying out its everyday activities

Self Invested Personal Pension (SIPP):
Unlike normal personal pensich plans,
where the pensign company hmits your
choice of investments to those that it
manages, SIPPs allow investors the
opportunity to make their own
Investment decisions

SME Small and Medium Enterprises —
within the commercial line of the
general insurance business

Solvency Il An EU-wide project that
sets out to provide a comprehensive
new framewaork for insurance supervision
and regulation This aims to strengthen
protection for poficyholders by ensurning
that companies allocate enough capital
to cover all the rnisks in therr business

TCF Treating Customers Fairly 1s

an industry-wide initiative designed

to ensure financial providers meet
basic principles of product information,
suitability and performance

UK Corporate Governance Code

The Code sets out standards of good
practice for listed companies It covers,
amongst other things, the board
composition and its accountabihty

and relations with business owners
LV=complies with the Annotated Code
as published by the Association of
Fimancial Mutuals (AFM)

Unallocated divisible surplus (UDS)

The amounts that have vet to be formally
declared as bonuses for participating
policyholders together with the free
assets of the group

UWP Unitised with-profits

With-profits fund An investment fund
where we combine all of our with-profits
investors’ money and manage it on thewr
behalf The fund normally iInvests n

UK and overseas shares, fixed interest
secunties including Government stocks
and bonds, property, cash, and our own
business activities We regularly monitor
where we invest the fund to take account
of future hahilities
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E asy to do
business with

Offering a simple, hassle-free journey
for all who deal with us, regardless
of how they choose to do business.

Just so easy to give us all the
cover we needed at a very
reasonable price. Alsc a well
known reliable campany.

Janet from Bristol

Our
Accounts
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the Members of Liverpool Victoria
Friendly Society Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

Qverview
The rest of this report outlines our accounting figures
for the 2015 financial year.
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Report on the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opirion, Liverpool Victona Friendly Society Limited's

Group financial statements and Society financiat statements

{the ‘financial statements’)

+ give a true and farr view of the state of the Group’s
and of the Society s affairs as at 31 December 2015
and of the Group s and the Society's result and cash
flows for the year then ended,

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards {'IFRSs’) as adopted by the
European Union, and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Friendly Societies Act 1992

What we have audited

The financial statements, included within the Annual

Report, comprise

« the Group and Soctety Statements of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2015,

« the Group and Society Statements of Comprehensive
Income for the year then ended,

» the Group and Society Statements of Cash Fows
for the year then ended, and

» the notes to the financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in the preparation of the financial statements is applicable
law and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union

Our audit approach

Overview

Materiality

« Overall group matenality of £33 0 million, which represents
3% of the Group's Unallocated Dvisible Surplus (‘UDS")

Audit scope

« The Group consists of 24 active statutory entities,
but pnimarily operates through three main trading entities
(the Society. Liverpoo! Victoria Insurance Company Limited
and Highway Insurance Company Limited} at 11 locations
across the UK In our view, all three main trading entities
required full scope audits of their complete financial
information, due to their size and nsk charactenstics

+ In addition to the Group’s head offices in Beurnemouth,
wa wisited four other locations Our testing at those other
locations pnmanly focussed on the systems and controls
in place over the recording and processing of new business
and claims The testing of controls over claims processing
was relevant to our focus on the valuation of general
insurance claims liabihties, particularly in refation to the
completeness of recorded claims and the consistency
of case estimates

+ Taken together, the procedures we performed over the three
main trading entittes and the Group consohdation entrnes
accounted for all of the Unallocated Divisible Surplus (‘UDS')
and all of the Group's net earned premiums and profit before
tax, mutual bonus and transfer to the UDS

Areas of focus

+ The valuation of long-term insurance contract ltabilites

» The valuation of general insurance contract habitities

+ The accounting basis for a new ioss portfolio transfer
reinsurance arrangement entered into by the general
insurance business

¢ The valuation of difficult to value investments included
in financial assets heid at fair value through income

« The valuation of the defined benefit pension schemes

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus
We conducted our audit In accordance with International
Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) (*1SAs (UK & Ireland’))

We designed our audit by determining matenahty and assessing
the rnisks of matenal misstatement in the financial statements
In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective
judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting
estimates that involved making assumptions and considenng
future events that are inherently uncertain As in all of our
audits we also addressed the rnsk of management override

of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was
evtdence of bias by the directors that represented a nsk

of matenal misstatement due to fraud

The nisks of matenal misstatement that had the greatest
effect on our audit, including the allocation of our resources
and effort, are 1dentified as ‘areas of focus’ in the table
overleaf We have also set out how we tallored our audit

to address these specific areas in order to provide an opinion
on the financial statements as a whole, and any comments
we make on the results of our procedures should be read

in this context This 1s not a complete list of ail nsks identified
by our audit
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How our audit addressed the area of focus

The valuation of long-term
Insurance contract hlabihties
(£7 8bn (2014 £7 7bn))
Refer to notes 23 and 28

for further Information

The Group financial statements
include habiiies for the estimated
cost of setthng benefits and claims
associated with iife products
These long-term habilities are included
within tnsurance contract labihties

We focussed on this area because

of the significance of these amounts

in derving the Group’s result, and because
of the use of a suite of economic and
demographic data and assumptions

which are often hughly subjective

In particular, we focussed on

+ The expense assumptions used
to estimate the future cash flows
in respect of the iong-term insurance
contracts - in particular the assumed
rate of growth of expenses, and their
allocation between the insurance
entities, product types and whether
they are incurred tn maintaimning
existing policies or processing
new business, and

» The longewity assumption
{1 e life expectancy of policyholders})
used to estimate the Group s long-term
hability for enhanced annuity contracts
(1 & where the annuitants have existing
medical conditions or are smokers)

Summary

Qur work t0 address the valuation of the long-term insurance contract habilities
was supported by our in-house life actuanal specialists, and included the
following procedures

+ We tested the underlying company data, including key reconcihiations,
and this testing was performed with no matenal exceptions

« We compared the methodology, models and assumptions used against
recogrnised actuanal practices and by applying our industry knowledge
and expenence, and found them to be reasonable

+ We performed an independent annual benchmarking survey which atlowed
us to further chalienge the assumption setting process by companng certain
assumptions used relative to the Group’s industry peers

Additional testing on the specific assumptions 15 set out below

Testing on specific assumptions

Expense allocations

We examined the expense allocations to assess whether or not they appropriately
reflected the long term expense profile of the business

We assessed the reasonableness of significant judgments made in setting

the assumptions, including the spht between acquistion (new business) and
maintenance costs and the allocation of costs to different products based on the
current year's expenence and consideration of factors which could increase costs
in the future

We tested the completeness of relevant expenses used In the calculation by
agreeing them to the underlying financial records, and tested that in-force policy
numbers agreed to the Group s pobey adrmiristration systems

We performed independent calculations to quantify the impact of differences
between management's assumptions and those which we would have selected
ourselves and determmed that we were able to accept the valuation on the
grounds of matenality

Expense Inflation
We assessed the appropnateness of the expense inflation assumptions used
by management to denve unit costs, and in particular whether the use of a lower

inflation assumption in respect of the Protection and Retirement Solutions businesses

than that used in the respect of the Hentage business was justified, based on level
of growth expected in the respective businesses We assessed whether the forecast
growth was reasonable by considerning the accuracy of management's forecasting

In the past and whether expected volume increases appropriately reflected
developments i the market, such as the ongoing annuity reforms

Longevity assumptions

Management use industry data (the CM| 2013 model} to derive longevity
assumptions to model longevity for the Society’s enhanced annuity contracts
Management compares this data with therr own expertence in order to assess
whether Industry data remains appropriate for the setting of the assumption
We examined their analysis, testing data back to the Society's records

Qur independent benchmarking shows that the decision to continue with

the CM!I 2013 model 1s in line with a number of other insurers in the industry

We considered the appropriateness and accuracy of the data used by management
to model longevity for the Society’s enhanced annuity portfolio In particular,

we considered the extent to which the assumptions used, based on this data,
were conststent with other sources of information, such as medical studies

and industry-wide mortality investigations

Based on the work performed we found that the assumptions used were supported
by the evidence we obtained
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How our audit addressed the area of focus

The valuation of general Summary ‘
nsurance contract habilities Our work to address the valuation of the general insurance claims habilities, )
(£1 4bn (2014 £1 3bn)) was supported by our in-house non-life actuanal specialists. and included ‘
Refer to note 23 for further information the following procedures !
The Group financial statements

mnclude habiities for the estimated » We assessed and tested the governance process in place to determine

cost of setthng general insurance claims the claims habiities

These are included within insurance » We tested the completeness, consistency and accuracy of claims data

contract hiabilihies s  We performed methodology and assumptions reviews over 74% of the clams \

llamhties and key indicator checks to dentify any anomalies (as explained below) :

We focused on this area due to over the remaning balance ;

the significance of these habilities .

to the Group's balance sheet and Specific areas of focus

because of the inherent subjectvity Completeness of recorded claims and consistency of case estimates '

of their valuation We tested the systems and controls in place over the recording and processing

of claims In order to assess the completeness of recorded claims, we cbserved

In particular, we focussed on whether there was any evidence of claims being recorded on any medium other “

s The accuracy of ¢laims data used than directly onto the claims systems, and tested the operation of the controls 3
to estimate the clatms labilities, over the handling of complaints &
in particular, the completeness ;
of recarded claims and the consistency We tested the effectiveness of the quality assurance processes over the work §
in setting case estimates, of the claims handlers in order to determine whether claims were being assessed =

» Whether any changes to the underlying on a consistent basis and examined a sample of claims to obtain evidence that
nsk profile of the policies written they were based on the most recent claims infermation
(for example, the concentration
of younger drivers or changes to post Consistency of risk exposure
code mix) are approprately reflected in We assessed management’s assertion that there had been no sigmficant
the calculations of claims Iabiities, and  changes in the nisk profile for materal lines of business using quantitative, g

¢ The methods and assumptions used evidential analysis and we were provided with data by accident year for key 2
in estimatng the costs of claims for exposure categories such as age and gender 3
general insurance products (mainly ®
motor policies}, in particular for those Methodology and assumptions
claims such as personal injury, which We carried out a substantial amount of our work on the claims habdities

can take a long time to settle and where  at 30 September 2015, roling forward our work to the year end

the amounts concerned can be large
We evaluated the methodology and assumptions used by management to esumate
the most significant components of the claims habilities as at 30 September 2015
We also took into account any changes to the types of nsks underwntten
by the business, which could increase the level of uncertainty and judgement
in the estimates
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We considered the run-off of prior year liabilities, the sensitivity of the habihties to
alternative methods and assumptions and, where relevant, industry benchmarking
Where we felt it was appropnate, we performed independent calculations to quantify
the impact of differences between management’s actuanal analys1s or assumptions
and those which we would have conducted or selected ourselves based on our
understanding of market trends and the particular circumstances of the Group

We also examined trends In ratios, including those between the initial case
estimates and the final costs of settlement

Based on the work performed, the recorded general insurance claims liabihties
are consistent with the evidence obtained
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How our audit addressed the area of focus

The accounting basis for a new
loss portfolio transfer reinsurance
arrangement entered 1nto by the
general insurance business
Refer to note 27 for further information
At the end of December 2015,

the general insurance business entered
Into a retroactive toss portfolio transfer
{LPT) arrangement {encompassing 20%
of net clams reserves existing at

31 December 2015}

The accounting for the loss portfolio
transfer arrangement 1s an area of

focus due to the magnitude of the
arrangement and the complex and
subyective Judgements required to
determine whether the contract transfers
significant insurance risk, whrch impacts
the accounting treatment The outcome
of these judgements has a matenal
impact on presentation and disclosure

The valuation of difficult to value
Investments included in financial
assets held at fair value
through income

Refer to notes 16, 17 and 19

for further Information

The Group financial statements include
loans secured on residential property
(equity release mortgages} with a fair
value of £0 6bn (2014 £0 7bn)

which are designated as financial assets
held at fair value through income

Because of thetr nature, guoted prices are
not available for these and the Group uses
internal modeis to estimate their fair value

The fair value of the mortgages

15 estimated using a discounted cash
flow model which takes into account

the contractual rate of interest charged
on the mortgages, the expected mortahty
or morbidity of the policyholder, the risk
of default (including the rnsk that in such
an event the sale proceeds are less than
the carrying value of the mortgage) and
prepayment risk (the nisk that policyholder
repays early, shortening the term of the
mortgage and reducing the total amount
of interest received) Changes to these
assumptions can have a matenal impact
on the caleulation of the fair value

of the mortgages

The Group also uses derivative financial
instruments to manage market sk,

the market values of these at the year-
end comprised assets of £0 10bn

(2014 £0 13bn) and liamhities of £0 14bn
{2014 £0 16bn) We focus on this area
because of the significance of the notional
values associated with these contracts
and because certain contracts require

the use of bespoke valuation models

We read the contract terms and critically assessed whether or not the judgements
made by management were reasonable and, after taking into account the relevant
financial reporting standards, whether the contract resulted in the transfer

of significant insurance risk, supporting the treatment of this arrangement

as reinsurance

We assessed nsk transfer under the contract by testing management’s analyses,
which included a distribution analysis of the Group s result for the likely range

of the ultimate reserve outcomes That range represents approximately 90%

of the scenartos simulated by the Group's capital model We also assessed

the uncertainty of the timing of cash flows under a range of scenarios

Based on the work performed, we determined that the contract transferred significant
insurance risk and should be accounted for as remnsurance

For loans secured on residential property we assessed the methodology
and assumptions used by management in the calculation of the year end values

We reconciled the model data to the policy admimistration system We tested
controls over data maintained in the policy administration system including
the contractual loan agreements and property valuations

In order to update our understanding of the model we re-performed the fair value
caiculations for a stngle loan

We compared the assumptions used against appropriate benchmarks
and investigated any significant differences

Based on the work undertaken, we determined that the methods and assumptions
used to value loans secured on residential property were appropriate

In respect of the denvative financial instruments, our valuation specialists
independently re-performed the valuation of all of the posittons at the year end

In doing this we agreed key information to oniginal contracts and tested the existence
of the derivatives by obtaining confirmations from the respective counterparties

Based on the work undertaken, we did not identify any materal differences between
the valuation we calculated and that determined by management's modeis
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How our audit addressed the area of focus

The valuation of the defined
benefit pension schemes

Refer to note 42 for further Information
Although the aggregate net pension
asset 1s currently valued at £0 08bn
{2014 asset of £0 01bn), it consists

of a much larger defined benefit obligation
of £1 20bn (2014 £1 37bn) offset
against the fair value of the schemes’
assets of £1 29bn (2014 £1 38bn}

The schemes were subject to a tnenmal
valuation during 2015

We assessed the appropriateness of the methodology used to denive the key
financial and demographic assumptions with reference to generally accepted
industry practice We also assessed the reasonableness of those assumptions
by benchmarking them against independent industry data We noted that the
discount rate and inflation assumptions were relatively less prudent than

in the previous year, but remained within our benchmark range

We tested the employee data used by the actuary to calculate the pension liability by
agreeing a sample of that data to information supphed by the scheme admntstrator
and noted no exceptions

We obtained external confirmations for the pension schemes' assets and tested
the value of listed securities by comparng prices to external market (nfermation

for a selection of assets covenng approxmately 99% of the balance at the year end

We have focussed on the defined benefit
obhgation in particutar, as significant levels
of jJudgement and technical expertise

are appled in s estimation Changes

In the key assumptions (such as salary
increases, Inflation, discount rates,

and mortality) can have a matenal

impact on the calculation of the liability

How we tailored the audlit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed
enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the gecgraphic
structure of the Group, the accounting processes and controls,
and the industry in which the Group operates

The Group 1s structured along three business umits, being ‘Life’
{including Protection and Retirement Solutions), ‘Hentage' and
‘General Insurance’ The Group's financial statements consist
of a consohdation of 24 active statutory entities, but the Group
primarly operates through three main trading entities, the
Society, encompassing the ‘Life’ and ‘Heritage’ business umits,
and two general insurance companies

All three main trading entities are material to the Group and
were audited by the Group engagement team [n establishing
the overall approach to the Group audit, we determine the type
of work that we needed to perform at each entity to be able

to conclude whether sufficient appropnate audit ewidence had
been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the Group financial
statements as a whole

In our view, all three main trading entities required a full scope
audit of their complete financial infermation, due to therr size
and their sk charactenstics This, together with our testing
of the consolidation at Group level gave us the evidence we
needed for our opimion on the Group financial statements as

a whole and accounted for all of Unallocated Divisibie Surplus
(*UDS ), the Group s net earned premiums, and profit before
tax, mutyal bonus and transfer to the UDS

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application

of matenality We set certain quantitative thresholds for
matenality These, together with qualitative considerations,
helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual
financial statement line 1items and disclosures and in evaluating
the effect of misstatements, both indmidually and on the
financial statements as a whole

No matenal exceptions were noted 1n the valuation of these assets

We examined the trust deed and rules for the LV scheme which allowed us to accept
management's conclusion that the net pension benefit asset for that scheme should
be recogmsed in full

Based on our professional judgement, we determined
maternality for the financial statements as a whote as follows

Overall £33 0 million (2014 £30 0 mullion)
group
materlality
How we
determined
it

Rationale In arriving at this judgement we considered

for the financial measures which we believed

benchmark to be most relevant to the members of the

applled Society as a body Members' interests in the
Group are represented pnmanly by the UDS and,
consequently, the UDS was considered to be the
primary metric to use to determme matenality
We have also had regard to other relevant
measures such as the Group’s regulatory capital
surplus and the other performance metncs such
as operating profit within the Strategic Report

3% of Unallocated Divisible Surplus ( UDS)

Component Each camponent in our audit scope was
materiallity audited to a local statutory audit matenality
that was less than our overall group matenality
The range of matenaity applied across
components was between £1 9 milkon
and £31 mithon

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report
to them misstatements identified dunng our audit above
£1 7 million {2014 £1 5 million) as well as misstatements
below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting
for qualitative reasons

Golng concern

The directors have voluntanly complied with Listing Rule

9 8 6(R)(3)(a) of the Financial Conduct Authonty and provided
a statement in refation to going concern, set out on page 93,
required for compames with a premium listing on the London
Stock Exchange

The directors have requested that we review and report
on this statement as required under the Listing Rules
for premium listed companies We have nothing to report
having performed our review
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The directors have also chosen to voluntarily report how
they have applied the UK Corperate Governance Code

— An annotated version for Mutual Insurers {the ‘Code’)
Under {SAs (UK & lreland) we are required to report

to you If we have anything matenal to add or to draw
attention to in relation to the directors' statement about
whether they considered it appropnate to adopt the gomng
concern basis in preparng the financial statements

We have nothing maternal to add or to draw attention to

As noted in the directors’ statement, the directors have
concluded that it 1s appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the financial statements The going concern
basis presumes that the Group and Society have adequate
resources to remain in operation, and that the directors
intend them to do so, for at teast one year from the date

the financial statements were signed As part of our audit

we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern
basis 15 appropriate However, because not all future events
or conditions can be predicted, these statements are not

a guarantee as to the Group’s and Society’s abihity to continue
as a going concern

Other required and voluntary reporting

Consistency of other information

Friendly Socleties Act 1992 oplinlons

In our opinion

« the Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance with
the Fnendly Societies Act 1992, and the regulations made
under 1t, and

« the information given in the Directors™ Report for the financial
year for which the financial statements are prepared 1s
consistent with the financial statements

1SAs (UK & Ireland) reporting

As a result of the directors’ voluntary reporting on how
they have applied the Code. under ISAs (UK & Ireland)
we are required to report {0 you if, in our opinion:

We have
no exceptions
to report

« information in the Annual Repert 1s

— matenally inconsistent with the
information in the audited financial
statements, or

- apparently matenally incorrect based
on, or materally inconsistent with,
our knowledge of the Group and
Society acquired In the course
of performing our audit, or

- otherwise misleading

We have
no exceptions
to report

» the statement given by the directors
on page 95, 1n accordance with provision
C 1 1 of the Code, that they consider
the Annual Report taken as a whole
to be far, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary
for members to assess the Group's and
Society's position and performance,
business model and strategy 1s materially
inconsistent with our knowledge of the
Group and Society acquired n the course
of performing our audit

We have
no excepltions
to report

« the section of the Annual Report on page
82 to 85, as required by provision C 3 8
of the Code, describing the work of the
Audit Committee does not appropriately
address matters communicated by us
to the Audit Committee

The directors’ assessment of the prospects of the group
and of the principal risks that would threaten the solvency
or liquldity of the group

As a result of the directors’ voluntary reporting on how
they have applied the Code, under ISAs (UX & Ireland)

we are reqguired to report to you if we have anything material
to add or to draw attention to in refation to:

« the directors’ confirmation on page 94 We have
of the Annual Report, in accordance with  nothing
provision C 2 1 of the Code, that they matenat to

add or to draw
attention to

have carned out a robust assessment
of the principal nsks facing the Group,
including those that would threaten its
busimess model, future performance,
solvency or hiquidity

« the disclosures in the Annual Report We have
that describe those risks and explain nothing
how they are being managed or mitigated  matenat to

add or to draw
attention to

* the directors’ explanation on page 94 We have
of the Annual Report, in accordance nothing
with provision C 2 2 of the Code, matenal to

add or to draw
attention to

as to how they have assessed the
prospects of the Group, over what peried
they have done so and why they consider
that penod to be appropriate, and their
statement as to whether they have

a reasonable expectation that the Group
will be able to continue In operation

and meet its llatihyes as they fall due
over the pertod of their assessment,
including any related disclosures drawing
attention to any necessary qualfications
or assumptions

The directors have requested that we review and report on the
statement that they have carned out a robust assessment

of the principal nsks facing the group and the statement in
relation to the longerterm viabihty of the group, as reguired
under the Listing Rules for companies with a premium histing
on the London Stock Exchange Our review was substantially
less in scope than an audit and only consisted of making
inquiries and considering the directors’ process supporting therr
statements, checking that the statements are in alignment with
the relevant provisions of the Code, and considering whether
the statements are consistent with the knowledge acquired by
us In the course of performing our audit We have nothing to
report having performed our review

Propnety of accounting records and information

and explanations received

Under the Friendly Socteties Act 1992 we are required

to report to you if, In our opimon

+ we have not recewed all the information and explanations
we require for our audit, or

« proper accourting records have not heen kept by the Society, or

» the Society financial statements are not in agreement with
the accounting records

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responstbility
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Opinion on additional disclosures

Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Society voluntarily prepares a Directors’ Remuneration
Report in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006 The directors have requested that we audit

the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report specified
by the Companies Act 2006 to be audited as If the Society
were a quoted company

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report
to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006

Matters on which we have agreed to report

by exception

Corporate governance statement

The Society prepares a corporate governance statement

In accordance with the Disclosure Rules and Transparency
Rules in the Financia! Conduct Authanty and has chosen

to vofuntanly comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code
— An annctated version for Mutual Insurers The directors have
requested that we review the parts of Corporate Governance
Statement relating 1o the Society’s compliance with the ten
further provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for auditor review by the Listing Rules of the
Financial Conduct Authority as if the Society were a premium
listed company We have nothing to report having performed
our review

Responsibilities for the financial

statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors
As explamned more fully in the Directors’ Statement

of Responsibility set out on page 95 the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Qur responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion

on the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and ISAs (UK & Ireland) Those standards require

us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the Society's members as a body

In accordance with Section 73 of the Friendly Societies
Act 1992 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving
these opimions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report
1s shown or Iinto whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior ¢consent in wnting

What an audit of financial statements involves

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from matenal nisstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of

+ whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Group's and the Society’s circumstances and have been
consistently appled and adequately disclosed,

+ the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the directors, and

« the overall presentation of the financial statements

We primanly focus our work in these areas by assessing
the directors’ judgements against available evidence,
forming cur own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures
in the financial statements

We test and examine information, using samplhing and other
auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary

to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions

We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness
of controls, substantive procedures or a combmation of both

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the Annual Report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements

and to dentify any information that 1s apparently matenally
incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with,

the knowledge acquired by us In the course of performing

the audit If we become aware of any apparent matenal
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications
for our report

Andrew G Hill (Senlor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

11 March 2016

= The maintenance and integrity of the Liverpool Victernia
Friendly Society Limited website 1s the responsibility
of the directors, the work carnied out by the auditors does
not invoive consideration of these matters and, accordingly,
the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that
may have occurred to the financial statements since they
were Initially presented on the website

« Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other junsdictions
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 DBecember 2015

Group Society
2015 2014 2015 2014
Restated — Restated -
see Note 1 see Note 1
Motes im £m £m £m

Gross earned premiums 5 2,408 2,264 987 845
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 5 (384) (124) {99) (88)
Net earned premiums 5 2,024 2,140 888 757
Fee and commission income 7 18 13 5 3
Investment iIncome 8 401 377 372 324
Net (losses)/gains on investments 9 (282) 832 (247) 822
QOther income 10 39 34 3 5
Total income 2,200 3,396 1,021 1,911
Gross benefits and claims 11 (1,814) (1,666) (793) (664)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 11 338 82 73 74
Net benefits and claims 11 (1,476) (1,584 (720) (590)
Gross change in long-term contract hlabilities 25 {63) (1,189) (66) (1,190}
Change n long-term contract liabilities ceded to reinsurers 25 127 (7) 127 (7)
Change in non-participating value of in-force business 25 (17) 65 (17) 65
Net change In contract liabllities 25 47 {1,131) 44 (1,132}
Finance costs 12 (24) (24) (23) (24)
Investment return allocated to external unit holders - {36) - -
Qther operating and administrative expenses 13 (623) (584) {204) (185)
Other expenses (647) (644) {227) (209)
Total benefits, claims and expenses (2,076) {3,359} {903) (1,931}
Profit/{loss) before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer 124 37 118 (20)
Mutual bonus 15 27 (24) {27) (24)
Income tax (expense)/credit 37 (6) (47) 1 (34}
Transfer (to}/from the Unallocated divisible surplus 51 (91) 34 {92) 78
Profit for the year - - - -
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassifled to profit or loss

Re-measurements of defined benefit pension schemes, net of tax 42 51 19 51 19
Transfer to the Unallocated divisible surplus 51 (1) {19) (51) (19)

Total comprehensive income for the year

As a Friendly Society, all net earmings are for the benefit of participating policyholders and are carned forward within the Unallocated

divisible surplus Accordingly, there s no profit for the year shown In the Statement of Comprehensive Income

The Group and the Society have not presented a Statement of Changes in Equity as there are no equity holders in either the Group

or Society as the Society 1s @ mutual orgamisation
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2015

Group Socilety
2015 2014 2015 2014
Restated - Restated —
see Note 1 see Note 1
Notes im £m £m £im
Assets
Intangible assets 31 249 238 1 -
Pension benefit asset 42 87 21 87 21
Property and equipment 30 39 19 9 8
Investments in group undertakings 32 - - 770 767
Corporation tax asset 38 10 - 8 -
Prepayments and accrued income 34 125 123 a1 78
Deferred acqussition costs 26 99 a7 - -
Financial assets
— Fair value through income 16 11,419 11,791 9,651 9,335
- Dernvative financial instruments 17 97 131 95 130
Loans and other receivables 20 77 118 87 101
Reinsurance assets 27 890 503 492 365
Insurance recevables 33 261 220 20 18
Cash and cash equivalents {excluding bank overdrafts) 1,186 790 449 387
Total assets 14,539 14,049 11,760 11,210
Liabilities
Unallocated divisible surplus 51 1,101 959 1,036 893
Participating insurance contract habilities 23 3,972 3,862 3,972 3,862
Participating investment contract habilities 18 554 552 554 552
Non-participating value of in-force business 24 (321) (338) {(321) (338)
5,306 5,035 5,241 4 969
Non-participating insurance contract abilities 23 5,896 5,853 3,784 3,840
Non-participating investment contract habihties 18 1,862 1,554 1,862 1,554
7,758 7,407 5,646 5,394
Net asset value attributable to external urit hoiders 220 622 - -
Pension benefit obligation 42 3 11 3 11
Provisions 43 10 14 9 10
Corporation tax hability 40 - 16 - 10
Deferred tax liabihity 39 42 18 42 18
Financial hahilrties
— Derivative financial instruments i7 144 160 144 123
- Subordinated habilities 21 356 356 347 347
- Other financial liabilities 22 96 116 95 144
Insurance payables 35 286 38 29 23
Trade and other payables 36 318 256 204 161
Total liabllities 14,539 14,049 11,760 11,210

The financial statements on pages 122 to 214 were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 March 2016 and signed on its

behalf by

QO\M e

RS Smalil
Company Secretary
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Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2015

Group Soclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
Restated — Restated —
see Note 1 see Note 1
Notes £Em im £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 772 768 381 301
Cash flows arising from
Operating actlvities
Cash generated from operating activities before movements 55 319 218 270 351
in investments held at fair vatue through income
Net increase in investments held at fair value through income (285) (630) {528) {637)
Cash generated from/{used in) operating activities 34 (412) {258) {286)
Proceeds from sale of investment properties - 79 - 9
Dividend income received 96 81 108 78
Interest and other income received 339 307 262 241
Utihsation of provisions (3) {5} (2) (4)
Finance cost paid (1) (1) - (1)
Income tax paid {31) (10} (16) -
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 434 39 94 107
investing activities
Increase In investment in group undertakings - - (6) (1}
Acquisition of group undertakings 50 (8} - {8) -
Purchase of capitalised intangibles 31 (10) (7} {1) -
Purchase of property and equipment {6) (5) {4) {3)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (24) 12) {19) 4)
Financing activities
Interest on subordinated debt {23) (23) {23) (23)
Net cash flows used in financing activities {23) (23) (23) (23)
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents 387 4 52 80
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 1,159 772 433 381
Cash and cash equlvalents comprise
Bank balances 202 153 96 105
Short-term bank deposits 984 637 353 282
Cash and cash equivalents per the Statement of Financial Position 1,186 790 449 387
Non-offsettable bank overdrafts (see note 36) (27) {18) (16) (8)
Cash and cash equivalents per the Statement of Cash Flows 1,159 772 433 381

The Group classifies the cash flows for the acquisition and disposal of financial assets and the net purchases/sales of iInvestment
properties as operating cash flows, as the purchases are funded from the cash flows associated with the ongmnation of insurance

and investment contracts
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2015

Significant accounting policies
TN

This section describes the LV= Group's significant accounting policies and accounting estimates that relate to the financial
statements and notes as a whole If an accounting pelicy or an accounting estimate relates to a specific note, the applicable
accounting policy and/or accounting estimate 1s contained within the relevant note

1 Significant accounting policies

1 1 Basis of presentation

The Group financial statements consolidate the results

of the Society and its subsidiary companies The Group's

and Society’s financial statements conform to International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations 1ssued
by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) as published
by the International Accounting Standards Board and adopted
by the European Union In addition the Society’s financial
statements comply with the Friendly Societies (Accounts

& Related Provisions) Regulations 1994 (the Regulations)

In accordance with IFRS 4 on Insurance Contracts,

the Group has applied existing accounting practices for
Insurance contracts and participating investment contracts
modified as appropriate to comply with the IFRS framework
and applicable standards Further detaits are given

in accounting policy 1 3b below

Insurance contracts are accounted for in accordance

with the Statement of Recommended Practice 1ssued

by the Association of British Insurers in December 2005,
and amended in December 2006 Whilst this SORP 1s no
longer in force, the Group continues to apply i1t, as it was
existing accounting practice for insurance contracts when
the Group first time adopted IFRS The Group measures

the hability on with-profits contracts in ine with the ‘realistic’
reporting regime of the Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA)
More detail on the valuation of insurance and investment
contracts 1s given In the accounting policies disclosed within
Notes 23 and 18 respectively

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation

of investment properties and financial assets and habilities
{Including dervatives and non-parucipating investment
contract llabiiities) at fair value through income Items included
tn the financial statements of each of the Group's entities
are measured using the currency of the pnmary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency') Unless otherwise noted, the consohlidated financial
statements are presented in millions of pounds sterling,
which 1s the Group’s presentation and functional currency

The principal accounting policies applied 1n the preparation
of these conschdated financial statements are set out below
These policies have been consistently applied to all years
presented, unless otherwise stated

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future The Group
therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing its consolidated financial statements

Restatements

Tax on pension scheme surplus

The Society and Group are recognising a pension scheme asset
in refation to the main LV= defined benefit pension scheme in
accordance with 1AS19 / IFRIC14 As the LV= defined benefit
pension scheme 15 ¢losed to future accrual and no additional
defined pension benefits are being earned, under the scheme
rules this asset 1s only avallable as a refund to the sponsoring

employer Under UK legislation, surplus payments made from
a UK pension scheme to the sponsoring employer are received
net of an income tax deduction of 35% The Statement

of Financial Position and Statement of Gther Comprehensive
Income for both the Society and Group have been restated

to reflect a £7m deferred tax lability and associated tax charge
In relation to this pension scheme asset

Presentation of cash flows regarding interest

an subordinated debt

The Statement of Cash Flows for both the Group and Society
has been restated to present interest on subordinated debt
within financing activities This was previcusly included within
finance cosis paid in gperating activities

1 2 Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements \n accordance

with IFRS requires the use of estimates It also requires
management to exercise judgement in applying the accounting
policies The key areas involving a high degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions are significant to the
financial statements are highlighted under the relevant note
Significant accounting estimates and judgements are
disclosed In

« Fair value of financial assets {Note 16}

Insurance contract llabllities (Note 23)

Reinsurance assets (Note 27)

Intangible assets (Note 31)

Pension benefit asset/{obligation} (Note 42)

Consolidation (Note 48)

1 3 Accounting policies

a Consolldation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities, including Open Ended Investment
Compames (QEICs), over which the Group (directly or indirectly)
has control

The Group controls an entity when the Group has all

of the following

« power over the relevant activities of the entity, for example
through voting or other nights,

+ exposure to, or nghts to, vanable returns from 1ts involvement
with the entity, and

« the abihty to affect those returns through the power over
the entity

The assessment of control 1s based on the consideration of all

the facts and circumstances The Group reassesses whether it
controls an entity If facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control

Subsidianes are fully consohdated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group using uniform accounting
policies consistently applied across the Group They are excluded
from consolidation from the date on which control ceases

The Group uses the purchase method of accounting

to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries Accordingly,

the cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value

of the cash or other assets given, equity Instruments issued
and habilities incurred or assumed at the date control passes

Joday argalens
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Notes to the Financial Statements contnued

Year ended 31 December 2015

1 Significant accounting policies {continued)
Identifiable assets acquired, habilities and contingent
llabilities assumed in a bustness combination are measured
tnitially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective
of the extent of any minority interest

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value

of the Group's share of the tdentifiable net assets acquired

1s recorded as goodwill If the cost of acguisition 1s less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,

the difference Is recogmised directly In the Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the penod Intra-group transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on intra-group transactions

are eliminated on consohdation Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence

of an impairment of the asset transferred

Where the Group invests In specialised investment vehicles
(such as OEICs}, owns greater than 50% of the unit sharehotding
and has the power to direct the relevant activities which

expose the Group to vanable returns, they are consolidated
The interests of other parties in these vehicles will be classified
as habilities and appear as ‘Net asset value atinbutable

to external unit holders’ because they are putiable instruments
The external unit holders' share of the net investment return

on the QEICs I1s charged or credited teo the Statement

of Comprehensive Income as Investment return aliocated

to external urnit holders Detalls of the Society's subsidiaries

are given in Note 46

Associates and joint ventures In property holding companies
The Group invests In associate companies and jointly controlied
entities that hold investment properties Associates are all
entities over which the Group has significant influence but

not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than 20% and less than 50% of the voting rights Joint ventures
are arrangements where the Group has joint control and rnghts
to the net assets of the entity

The investments in associates and the Group’s interests

in jointly controlled entities have not been consolidated
under the equity method but are designated as investments
at fair value through income under UK unlisted investments
In accordance with the exemptions permitted under IAS 28
applicable to investment-linked insurance funds

h Contract classification
The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk,
financial nsk or both

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant
insurance risk Such contracts may also transfer financial

risk As a general guideline, the Group defines as significant
insurance risk the possibility of having to pay benefits on the
occurrence of an insured event that are at least 10% more than
the benefits payable if the insured event did not ocour

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer financial
nsk with no significant insurance nsk

All with-profits contracts have been classified as participating
contracts as these contracts entitle the holder to recewe,
as a supplement to guaranteed benefits, additional benefits
or bonuses
« that are likely to be a significant portion of the total
contractual benefits,
« whose amount or timing 1s contractually at the discretion
of the Group, and
+ that are contractually based on
1) the performance of a specified pool of contracts
or a specified type of contract,
1) realised and/or unrealised investrent returns
on a specified pool of assets held by the fund, or
1} the unallocated surplus of the fund that issues the contract

¢ Foreign currencies

Investment assets and llabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated to sterling at rates of exchange ruiing
at the end of the year Purchases and sales of investments
denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at the rates
prevalling at the dates of the transactions Exchange gains
and losses are dealt with in that part of the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in which the underlytng transaction

15 reported

d Financial assets and habilities

Recognition

The Group classifies its financial assets and habilities upon
inttial recognition into the following categories

— Financial assets and habilities at fair value through income
— Derwative financial instruments

- Loans and recewvables

— Other financial habilities

The accounting policy for each type of financral asset or liability
Is included within the relevant note for the category

Derecognition
A financial asset i1s derecognised when
- the nghts to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
- the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset and has
- transferred the risks and rewards of the asset, or
— transferred control of the asset

A financial liability 1s derecogrised when the obligation under
the habtlity 1s discharged or cancelled or expires

¢ Liabllity adequacy testing

Insurance and participating investment contract liabillties

‘At each reporting date, an assessment 1s made of whether

the recognised long-term contract liabilities are adequate,

using current estimates of future cash flows If that assessment
shows that the carrying amount of the liabilities (less related
assets} 1s insufficient in light of the estimated future cash flows,
the deficiency 1s recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income by setting up an additional liabibty
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
General insurance

At each Statement of Financial Pasition date liability adeguacy
tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of Insurance
contract llabilities, net of related deferred acquisition costs

In performing these tests, current best estimates of future
contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration
expenses, as well as investment income from the assets
backing such habilities, are used

Any deficiency 1s iImmediately charged to the Statement

of Comprehensive Income initially by writing off deferred
acquisition costs and by subsequently establishing an
unexpired nsk provision Any deferred acquisition cost written
off as a result of this test cannot subsequently be reinstated

f Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually

for impairment Assets that are subject to amortisation

or depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes 1n circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable An impairment loss 15 recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds Its
recoverablie amount The recoverable amount 1s the mgher

of an asset’s farr value less costs to sell and value In use

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately dentifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units)

Non-financial assets, other than goodwill, that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date

g Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents compnse cash at bank and

in hand, and short-term deposits with an onginal maturity
of three months or less

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash and
cash eguivalents are as defined above but are shown net
of outstanding bank overdrafts

h Collateral
Collateral 1s received or pledged against denivative contracts
in the form of cash collateral and non-cash collateral

Cash collateral

Cash collateral received, which 1s not legally segregated from
the Group, ts recognised as an asset with a corresponding
liabihty for its repayment in the Statement of Financial Position

Cash collateral pledged, which 15 legally segregated from
the Group, 1s derecogmised from Cash and cash equivalents
and a corresponding asset for its return 1s recognised

in the Statement of Finanoal Position

Non-cash collateral
Non-cash collateral received against derivative centracts
where the counterparty 15 not in default, that 1s neither sold

nor reptedged, 1s not recognised in the Statement of Financial
Positron Non-cash coliateral pledged against dervative
cantracts where the Group 1s not in default 1s not derecognised
from the Statement of Financral Position and remains within
the appropriate asset classification

1 4 Changes and future developments in accounting policies
(I} New and amended standards adopted by the Group

There were no new or amended accounting standards adopted
by the Group for the first time for the financial year beginning
on or after 1 January 2015

(ii) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards
and interpretations are effective for annual penods beginning
after 1 January 2016, and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements None of these

are expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except for the following

Amendment to IAS 1 ‘Presentatton of financial statements’
seeks to clanfy the disciosure requirements including
considenng the impact of matenahty on the level of
disaggregation and exient of disclosures presenied,
disclosure of additional sub totals and reconciliation

to those required by IAS 1, and also additional flexibility
regarding the order of notes to the financial statements
This amendment is effective from 1 January 2016 and

will be adopted by the Group The Group has reviewed

the disclosures included i the financial statements against
this amendment As this amendment merely clanfies the
existing requirements of IAS 1 the Group does not consider
the impact of the amendment to be significant

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
llabilities The complete version of IFRS 9 was 1ssued i July
2014 It replaces the guidance in IAS 39 that relates to the
classification and measurement of financial instruments

IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model
and establishes three pnmary measurement categories for
financial assets amortised cost, fair value through OCl and
fair value through P&L The basis of classification depends

on the entity’'s business model and the contractual cash flow
charactenstics of the financial asset Investments in equity
instruments are required to be measured at fasr value through
profit or loss with the rrevocable option at inception to present
changes n fair value in OCl not recycling There 15 now a new
expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss
impairment model used in 1AS 39 For finanaal labihties there
were no changes to classification and measurement except
for the recognition of changes in own credit nsk tn other
comprehensive iIncome, for habiliies designated at fair value
through profit or loss The standard 1s effective for accounting
periads beginming on or after 1 January 2018

The Group 1s currently assessing the impact of this new standard
There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC mterpretations that are

not yet effective that are expected to have a matenal impact
on the Group
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Segmental information
G

This section details the disclosures ansing under IFRS 8 Operating segments These segmental disclosures are based on operating
segments that reflect the level within the Group at which key strategic and resource allocation decisions are made and the way
in which operating performance 15 reported internally to the Group board of directors

2 Segmental information

Accounting for operating profit

- centrally managed strategic costs,

- finance costs,

- amortisation of acquired intangibles,

— short-term inwestment fluctuations This represents the
difference between the leng-term average return currently
expected over the lifetime of the free Estate and Life assets

Operating profit s the profit earned from normal core business operations It 1s a non-GAAP measure and calcutated as IFRS
profit before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer, adjusted for the following items

and the actual investment return achieved on these assets
in the current penod, and
— accounting differences between the basis upon which
the results of the pensions business are managed and
the accounting requirements of IFRS

The activities of each operating segment are described below
General Insurance

The principal activity 1s to underwrite general insurance
business through both direct and broker distribution channels
The primary sources of premium income are from the sale

of Motor and Home products and Commercial Insurance

for Small and Medium Size Enterpnses The General Insurance
business also underwrites Road Rescue, Pet Insurance and
Travel Insurance

Life

The principal activity 1s the provision of Protection and
Retirement Solution products The core preducts offered

in Protection are Life, Critical lliness, Income Protection

and Unemployment Insurance The core products offered

in Retirement Solutions are Annuities, Self-Invested Personal
Pensions (SIPPs), Equity Release Mortgages and Flexible
Guarantee Bonds

For the purposes of this segmental disclosure, iInsurance
and investment contract liabilities, operating profits, IFRS
profit before tax and net change in contract habilities shown
for the Life business, are calculated after allocating the
non-participating value of in-force business to this segment

a) Segment profit

Heritage

This segment comprises LVFS' with-profits business

{both ordinary branch and industnial branch) along with

some non-profit business and unit-inked business, which

was acquired from the Royal National Pension Fund for Nurses
('RNPFN"} Most of the Heritage preducts are no longer actively
marketed, although Hertage continues to sell newer with-profits
products via the Life business channels

Central items and other
This segment comprises centrally held items such as
group functions

Transactions between reportable segments are on normal
commercial terms, and are inctuded within the reported
segments

The profit measure used by the Group board of directors to
mormtor performance 1s Operating profit before tax Operating
profit before tax by segment I1s shown In the table below, together
with a reconcitiation of the Total operating profit before tax to the
IFRS result before tax The following tables give details of the
Group's profit, revenue and expenses and assets and labilities
with reference to the operating segments defined above

Central

General Items:
insurance Life Heritage and other Total
2015 £m £m £m £m £m
Total operating profit/(loss) before tax 72 41 88 (6) 195
Pensions bustness IFRS adjustment - (5) - - (B)
Short-term investment fluctuations and related tems* - (27) 11 6 (10}
Centrally managed costs - (2) - (27) (29)
Finance costs - - - (24} (24)
Amortisation of acquired Intangibles (2) 1) - = 3)
Profit/({loss) before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer 70 -] 99 (51) 124

Central

General items
nsurance Life Heritage and other Total
2014 £m £m £m £m £m
Total operating profit/(loss) before tax 92 {7) 9 (8) 86
Pensions business IFRS adjustment - 1 - - 1
Short-term investment fluctuations and related iterms* - (10) 30 {22) @
Centrally managed costs (1) (2) 1) a7 (21)
Finance costs - - - (24) (24)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (2) (1) - - (3)
Profit/(loss) befare tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer 89 {19} 38 (71) 37

* Short-term vestment fluctuations and related items contains the favourable impact of tax deducted from policy asset shares

and the RNPFN fund totalling £nt (2014 £34m)
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2 Segmental information (continued)
b) Segment revenue and expenses
Al revenues disclosed in the tables below are external

Cantral
General {tems
Insurance Life Herltags and other Total
Year ending 31 December 2015 £m £m £m £m £m
Gross earned premiums 1,420 935 53 - 2,408
Premiums ceded to reinsurers {284) {77) (23) - (384)
Net earned premlums 1,136 858 30 - 2,024
Investment and other income 67 (11) 108 12 176
Total segmental Income 1,203 847 138 12 2,200
Gross benefits and claims (1,018) {499) {297) - (1,814)
Claims ceded {0 reinsurers 265 51 22 - 338
Net benefit and claims (753) {448) (275) - (1,476)
Net change in contract habilities - (218) 266 {1} 47
Other expenses (380) {175) (30) {62) (647)
Total segmental expenses {1,133) {841) (39) {63} {2,076)
Profit/{loss) before tax, mutual bonus and UD$S transfer* 70 6 99 {51} 124
Central
General items
nsurance Life Heritage and other Total
Year ending 31 December 2014 £m £m £m £m £m
Gross earned premiums 1,418 781 65 - 2,264
Premiums ceded 1o reinsurers (36) {64) (24) - {124)
Net earned premiums 1,382 717 41 - 2,140
Investment and other income 74 495 647 40 1,256
Total segmental Income 1,456 1,212 688 40 3,396
Gross benefits and claims (1,000) (364) (302) - (1,666)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 8 52 22 - 82
Net benefit and claims (992) {312} (280) - {1,584
Net change in contract liabwhties - {767} {302) {62) {1,131)
Other expenses (375} (152} (68) (49) (644)
Total segmental expenses (1,367} (1,231) (650) {(111) (3,359)
Profit/{loss) before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer* 89 (19) 38 {71} 37

Gross wnitten premiums for investment contracts which are deposit accounted for and not in¢luded above are £515m

(2014 £393m)

* As a Friendly Society, all net earnings are for the benefit of participating pohcyholders and are carned forward within the
Unallocated dmisible surplus, resulting in the profit for each financial year being zero Therefore the resulting Profit before tax
required to be disclosed under IFRS 8 will always be equal to the tax charge being £6m (2014 £47m) and £(1)m (2014 £34m)

for the Group and Society respectively

In order to present a mere meaningful disclosure the Profit before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer is disclosed in the

tables above
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2 Segmental information (continued)

c) Segment assets and liabilitles
Centrat

General ltems
Insurance Life Heritage and other Total
As at 31 December 2015 £m £m £m Em £m
Assets
Property and equipment 6 - - 33 39
Financial assets 1,783 5,270 4,031 770 11,854
Remsurance assets 398 461 31 - 890
Other assets 340 107 i8 105 570
Cash and cash equivalents 685 140 205 156 1,186
Total assets 3,212 5,978 4,285 1,064 14,539
Llablities
Insurance and investment contract babilities (2,093) (5,496) (4,374) - (11,963)
Subordinated halities ()] - - (347) (356)
Other habihties (395) {203) (112) (409} (1,119}
Total liabllitles exciuding UDS (2,497) (5,699} (4,486) (756) (13,438}
Net Assets 715 279 (201) 308 1,101
Consclidation adjustments (560) (386) 321 625 -
Unallocated divisible surplus (UDS) 155 (107) 120 933 1,101
Central
1tems
and ather Total
General Restated - Restated —
{nsurance Life Herntage see Note 1 see Note 1
As at 31 December 2014 £m £m im £m £m
Assets
Property and equipment 8 - - 11 19
Financial assets 2,103 4,705 4,463 988 12,260
Reinsurance assets 138 33% 30 - 503
Other assets 344 95 20 18 477
Cash and cash equivalents 321 118 204 146 790
Total assets 2,914 5,254 4,717 1,164 14,049
Liabilities
Insurance and investment contract habilities (1,995) (4,862) {4.613) {13) (11,483
Subordinated labihties (9) - - (347) {356)
Other habilities (198) (113) (141) (799) (1,251)
Total llabilities excluding UDS (2,202) (4,975) (4,754) {1,159) (13,090)
Net Assets 712 279 (37 5 959
Consoldation adjustments {596) {403) 338 661 -
Unallocated divisible surplus (UDS) 116 (124) 301 G66 959

In 2014 Flexible Guarantee Bonds were reported in Hentage and i 2015 they have been reported in the Life business
The 2014 segmental information has been restated to show Flexible Guarantee Bonds i Life

within the Central items and other segment, there 1s a balance of £752m (2014 £454m) which relates to Estate net assets
The Heritage with-profits policyholders have access to the Estate assets, if required to settle guarantees and bonuses

Included within the Consolidation adiustments 1s £321m (2014 £338m) of non-participating value of in-force business which
1s generated from the non-participating policies written in the Life business Under IFRS GAAP this 1s matched against the
participating contracts which are held within Heritage

Duning 2015 there was a transfer of £243m from Herntage net assets to Estate net assets, with a consequent opposite impact
on the UDS This was due to a model and basis change together with a change to the commutation rate and the basis on which
future pension transfers will occur {from guaranteed fund to asset share)

d) Major customers
The directers consider the Group s external customers to be individual policyholders As such, the Group i1s not rehant
on any mdividual customer
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Capital and risk management
TN

This section details the capital and nsk management approach of the Society and Group The Group seeks to create value
for its members by investing in the development of the business while maintaimng an appropriate level of capital available
The nsk appetite for each type of principal risk 1s set based on the amount necessary to meet the PRA's capital requirements

3 Capital management

Policles and objectives

The Group s key capital management objectives are

(1) To ensure the Group's strategy can be implemented
and 15 sustainable,

{n) To ensure the Group's financial strength and to support
the risks it takes on as part of its business,

{n1)To give confidence to policyholders and other stakeholders
who have relationships with the Group, and

{v}To comply with capital requirements imposed by Its
UK regulator, the PRA

These objectives are reviewed at least annually,

and benchmarks are set by which to judge the adequacy

of the Group's capital The capital position 1s monitored

against those benchmarks to ensure that sufficient

capital 15 avalable to the Group

The Group Is required to hold sufficient capital to meet

the PRA capital requirements based on the higher of,

a the Risk Capital Margin {(RCM) determined 1n accordance with
the PRA’s regulatory rules under 1ts realistic capital regime, or

b the Indivtdual Capital Assessment (ICA) which takes into
account certain bustness risks not reflected in the RCM,
and which 1s submitted to the PRA

The assessment depends on various actuarial and other
assumptions about potential changes in market prices, future
cperating experience and the actions management would take
in the event of particular adverse changes in market conditions

The capital requirement in the annual PRA return is the
statutory minimum capital requirement plus an additional
component for each with-profits fund The statutory minimum
capital requirement 1s based on EU directives

Capital statement

Management intends to maintain surplus capital in excess
of the RCM and ICA to meet the PRA s total requirements
and to mamntain an appropnate additional margin over this
to absorb changes in both capital and capital requirements

The Group comphed with all externally imposed capital
reguirements to which it was subject throughout the
reporting periad

Measurement and monitoring of capltal

The capital position of the Group s monitored on a regular basis
and reviewed formally on a monthly basis by the Group Asset
and Liabihty Committee (ALCO) These objectives are reviewed
and benchmarks are set by which to judge the adequacy of the
Group’s capital and ensure that sufficient capital is avallable

The Group's capital requirements are forecast on a regular
basts and compared against the avallable capital and the
Group's minimum internal rate of return The tnternal rate

of return forecast to be achieved on potential investments
15 also measured aganst mimmum required benchmarks
taking into account the nsks associated with the investment

In the event that sufficient capital 1s not available, actions
would be taken either to raise additional capital or to reduce
the amount of nsk accepted thereby reducing the capital
requirement through, for example, reinsurance, reducing
business volumes or a change 1n Investment strategy

Change to regulatory reporting regime

The new Eurcpean-wide Solvency Il iInsurance regulations
replace the current regulatory regime on 1 January 2016
Future capital measurement and reporting will meet
Solvency |l requirements

The following tables set out the capital avaitable to the Society under the regulatory regime in force at 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Regulatory Capital im £m
Admissible assets excluding lower tier two capital 10,896 10,538
Mathematical reserves and other habihties (9,489) (9,225)
Subordinated debt capital 347 347
Capital resources 1,754 1,660
RNPFN surplus not availlable to Group (236) {247)

Available capital resources
Capital resource requirements,

1,518 1,413

- Regulatory solvency requirements (308) {300
~ Regulatory related undertakings (229) (256)
Regulatory excess capltal (excluding RNPFN surplus) 983 857
With-profits insurance capital component (129) {168)
Realistic excess capltal (excluding RNPFN surplus) 854 689
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3 Capital management (continued)
Capltal resources (Soclety and Group)

Movements 1n capital resources are analysed below

Soclety s RNPFN Qther UK
participating  particlpating non- Total

contract contract  participating long term Other Consolldation

business businass business busineas actlvities adjustments Group total
2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Capital at 1 January 1,660 - 15 1,675 2,177 (1,990) 1,862
Effect of investment vanations 90 - - 90 - - 20
Effect of changes in assumptions 63 - - 63 - - 63
New business (91) - - (91) - - (91)
Effect of changes in regulatory requirements - (11) - (11) (3) 5 {9)
Other 32 - {10} 22 14 (5) ai
RNPFN Fund not available to the Group — 11 - 11 - - 11
Capital resources as at 31 December 1,754 - 5 1,759 2,188 (1,990) 1,957

Soclety's RNPFN Other UK

participating participating non Total

contract contract  participating long term Other  Consolidation

business business business business acuvities adjustments Group total
2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m im
Capital at 1 January 1,650 - 14 1,664 2,134 (1,843) 1,855
Effect of investment variaticns 53 - - 53 - - 83
Effect of changes in assumptions {11) - - {(11) - - {11)
New business {93) - - (93) - - 93)
Effect of changes in regulatory requirements - 53 - 53 {3) {44) 6
Other 61 - 1 62 46 {3} 105
RNPFN Fund not avallable to the Group - {53) - (53) ~- - (53)
Capital resources as at 31 December 1,660 — 15 1,675 2,177 {1,990) 1,862
Buring 2015 LVFS's excess capital resources increased by £165m to £854m as shown in the table below

2015 2014

Excess capital £m £m
Excess capital at 1 January 689 720
Opening adjustments 5 2
Economic vanances 6 a7}
Claims variances 4 -
Expense vanances (24) (17}
New business {1} (16)
Impact of changes to valuation assumptions 25 12
0B pension cash benefits basis change 69 -
Movements in group undertakings* 57 68
Interest on subordinated debt (23) (23)
Mutual bonus (27) (24)
Change n nsk capttal margin 61 (3)
Other 23 17
Excess capital at 31 December 854 689

* Movement In group undertakings relates to the change in the net asset value of the subsidianies, due mainly to profits generated
and movements between admissible and inadmissible assets

Our key benchmark, the Regulatory Capital Cover ratio 1s 195% (2014 1719%) This ratio represents the value of cur capital resources

compared to the capital resources required
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3 Capitai management (continued)

Reconciliation of capital resources

The following table reconciles the Unallocated divisible surplus presented in the Statement of Financial Position to the total
capttal resources calculated on a regulatory basis

Soclety s Other UK

particlpating non Total Other
contract  particlpating long term activities Consolldation
bush husk busl, {nots 4) ad]ustments Group total
2015 Em £m £m £m £m £m
Unallocated divisible surplus 1,036 - 1,036 - 65 1,101
Shareholdings in related undertakings - 5 5 2,218 (2,223) -
Regulatory adjustments
- Adjustment to reserves to realistic basis 399 - 399 - - 399 w
— Adjustment to subsidiaries (note 1} (178) - (178) - 168 {10) §
— Inadmissible assets (note 2) (86) - {86) (30} - (116) ugé
1,171 5 1,176 2,188 (1,990} 1,374 2
Lower tier two capital 347 - 347 - - 347 3
Capital Resources {excluding RNPFN) 1,518 5 1,523 2,188 (1,990} 1,721 ~
RNPEN Fund not available to the Group (note 3) 236 - 236 - - 236
Capital Resources 1,754 5 1,759 2,188 {1,990} 1,957
partslgfq;::?‘nz Total g’
cantract Other UK long term ‘-<‘3
business non business Other Group total =]
Restated - participating Restated - activites  Conschidation Restated - ‘;‘,’
see Nete 1 business see Note 1 (noie 4) adjustments see Note 1 8
2014 £m £m £m Em £m £m
Unallocated divisible surplus 893 - 893 - 66 959
Shareholdings in related undertakings - 15 15 2,204 (2.219) -
Regutatory adjustments
— Adjustment to reserves to realistic basis 357 - 357 - - 357
— Adjustment to subsidiaries {(note 1) (170} - {170) - 163 {7} o
— Inadmisstble assets {note 2} (14) - (d4) 27 - (a1) S
1,066 15 1,081 2,177 (1,990) 1,268 §
Lower tier two capital 347 - 347 - - 347 g
Capital Resources (excluding RNPFN) 1,413 15 1,428 2,177 (1,990) 1,615 @
RNPFN Fund not available to the Group {note 3} 247 - 247 - - 247
Capital Resources 1,660 15 1,675 2,177 {1,990) 1,862
Notes

1 Represents the difference between the cost of investment in subsidiaries and the value for regulatory purposes net of the capital
requirement

2 Inadmissible assets include pension scheme, deferred tax and goodwill

3 RNPFN denotes Royal Nationat Pension Fund for Nurses, which 1s a nng-fenced fund The free assets attnbutabte to this fund
are reported as insurance contract kabilities of the Society

4 Other activities include the non-ife insurance activities and the non-insurance activities of the Group

Capital resources - Long-term insurance contracts The assets are taken at market value, estimated where

i) Participating insurance contracts required, with an allowance for the future surplus expected

The hatihties in respect of the Group's participating to anse on the non-participating business wrnitten in the i
(with-profits) business are determined in accordance with participating fund The whole of the availlable capital resources
the ‘realistic balance sheet’ regime prescnbed by the PRA within each participating fund is availlable to meet the regulatory
Under this regime, the habilities to policyholders include both and other solvency requirements of the fund The regulatory
declared bonuses and the ¢onstructive obligation for future camital requirement 1s the Risk Capital Margin, determined
bonuses, based in general on the asset shares for the relevant by applying a stress prescribed by the PRA to the participating
policies The expected costs of the guarantees underlying the liabilities and to the assets supporting them For participating
business are included, along with the impact of smoothing contract funds, the habilitres included in the Statement

policy benefits in accordance with the Group's current practice of Financial Position comprise only amounts relating

An allowance 1s made for actions that management would take to policyholders

in adverse conditions, such as reducing bonus rates
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il) Nonparticipating insurance contracts

The hiabiities in respect of the Group’s non-participating
(non-profit) business are determined by discounting the

cash flows projected to arise under the relevant pohicies

at a risk-adjusted discount rate The assumptions used

to project the cash flows include prudent margins The capital
requirement for the business 1s the long-term insurance capital
requirement determined in accordance with PRA regulations

i1} Other non-insurance activities

The other activities of the Group have avallable capital
resources which are higher than the minimum requirements
set by the PRA or FCA for each of the regulated entities

In principle, the excess Is available to the Society In practice,
higher levels of capital are held within each regulated entity
to provide appropnate cover for sk and new business growth
This restricts the ability of the capital resources to meet
requirements that arise elsewhere in the Group

Iv) RNPFN fund

The capital resources in the RNPFN fund are available to
support only the business within the fund The fund benefits
from a caprtal support facility provided by the Society

However, with the capital resources of the fund being in excess
of its capital requirement, no calls to date have been made

on this facility

Sensitivity of long-term Insurance contract liabllities
The value of the long-term insurance contract habilities
15 sensitive to changes in market conditions and in the
demographic assumptions used in the caiculation,
such as mortality and persistency rates

Market conditions — Assumptions are made about future
investment returns and interest rates when valuing the
hablities, based on current market conditions These also have
an effect on the value placed on the assets held to support
the liabilities An adverse change in market conditions may
therefore reduce the level of the available capital resources

Demographic assumptions ~ Changes in the mortalty,
morbidity, expense or persistency experienced by the business
may result in the need to change the assumptions used

to value the iabibties This may increase or reduce the value
placed on the liabilittes The sensitivity of the habilities

to changes in the assumptions vanes according to the type

of business For example, a change in mortality rates has

a different impact for annuity habilities than for term
assurance habiities

Further disclosure of the impact on the Unatlocated divisible
surplus of changes in market conditions and demographic
assumptions 1s provided in Note 4

Financlal guarantees and options

a) Participating insurance contracts

As part of its normal operating activities, the Society
has given guarantees and oplions, including interest rate
guarantees, under 1ts participating insurance contracts

A provision is made for these guarantees and options within
the realistic valuation of the Group’s participating business
Under the PRA's rules, the cost of the guarantees and options
15 measured at farr value using a market-consistent stochastic
model A stochastic approach includes measunng the time
value of the guarantees and options, which represents

the addittonal cost ansing from the uncertainty surrounding
future economic conditions The time value 15 evaluated

by projecting a large number of possible future outcomes
under a wide range of econemic scenanos {for example,
possible outcomes for interest rates and equity returns)

The maternial guarantees and options under the participating
business are shown below

1) Guaranteed annuity rates — the RNPFN fund contains
a number of individual pension and other policies,
where the policyholder has the option at matunty
to take the benefits in the form of an annuity based
on guaranteed Conversion rates

Maturity value guarantees — many of the Group's
participating insurance contracts have minimum maturty
values, in the form of either a cash payment or an annuity,
reflecting the ongina! guarantee under the policy increased
by past declared bonuses

=

1y Money-back guarantees — some of the pohcies written
by the Group provide a guarantee that the value of the
policy at a certain point tn time will be at least equal
to the total premiums paid

b) Nompartlcipating Insurance contracts

The Group has also written non-participating contracts which
Include guarantees and options An appropriate provision
for these guarantees and options has been included within
the labilities in accordance with the PRA's rules

c) Equity release loans

The Group’'s assets include a number of equity release loans,
the principal and accrued interest of which are due to be repaid
out of the proceeds from the sale of an associated domestic
property The loans include the guarantee that any shortfall

of the sale proceeds to the loan will be wrnitten off The loans
also include guaranteed terms under which they can be repatd
earty Further details are disclosed within Note 16
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4 Risk management and control

The Group’s primary business activities include the proviston
of insurance, investment and retirement products to UK-based
customers In providing these products the Group accepts
and needs to manage nsk A descripticn of these nsks and
how they relate to the Groups’ products i1s outlined below and
the Group's approach to managing and controlling these risk
through 1ts governance and risk management framework

15 set out on pages 46 to 57

As part of 1ts sk management programme, the Group records
its current and projected risk position across a defined set

of nisk categones In addition a measure of the sensitivity on
Profit before tax, Unallocated divisible surplus, and Long-term
insurance contract habilities under both deterministic and
stochastic scenarios 1s performed

Management uses the insight gained through these
sensitivities to help manage the Group s risk exposure and
sustainability The models, scenaros and assumptions used
are reviewed regularly and updated as necessary including any
interdependencies between risk types This section includes
the impact on the three measures of a sensitivity test that
calibrates 10 a reasonably possible change in a single risk type

Principal risks

The Group uses a standard categorisation to group types
of similar nsks All such risks are subject to the same nsk
management and control framework, however they impact
the business and its financial perfoermance in different ways
The following sections provide more detail on these risks
and how they impact the Group

{a) Insurance risk

Insurance nisk arnses both from the claims commitment

that the Group has made to its policyholders and the pricing

assumptions made in respect of the policy of insurance

As such, this covers the following risks

e The timing and the amount of the claim is uncertain and
hence there 1s a risk that the exposure to loss ansing from
thus claims experience I1s different to that anticipated

* The product is priced assurmng certain assumptions covering
how long the policy will be maintained by the customer
{persistency nsk) and the cost of administering the product
over 1ts hfe cycle (expense nsk) There i1s a risk that across
the Group s insurance portfolio the actual expenence
1s different to that assumed when the product 1s priced
This is more likely the longer the term of the product
and therefore 15 usually only a significant factor in life
insurance products

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative vanability about
the expected outcome will be In addition, a more diversified
portioho 1s less likely to be affected by a change In any subset
of the portfoho The Group has developed its insurance
underwriting strategies to diversify the type of insurance risks
accepted and within each of these categones to achieve

a sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the vanability
of the expected outcome The Group wnies a diverse mix

of insurance business across a diverse group of people

and businesses

However, as the Group has substantially written all of its
business in the UK, results are sensitive to demographic
and economic changes ansing in the UK

The Group assesses Its insurance nsk in two broad categories
Itfe insurance nsk and general insurance nsk and the specific
components of each of these are further outlined below

(1} Life insurance

The Group's Iife insurance (‘Life’) activities pnimarily involve
the provision of Protection, Annuity, Pension and Equity
Retease products These products provide key benefits

to the policyholder and their dependants, either securing their
income dunng times of illness and their retirement or providing
financial support to their beneficianes in the case of loss of life

Once an insurance contract has been accepted a commitment
then arises to meet the future benefits that have been offered
to the policyholder (this may include certain guarantees e g
sum assured, guaranteed annuity optiens), which crystallises
at the point that the policyholder ultimately makes a clam

Life insurance contracts are long-term in nature and

provide policyholder benefits over a number of years

In addition, the ultimate habihties that arise will vary

by the type of different contracts that are wnitten For example,
death claims are certain for whole of hfe assurance and
although the sum assured i1s fixed there are potential product
factors that can influence this (e g values are index linked),
whereas other habilities are more open ended e g annuities
and enhanced annuities that are ultimately dependent

on how long someone lives

A number of key assumptions are made when determiming

the future claims liability that will arise from these policyholder
commitments These are based on prior expenience and latest
forecasts i trends and patterns and include the future hife
expectancy and health of policyhoiders, the extent to which
contracts will be terminated early, how much insurance contract
administration costs will increase, growth in the value

of investment returns, interest rates and tax rates

Details of ife insurance contract liabiities and associated
valuation assumptions are disclosed in Notes 23 and
28 respectively

Differences in actual experrence versus the original key
assumptions will give nse to different habilities than onginally
anticipated In addition the assumptions made regarding

the length of time the policy stays in force and the cost

of admirustering the policy may vary from onginal assumptions
Wherever these outcomes vary from the onginat or most recent
estimated they may give rise to potential life insurance rnisks
exposures, the primary life insurance risks prevalent within

the Group’s products are described below

Mortality, longevity and morbidity

Life Protection and Annuity business |s exposed to changes
in hfe expectancy (mortality — reduced hfe expectancy,
longevity increased hfe expectancy) and health expectancy
{morbidity} expertence
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Protection product liabilities are, in the main, based on the
estimated life expectancy of the policyholders Generally,

the potential risk I1s that more policyholders die earher than
expected and this will give nse to increased habilites resulting
from increased death claims In the reverse situation, insurance
contract liabilittes will reduce If policyholders live longer than
expected For some whole of life policies where reinsurance

15 used to manage nsk, the insurance contract habilities will
increase if policyhelders live longer than expected

Annuity product habilities are also based on the estimated
ife expectancy of the policyholders The potential nisk s that
if more policyholders live longer than anticipated this will give
rse to increased labilities and reduced profits, ansing from
the additional regular iIncome payments to annuitants

Certain of the Group’s protection products also have

liabilities which are based on the expected health of the
policyholders The risk, known as morbidity nsk, 1s that more
policyholders fall iIl! or become incapacitated than anticipated
and this will give rise to increased liabilities and reduced profits
In the reverse situation, insurance contract labilities will reduce
and profits increase If the number of policyholders becoming

ill or injured decline

Mortality, longewvity and morbidity rnisk 1s managed in the Group
through the assessment of the nsk associated with individual
policyholders against a set of acceptance (underwniting)
criteria, which may include an individual's medical history,
occupation, smeking and drinking habits (1 @ Indicators

of life expectancy) The actual expernence of policyholders

15 then regularly monitored to assess that the underwnting
cnterna remain appropriate and that the level of nsk being
assumed by the Group remains within its nsk appetite
Finally, a proportion of mortalty, longevity and morbidity risk
1s transferred via reassuring policy commitments through
agreements with reinsurance companies

Persistency

In pricing hife insurance business, the Group makes
assumptions as to how long the policyholder is likely
to retain the product

The nisk is that policies do not remain in force as long

as expected, whether they are lapsed, declared as paid-up,
surrendered or transferred prior to maturity or expiry

In addition, for equity release products persistency nsk
arises from veluntary early redemptions prior to the end

of the loan contract

The level of persistency influences the ability to recever initial
costs of sale from the premiums and charges that relate

to the product Experience shows that the nsk of a policy
being lapsed/surrendered or a loan being redeemed I1s greater
In the early years but reduces significantly as time passes
Perststency risk anses from the actual expenence being
different to that assumed when pricing the product

For certain Hentage products which incorporate significant
guarantees or options, the level of persistency influences
the estimated cost of the guarantees and options The nsk
for these products 15 that a larger proportion of the portfolio
remains in-force 1o avail of these guarantees and options

Expense

In pricing ife Insurance business, assumptions are made

as to how long the Group will need to continue te service and
maintain the product and communicate with the policyholder
The Group 1s exposed to the nisk that the charges it deducts
from policyholder benefits are not sufficient to cover the full
extent of these expenses In additton, the Group makes

an assumption as to how much this service and maintenance
will cost each year Expense risk 1s the exposure from these
assumptions on cost and duration varying from the assumed
{evels, with higher than expected expenses reducing profits
The Group manages this nsk through an on-going assessment
of the factors that will generate additional expenses in the
product servicing costs and the average duration of life
insurance products

Life insurance exposure

The Group's exposure to life insurance nsk Is captured in the
long-term insurance and investment contract iabilities set out
below The products listed below cover the Group’s protection,
annuity, and pensions products and also the investment exposure
arising from the Group’s savings and investment products

2015 2014
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Relnsurance Net
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Whole life 2,140 (8) 2,132 1,828 59 1,887
Endowment 295 - 295 346 - 346
Term Assurance 204 (202) 2 183 (180) 3
Immediate and deferred annuity contracts 4,112 (91) 4,021 4,364 (96) 4,268
UWP pensions and protected retirement plans 1,126 - 1,126 1,109 - 1,109
Cnitical lliness 99 {75) 24 72 (46) 26
Income protection 103 (115) {12) 121 (101} 20
ISA 78 - 78 76 - 76
Other 123 (1) 122 127 {1} 126
8,280 (492) 7,788 8,226 {365) 7,861
Long-term claims habtlities 40 - 40 41 - 41
Unit inked 1,867 - 1,867 1,559 - 1,658
10,187 {492) 9,695 9,826 (365) 9,461
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Life insurance nsk sensitivities

The table below sets out the impact on the long-term centract habilities (both investment and insurance contracts), the Unallocated
divisible surplus and Profit before tax for movements in key assumptions

Impact

on gross

long term

Impact fnsurance

on the and

Sensltivity analysis for the change in assumptions used in long-term impact  Unafoested  Imvestment
insurance and investment contract liabllities hoforg tax surplus Itabiiitins
Increase In mortality rates by 10% — Non annuity products {10) (10) 73
Decrease in mortality rates by 10% — Annuity products {57) (57) 118
Increase In morbidity rates by 10% {22) (22) 100
Reduction in persistency by 25% 3 3 (71)
Increase in persistency by 26% (1) (1) 83
Increase in expenses by 10% (36) (386) 47

The persistency sensitivities are performed as multiplicative
stresses to the persistency assumptions for all products and
therefore implicitly allow for offsets between products exposed
to different directional sensitivities

{ii) General insurance

The Group’s Insurance activities are primarily concerned

with the pricing, accepting and management of risks from its
policyholders In accepting risks the Group commits to paying
claims and therefore these risks must be understood The
Group manages these nisks through 1ts underwnting strategy,
remsurance arrangements and proactive claims handling

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability 1s applied to pncing and provisioning, the principal
risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts 1s the
risk that actual claims exceed the carrying value of the Group's
clarms reserves The nsk anses from the inherent uncertainties
as to the occurrence, amount and timing of insurance claims
For general insurance contracts this 1s primarily represented

by exposure to rnisks which may lead to significant claims n
terms of frequency or value These would include major weather
events, subsidence and large single claims arising from etther
the motor business (injury claims) or SME business (haihty
and/or property claims) There 1S also a risk that the prices
charged for unexpired rnisks to which the Group 1s contractually
committed may prove to be insufficient to absorb the cost of
the claims which they will generate and any related deferred
acquisition cost Procedures are in place to measure, monitor
and control exposure to all these rnisks

Property business {domestic and commercial} 1s exposed to
catastrophic nsks such as those resulting from storms or floods
as well as nsks such as subsidence The Group has entered
into rensurance contracts which provide protection against
catastrophic weather events There have been no recent events
that have tnggered the reinsurance cover and so there Is
currently no reinsurance claims asset held on this account

Motor business 1s exposed to the risk of large bodily injury
claims, where the claim amounts can be significant due 1o the
cost of care required for the claimant The Group has entered
into excess of loss rensurance contracts which reduce its
exposure to large claims The Group's retention 1s £5m per
claim (2014 £5m per claim, £5m-£10m layer 68% placed)

SME business 1s exposed to large individual property losses
and also to labilities ansing from employment and commercial
activities The Group has entered into reinsurance contracts
which provide protection against these habilities

Expenence shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
Insurance contracts, the smaller the relative vaniability about
the expected outcome will be In addition, a more diversified
portfolio 1s less likely to be affected by a change in any subset
of the portfolio The Group has developed its insurance
underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks
accepted and within each of these categories to achieve

a sufficiently large population of nsks to reduce the vanability
of the expected outcome

In addition to the reinsurance contract descnbed above,
the Group has also entered into a Loss Portfolio Transfer
Agreement resulting in reinsurance of 20% of its booked
reserves as at 31 December 2015 The Group also entered
Into a 20% Quota Share arrangement for 2016 to 2018
(each year treated separately) Whilst the primary driver

of these transactions was efficient capital management,
the contract also has the effect of reducing the Group's
exposure to general insurance concentration risk

The Group has histornic Quota Share and Excess of Loss
reinsurance contracts, relating to some of the Motor business
which reduce the Group’s exposure to large claims

bk % Gk e n
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The table below sets out the Group s concentration of general insurance contract liabilities by type of contract

2015 2014
Gross Relnsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
£m £m £m £m £m im
Motor 1,067 (326) 741 1,074 {112) 962
Commercial 206 (44) 162 171 (13) 158
Household 72 {14) 58 56 - 56
Qther 8 (2) 6 6 - <]
1,353 (386) 967 1,307 (125) 1,182

The claims provisien 1S the estimated cost of outstanding
claims from expired nsks The provision Is calculated largely
from using the Group’s historic claims development data
How much the past claim development will reflect future
claims development will be impacted by the following factors

* Changes min actuarial processes and methodology

* Changes in nisk profile

« Changes in underwnting, rating and policy conditions

+ Changes inlegislation and regulation e g PPOs, Ministry
of Justice reforms, changes to the Ogden discount rate, etc

+ Changes in other external factors e g ‘claims farming /
accident management firms

It 1s therefore important that the impact of these 1items

on claims development s understood Whilst every effort
has been made to ensure the claims provision appropriately
allows for such changes, there remains uncertainty in the
eventual reserve outcome as a result This uncertainty can
change from year to year depending on the timing

and magnitude of these items

The Group has identified the major uncertainties surrounding
the future development of claims Where appropriate these
have been allowed for exphcitly An additional provision

1s also held within the claims provision to cover the uncertainty
around further fluctuations in claim development with a given
degree of confidence

The claims provision includes a specific allowance for claims
identified as having the potential to settle on a PPO basis
This allowance 15 based on the mean cost of claims derived
from a range of scenarnos based on the PPO settlement rate
for these claims If all of these claims settled as PPQs, the
reserves would deteriorate by an estimated £11m from the
posttion shown above

Uncertainty in clatms estimation 1s larger for ¢claims such as
PPOs for which annually indexed payments are made typically
over the lifetime of the injured party Claims reserves for PPOs
are held on a discounted basis and are sensitive to a change

in the discount rate The table below provides a sensitivity
analysis of the potential impact of a change in a single factor
with all ather assumptions left unchanged Cther potentiad risks
beyond the ones described in the table could have an additional
financial impact on the Group

Increase/(decroase) in
Unallocated divisible surplus

Increase/(decrease) In Profit
before tax

Impact of a 1% increase in the discount rate used to value PP0Os
Impact of a 1% reduction in the discount rate used to value PPQOs

2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
19 15 19 15

(29) {23} {29) (23)

The claims provision Is also sensitive to the number and

cost of large motor claims (defined as greater than £1m),
which have heen incurred but not reported and reserved

We would typically expect a number of large claims from
expired nisks to be identified in the future, either from beaing
newly reported or from existing claims increasing in magnitude
above the £1m threshold

The clams provision allows for £41m of late reported/reserved
large claims above £1m gross of remsurance Therefore, If for
example nine new claims were reported, each being £5m above
the £1m threshold, this would lead to a £4m deterioration in
the reserves, whereas seven new claims of this type would lead
to a £6m improvement
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The tables below reflect the cumulative incurred claims including both claims notified and incurred but not reported (*IBNR') for each
successive accident year at each Statement of Financial Posibion date, together with the cumulative payments to date The Group
aims to maintain appropriate reserves in order to protect against adverse future claims expenence and developments

Analysis of claims development - 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total

gross of reinsurance im £m £m £m im £m £m im £m £m £m

Initial estimate of gross provision 551 560 540 607 771 906 1,086 1,075 1,049 1,047

One year later 528 513 540 589 823 913 1,039 1,013 9a8

Two years later 505 489 500 589 839 899 1,015 997

Three years later 490 486 430 588 833 892 9380

Four years later a77 488 491 603 823 889

Five years later 478 492 487 599 827 "
Six years later 477 495 481 598 5
Seven years later 478 495 480 &
Etght years later 480 497 s
Nine years later 480 3
Current estimate of cumulative claims 480 497 480 598 827 889 990 997 998 1,047 7,803 ~
Cumulative payments to date {475) (469) (476) (589) (774} (843) (888} (791) (716) (471) (6,492)

Liability recognised in the Statement

of Financial Position for 2006 to 2015

accident years 5 28 4 9 53 46 102 206 282 576 1,311 o
Liability recogrused in the Statement g
of Financial Position in respect of prior 3
accident years 27 §
Claims handling provision 15

Gross general Insurance claims

liabilities as at 31 December 2015 1,353

Analysls of claims development - 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total o
net of reinsurance £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m E
Initial estimate of gross provision 513 506 507 584 762 897 1,061 1,065 1,037 911 §
One year later 475 483 483 578 803 897 1,022 993 931 §
Two years later 467 440 464 565 819 891 1,001 941 @
Three years later 451 441 457 562 805 886 962

Four years later 444 430 458 577 796 872

Five years later 442 431 454 570 796

Six years later 441 431 452 567

Seven years later 443 431 450

Eight years later 442 430

Nine years later 441

Current estimate of cumulative claims 441 430 450 567 796 872 962 941 931 911 7,301

Cumulative payments to date (439} (428) (449) (584) (773) (837) (888) (790} (715) (471) (6,354)

Liability recognised in the Statement

of Financial Position for 2006 to 2015

accident years 2 2 1 3 23 35 74 151 218 440 947
Liability recognised in the Statement

of Financial Position in respect of prior

accident years 7
Claims handling provision 13
Net general insurance claims liabilities

as at 31 December 2015 967
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(b) Financlal markets risk

As a result of the insurance, investment and retirement
products offered to policyholders the Group 1s exposed

to financial markets through the investment of premiums

and investment lump sums 1n various investment assets such
as equihies, gilts, corporate bonds and property Investing in
these assets exposes the Group to risk, collectiveiy described
as financial markets nsk Detalls of investment contract
liabihties and the fair value estimation of current investment
assets are disclosed in Notes 18 and 19 respectively

Financial markets risk 1s defined as the risk that arises from
adverse fluctuations or increased volatifity in asset values,
asset income or interest rates This includes credit spread
widening The Group manages these nsks through aligning

the investment strategy, asset allocation and performance
benchmarks with the Group’s nisk appetite and utihsing asset
habihty matching and stochastic modelling techniques These
actions arm to match the nsks ansing from the liab:hties under
the Group’s insurance and investment contracts with the rnisks
Inherent In Its assets and the capital available to ensure the
Group is able to meet policyholder commitments when they fall
due and to achieve a sufficient return for members

In addition to the actions summarised above the Group may
also look to use derivative instruments particularty to assist

in hedging policyholder guaranteed options and, where cost
effective, to transfer nsks it believes are either unrewarded

or which it believes can be better managed by a third party

For example, denivatives are used to reduce exposure to
fluctuations In interest rates, exchange rates and for efficient
portfolio management purposes The principal derivatives used
for this function are interest rate contracts (including interest
rate swaps and options), forward foreign exchange contracts
and equity dernivatives (Iindex futures and options) respectively
The Group does not hold derivatives for investment purposes,
they are held purely as a sk management technigue to manage
financial market rnsk exposures within its investment holdings
(see Note 17 on how these are used)

The Group is not exposed to financial markets nisk in respect
of assets held to cover unit linked habiities as these risks

are borne by the holders of the contracts concerned, except

to the extent that income from the fund based management
charges levied on these contracts varies directly with the value
of the underlying assets Such assets are, however, prudently
managed In order to meet policyholders' nsk and reward
expectations In addition, regulatory requirements prescribe
the type and quality of assets that can be held to support
these habihities

The key types of financial markets nisk to which the Group 1s
exposed are set out In more detall in the following paragraphs

i} Asset performance risk

Asset performance nsk 1s the nisk that the fair value or future |
cash flows of an asset or habiity will fluctuate because

of changes in market prices, ether than those ansing from

interest rate or currency nisks Those changes may be caused

by factors specific to the asset or hability or its 1ssuer or by

factors affecting all similar assets or labilities (1 e systemig)

There 18 a range of assets that the Group and Society can

invest in to achieve the desired levels of capital growth

and income performance The performance charactenstics

and the associated risks vary hy the different types of

investment assets, and the Group s primarily exposed to |
asset performance nsk arising from its investment in equities, |
property, gilts and corperate bonds |

Equity price risk

The Group 15 exposed to equity price nisk from daily fluctuations
in the market values of the equity porifolio These assets

are used to support contractual habilities arising from
investment and long-term insurance contracts For investment
and long-term hinked insurance contracts the price movements
are matched with corresponding movements in contractual
obligations For participating insurance contracts the aim 1s

to achieve growth in excess of the obligations For general
insurance contracts, equities are held to achieve an investment
return The rnisks from investing in equities are managed

by investing 1n a diverse portfolio of high quality securities
ensuring that holdings are diversified across industries and
concentrations in any one company or industry are imited

by parameters established by the Investment Committee

In addition, the Group may use dervatives to reduce the levei
of equity price nsk

Decreases in the market price of equities will negatively impact
the profits and capital of the Group The impacts of an increase
or decrease In equity prices by 20% can be found In the
summary of market risk sensitivities shown on page 143

Property price risk

The Groug 15 subject to property price risk due 1ts exposure

to the residential property market through its equity release
products, where sustained underperformance in UK residential
property prices could result in proceeds on sale being exceeded
by the mortgage debt at the date of redemption {(see Note 16
for disclosures relating to loans secured on residential property)

This nisk 1s managed through limits on the maximum loan

to value ratio and seeking to limit concentrations in particular
geographic areas |n addition, monitoring of actual experience
n house prices versus expected 1s undertaken
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Corporate bond price nsk (Credit spread risk)

The credit spread nsk represents the risk of adverse fluctuation
In the values of assets and liabilities due to changes in the level
of corporate bond credit spreads This represents the main
market nsk exposure of the Group's investments In investment
grade corporate bonds

A widening of corporate bond spreads over and above
risk-free yields will lead to a fall in the fair value of the Group’s
portfolio of corporate bonds and vice versa For investment
and long-term linked insurance contracts this movement

ts matched with cerresponding movements 1n contractual
liabilities, whereas in the general insurance business the
habilities are undiscounted and so unaffected in current value
by changes in credit spreads meaning that the change in asset
value will be reflected in profit The Group moniters credit
spread risk by regularly reviewing 1ts exposure to corporate
bonds by sector (e g financial or non-financial), credit rating
and duration and through its asset and liability matching tools

Widening in credit spreads, over and above risk-free yieids,

will cause bond vatues to decrease and negatively impact

the profits and capital of the Group/Society The impacts

of changes in credit spreads (widening by 100 basis points
(1%) and narrowing by 50 basis points (0 5%)} can be found

in the summary of market risk sensitivities shown on page 143

Ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate nisk is the nisk that the fair value or cash flows

of a financial instrument will vary as market rates of interest
vary Forthe Group, interest rate risk pnimarily arises from
holding assets and habilities, actual or notional, with different
maturity or repricing dates, creating exposure to change in the
level of interest rates, whether real or nominal It mainly anses
from the Group’s investments in debt and fixed-income
secunties, including gilts, and ther relative value placed

on insurance labilties

In addition, 1t also arises in certan preducts sold by the Group
and the features, including guarantees (e g surrender values,
annuity options and mimimum surrender and maturity values),
which can lead to the present value of claims being higher than
the value of the backing assets, when interest rates change

The Group manages interest rate nsk using Investment
performance benchmarks with appropnate durations and,
in some instances, using derivatives to achieve a closer
cash flow match

Exposure to interest rate risk 1s monitored using several
techmiques, including scenario testing, stress testing and asset
habihty duration control in the case of the latter, the Group
monitors interest rate nsk by calculating the mean duration
and term structure of exposure of the investment portfolio and
the assocated liabiities The mean duration 1s an indicator

of the sensitivity of the assets and habilities 10 changes in
current interest rates The mean duratien of the habilities 1s
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
from the contracts written using best estimates of mortalty
and voluntary terminations at an appropniate discount rate

The mean duration of the assets I1s calculated in a consistent
manner discounting the expected future cash flows from the
investments at an appropriate yield The Group makes use

of denvatives, in additron to physically held assets, to manage
the interest rate exposure resulting from the habiities These
derivatives are principally interest rate swaps and swaptions

Unuil 30 June 2015, the general insurance business managed
the risk posed by interest rate volatility on their corporate bond
portfolio, through an active use of gilt yield hedges, In the form
of contracts for difference

il) Foreign currency risk

The Group predominantly operates within the UK and 1s
therefore not sigmificantly exposed to currency exposures within
its normal trading activites However, the Group's investment
strategy and policies allow for a irited level of investment

In overseas markets, via both equities and fixed interest
securities The main currency exposures here are to the

Euro and US dollar

The risk to the Group 1s that the fair value or future cash flows
of an overseas investment asset will change as a result of
changes in foreign exchange rates Currency risk is managed by
the use of exposure imits and authorisation controls operated
with the Group's risk management framewoerk The investment
management agreement between the Group and the Group's
asset manager, Columbia Threadneedle Investments, specifies
the limits for holdings 1in overseas investment asset categories
Asset allocation hmits are set, which ensure that each fund has
an appropriate mix of assets and 15 not gver or under exposed
1o a particular overseas asset category or specific investment
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4 Risk management and control (continued)

The table below summarnses the Group's exposure, after hedging, to foreign currency exchange risk in sterling

2015 2014

Euro  US Doliar Yen Other Total Eure Us Dollar Yen Other Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m im £m
Dernvatives (74) (97} - (18) (189) (58) (75) - (14) (147)
Equity secunties 164 221 54 88 527 109 294 62 76 541
Debt secunties 26 73 - - 99 29 46 - - 75
Cash and cash equivalents 9 2 - - 11 18 11 — - 29
125 199 54 70 448 98 276 62 62 498

A strengthening of the value of sterling against the foreign
currency {(increase In exchange rates), in which the investment
asset 1s denominated, will lead to a devaluation of the asset
value and any associated income flows A weakening of the
value of sterling against the foreign currency will have the
reverse impact

The sensitivity of investment assets to a 10% increase/
decrease in Euro and US Dollar exchange rates, net of
dernivatives, ts £13m (2014 £10m) and £20m (2014 £28m)
respectively In determining the percentage rates to use

In this sensitivity analysis the movements in actual market
rates of Euroc and US Dollars duning 2015 were taken into
account The above table incorporates all material currency
risk to Profit before tax Therefore, a 10% increase/decrease
across all currencies could impact Profit before tax

by up to £45m (2014 £50m)

Some foreign debt secunties are denominated in sterling
s0 bear no direct currency rnsk and have not been included
within the above table

iv) Investment concentration

Investment concentration nsk arises through exposure

to particular asset types, geographical markets, industry
sectors, groups of business undertakings or similar activities
The Group may suffer losses in the investment portfolio

as a result of over exposure to particular sectors engaged

in similar activities or similar economic features that would

cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly
affected by changes in economic, political and other conditions

The Group's trading activities are UK-based and associated
insurance and investment contract liabilities are impacted

by the UK marketplace and hence there i1s a high concentration
in corresponding matching UK investment assets

The Group invests in a portfohio of assets and seeks

to maximise portfolic expected return for a given amount

of portfolio risk, or equivalently mimmse nsk for a given

level of expected return, by carefully choosing the proportions
of various assets The Investment Commitiee sets the Group's
Investment strategy and recommends to the Board the

policy and imits required Responsibility for implementation

1s delegated to the Chief Investment Officer, with day to

day investment activities being undertaken by the Group's
investment manager, Columbia Threadneedle Investments

The tnvestment management agreement between the Group
and Columbia Threadneed!le Investments specifies the imits
for holdings In certain asset categories Asset allocation and
perfarmance henchmarks are set, which ensure that each fund
has an appropnate mix of assets and 1s not over or under
exposed to a particular asset category or specific investment
The Funds Management Group monitors the actual asset
allocation and performance agatnst benchmarks with oversight
provided by Group ALCO and the Investment Committee

Eurozone exposure
The table betow shows the Group’s exposure by country
of incorporation of the counterparty at 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Mon Non

Soverelgn  Soverelgn Tota) Soveretgn Sovereign Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

ttaly - 24 24 - 17 17
Portugal - - - - i 1
Spain - 90 90 - 102 102
Other Eurpzone 53 1,379 1,432 38 1,476 1,514
Total 53 1,493 1,546 38 1,596 1,634

The Group has no exposure to either Greece or Cyprus Non-sovereign exposwre includes £84m (2014 £96m) of subordinated debt
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4 Risk management and control (continued)
Summary of market risk sensitivities

The table below sets out the impact on long-term contract habilities (both investment and insurance contracts), the Unallocated
divisible surplus and Profit before tax for movements in sectors of the market that the Group 1s invested in, net of derivatives

2015 2014

impact Impact

on gross on gross

long term long term

Impact insurance Impact Insurance

on the and on the and

Impact on  Unsllocated Invastment Impact an Unallocated investment

Profit before divisible contract Profit before divisible contract

tax surplus liabilities tax surplus liabilities

Sensitivity analysis to movements in key market sectors im £m im £m £m £m
Equity values fall by 20% (27 (21) (626) (42) (31) (657)
Equity values increase by 20% 54 43 629 51 39 560
Property values fall by 12 5% (16) {15) (25) {16) (15) (18)
Property values Increase by 12 5% 15 14 28 18 15 18
Credit spreads fall by 50bps 41 40 65 57 53 69
Credit spreads increase by 100bps {72) {71} (118) (204} (986) {124}
Fixed interest yields fal! by 50bps 1 2 450 (22) 19 470
Fixed interest yields increase by 100bps - (2) (749) 40 35 (781)

In determining the percentage rates to use in the sensitivity
analysis reference has been made to those used for internal
reporting within the Group

For fixed interest yield sensitvities there has been a significant
amount of hedge rebalancing since 2014 resulting in the
averall reduction in sensitivities to Profit before tax and the
Unallocated divisible surplus reported in 2015

Asset values and, where appropriate, asset shares are
adjusted to reflect the change in each sensitivity Future policy
related habiities are recalculated using these revised values
and, where appropriate, economic scenanos generated

by an asset model calibrated to the revised risk-free rate

{c) Credit counterparty risk

Credit counterparty risk {credit nsk) s defined as the risk

of loss if another party fails to perform its obligations or fails
to perform them in a timely fashion Exposure to credit nsk
may arise In ¢connection with a single transaction or an
aggregation of transactions (not necessarily the same type)
with a single counterparty

The Group encounters credit counterparty nsk from different
sources, firstly within the business activities associated with

its insurance, investment and retirement products and secondly
in the financial assets held in the Group's iInvestment portfolio

Credit counterparty risk 1s managed wia a Group policy

and rnisk hmits covering aspects such as total exposure,

and concentration Group counterparty exposures are monitored
by Group ALCO, with ultimate oversight of nsk being undertaken
by the Risk Committee

The principai credt counterparty nsks within the Group are
as follows

Insurance sales counterparties

In the hfe business and general insurance broker division,
sales are conducted by and premiums are collected

via intermediaries (primarnly IFAs and brokers) and there

1s a credit risk exposure to these counterparties on the
outstanding premums from the contracts that have been
written through these sales channels The creditworthiness
of the intermediaries 15 assessed and credit mits are

used to manage any potential concentration nsk associated
with individual counterparties

In addition, general insurance policyholders who purchase
motor and home insurance products directly from LV= have
the option to take out premium finance, provided they meet
the qualifying criteria, and there 1s an exposure to outstanding
premiums due from these policyholders The creditworthiness
1S assessed at the time of sale and outstanding premiums
are menitored and coltected via a dedicated budget

accounts function

Recelvables due from policyholders, agents and brokers are
shown 1n the credit nsk exposure table on the foliowmng page
under nsurance recelivables The concentrations of credt nsk
with respect to insurance recewvables are hmited due to the size
and spread of the Group’s trading base No further credit risk
provision Is therefore required in excess of the normal provision
for doubtful recevables
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4 Risk management and control (continued)
Insurance claim recoveries counterparties

Credit exposures also arise within general insurance motor
and home claims, where claims expense recoveries are due
from other insurers’ policyholders who are at fault for any
repairs expense suffered by the Group's policyholders
This also occurs in reverse with habilities that the Group
owes other insurers Where the net position with another
general insurer results 1n menies being due to the Group,
a credit exposure anses These exposures are managed
via a dedicated recovenes team and an industry wide
compensation scheme 15 1n place to provide cover for
default by an individual insurer

Reinsurance counterparties

Once insurance gontracts have been written, both the

life and general tnsurance businesses use reinsurance
agreements to transfer an element of potential insurance
rsk exposure from contract habilities This does not,
however, discharge the Group's lability as primary insurer
If a reinsurer fails to pay a reinsurance claim, the Group
remamns lable for the payment to the policyholder

To manage this exposure the creditworthiness of reinsurers
15 considered by reviewing therr financial strength prior to
finalisation of any contract, which 1s then regularly reviewed
Group exposures are regularly monitored by Group ALCO

Equity release mortgage counterparties

The retirement business provides an equity release product
and hence this business 1s exposed to credit nsk ansing from
mortgage loans provided This nsk 1s managed by using the
residential property as security against the loan, assessment
of the nsk and maintaining a low koan to value ratio Note 16
provides further disclosure on loans secured on residential
property and provisions for ‘No Negative Equity Guarantees’
There have been no negative equity claims in the past

in relation to the Loans secured on residential properties

Commercial mortgage lending

The retirement business aiso provides commercial
mortgage lending, which is exposed to credit risk arsing
from the loans provided This nsk s managed by using

the property as secunty against the loan The Group

has appointed AgFe as its mandated originator and asset
manager for these loans, using therr considerable expertise
to source and underwrite loan prospects

Investment counterparties

The principal other source of credit nsk anses from the assets
held in the investment portfolio The nsk is that the investment
counterparty enters financial difficulties and the fair value

of the asset diminishes or the income stream (e g dividends
or interest payments) 1s not paid, alternatively the counterparty
becomes insolvent and the value of the asset 1s wnitten off

The investment portfolio contains a range of assets, mncluding
equities, corporate bonds and other fixed income secunties
and cash deposits The credit counterparty rnisk policy
stipulates approved counterparties, permitted investments
and geographical territories, as well as detalling specific
asset class exposure imits These are implemented within
the investment management agreement with Columbia
Threadneedle Investments The policy and agreements also
require that asset holdings are within regulatory imits that
restrict excessive concentrations with individual counterparties
or with particular asset classes

In addition, the Group uses derivatives to transfer elements

of financial markets risk exposures Where possible, significant
counterparty exposures are mitigated by the use of collateral
For overthe-counter derivative transactions undertaken

by the Group, collateral 1s receved from the counterparty

The collateral can be sold or re-pledged by the Group and

1S repayable If the contract terminates or the contract's far
value decreases Details of collateral received and pledged

15 included within the offsetting disclosure on page 146

The fair value of the derivative 1s matched by collateral received
from the counterparty, which increases or reduces in line with
the contract’s fair value Subject to collateral value disputes,
which we seek to resolve with minimum delay, the extent

of the derivative credit nsk exposure 1s ltmited to the fair value
movement on a day to day basis which i1s below the minimum
transfer amounts within the Credit Support Annex

For corporate bond holdings, exposures are also monitored

by industry sector and by credit rating In order to minimise

1ts exposure to credit sk the Group invests prmarily in higher
graded assets, rated BBB and above
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4 Risk management and control (continued}

The tables below show the credit profile of the Group's assets The credit nsk profile of the Society i1s materially consistent with that
of the Group

PR T,

AAA AA A BBEB  Below 888 Not rated Total
Credit risk exposure 2015 £m £m £m £m £m im £m
Debt and other fixed income securities 739 2,856 1,379 1,401 59 22 6,456 '
Loans secured on residential property - - - - - 593 693
Deposits with credit institutions - - 6 - - - 6
Loans secured on commercial property - ~- - - - 113 113
Short-term depostts - 273 529 182 - - 984
Cash and bank balances - 175 25 2 - - 202
Insurance recewvables - 16 2 - - 243 261
Loans and other receivables - - - - - 71 71 2
Derivative assets - - - - - 97 97 ;::
739 3,320 1,941 1,585 59 1,139 8,783 o
Rensurance assets é’
- non-linked - 710 91 - - 9 810 8
- linked - 80 - - - - 80
739 4,110 2,032 1,585 59 1,148 9,673
AAA AA A EBE  Below BBB Not rated Total
Credit risk exposure 2014 £m £m im £m £m £m £m
Debt and other fixed income secunties 998 2,997 1,883 1,348 114 22 7,372 S
Loans secured on residential property - - - - - 684 684 g
Other financial assets held at FYTPL - - - - - 2 2 §
Loans secured on commercial property - - - - - 25 25 ®
Short-term deposits - 143 357 94 23 20 637
Cash and bank balances - 105 46 2 - - 153
Insurance receivables - 15 2 - - 203 220
Loans and other receivables - - 35 - - 83 118
Derivative assets - - - - - 131 131
998 3,260 2,333 1,444 137 1,170 9,342 g
Reinsurance assets z
— non-linked - 321 106 1 - 5 433 g
— linked - 70 - ~ 70 z

998 3.651 2,439 1,445 137 1,175 9,845
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4 Risk management and control (continued)
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and habiities are offset in the Statement

of Financial Position when the Group intends to apply a current
tegally enforceable right to offset Master netung arrangements
and collateral are utihsed by the Group to minimise credit

nsk exposure

The following financial assets and lhabiiies are subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements

An analysis 1s included of netting arrangements which meet the
offsetting criteria within IAS 32 and are set off in the Statement

of Financial Position and those which do not meet the cnitenia

Related amounts not set off in the
Statemant of Financlal Pesttion

Gross amounts

of gnised Net of
financtal financial assets
Habilitios sat off presented in
Gross amounts  in the Statement the Statement
of recognlsed of Fi tal of Fi {ar Financial Collateraf
financial assets Position Position Instruments received Net amount
As at 31 December 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Denvative financial assets 97 - 97 - (94) 3
Total 97 - 97 - (94) 3
Related amounts not set off In the
Statament of Financlal Position
Gross Neat
of gnised of fl ial
financial ossets llabllities
Gross amounts sel off in the presented In
of recognised Statement the Statement
financial of Financial of Financial Flnancial Collateral
Ilabilitios Positlon Posltion Instrumants plodged Net amount
im £m £m im £m £m
Financial ltabilities
Derivative financial habihities 144 - 144 - (144) -
Bank overdrafts 56 (29) 27 - - 27
Total 200 {29) 171 — (144) 27
Retated amounts not set off in the
Statement of Financial Posiuion
Gross amounts
of recognised Net amounts of
financial llabilities financizl assets
Gross amounts set off in the presented in the
of recogmised Statement of Statement of Financial Collateral
financial agsets  Financial Pesiton  Financial Position Instruments received Net amount
As at 31 December 2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Dernvative financial assets 131 - 131 (7} (116) 8
Total 131 - 131 (M) (116} 8
Related amounts not set off 1n the
Statement of Financial Position
Gross amounts
of recogrused Net amounts of
financial assets financial habilities
Gross amounts set off in the presented in the
of recognised Statement of Statement of Financlal Collateral
financial labiities  Financial Position  Financial Pasition tnstruments pledged Net amount
fm £m £m im £m £m
Financial habilities
Derwvative financial iabilities 180 - 160 {7} (149) 4
Bank overdrafts 52 (35) 17 — - 17
Total 212 (35) 177 (7) (149) 21
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4 Risk management and control (continued)
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilitles (continued)
In accordance with IFRS 7 the collateral reported in the table
above is imited to the amount reported in the Statement

of Financial Position for the associated financial instrument

Total collateral held by the Group in relation to denvative financial
assets 15 entirely cash collateral and totals £96m (2014
£116m) No collateral received from the counterparty has

been sold or repledged (2014 £nil)

Total collateral pledged by the Group 1s £146m (2014 £150m)
and 1s split between corporate bonds pledged in relation to cash
flow swaps £144m {2014 £112m), cash collateral pad of £2m
{2014 £35m} and future margin of cash of £nil (2014 £3m)

Collateral posted to LV= by the counterparty to a derivative
contract which Is valued as being ‘inthe-money’ can be drawn
upon following certain events of default as defined in the
relevant International Swaps and Dervatives Association
{ISDA) agreement

This includes failure by the counterparty to comply with

or perform any agreement or obligation defined in the ISDA
or Credit Support Annex If such failure 1s not remedied within
30 days after notice of such failure ts given Bankrupteoy

of the counterparty to a trade could also result in collateral
posted being drawn upon to mitigate any financial exposure
to the Group

Impairment

The Group reviews the carrying value of its financial assets

held at amortised cost at each Statement of Financial Position
date If the carrying value of a financial asset 1s impaired,

the carrying value 15 reduced through a charge to the Statement
of Comprehensive income As at 31 December 2015 £1m
(2014 £1m) was impaired which primanly relates to receiwvables
where there 15 no realistic prospect of recovery

The table below provides information regarding the maximum
credit risk exposure to financial assets held at amortised cost,
together with the extent to which they are due, overdue and
impaired The table also illustrates the agemng of financial
assets that are overdue but not impaired

Total past Nesither

31 to 61 to dus bout fast due past due
Age analysis of assets past <30 days 60 days 90 days >90days  notimpalred and Impaired  nor impalred Total
due but not impaired 2015 £m £m m £m £m £m £m £m
Loans and other receivabies - - 1 - 1 - 76 77
Insurance receivables 5 2 - - 7 1 253 261
5 2 1 - 8 1 329 338

Total past due Nelther

31t B1to but Past due past due
Age analysis of assets past <30 days 60 days 90 days >90days notmpared andmpalred  nor impaired Total
due but not impaired 2014 im Em £m £m £m £m Lm £m
Loans and other recelvables - - - 1 1 - 117 118
Insurance receivables 5 1 - — 3] 1 213 220
5 1 - 1 7 1 330 338

(d) Liquidity risk

Liguidity nsk i1s the nsk that the Group cannot make payments
as they become due because there are insufficient assets

in cash form

The Group encounters potential iquidity nsk exposures from
its different business activities It principally anses from its
insurance and investment contracts and the timing of the
associated policyholder commitments In the general insurance
business there i1s the potential for increased demand for cash,
ahove normal claims expense patterns, for example to meet
adverse UK weather events In the Iife business tncreased
demands for cash can also arnse from events such as higher
instances of death/sickness claims or mass surrenders/lapses
of policies |n addition, the Group uses derivatives to transfer
potential exposures on financial markets risks and certain
derivative contracts, for example, interest rate swaps can
result in additional cotlateral calls

Liquidity 1s maintained at a prudent level, with a buffer

to cover contingenctes including the provision of temporary
hguidity to subsidiary companes A Group Liguichty Risk

Policy and associated standards have been set to maintain
sufficient hquid assets At Group there is a hquidity nsk appetite
statement which requires that sufficient liquid resources are
mamtained to cover net cash outflows both on a business as
usual basis and under stressed conditions This 15 captured

1n a hquidity cover ratio and 1s monitored by the Group ALCO

" .
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4 Risk management and control (continued)
The nsk exposure 1s managed using several methods
and techniques, which include

Maintaining forecasts of cash requirements and adjusting
investment management strategies as appropriate to meet
these requirements, both in the short and long term,

Holding sufficient assets in investments which are readily
marketable in a suffictently short timeframe to be able
to settle liabihties as these fall due,

Forecasung additional cash demands under stressed
conditions and management actions to be taken to liquidate
sufficient assets to meet the increased demands, and

Appropriate matching of the maturities of assets

and habihties The Group undertakes asset and lhability
management to ensure that the duration of liabilittes

15 matched by assets

The matunty of the financial and reinsurance assets
of the Group has been disclosed within the individual notes
to the financial statements

The table below summarises the maturnity profile of the
financial tabilities, insurance and investment contract habilities
and the non-participating value of in-force business of the
Group The results are based on the remaining undiscounted
contractual obligations and as such will not tie Into the
balances disciosed within the Statement of Financial Position,
with the exception of non-unit linked long-term insurance
contracts, participating investment contracts and the
non-participating value of in-force business, for these items
the maturity profiles are determined based on the estimated
timing of the discounted net cash flows

For non-participating investment contract liabihties, a matunty
analysis based on the earliest contractual repayment date
would present all the habilities as due on the earliest penod

of the table (within one year) as these opttons can be exercised
immediately by the policyholder

Grou

Matul:lty profile of financial, insurance Within 1 year 13 years 3 5years  Qver B years Unit linked Total
and Investment contract liabilities 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Participating insurance contract habilities 37 615 555 2,431 - 3,972
Participating investment contract habilities 27 26 40 461 - 854
Non-participating value of in-force business {21) (38) {31) {219) {12) {321)
Non-participating insurance contract habihties 224 370 410 2,790 5 3,799
General insurance claims habilities 598 506 135 114 - 1,353
Non-participating investment contract labiities - - - - 1,862 1,862
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 220 - - - - 220
Financial habilities

— Denvative financial instruments - - - 144 - 144
- Subordinated habilities - - - 360 - 360
- Other financial kabilities 2 - - 94 - 96
Insurance payables 286 - - - - 286
Trade and other payables 262 2 3 24 291

1,969 1,481 1,112 6,199 1,855 12,616

Grou

Matu?gty profile of financial, insurance within 1 year 13 years 3 5years  Over 5 years unit hnked Total

and investment contract hablities 2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m

Participating insurance contract lkabilities 347 620 514 2,381 - 3,862
Participating investment contract habihties 26 27 39 460 - 552
Non-participating value of in-force business {22) (26) (23) {253) (14) {338)
Non-participating insurance contract habiities 278 380 372 2,823 5 3,858
General insurance claims habilities 817 484 123 83 - 1,307

Non-participating investment contract liabilities - - - - 1,554 1,554
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 622 - - - - 622
Financial labilities

- Dernwvative financial instruments 38 - - 122 - 160
- Subordinated hatnlities - - - 360 - 360
— Other finanoal habilities 1 - - 115 - 1186
Insurance payables 38 - - . - 38
Trade and other payables 202 25 1 16 244

2,147 1,510 1,026 6,107 1,545 12,335
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4 Risk management and control {(continued) “*’*
For investment and fong-term linked insurance contracts (unit linked) the Group matches all the assets on which the unit prices ]
are based with assets in the portfolioc The Group 1s responsibie for ensuring there 1s sufficient hquidity within the asset portfolio :
to enable habilities to unit inked policyholders to be met as they fall due -
Soctety 3
Maturity profile of financial, Insurance Within 1 year 13 years 3 Syears Over5 years Unit linked Tetal N
and investment contract liabilities 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m ‘
Participating insurance contract habilities 3711 615 555 2,431 - 3,972 .
Participating investment contract labilities 27 26 40 461 - 554
Non-participating value of in-force business (21} {38) {31} {219) 12) (321}
Non-participating insurance contract habilities 224 367 408 2,780 5 3,784
Non-participating investment contract liabilities - - - - 1,862 1,862 ‘
Financial habitities %’
- Dervative financial instruments - - - 144 - 144 z
- Subordinated habilities - - - 350 - 350 Z
— Other financial habihties 1 - - 94 - 95 2
Insurance payables 29 -~ - - - 29 Ed
Trade and other payables 200 - - - - 200
831 970 972 6,041 1,855 10,669
Society
Maturtty profile of financial, msurance within 1 year 13 years 3 5years  Over Syears Uit inked Total e
and mvestment contract labilities 2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m §
Participating insurance contract habilities 347 620 514 2,381 - 3,862 o
Participating investment contract habilittes 26 27 39 460 - 552 E
Non-participating value of in-force business (22) (26) {23) (253) {14} (338)
MNon-participating insurance contract habilities 276 377 370 2,812 5 3,840
Non-participating investment contract iabihties - - - - 1,554 1,554
Financial habilities
— Dernvative financial instruments 1 - - 122 - 123
— Subgordinated habihties - - - 350 - 350 o
— Other financial liabiities - - - 144 - 144 ?:,
Insurance payables 23 - - - - 23 8
Trade and other payables 154 — - - 154 ?

805 998 900 6,016 1,545 10,264
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4 Risk management and control {(continued)

(e} Operational risk

Operational nsk I1s defined as the potential for loss
resulting from inadequate or falled internal processes,
people and systems or from external events |t 1s inherent
to every part of the business and covers a wide spectrum
of 1Issues Senior management are responsible for ensuring
that the material operational risks as relevant to thew area
of responsibilities are identified, assessed and managed
using the approach as outlined in the Group’s Enterprise
Risk Management Framework A formal attestation process
provides assurance about the effectiveness of the overall
control environment and reports on any material exceptions

Operational rnisk 1s unrewarded and 1s therefore inherently
unattractive Conseguently, the Group seeks to minimise
exposure to operational risk as far as 1t 1s cost-effective
to do so The Group will always seek to uphold its brand
image as ‘Britain’s best loved insurer’ with customers,
employees and other external parties and the Group

has no appetite whatsoever for regulatory weaknesses
or faiings that lead to censure actions

The Group uses a number of categories under which
operational nsk and its management can be considered
and these are outlined n the following paragraphs

Crime
The Group 1s potentially exposed to the rnisk of internal fraud,
claims-related fraud and external fraud by third parties

The risk of internal fraud 1s managed through a number

of controls including background checks on employees prior
to recruitment, segregation of duties and effective system
access controls with regular review of access nghts The
Group has arrangements in place by which empioyees may,
in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties,
together with arrangements for the proportionate and
independent investigation of such matters Claims-related
fraud 1s managed by processes designed to fully validate
claims and ensure that only genuine claims are settled
Systematic anti-fraud monitoring techniques are deployed
to detect external fraud activity

Financlal processes

The Group needs to ensure that it has robust processes
governing financial reporting, planning and budgeting, asset
and expense management, trading and Investment activity,
treasury, pricing and transaction processing The nsk is
managed through a number of controls which include effective
budgetary control and reconciliation processes, segregation
of duties, defined authority mits and effective system access
controls with regular review of access rnights

Change management

The Group uses robust project management disciplines to
prevent mismanagement of change programmes which would
otherwise impact business dehvery or the control environment

Business Interruption

The Group 1s potentially exposed to disruption of business
activities ansing from system and technology outages and
loss of access to bulldings or normal business environment
The nisk 1s contrelied by the maintenance and regular testing
of business recovery plans, by effective management of the
physical security of office buildings and availability of back-up
systems and of contingency sites

Legal and regulatory

The Group needs to ensure it complies with its legal and
contractual obligations and could potentially be exposed

to losses ansing from unenforceable or unfair contracts

or to costs of litigation from dissatisfied customers

Legal and Compliance departments help to ensure the
monitoring of emerging legislative/regulatory change and
compliance with existing laws/regulations The Group takes
steps to ensure that contract terms apglicable to customers
and third party suppliers are carefully drafted and are subject
to a comprehensive sign-off procedure, including

sign-off by legal experts

IT

Naturaily, the Group 1s rehant on the integnty and performance
of its IT systems to underpin its operational activities

The Group protects itself from under-performance/failure

of systems and from ohsclescence or under-dehvery of systems
by robust system testng and capacity monitering, regular review
of systems capability versus business requirements and by
maintenance and regular testing of business recovery plans

Employees

The Group needs to comply with employment, health and safety
laws or agreements and so protect itself from htigation or claims
ansmg from employment practices It also needs to ensure that
it has adequate numbers of fit-for-purpose employees to support
s operational activities and the products and services that

it provides to customers The Group has detailled HR procedures,
accompanted by the provision of relevant training to staff to
ensure compliance with laws/agreements Employees are
subject to background checks prior to recrutment and there

are Job descriptions and annual performance reviews far all
staff There i1s regular review of attntion rates across the
business and there are takeover procedures and succession
planning for senior management roles
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4 Risk management and control {continued)
Sourcing/outsourcing

The Group needs to ensure that it selects wisely when
appointing third parties for the delivery of specific services
and supplies To ensure that the chosen supplers are fit-for-
purpose and can provide the service that both the Group and
1Its customers would reasonably expect, there are due diligence
checks on potential suppliers and resultant contracts are
subject to a comprehensive review and sign-off procedure,
inctuding sign-off by legal experts Detailed service level
agreements are drawn up to clearly specify the expectations
for the standard of service that the Group would expect

to receive and there s periodic review of the business
continuty arrangements of the third party to check on its
ability/speed to be able to continue to provide the desired
service capabiiity in the event of business interruption

Products and markets

The Group needs to ensure that it designs, prices and sells
products that meet clear customer needs and are sold to the
right target group, are priced fairly whilst allowing margin for
profit and are supported by product literature that 1s fair, clear
and not misleading and by systems that can faithfully handle
the entire life cycle of the product, from new business sale
right through to claim/maturity/termination

Design of new products and changes to existing products

are subject to robust new product approvals and pricing
procedures Product iterature 1s subject to a comprehensive
Iterature sign-off procedure, including sign-off by legal experts
There 15 also a timely post-implementation review process to
check that the target market 1s being reached Applications for
Insurance are subject, as appropriate, to detatled underwriting
guideltnes and underwnters have authonty imits All resultant
business I1s captured on systems that are subject to systems
controls and quality checking

There 1s client/pohicy venfication at outset and at various
transactional points through to claim/maturity stage to protect
against fraudulent activity There 1s considerable complance
monitoring undertaken in this area to ensure that we are
conduct nsk comphiant

Customers

To ensure that we meet our legal, regulatery and business
obligations to individual and groups of customers, we need

to ensure that there 15 adequate disclosure of information

to customers both at the outset and duning the hifetime of their
policy We also take careful steps to ensure that we maintatn
appropnate and secure records and copies of documentation
and that records are only retained for the necessary duration

There 1s considerable training of appropriate customer-facing
staff to mimimise any exposure to mis-selling and we ensure
that we clearly segregate clients’ money from the Group’s
money To ensure we deal with 1ssues In a courteous, timely
and fair manner we have detalled complaints handihng
procedures and we undertake complaints analysis to spot any
patterns of weakness and so improve aspects of our processes
and procedures as and where necessary There i1s considerable
comphance monitering undertaken in this area to ensure that
we are conduct risk comphant

Informaticn security

Adequate secunty of information i1s vital and the Group takes
considerable steps to minimise exposure to corruption

or erasure of information, to prevent abuse of systems
access nights and to protect against the loss or inappropriate
disclosure of data The Group has stringent information security
requirements supported by effective system access controls
with regular review of access nghts for leavers/joiners

There I1s also the provision of relevant training to staff to
ensure that all are aware of the Group’s expectations and
requirements in this subject area

For more detail on the strategic and emerging risks the Group
1s facing see page 52 within the separate Risk management
section on pages 46 to 57
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Performance
The notes included within this section focus on the performance and results of the Group and Society Information on the income
generated, benefits and claims paid, expenditure incurred and mutual bonus declared are presented here

5 Net earned premiums

Accounting for net earned premiums

Long-term insurance and participating investment contracts

Regular premiums on long-term insurance and participating investment contracts are recogrised as income when due for payment
For single premium business, recognition occurs on the date from which the policy 1s effective Remsurance premiums payabie are
accounted for when due for payment

General insurance contracts

General insurance premiums written reflect business coming into force during the year Earned premium 1s written premium
adjusted for unearned premium Unearned premium Is that proportron of a premium written In a year that relates to periods
of nsk after the Statement of Financial Position date Unearned premiums are calculated on a time apportionment basis
The proportion attributable to subsequent periods 1s deferred as a provision for unearned premiums

Non-participating investment contracts

Premiums and claims relating to non-participating investment contracts are not recognmised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income but are recorded as contrbutions to and deductions from the nen-participating investment contract liabilities recorded
In the Statement of Financial Position

Group Soclety

2015 2014 2015 2014
Gross earned premiums £m £m £m £m
Long-term insurance and Investment contracts — participating business
Investments and savings — single premium 3 153 379 153
Pensions and annuities — single premium 6 14 6 14
Investments and savings — regular premium 27 31 27 31
Pensions and annuities — regular premium 11 12 11 12
Long-term insurance contracts — non-participating business
Pensions and annuities — single premium a7s 461 375 461
Life and health protection - regular premium 181 165 180 164
Long-term linked insurance contracts
Life and health protection — regular premium 9 10 9 10
General iInsurance contracts
Motor 977 912 - -
Commercial 245 227 - -
Household 168 176 - -
Other 86 79 - -
Change in unearned premiums provision {5€) 24 - -
Gross earned premiums 2,408 2,264 987 845
Premiums ceded to reinsurers
Long-term insurance premiums (3.00) (88) {99) (88)
General insurance business (283) {36) - -
Change in unearned premiums provision {1) - - -

(384) (124) {99) (88)
Net earned premiums 2,024 2,140 888 757
Gross wnitten premiums for non-participating investment contracts which
are deposit accounted for and not included above (refer to Note 18) 515 393 515 393

All contracts are wnitten in the UK

In the latter part of 2015 the Group entered into a Loss Portfolio Transfer Agreement resuiting in reinsurance of 20% of its general

insurance business booked reserves as at 31 December 2015 This has had an impact of £242m on premiums ceded to reinsurers
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& New business premiums

Group Soclety

2015 2014 2015 2014
Gross new bhusiness premiums - long-term contracts £m £m £m £m
Long-term insurance and investment contracts — participating business
Investments and savings — single premium a79 153 379 153
Pensions and annuities — single premium 6 14 6 14
Investments and savings - regular premium 1 1 1 1
Long-term insurance contracts - non-particlpating business
Pensions and annuities — single premium 375 461 375 461
Life and health protection — regular premium ao 27 30 27
Long-term linked insurance contracts
Life and health protection - regular premium 5 4 5 4

796 660 796 660
Non-participating investment contracts
Pensions and annuities — single premium 497 382 497 382
Pensions and annuities — regular premium 9 11 9 11

1,302 1,053 1,302 1,053

Gross written premiums for non-participating investment contracts are deposit accounted for and not included within net
earned premiums {see Note 18)

Recurrent single premiumn rebates from the Department for Work and Pensions are included as new business single premiums

Pensions vested into annuity contracts during the year are included as new annuity single premium business at the annuity
purchase price

Where peniodic premiums are received other than annually, the penodic new business premiums are stated on an annualised basis

2015 2014
Group gross premiums earned ~ general Insurance business £m £m
Motor 929 958
Commercial 238 217
Household 170 164
Other 83 79

1,420 1,418

7 Fee and commission iIncome

~
Accounting for fee and commission income
Adviser fees earned from financial intermediary services and commussion income are taken to income when earned
This primarily comprises initial income recevable on services provided to chents dunng the year when policies have
gone on risk and renewal commission earned dunng the year as amounts fall due
Group Soclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Commission income 17 12 5 3

Adviser fees 1 1 - -
18 13 5 3
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8 Investment income

~

Accounting for investment income

Investment income includes dividends, interest from investments at fair value, interest on loans and recewables, interest

on foans secured on residential and commercial property Dividends are included on an ex-dividend basis Interest receivable
on loans and recelvables s calculated on an effective interest rate basis The effective interest rate i1s the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected Iife of the financial instrument or, when appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial hability

Group Society
2015 2014 2018 2014
£m £m £m £m
Income from investments at fair value through income
- Interest income 292 287 226 215
- Dvidend income 96 81 86 72
Interest on loans and recewvables 1 1 - 1
Interest on loans secured on residential property 11 8 10 6
Interest on loans secured on commercial property 1 - 1 -
Interest income from group undertakings - - 27 27
Dividend income from group undertakings - - 22 3
401 377 372 324
9 Net (losses)/gains on investments
N

Accounting for net {losses)/gains on Investments
Realised gains and losses
Realised gains and josses on investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and purchase price

Unrealised gains and losses

Unrealised gains and losses on investments represent the difference between the valuation of fair value assets at the Statement
of Financial Position date and their valuation at the last Statement of Financia! Position date or, where purchased dunng the year,
the purchase price An adjustment 1s made to unrealised gatns and losses for the prior year’s unrealised element included in the
current year's realised gains and losses

Group Soclety

2015 2014 2015 2014
£m im £m im

Investments at fair value through mcome
— Debt secunties {185) 438 (141) 436
— Equity secunties 68 264 64 220
— Denwvatives at farr value through income (27) 30 (24} 75
— Loans and mortgages {138) 100 (135) 91
Investments in group undertakings - - (11) -
{282) 832 (247) 822

Included within net (losses)/gains on investments are realised gams of £265m (2014 £173m) for the Group and realised gains
of £309m (2014 £165m) for the Society
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10 Other income

Group Soclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Interest Income 26 24 - -
Unit inked income 2 3 2 3
Qther income 11 7 1 2
39 34 3 5

11 Net benefits and claims

Accounting for net benefits and claims

Long-term insurance and participating investment contracts

Maturity claims and regular annuity payments are accounted for when due for payment Surrenders are accounted for on
the earlier of the date when paid or when the policy ceases to be included within the long-term insurance contract hability
Death claims and other claims are accounted for when the Group 1s notified The value of claims on participating contracts
includes bonuses paid or payable Claims values include related internal and external claims handling costs Reinsurance
recoveries are accounted for in the same period as the related claim

Genera! insurance contracts

Claims incurred comprise claims and related internal and external claims handling costs paid in the year and changes In the
provisions for outstanding claims, including provisions for claims incurred but not reported and related claims handling costs,
together with any other adjustments to clarms from previous years

The estimated cost of claims includes expenses to be incurred i settling claims and a deduction for the expected value
of recoveries However, It 1s likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the onginal liability established
Provisions are adjusted at the Statement of Financial Position date to represent an estimate of the expected outcome

Group Soclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m

Gross benefits and claims
Long-term insurance and participating Investment contracts
Benefits and claims paid 797 663 794 661
Change m the provision for claims (1) 3 {1) 3
General insurance contracts
Claims paid 972 1,051 - -
Change in the provision for claims 46 (51) - -

1,814 1,666 793 664
Claims ceded to reinsurers
Long-term insurance and participating investment contracts
Benefits and claims paid (73) (74) (73) (74}
General insurance contracts
Claims paid (4) (13) - -
Change In the provision for claims {261) 5 - —

(338) (82) (73) (74)

1,476 1,584 720 590
Net benefits and claims for non-participating investment contracts which
are deposit accounted for and not included above (refer to Note 18) 243 168 243 168

In the latter part of 2015 the Group entered Into a Loss Portfohio Transfer Agreement resulting in reinsurance of 20% of its general
insurance booked reserves as at 31 December 2015 This has had an impact of £242m on the Movement In reinsurers’ share
of claims habilities
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12 Finance costs

Group Seclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Interest expense on subordinated labilities (see Note 21) 23 23 23 23
Other interest expense 1 1 - 1
24 24 23 24
13 Other operating and administrative expenses
o

Accounting for other operating and administrative expenses

Incurred In writing new contracts In the general insurance business, where the benefit of these costs will be recognised
in future accounting penods the costs are deferred

Other operating and administrative expenses are accounted for as incurred Acquisition costs relate to the costs of acquiring
new business during the financiat year These include all commission and incentive payments to sales staff and third parties

Group Socisty
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Commussion paid on acquisition of business 195 182 51 41
Movement in deferred acquisition costs (2) 1 - -
Amoertisation and impairment of intangible assets 5 3 - -
Depreciation on property and equipment [ 4 3 1
investment management expenses and charges 22 21 23 25
Auditors' remuneration 3 1 2 1
Employee benefits expense (see Note 41) 270 248 270 248
Internal staff costs capitalised as attributable costs of IT assets {6} (4) - -
Management charge allocated to group undertakings - - (243) (217)
Rent, rates and other facilities expense 19 21 17 15
Marketing and advertising 35 38 i3 16
Other staff costs 31 28 8 18
IT costs 39 39 35 19
Fees 63 60 25 19
Other expenses i3 12 5 5
Claims handling cost recognised in Gross benefits and claims (70) (70) (5) (6}
623 584 204 185
Included within rent, rates and other facilities expense are operating lease rentals of £5m (2014 £6m)
14 Auditors’ remuneration
2015 2014
£'000 £ 000
Audit of Society 560 500
Fees payable to the Society's auditors and 1ts associates for other services
— Audit of subsidianes 493 414
— Audit-related assurance services 933 272
— Tax advisory services 25 41
— Services relating to corporate finance transactions not covered above - 86
— Other non-audit services not covered above 722 132
2,733 1,445

15 Mutual bonus
The Board declared a mutua!l bonus of £27m (2014 £24m) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015
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Financial assets and liabilities
e

This section presents information relating to the financial assets and habiities (excluding insurance contract-related assets
and habilities which are disclosed in Note 23) held by the Society and Group These financial assets and habilities are held
at either fair value or amortised cost as defined by the Group’s accounting policies

16 Financial assets — Fair value through income

Accounting for financlal assets and liabllities at fair value
through income

Financial assets at fair value through income has two

sub categories

— Financial assets heid for trading, and

— Those designated at fair value through income at inception

The Group has no financial assets held for trading,

all investments classified as fair value are designated

as fair value through income at inception Such assets
are measured at market prices, or prices consistent with
market ratings should no price be avatlable Day one
gains are recognised only where valuations use data from
observable markets Any unrealised or realised gains

or losses are taken to the Statement of Comprehensive
income, as fair value gains or losses, or realised gains

or losses respectively, as they occur

Financial assets at fair value through income include
listed and unhsted investments, units 1n authorised
unit trusts, open ended investment companies (OEICs),
loans secured on residential and commerciat property
and other investments

Financial habilities at fair value through income include
derivative financial instruments and non-participating
investment contract liabilities, see Notes 17 and

18 respectively

The IFRS ‘fair value hierarchy’ levels for financial assets
and hablities required under IFRS 13 are disclosed
within Note 19

Loans secured on residential property

The fair value of the loans secured on residential property
{ansing from the equity release mortgage busiess) Is
determined using discounted cash flows which take into
account the contractual interest rolled up on the loans,
matunty profiles and expected future funding costs

The swap rate used as an input to the discount rate

Is matched to the expected term of the underlying loans

The Society provides ‘No Negative Equity Guarantee'
contracts to customers on equity release mortgages
The contractual terms of these guarantees require
the company to accept the lower of the market value
of the custemer’s property and the value of the loan
plus accrued interest at the date of redemption as full
settlement of the mortgage

N

The guarantee 1s initially recognised at the fair value

of the hability on the date the guarantee 1s given and

15 subsequently measured at fair value The fair value

ts calculated by applying stochastic scenarno models,
applying assumptions for interest rates, future house

price inflation and 1ts volatility, mortahty rates and early
loan repayment rates, to give management's best estimate
of the discounted value of cash flows required to settle
any future financial obligation ansing at the Statement

of Financial Position date

The guarantee Is netted off against the fair vaiue

of loans secured on residential property shown as part
of Financial assets — Far value through income in the
Statement of Financial Position The movement in

the fair value of the guarantee is taken to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Loans secured on commerclal property

The fair value of the loans secured on commercial
property 1s determined using discounted cash flows
to reflect changes in underlying gilt yields and debt
margins, together with any credit impairment

Loans include prepayment protection

Significant accounting estimates and Judgements

Fair value of financial assets

Market observable inputs are used wherever possible

In the absence of an active market, estimation of fair value
15 achieved by using valuation techniques such as recent
arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis
and option pricing models For discounted cash flow
analysis, estimated future cash flows and discount rates
are based on current market information and rates
applicable to financial Instruments with similar yields,
credit qualty and maturity charactenstics This valuation
will also take into account the marketability of the
assets being valued

Details of the key assumptions used in the absence
of an active market are contained in the fair value
estimation tables, as required by IFRS 13,
disclosed in Note 19
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16 Financial assets — Fair value through income (continued)

Group Soclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets — Fair value through income
Shares, other vanable yield securities and units in urnt trusts
- UK listed 3,564 2,937 4,559 4,035
- UK unlisted 125 111 124 110
- Overseas listed 504 590 105 138
- Overseas unlisted 64 70 63 70
Debt and other fixed income securities
- UK listed 4,246 4787 2,879 3,108
- Overseas hsted 2,210 2,585 1,216 1,169
Loans secured on residential property 593 684 592 678
Loans secured on commercral property 113 25 113 25
Other - 2 - 2
11,419 11,791 9,651 9,335
Financlal assets - Fair value through income
Within one year 4,362 4,976 4,564 4,301
Qver one year 7,067 6,815 5,087 5,034
11,419 11,791 9,651 9,335
Assets held to cover inked liabilibes included above 1,920 1,622 1,920 1,622
For details on exposure to foreign exchange currency nsk see p 142
17 Derwvative financial instruments
Accounting for denvative financial instruments ~

Income on occurrence

Changes In the fair value of derivative instruments are recognised immediately 1n gains or losses on investments in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period Realised gains or losses are taken 10 the Statement of Comprehensive

Denvatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a denvative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value There are no designated hedging relationships within the Group that qualify for hedge accounting,
all are classified as held for trading Denvatives are settled on a gross basis

The Group uses denvatves to hedge the effect of changes in vanable rate borrowings on its fixed rate loan portfolio, to reduce
exposure to payouts under guaranteed annuity contracts and to protect against falls in the FTSE 100 As a result of entering into
gilt hedge contracts for difference in 2012, a significant propertion of the general insurance asset portfolio was hedged against

gilt yield movements until 30th June 2015

2015 2014
Contract/ Contract/

notlenal Fair value Falr value notlonal Fair value Fair value

amount — asset - lablity amount -asset — liabihty
Group £m £m £m im £m £m
Interest rate swaps 865 77 - 678 103 -
Gilt hedges - - - 1,660 - (37
Cash fiow swaps 1,260 - (143) 162 7 (122)
Swaptions 109 1 - 121 2 -
Equity/index dervatives 316 19 (1) 270 19 {1)

2,550 97 (144) 2,891 131 {160}

2015 2014
Contract/ Contract/

notional Falr value Fair value natienal Fair value Fair value

amount ~- asset - llablilty amount - asset - liatlity
Society £m £m £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swaps 865 77 - 678 103 -
Cash flow swaps 1,260 - (143) 162 7 (122)
Swaptions 109 1 - 121 2 -
Equity/index derivatives 136 17 (1) 176 18 {1)

2,370 95 (144) 1,137 130 (123)
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18 Investment contract liabilities

Accounting for Investment contract habllities
Non-participating contracts

of Comprehensive Income when earned

Participating contracts

1s described within Note 23

Investment contract liabihities are recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged These hrabilities
are initially recogrised at transaction price excluding any transaction costs directly attnbutable to the issue of the contract

Deposits and withdrawals are recorded directly as an adjustment to the contract habihty in the Statement of Financal Position,
a method known as deposit accounting Fees charged and investment income recerved are recognised 1n the Statement

Fair value adjustments are measured at each reporung date and are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Fair value 1s calculated as the number of urits allocated to the policyholder in each unit hnked fund multiphed by the unit price
of those funds at the Statement of Financiat Position date The unit prices are determined with reference to the fund assets
and habilities, whieh are valued on a basis consistent with that used to measure the equivalent assets and habilities in the
Statement of Financiat Position, adjusted for the effect of future tax ansing from any unreahised gains or losses For a contract
that can be cancelied by the policyholder, the fair value cannot be less than the surrender vatue

Insurance and participating investment contract habihbies are valued using accounting pohcies consistent with those adopted
prior to the transitson to IFRS as aliowed under [FRS 4 Insurance contracts’ The accounting treatment of these contracts

N

a) Analysis of [nvestment contract liabilities Group Society
2015 2014 2016 2014
Notes £m £m £m £m
Non-participating investment contract habilities 18b 1,862 1,554 1,862 1,554
Participating investment contract liabiities 18¢ 554 552 554 552
2,416 2,106 2,416 2,106
b) Movement in non-participating Investment contract liabilitles Group Socisty
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 1,554 1,249 1,554 1,249
Deposits receved from policyholders 515 393 515 393
Payments made to policyholders {243) (168) (243) (168)
Change 1n contract habilities included
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 36 80 36 80
Balance at 31 December 1,862 1,554 1,862 1,554

The change In contract liabilities as shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises principally the allocation of the
net investment return to policyholders of investment contracts less allowances for taxes Investment contracts are not reinsured

c) Movement in participating investment contract habilities Group Socioty

2015 2014 2015 2014

£m im £m £m

Balance at 1 January 552 499 552 499
Premiums received 2 2 2 2
Liabilities paid for death maturities, surrenders, benefits and claims (25) {(23) (25} (23)
New business 1 - 1 -
Benefits and claims vanation 1 7 1 7
Fees deducted {2) {2) (2} (2)
Accretion of mvestment ncome or change 1in unit prices 20 52 20 52
Adjustment due to changes in assumptions
- Investment return - 7 - 7
- Expense - (1) - 1)
Model changes - 2 - 2
Other - 4 - 4
Mutua! bonus 5 5 5 5
Balance at 31 December 554 552 554 552
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19 Fair value estimation

The following far value estimation tables present the
Group's and Society s assets and habilities measured

at fair value by level of the fair value measurement hierarchy
at 31 December 2015

The fair value of financial instruments included in the Level 1
category 1s based on the value within the bid-ask spread that
1s most representative of fair value quoted in an active market
at the year-end date A market I1s regarded as quoted In

an active market 1f quoted prices are readily and regularly
avallable from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service or regulatory agency and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an

arm’s length basis

Level 2 financial instruments are not traded in an active
market or therr fair value 1s determined using valuation
technigues These valuation techmgues maximise the

use of data from observable current market transactions
{where 1t i1s available) using pricing obtained via pricing
services, even where the market 1s not active It also
includes financial assets with prices based on broker guotes

Specific valuation techmgues used to value financial
nstruments classified as Level 3 include

« The fair value of interest rate swaps 1s calculated
as the present value of the estimated future cash flows
based on observable yield curves

« The fair value of forward exchange contracts 1s determined
using forward exchange rates at the Statement of Financial
Position date, with the resulting value discounted back
to present value

« The loans secured on residential property within the
Saociety are purchased from a subsidiary company that
15 authonsed to initiate these loans The purchase by
the Society 15 at ongination value plus 7% (which 1s expensed
in the Society when paid) The fair value of the loans secured
on residential property 15 determined using discounted cash
flow projections The expected value of redemptions are
estimated based on the assumed prepayments over future
time penods (months), mortality and long-term care entry
rates inctuding any early redemption charges The expected
redemptions are discounted at swap rates plus allowances
for nsk factors The full swap curve 1s used so each
discount rate 15 matched to the appropriate cash flow
The assumptions used for prepayment, mortahity and
long-term care are based on the expenence of the inforce
book supported by industry data The valuation 1s performed
by a Senor Actuanial Analyst and reviewed by the Equity
Release Actuary The assumptions are set by the Board
upon recommendation by the Audit Committee

+ Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine faur value for the
other financial instruments

« |f one or more of the significant inputs 1S not based
on chservable market data, the instrument 18 included
In Levei 3

There were no changes to the valuation techniques dunng
the year

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during
the year

The Group's policy 1s to recognise transfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event
or change In circumstances that caused the transfer

The valuation of all of the Group’s investment holdings
1s performed by independent and qualified valuers

Any changes to fair value are recognised within net gains/
losses on Investments within the Statement of Comprehensive
Income with the exception of Investment contract habilities
where the movement 1s recogmsed within the Gross change

in contract liabilities Detalls of these gains/losses are
disclosed within Notes 9 and 25 respectively
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19 Fair value estimation (continued)

2015

2014

Total falr Total fair
Lavel 1 Level 2 Lovel 3 value Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 value
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Derlvative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps - - 77 77 - - 103 103
Cash flow swaps - - - - - - 7 7
Swaptions -~ - 1 1 - - 2 2
Equity/index denvatives - - 19 19 - 1 18 19
- - 97 97 — 1 130 131
Financial assets held at falr value
through income
Shares, other vanable yield
secunties and units tn unit trusts
- UK listed 1,242 2,322 - 3,564 1,250 1,687 - 2,937
- UK unhsted - - 125 125 - - 111 111
- Qverseas listed 5Q0 4 - 504 504 86 - 590
- Qverseas unlisted - - 64 64 - - 70 70
Debt and other fixed income securities
— UK hsted 2,120 2,126 - 4,246 2,119 2,668 - 4,787
- Overseas listed 24 2,186 - 2,210 217 2,368 - 2,585
Loans secured on residentiat property - - 593 593 - - 684 684
Loans secured on
commercial property - 113 - 113 - 25 - 25
Other - - - - 2 - - 2
3,886 6,751 782 11,419 4,092 6,834 865 11,791
3,886 6,751 879 11,516 4,092 6,835 995 11,922
Financial liabllitles
Non-participating investment
contract liabilities - 1,862 - 1,862 - 1,554 - 1,554
Derivative flnanclal Instruments
Cash flow swaps - - 143 143 - - 122 122
Gilt hedges - - - - - - 37 37
Equity/index denvatives 1 - - 1 1 - - 1
1 - 143 144 1 - 159 160
1 1,862 143 2,006 1 1,564 159 1,714
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19 Fair value estimation (continued)

2015 2014
Total falr Total fair
Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 valug
Society £m £m £m £m £m £m im £m
Financial assets
Derivative flnancial instruments
Interest rate swaps - - 77 77 - - 103 103
Cash flow swaps - - - - - - 7 7
Swaptiens - - 1 1 - - 2 2
Equity/index derivatives - - 17 17 - - 18 18
- - 95 95 — — 130 130
Financlal assets held at falr value
through Income
Shares, other vanable yield
secunities and units in unit trusts
— UK histed 830 3,729 - 4,559 911 3,124 - 4,035
— UK unlisted - - 124 124 - - 110 110
- Qverseas listed 105 - - 105 138 - - 138
- Overseas unlsted - - 63 63 - - 70 70
Debt and other fixed iIncome secuntes
- UK hsted 1,714 1,165 - 2,879 1,687 1,421 - 3,108
- Qverseas listed 24 1,192 - 1,216 18 1,151 - 1,169
Loans secured on residential property - - 592 592 - - 678 678
Loans secured on
commercial property - 113 - 113 - 25 - 25
Other - - - - 2 — - 2
2,673 6,199 779 9,651 2,756 5,721 858 9,335
2,673 6,199 874 9,746 2,756 5,721 988 9,465
Financial liabilities
Non-participating investment
contract liabtlities - 1,862 - 1,862 - 1,554 - 1,554
Derivative financiat instruments
Cash flow swaps - - 143 143 - - 122 122
Equity/index derivatives 1 - - 1 1 — - 1
1 - 143 144 1 - 122 123
1 1,862 143 2,006 1 1,554 122 1,677
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19 Farr value estimation (continued)
The table below presents the movements in Level 3 financial instruments for the year ended 31 December 2015

Total gains/
(lasses)
recognised At 31
At 1 January through Dacember
2015 income Purchasas Sales 2015
Group £m £m im £m £m
Financlal assets
Derivative flnanclal instruments
Interest rate swaps 103 6 1 (33) 17
Cash flow swaps 7 {(7) - - -
Swaptions 2 (1) - - 1
Equity/index derivatives 18 {4) 5 - 19
130 (6) 6 {33) 97 »
2
Financial assets held at fair value through Income 2 |
Shares, other vaniable yield secunties and units in unit trusts % !
— UK unlisted 111 17 - {3) 125 2
- Qverseas unlisted 70 {3) 2 (5) 64 -
Loans secured on residential property (note 1} 684 {(139) 88 {40) 593
865 (125) 90 (48) 782
995 {131) 96 (81) 879
7]
[=]
&
Financlal liabilltles 3
Derivative financial Instruments ?::
Cash flow swaps 122 21 - - 143
Gilt hedges 37 (1) - (36) -
159 20 - (36) 143

note 1 In relation to Loans secured on residential property, purchases and sales represent loans advanced and repaid respectively
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19 Farr value estimation {continued)

Total gains/
(losses)
recognised At 31
At 1 January through December ‘
2014 income Purchases Sales 2014
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Frnancial assets
Dervative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps 10 101 1 (9 103
Gilt hedges 8 (8) - - -
Cash flow swaps - 7 - - 7 ‘
Swaptions 12 10 - (20) 2
Equity/index denvatives 17 1 - - 18
47 111 1 (29} 130
Financial assets held at fair value through income \
Shares, other vanable yield securities and units n unit trusts '
- UK unlisted 113 37 13 {52) 111
- Qverseas unhsted 78 {(21) 23 (13 70 ‘
Loans secured on residential property 493 99 127 (35) 684 |
684 115 163 (97} 865
731 226 164 (126} 995
Financtal habiities
Dervative financtal instruments
Cash flow swaps 68 54 - - 122
Interest rate swaps 11 (11) - - -
Gift hedges — 40 (3) — 37
79 83 {3) — 159
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19 Fair value estimation (continued)

Total galns/
{lossas)
recognised At 31
At 1 January through December
2015 Income Purchases Sales 2015
Soclety £m £m £m £Em £m
Financlal assets
Derlvatlve financial instruments
Interest rate swaps 103 [ 1 (33) 77
Cash flow swaps 7 {7) - - -
Swaptions 2 (1) - - 1
Equity/index derivatives 18 (1) - - 17
130 {3) 1 {33) 95
Financlal assets held at fair value through income
Shares, other vanable yield secunties and units tn unit trusts
- UK unlisted 110 17 - {3) 124
- Qverseas unlisted 70 {3) 2 {6) 63
Loans secured on residential property (note 1) 678 {134) 88 {40) 592
858 (120) a0 {49) 779
988 {123) 91 (82) 874
Financlaf liabilities
Derlvative financial instruments
Cash flow swaps 122 21 - - 143
122 21 = = 143

note 1 In relation to Loans secured en residential property, purchases and sales represent loans advanced and repaid respectively
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19 Fair value estimation {continued)

Total gains/
{losses)
recogrised AL 31
At 1 lanuary through Cecember
2014 income Purchases Sales 2014
Society £m £m m im im
Financial assets
Denvative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps 10 101 1 (9) 103
Cash flow swaps - 7 - - 7
Swaptions 12 10 - (20) 2
Equity/index derivatives 17 1 - - 18
39 119 1 {29) 130
Financial assets held at fair value through income
Shares, other vanable yield securities and units in unit trusts
- UK unlisted 112 37 13 (52) 110
- Overseas unlisted 77 (21) 23 (9 70
Loans secured on residential property 486 100 127 (35) 678
675 116 163 (96) 858
714 235 164 {125) 988
Fiancial habihties
Denvative financial instruments
Cash flow swaps 68 54 - - 122
Interest rate swaps 11 (11} - - -
79 43 - - 122
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Year ended 31 December 2015

19 Fair value estimation (continued)
Information about fair value measurements using significant uncbservable inputs (Level 3)

Falr value Fair value
at 31 at 31
December December Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservabdle tnputs Relattonship of uncbservable
Group 2015 2014 echniquels) inputs  {probability — weighted average) inputs to fair value
Description £m £m
Financial assets
Derivative financial
instruments
Interpolation
and
If the rate goes up,
Interest rate swaps 77 103 Mark to-model extrapolation Up to 2bps 8 P, the
of specific contract value will fall
interest rate
tenors
Interpolation
and If the rate goes up,
extrapclation
Cash flow swaps - 7 Mark-to-model Up to 2bps the value of the
of specific
contract will fall
Interest rate
tenors
Higher interest r.
Interest rate Could be several 'gher | ate
Swaptions 1 2 Mark-to-model volatilit ercentage ponts volatility results in
y P gep higher contract value
Higher equity volatility
Could be several
Equity/index dernvatives 19 18 Mark-to-model Equity volatiity results in higher
percentage points
contract value
97 130

Financlal assets held at falr value through income
Shares, other varniable yield secunties and units in umt trusts

Adjusted net

Could vary significantly

The higher the price

— UK unlisted 125 111 Price per unit due to the range of per unit, the higher the
asset method
holdings fair value
l
Distributions  Could vary significantly The fair value varies
on distributions/calis
or calls since due to the range of
and period since last
last valuation holdings
valuation
Adiusted net Could vary significantly The higher the price
— Qverseas unlisted 64 70 , Price per unit due to the range per unit, the higher the
asset method
of holdings fair value
Distnbutions  Could vary significantly The fair value vanes
on distnbutions/calls
or calls since due to the range of
and pertod since last
iast valuation holdings
valuation
Underlying To determine Whquidity
Loans secured on residential Discounted Market zero coupon premium used to
593 684 interest swap
property cash flow swaps rate discount expected
curve
cashflows
Prepayment rate will
Prepayments 3%-5% determine the profile of
expected cashflows
Mortality and Mortality and long-term
long-term care Annuitant mortality care rate will determine
assumptions tables are applied the profile of expected
cashflows
782 865
879 995
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19 Fair value estimation (continued)
Informatlon about falr value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) - continued

Falr valua Fair value
ati1 at 31
December December Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable Inputs Retationship of unobservable
2018 2014 techmgue(s) inputs  (probability — welghted average) Inputs ta far value
Description £m £m
Financial liabllities
Derivative financial
Instruments
Interpolation
and If the rate goes up, the
extrapolation absolute contract value
Cash flow swaps 143 122 Mark-to-model of specific Up to 2bps will falt resulting in a
Interest rate balance sheet gain
tenors
The range on market Repo rate increases
Giit hedges - 37 Mark-to-model Gilt repo rates  gilt repo rates offered  will lower the value of
can be up to 10bps the contract
143 159

T W
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20 Loans and other receivables

Accounting for loans and other recelvables
Loans are imtially measured at fair value and then subsequently measured at amortised ¢cost using the effective interest
rate method

~

Recewables are recognised when due and comprise amounts due to the Society from group undertakings and other recewvables
They are initially recognised at fair value and then subsequently held at amortised cost

[ P 1 0 [ROT0 TOFT (30 WY P FRSTO R ....‘n..j

The Group assesses at each Statement of Financial Pesition date whether a loan or recewvabte, or a group of loans

or receivables, 1s impaired For loans, the amount of any impairment loss 1s measured as the difference between

the carrying amount and the present value of future cash flows For recewvables, where there 1s objective evidence that
the carrying value 1s imparred then the impairment loss will be recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Provislon for impailrment of loans ?_’0:
Provisions for impairment of loans and receivables are based on apprarsals of ioans and recelvables both collectively =
and individually Provisions are made to reflect the estimated net realisable amount, taking into account potential future ‘;
recoveries and the onginal effective interest rate Balances are written off in full when the debt 1s considered rrecoverable ‘8"
-~
Specific provisions have been made in respect of all identified impaired advances In calculating the required provision
an appropriate factor ts applied based on the present value of expected future cash flows, which i1s subject to periodic review
to ensure 1its continuing applicability based on current experience, to reflect the probability that not all such loans will result
in eventual toss Collective provisions have been made in respect of losses which, although not yet specifically identified,
are expected from expenence to arse
‘g’
Group Soclety §
2018 2014 2015 2014 8
£m £m £m im
Deposits with credit institutions 6 - 3 -
Cash collateral pledged 2 35 2 -
Amounts due from group undertakings - - 55 73
Managing agents rental recewvable 2 2 2 2
Investments receivable 16 16 16 15
Other recewables 51 65 9 11 2
7 118 87 101 §‘
k=]
[=
Within one year 75 116 86 100 7
Over one year 2 2 1 1
77 118 87 101

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date

4
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21 Subordinated habilittes

Accounting for subordinated liabilities ~

Subordinated habilities are initially measured at the fair value of the proceeds less attnbutable transaction costs

Subsegquent to imtial recognition they are measured at amortised cost The transaction costs are amortised over the period

to the earliest possible redemption date on an effective interest rate basis The amortisation charge 1s included in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income within finance costs An equivalent amount 1s added to the carrying value of the liability such that

at the redemption date the value of the hability equals the redemption value

Group Soclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
Em £m £m £m
Subordinated notes {GBP 350m) 347 347 347 347
Subordinated notes {EUR 12m) 9 e} - _
356 356 347 347

All the subordinated lratnlities are expected to be settled more than 12 months after the balance sheet date

On 22 May 2013 the Society issued £350m of Fixed Rate Reset Subordinated Notes at par The directly related costs of
£4m incurred to 1ssue the Notes have been capitalised as part of the carrying value and are being amortised using the effective
interest rate basis over the penod to the first call date in 2023 The effective interest rate on the £350m liabikity 15 6 654%

The Notes have a matunty date of 22 May 2043 but the 1ssuer has the option to redeem the Notes at the first call date
of 22 May 2023 and at five yearly intervals thereafter up to the maturity date

Interest is payable on the Notes at a fixed rate of 6 5% per annum for the perrod until the first call date on 22 May 2023,

payable annually \n arrears on 22 May each year If the Notes are not redeemed on 22 May 2023, the interest rate 1s reset

on that date and at five yearly intervals thereafter at a rate equal to the five year gilt rate quoted on the day before the reset

date plus an initial margin of 463 basis points and a step up margin of 100 basis points There 1s an option of cumulative deferral
of interest at the 1ssuer's discretion and mandatory interest deferral in the event that a regulatory deficiency interest deferral event
has occurred or 1s continuing (breach of the applicable regulatory solvency capital requirement of the 1ssuer or group) or would
occur if payment of interest on the subordinated notes were to be made Following any deferral of a principal or interest payment,
the Society would be prevented from declaring any distnibution to members which falls within the Mutual Bonus arrangements

The Society has the option to elect to defer payment of interest in whole or in part and this will not constitute a default or give
the right to the noteholders or the trustee to accelerate repayment of the Notes or to take any enforcement action

The €12m subordinated notes are 1ssued by a subsidiary undertaking and are repayable in 2034 Interest on these Notes
1S payable at the 3 month euro deposit rate plus a margin of 365 basis points

Subordinated labilities are held in the Statement of Financial Position at amortised cost The far value at 31 December 2015
was £353m (2014 £369m) The valuation of the subordinated notes was determined by reference to the tid price obtained from
the markets as at 31 December 2015 Management consider this to be representative of fair value

22 Other financial habilities

Group Soclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m Em Em
Cash collateral received 96 116 95 115
Amounts due to group undertakings - - - 29
96 116 95 144

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date
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Insurance contract related assets and liabilities

This section presents information relating to insurance contract related assets and liabilities held by the Society and Group
The assumptions used in the valuation of the insurance contract llabilities are disclosed within Note 28 with sensitivities

to these assumptions disclosed separately within Note 4

23 Insurance contract habilities

Accounting for insurance contract liabilities
Participating business

The liability 1s calculated in accordance with the PRA's
‘realistic’ hability regime 1n particular, provision is made
for atl bonus payments {declared and future, reversionary
and terminal) estimated, where necessary, in a manner
consistent with the relevant fund’s Principles and Practices
of Financial Management (PPFM) The liability includes
an allowance for the time and intrinsic vaiue of options
and guarantees granted to policyholders and for possible
future management actions

The reahstic participating habilities are based on the
aggregate value of policy asset shares reflecting past
premiums, investment return, expenses and charges appled
to each policy Allowance is alsoc made for policy-related
liabtlities such as guarantees, options and future bonuses
catculated using a stochastic model simulating investment
returns, asset mix, expense charges and bonuses

In determining the realistic value of hatilities for
participating contracts, the value of future profits on
non-participating business written in the with-profits part
of the fund 15 accounted for as part of the calculation

The present value of future profits on the non-participating
business (‘Non-participating value of the in-force business’)
ts separately determined and its value 1s deducted from
the sum of the habilities for participating contracts and

the Unallocated divisible surplus

The non-participating value of the in-force business
15 separately disclosed within Note 24

Such an amount 15 not recognised for business
written outside participating contract funds

Non-particlpating business

The habiity 1s calculated to comply with the reporting
requirements under the PRA s handbook using a gross
premium valuation method or a method at least as
prudent as the gross premium method The Society
and relevant subsidiaries have adopted the modified
statutory solvency basis In the valuation of provisions
for non-participating business

Liabihities for non-participating business are either
included within the long-term insurance contract liabilities
or the investment contract llabilites, depending upon

the product classification

General insurance claims and insurance contract llabilities
Claims incurred comprise claims and related internal

and external claims handhing costs paid in the year and
changes in the provisions for outstanding claims, including
provisions for claims incurred but not reported and related
claims handhing costs, together with any other adjustments
to claims from previous years Where applicable, deductions
are made for recoveries from other parttes Provision IS
made for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not
settled, including the cost of claims incurred but not reported

The estimated cost of claims includes expenses

to be Incurred in settiing claims and a eduction

for the expected value of recoveries However, given

the inevitable uncertainty 1n establishing claims provisions,
1t 1s likely that the final outcome will prove to be different
from the original hability established Provisions are
adjusted at the Statement of Financial Position date

to represent a best estimate of the expected outcome
Provisions are calculated allowing for reinsurance recoveries
and a separate asset 1s recorded for the retnsurers share
of the provision

Standard actuanal claims projection techniques are used
{0 estimate outstanding clarms Such methods extrapolate
the development of paid and incurred claims, recovenes
from third parties, average cost per claim and ultimate
claim numbers for each accident year, based upon the
observed development of earhier years and expected loss
ratios The main assumptton underlying these technigues
15 that past clams development expernience ¢an be used
to project ultimate claims costs In the case of PPOs,

the annuity type structure of the claim payments mean
that these have to be projected over a longer-term penod
and reserved for on a discounted basis accordingly
Allowance for one off occurrences or changes in legislation,
policy conditions or pertfolio mix, 15 also made in arriving
at the estimated ultimate cost of claims, 1n order that

it represents the most likely outcome, taking account

of all the uncertainties involved To the extent that

the ultimate cost 1s different from the estimate, where
expertence 1S better or worse than that assumed,

the surplus or deficit will be credited or charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in future years

Unexpired risks

For general insurance contracts, provision 1s made,

tf required, for any anticipated claims and claims
handling costs that are anucipated to exceed the
unearned premiums, net of deferred acquisition costs
An estimate s made for future investment income arsing
from the unearned premiums, and used to reduce the
unexpired nsk provision Unexpired nisk surpluses and
deficits are offset where business classes are managed
together and & provision 1s made If an aggregate

deficit arises

Significant accounting estimates and judgements
Valuation of Investment and long-term Insurance
contract liabilities

The valuation of participating contract habiities 1s based
on assumptions reflecting the best estimate at the time
The valuation of non-participating insurance contracts

1s based on prudent assumptions, a separate calculation
15 also performed to assess the non-participating value
of in-force business which 1s based on best estimate
assumptions allowing for a margin of sk and adverse
deviation All contracts are subject to a labihty adequacy
test, which reflects management's best current estimate
of future cash flows
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23 Insurance contract habilities (continued)

The assumptions used for mortality, morbidity and
longewvity are based on standard industry or reinsurers’
tables, adjusted where appropnate to reflect the Group's
own experience |n particular, for impaired annuities

the mortality assumptions are adjusted so as to allow
for convergence to standard mortality at advanced

ages These adjustments vary according 1o hfestyle

or medical condition, gender, age and duration in-force
The assumptions used for investment returns, expenses,
lapse and surrender rates are based on current market
yields, product charactenstics, and relevant claims
experence The assumptions used for discount rates
are based on current market nisk rates, adjusted

for the Group's own nsk exposure Due to the long-term
nature of these obligations, the estimates are subject

to significant uncertainty

The valuation assumption used for the level of policy holder
benefits taken as cash has rematned unchanged from
2014 However, future changes in policy holder behaviour
as a result of the pension reforms which came into force

In 2015 and also further reforms expected in 2017, which
would enable the creation of a market for the sale of
in-force annuities to third parties, may result in the actual
tevel of take-up diffening from the assumption used

In addition, the methodology used to value the habilities for
OB pension policies was adjusted during the year to reflect
a change in the basis used to calculate the amount payable
when the policyholder elects to take the proceeds from

the policy as cash rather than as an annuity This change,
which was approved by the Society's board in November
2015, had a positive impact on hentage operating profit

of £68m It has also been shared with the Financial
Conduct Authornity (FCA) whose formal response i1s awaited
Any possible subsequent amendments to the basis of
policyholder payments ansing from the FCA's response will
be considered when that response 1s recewved

The calculation of the insurance contract liabihities 18
impacted by changes in unit costs, which are reviewed
annually A full review of the methodology 1s planned for
2016 Pending the review, umt costs have been maintained
at 2014 tevels {(adjusted for inflation)

The pension reforms that were effective from April 2015 have
had a significant impact in the at retirement market During
2015 management specifically assessed the impact of the
changes in the at-retirement market on the assumptions
within the hability calculation for retirement products

Details of all the long-term insurance and investment contract
hlabiities valuation assumptions and the non-participating
value of in-force business valuation assumptions are
disclosed separately within Notes 28 and 29 respectively

7
Valuation of general Insurance contract liabilities
The estimation of the ultimate hability ansing from
claims made under insurance contracts 1s the general
tnsurance business most cnitical accounting estimate
For general insurance contracts estimates are made
for the expected ultimate cost of claims as at the
Statement of Financial Position date and the cost of
claims incurred but not yet reported to the Group It can
take a significant period of time before the ultmate cost
of claims can be established with certainty, and the final
outcome may be better or worse than that provided While
Management believes that the insurance contract habilities
carried at year end are adequate, the application of
statisiical techmques requires significant judgement

The estimation of these claims i1s based on historical
experience projected forward Where possible, the Group
adopts multiple techmgues 1o provide a best estimate of
the required level of prowvisions This assists In developing
greater undersianding of the trends inherent in the data
being projected The Group's estimates of losses and loss
expenses are reached after a review of several commonly
accepted actuanal projection methodologies, as well as
more bespoke methods and a number of different bases to
determine these provisions These include methods based
upon the followng
a) the development of previously paid claims, where
payments to date are extrapolated for each prior year,
b} estimates based upon a projection of claims numbers
and average cost,
¢) Incurred claims development, where incurred claims
to date for each year are extrapolated based upon
observed development of earlier years, and
d)} expected loss ratics

There are several sources of uncertainty that need

to be considered in the estimate of the hability that

the Group will ultimately pay for such claims In particular,
motor insurance policies are exposed to claims for bodily
injury and household insurance policies are exposed

to claims for subsidence

Estimation of the ulumate cost of large bodily injury

claims 1s a complex process and cannot be done using
conventional actuanal techmques given they typically
exhibit low frequency and high seventy Significant factors
that affect the bodily injuries estimation process are
legislation (e g the Ogden discount rate used to value lump
sum settlements) and the presence of Claims Management
Companies operating within the General Insurance market
Due to this uncertainty it 1s not possible to determine

the future development of bodily injury claims with the
same degree of reliability as with other types of clams
Over the last decade, there has been an increasing
prevalence of Periodic Payment Order (‘PPO ) settlements
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23 Insurance contract habilities continued)

These settlements have an annuity-type structure,

1e they are typically paid annually over the clamant’s

Iife Courts may decide that a claim should be settled

on a PPO basis, but in some cases the claimant will
request such a settlement Market data analysis suggests
that circa 30% of claims costing in excess of £1m are now
setthng on a PPO basis and therefore these claims

are representing a greater proportion of the liabilities

NS

Large claims impacting each relevant business class are
generally assessed separately, being measured either at
the face value of the loss adjusters estimates or projected
separately in order to allow for the future development of
large claims

Provisions are initially calculated gross of any reinsurance
recoveries A separate estimate 1s made of the amounts

it

'y

PR VN

YT,

that will be recoverable from reinsurers based upon the
gross provisions and having due regard to collectability

year-on-year As itis unclear whether a farge claim will
settle on a PPO basis or on the traditional lump sum basis,
there 1s further uncertainty in the bodily injury projections

A further complexity of PPO claims 1s that due to the @
annuity-type structure of the claim payments these have to g
be projected over a longer-term period and reserved for on 5
a discounted basis accordingly Therefore, the estimation é’
of ultimate clarms cost now involves projecting martahity g
rates, discount rates and benefit indexation rates,
which I1s unlike all other general insurance habilities
1
a) Analysls of insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets ‘
g
2015 2014 z
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net é
Group Note £m £m £m £m £m £m 3
@
Participating insurance contract llabllities
Long-term insurance contract habilites 23b 3,972 - 3,972 3,862 — 3,862
Non-participating insurance contract liabllities
Long-term insurance contract habilities 23¢c 3,621 {412) 3,209 3,679 (295} 3,384
Long-term linked insurance contract habilities 23d 138 (80) 58 138 (70) 68 E
Long-term claims habilities 23e 40 - 40 41 - 41 x
3,799 (492) 3,307 3,858 (365) 3,493 §
=
[i4]
General insurance unearned premiums 231 744 {(12) 732 688 {13) 675
General insurance claims lhabifities* 23 g 1,353 (386) 967 1,307 (125) 1,182
2,097 {398) 1,699 1,995 {138} 1,857
5,896 (B90) 5,006 5,853 {503) 5,350
H
2015 2014 :
Gross Relnsurance Met Gross  Reinsurance Net
Soclety Note £m £m £m £m im £m
Participating insurance contract llabllities ;
Long-term msurance contract habilities 23b 3,972 - 3,972 3,862 - 3,862 i
Non-participating insurance contract liabilltles
Long-term insurance contract habilities 23¢ 3,606 (412) 3,194 3,661 {295} 3,366 -
Long-term linked insurance contract habiities 23d 138 (80) 58 138 (70} 68
Long-term claims habilities 23e 40 - 40 41 - 41
3,784 {492) 3,292 3,840 {365) 3,475

*In the latter part of 2015 the Group entered into a Loss Portfolio Transfer Agreement resutting in reinsurance of 20% of its general
insurance booked reserves as at 31 December 2015 This has had an impact of £242m on the remnsurers’ share of claims liabilities
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23 Insurance contract habilities {continued)
b) Movement In long-term insurance contract llabilitles — participating
2015

2014

Gross Reinsurance
Group and Society £m £m

Net

Gross

Rensurance

Net

£m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 3,862 - 3,862 3,433 - 3,433
Premiums receved 34 - 34 39 - 39
Liabilities pard for deaths, maturities, surrenders,
benefits and claims (336) - (336) (325) - (325}
New business 372 - 372 157 - 157
Benefits and claims vanation a4 - 44 48 - 48
Fees deducted (28) - (26) (25) - {25)
Accretion of investment tncome or change
In urit prices 96 - 96 220 - 220
Adjustment due to changes in assumptions
— Mortality/morbidsty/longewvity (15) - (15) - - -
~ Investment return 6 - 6 330 - 330
- Expense (1) - (1) {5) - (5)
- Lapse and surrender rates (69) - (69) 2 - 2
- Other basis changes - - - (18} - (18)
Maodel changes 4 - 4 3 - 3
Other (21) - (21) (16) - (16}
Mutual bonus 22 - 22 19 — 19
Balance at 31 December 3,972 - 3,972 3,862 — 3,862
¢) Movement In long-term insurance contract liabillties — non-particlpating

2015 2014
Gresas  Relnsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net

Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 3,679 {295} 3,384 3,052 (325} 2,727
Premiums receved 133 (51} a2 128 (46} 82
Liabilities patd for deaths, maturities, surrenders,
benefits and claims (378) 40 (338) (261) 38 (223)
New business 311 {68) 243 396 (45) 351
Benefits and claims vaniation (5) 5 - 10 3 13
Fees deducted {15) - (15) (17) - {17)
Accretion of mvestment income or change
In unit prices 40 (1) 39 34 (1) 33
Adjustment due to changes th assumptions
— Mortality/morbidity/longevity {10) (46) {56) 3N 105 66
— Investment return (51) 17 (34) 440 (57} 383
- Expense - - - (28) 2 (26)
— Lapse and surrender rates 5 {4) 1 (6) 2 (4)
— Other basis changes (82) - (82) {19) 1 {18)
Model changes (5) {10) {15) (2} (3} (5)
Other (1) 1 - (D) 31 22
Balance at 31 December 3,621 {412) 3,209 3,679 (295} 3.384
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23 Insurance contract habilities (continued)
¢) Movement in long-term insurance contract liabilities - non-participating {continued)

2015 2014
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurante Net
Soclety £m £m £m £m £m im
Balance at 1 fanuary 3,661 (2958) 3,366 3,033 (325) 2,708
Premiums received 133 (51) 82 128 (46) 82
Liabilittes paid for deaths, matunties, surrenders,
benefits and claims (375) 40 (335) (259) 38 (221)
New business 311 (68) 243 396 (45) 351
Benefits and claims vanation (5) 5 - 10 3 13
Fees deducted (15) - (15) (17} - 7
Accretion of investment income or change
i unt prices 40 1) 39 34 (1) 33 )
Adjustment due to changes tn assumptions g,
— Mortality/morbidity/iongevity {10) (46) {56) {39) 105 66 -
- Investment return {51) 17 (34) 440 (57) 383 e
- Expense - - - (28} 2 {26) ?
- Lapse and surrender rates 5 4 1 (8) 2 4) a
— QOther basis changes (82) - (82) (20) 1 (19)
Mode! changes (5) {109 {(15) {2) (3) (5)
QOther (1) 1 - {9) 31 22
Balance at 31 December 3,606 {412) 3,194 3.661 (295) 3,366
(%]
d) Movement in long-term linked Insurance contract {labilities g
2015 2014 2
Gross Reinsurance Not Gross  Reinsurance Net a3
Group and Society £m £Em £m £m £m £m ®
Balance at 1 January 138 {70} 68 114 (47) 67
Premiums received 39 {15) 24 32 {12) 20
Liabihties paid for deaths, matunties, surrenders,
benefits and claims {25) 13 {12) (28) 10 (18)
New business 15 (19) (4) 3 (10 (7)
Benefits and claims vanation {1) 1 - (1) 1 - @
Fees deducted 2) - {2} (3 - (3) z
Accretion of investment income or change in unit prnices 1 - 1 1 - 1 §
Adjustment due to changes in assumptions E
— Mortahty/morbidity/longevity (23) 12 (11) (10} 27 17
— Investment return {5) 2 (3) 34 (9) 25
- Expense - - - (6) - )
- Lapse and surrender rates 2 1) 1 ) - (1}
- Other basis changes {1 - {1 1} - 1)
Model changes - (3) (3) (5 (1) 0]
Other - - 10 (29) (19)

Balance at 31 December 138 (80) 58 138 (70) 68
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23 Insurance contract habilites {continued)
e) Movement in long-term clalms liabilities

2015

2014

Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 41 - 41 38 - 38
Claims notified 796 {73) 723 666 (74) 592
Claims paid during the year (797) 13 (724) {663) 74 {589)
Balance at 31 December 40 - 40 41 — 41
2018 2014
Gross Realnsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Soclety £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 41 - 41 38 - 38
Claims notified 793 {(73) 720 664 (74) 590
Claims paid during the year (794) 73 (721) {661) 74 {587)
Balance at 31 December 40 - 40 41 — 41
f) Movement in general insurance unearned premiums
2015 2014
Gross  Relnsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 688 {13) 675 712 {13) 699
Premiums written In the year 1,476 (283) 1,193 1,394 {36) 1,358
Premiums earned during the year (1,420) 284 {1,136) {1,418} 36 {(1,382)
Balance at 31 December 744 {12) 732 588 {13} 675
g) Movement In general Insurance clalms liabilities
2015 2014
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Group Im £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 1,307 (125) 1,182 1,358 {130} 1,228
Movement in claims incurred in prior accident years (101) (130) (231} (117 6 (111)
Claims incurred in the current accident year 1,057 (135) 922 1,052 (14) 1,038
Claims paid during the year (910) 4 (906) (986) 13 (973)
Balance at 31 December 1,353 {386) 967 1,307 {125} 1,182
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24 Non-paricipating value of in-force business

Accounting for the non-participating value of in-force business

The principal assumptions are disclosed separately within Note 29

In determining the realistic value of habihities for participating contracts as disclosed in Note 23, the value of future profits

on non-participating business written in the with-profits part of the fund 1s accounted for as part of the calculation The present
value of future profits of the non-participating business (‘non-participating value of in-force business’) 1s separately determined
and 1ts value 1s deducted from the sum of the habihties for participating contracts and the Unaliocated divisible surplus
Such an amount 15 not recognised for business written outside participating contract funds

N

Analysis of non-particlpating value of in-force business

Group Soclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 338 273 338 273
Premiums received (1) (1) {1) (1)
Liabiliies paid for deaths, matunties, surrenders, benefits and claims (10) {9 (10) (9)
New business 37 40 a7 40
Benefits and claims vanation {3) 3 (3) 3
Fees deducted 4 (@ (4) 4
Adjustment due to changes in assumptions
— Mortahty/morbidity/longevity (6) 40 {6) 40
- Investment return 13 38 13 38
- Expense - (9 - =]
-~ Lapse and surrender rates - 2 - 2
— Other basis changes - (14) - {14)
Model changes (7 13} (7) (13)
Other (36) (2} {36) {2)
Balance at 31 December 321 338 321 338
25 Net change In long-term contract habilities and non-participating value of in-force business
Group Soclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m

Gross (Increase)/decrease In long-term contract llabllities
Increase in long-term insurance contract llabilities - participating (110) {429} (110) (429)
Increase in nvestment contract liabilities — participating (2) (53) (2) {53)
Decrease/(iIncrease) in leng-term insurance contract katilities 58 (627) 55 (628)
- non-participating
Increase In Investment contract liamhties — non-participating (36) (80) (36) {80)
Increase in long-term linked msurance contract habilities - {24) - (24}

{(90) (1,213) {93) (1,214)
Mutual bonus {disclosed separately on the Statement of Comprehensive Income) 27 24 27 24

(63) (1,189 {66) {1,190}
Increase/(decrease) in long-term contract liabllities ceded to reinsurers
Increase/(decrease) in long-term insurance contract liabilities 117 30 117 (30}
Increase in long-term linked insurance contract iabilities 10 23 10 23

127 {7) 127 {7}
{Decrease)/increase in non-participating value of in-force husiness {17) 65 (17) 65
Net change in contract llabilities 47 {1,131) 44 {1,132)
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26 Deferred acquisition costs

~o

Accounting for deferred acquisition costs

For business other than long-term insurance business, the costs of acquiring new business which are incurred durmg

the financial year, but where the beneft of such costs will be obtained 1n subseguent accounting perods are deferred

and recognised as an asset to the extent that they are recoverable out of margens in future matching revenues

In respect of insurance contracts, acquisition costs comprise all allowable costs incurred in writing new contracts

Deferred acquisitton costs for insurance contracts are amortised ogver a period which is consistent with the assessment

of the expected pattern of receipt of future revenue margins for each product type

Al deferred acquisition costs are tested for recoverability at each reporuing date The carrying values are adjusted

to recoverable amounts and any resulting impairment losses are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
Group £m
At 1 January 2015 97
Acquisition costs deferred 196
Amortisation (194)
At 31 December 2015 99
At 1 Jlanuary 2014 98
Acquisition costs deferred 199
Amortisation (200}
At 31 December 2014 a7

Deferred acquisition costs are all due within one year for both 2014 and 2015 They relate to general insurance contracts
Acquisition costs are costs of acquinng new business and include commissions, underwrting expenses and policy Issue expenses
There were no deferred acquisition costs held by the Society in 2015 (2014 £nil)

27 Reinsurance assets

~

Accounting for reinsurance assets

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group i1s compensated for fosses on the insurance contracts
1ssued by the Group are classified as reinsurance contracts A contract Is only accounted for as a reinsurance contract where
there 1s significant insurance nisk transfer between the insured and the insurer Reinsurance assets include batances due

from reinsurance companies for ceded insurance liabilites Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated 1n a consistent
manner with the outstanding claims provisions or settled claims associated with the reinsured policies and in accordance with
the relevant reinsurance contract

An impairment review 1s performed at the Statement of Financial Position date Impairment occurs when there 1s evidence that
the Group will not recover outstanding amounts under the contract, such losses being recorded immediately in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

Classification of the Group's contracts with reinsurers as reinsurance contracts

A contract 1s required to transfer significant insurance risk in order to be classified as a remnsurance contract
Management reviews all terms and conditions of each such contract, and if necessary obtains the opinion
of an iIndependent expert at the negotiation stage in order to be able to make this judgement
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27 Reinsurance assets {continued)

Group Soclety

2015 2014 2015 2014

Note £m £m £m £m

Reinsurers' share of provision for unearned premiums 23a 12 13 - -
Reinsurers' share of long-term insurance contract llabilities 23 a 312 295 412 295
Reinsurers' share of long-term linked insurance contract habilittes 23 a 80 70 80 70
Reinsurers' share of claims habihities 23 a 386 125 - -
890 503 492 365

Within one year i11 42 (3) (6)
Over one year 779 461 495 371
890 503 492 365

In the fatter part of 2015 the Group entered into a Loss Portfolio Transfer Agreement resulting in reinsurance of 20% of its general
insurance booked reserves as at 31 December 2015 This has had an impact of £242m on the reinsurers’ share of claims habilities

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasconably approximate fair vatue at the Statement of Financial Position date

28 Long-term insurance and investment contract habilities valuation assumptions

The basis of the calculation of the long-term insurance for example where experience 1s worse than that assumed,

contract habilities 1s described in the accounting policies the surplus or deficit will be credited or charged to the

The liatnhty 15 calculated separately for each hfe operation Statement of Comprehensive Income in future years

Material judgement 1s required in calculating the hability

in particular there 1s discretion over the assumptions used When valuing options and guarantees the asset model used

For participating business, the liabihity i1s calculated was the Moody's Market-Consistent Asset Model This 1s a

In accordance with the PRA s realistic capital regime deflator mode! based on published financial economic theory

Non-participating habilities are valued using a gross that 1s capable of market-consistent valuations for multiple

premium method asset classes in multiple currencies For this valuation it
was calibrated to market data as at 31 December 2015

In calculating the realistic habiities, account has also been representative of the nature and term of the guarantees

taken of future management actions consistent with those set inherent in participating insurance contracts within the

out In the Principles and Practices of Financial Management participating insurance contract funds

The assumptions used to calcutate the habihty depend The accounting policies for fong-term insurance and investment

on the circumstances prevailing in each of the life operations contract liabihties are included within Notes 23 and 18

The assumptions used in determining the lrability are estimated respectivefy Sensitivities to changes in assumptions are

to give a result within the normal range of outcomes To the included within Note 4

extent that the ultimate cost differs to the amounts provided,

a) Society

i) Participating insurance contracts

For partictpating insurance contracts, a market conststent valuation 1s used to calculate the hability This involves placing a value
on habilittes sirmilar to the market value of assets with similar cash flow patterns The key assumptions used in this valuation are
set out helow

Interest rates
The nsk-free interest rates assumed are

Year 2015 2014

5 137% 119%
15 24T% 2 26%
25 283% 264%

35 268% 261%
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28 Longterm insurance and investment contract habilities valuation assumptions (continued)

Other assumptions

Best estimate assumptions are set for inflation, mortality, expenses and persistency The future expense inflation assumption
15 modelled as RPI plus O 5% (2014 RPI plus O 5%), where RP11n both 2015 and 2014 1s modelled stochastically

Asset mix for assets backing asset shares at the valuation date 2015 2014

Cash 308% 148%
Fixed interest 38.30% 3997%
Equities 4795% 49 47%
Property 10.67% 908%

Mortality rate tables

2018

2014

Conventignal Life Business

Conventional Pensions Business

Conventional Industrial Branch Business

Mon-Unitised Accumulating Pensions Business
Unitised Accumulating Life Business

Unitised Accumulating Pensions Business
Umitised Accumulating Bond Business
Unitised Accumulating Life ISA Business

Hertage Annuities In Payment

75% AMS8O0 Females -3
120% AMCOO0/AFC00
CMI_2013_1 5%
80% up to age 80, rising linearly to
100% at age 100 £LT16
65% AMSO0
80% AMBO/AF80
80% AMSO0
80% AMSO0
80% AMBSBO select/AF80 select

Males 110% RMV00 CM?_2013

75% AMBO Females -3
120% AMCOOQ/AFCO0
CMI_2013_1 5%

80% up to age 8O, nsing inearly to
100% at age 100 ELT16
65% AMBO
80% AMBO/AF80
80% AMBO
80% AMSO
80% AMBO0 select/AF80 select

Males RMVOO CMI_2013 1 5% LT

15%LT
Females 110% RFVOOCMI_2013 105 RFVOO CMI_2013 1 5% LT

15%LY
Per policy expenses -~ regular premiums 2015 2014
Conventicnal Life Business £40 50 £3910
Conventional Pensions Business £44 80 £43 20
Conventicnal Industnal Branch Business* £15 40 £14 90
Non-Unitised Accumulating Pensions Business £38 40 £3700
Umitised Accumulating Life Business £45 60 £44 00
Unitised Accumulating Pensions Business £44 B0 £43 20
Unitised Accumulating Bond Business £41 50 £40 00
Unitised Accumulating Life ISA Business £53.00 £51 10
Heritage Annuities in Payment £53 80 £51 90

A percentage of these amounts 15 used for single premium and paid up policies

* The unit cost for B business has been grossed-up to allow for a reduction made to the in-force data to reflect policies that

are believed no longer hikely to give nse to a claim

Persistency - lapses, surrenders and paid up rates

A review of persistency I$ carried out annually Assumptions for each product class are adjusted where necessary to reflect more
recent expernence as evidenced in the persistency trend analysis

Options and guarantees

There are no guaranteed annuity or financial options within the Society participating contract funds
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28 Longterm insurance and investment contract habilities valuation assumptions (continued)
1i) Non-participating insurance contracts

Interest rate 2015 2014

Nan-profit temporary assurances (original LVFS) 220% 2 10%

Non-profit temporary assurances 1.74% 158%

Whole of Iife assurances 1.74% 158%

Permanent health insurance

a) active lives 2 18% 198%

b} claims reserves 1 83% 153%

Critical lliness 218% 1 98%

Other assurances 174% 158%

Retirement Solutions annuities in payment 332% 276%

Heritage annuities in payment 2 36% 2 18%

Mortality rate tables 2018 2014

Non-profit temporary assurances (onginal LVFS) AMSOC/AF80 AMBO/AF80

Non-profit temporary assurances TMINOO/TMS00 TFNOO/TFS00* TMNOO/TMSO0 TFNOQ/TFS00*

Whole of hfe assurances AMCOO/AFCO0 CMI_2013 1 5% LT* AMCOO/AFCOO * **

QOther assurances AM92/AF92 AMO2/AF92

Retirement Solutions annurties in payment 80 75% RMVOO/RFV00 CMI_2013 80 75% RMVOQ/RFVQOQ CMI_2013
1 5% LT*+** 1 5% LT+*x*

Heritage annuities 1n payment 93 5% RMV00Q/RFV00 CMI_2013 85% RMVOQ/RFV00 CMI_2013

15%LT 15% LT

*  Asernes of duration and age-related adjustment factors are applied to the base mortality rates These adjustments
vary by product ine and smoking status

**  An allowance 15 made for future mortality improvements using uriform age-specific improvement rates denved as weighted
averages of CMI_2013 1 5% LT

*+* The mortality rates for enhanced annuity contracts are adjusted so as to allow for convergence to standard mortality
at advanced ages These adjustments vary according to lifestyle or medical condition, gender, age and duration in-force

Morbidity rate tables 2015 2014
Permanent health insurance

a} active lives CMIR12 CMIR12

b) claims reserves CMIR12 CMIR12
Cntical iliness Reinsurer rates Reinsurer rates

A series of adjustments are made to the standard mortality and morbidity tables to take account of actual experience and publicly
avallable market data The adjustments for permanent health insurance vary by product iine, age, smoking status, sickness duration,
deferred penods and occupations

Per policy expenses — regular premiums 2015 2014
Non-profit temporary assurances £19 58 £1903
Whale of life assurances £1551 £1507
Permanent health insurance

a) active ves £29 37 £28 49
b) claims reserves (per policy in claim) £662 97 £641 63
Cntical 1liness £29.04 £28 16
Other assurances £43.12 £41 58
Retrement Solutions annuities in payment £54.12 £52 36
Heritage annuities in payment £59.18 £5709

Options and guarantees
There are no significant options and guarantees in the non-participating business
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28 Long-term insurance and investment contract labilities valuation assumptions (continued)

ili} Investment and long-term linked insurance contracts

The provision for unit inked business 1s equal to the value of the assets to which the contracts are linked This i1s classified
as an investment product and the liability 1s in¢luded withun the long-term investment contract habilies

within insurance contract habilities the provisions for index-linked permanent health insurance claims, index-inked temporary
assurances and index-linked annuities In payment have been calculated using the same mortahty and morbidity assumptions
as used for the corresponding non-tinked habilities for both 2015 and 2014

b) Liverpool Victoria Life Company Limited — Ordinary Long-Term Fund
1} Particlpating insurance contracts
Liverpool Victona Life Company Limited has no participating business

ii) Non-participating insurance contracts

Interest rate 2018 2014
Non-profit temporary assurances 174% 158%
Other assurances 1.43% 122%
Mortality rate tables 2015 2014

TMNOO/TMSO0 TFNOO/TFS00
AM92/AF92

Non-profit temporary assurances
Other assurances

TMNOO/TMS00 TFNOO/TFSQ0
AM92/AF92

Appropriate adjustments were made to the standard mortality tables to take account of actual expernence

Per policy expenses - regular premiums 2015 2014
Non-profit temporary assurances £1958 £1903
Other assurances £27 94 £26 95

c) RNPFN fund
RNPFN denotes Royal National Pension Fund for Nurses, which 1s a ring-fenced fund The free assets attnibutable to this fund
are reported as insurance contract liabihities of the Society

1} Particlpating business

For participating business, a market-consistent valuation 1s used to calculate the liability This involves placing a vaiue on habilities
similar to the market value of assets with similar cash flow patterns The key assumptions used in this valuation are set out in the

tables below

Interest rates

The interest rates for RNPFN are set using an approach consistent with that described for the Society in section a(1)

Other assumptlions

Best estimate assumptions are set for inflation, mortality, expenses and persistency The future expense inflation assumption

18 modelied as RPI plus O 5% {2014 RPI plus 0 5%), where RPI in both 2015 and 2014 15 modelled stochastcatly

Asset mix for assets backing asset shares

at the valuatlon date 2015 2014
Cash 4.88% 314%
Fixed interest 60.43% 61 86%
Equities 32.30% 32 94%
Property 2.39% 2 06%
Mortality rate tables 2015 2014

Conventional Life Business
Life Deferred Annuities
Pension Deferred Annuities
Umtised with-profits Business

60% AM/F00 ult
50% AM/FOO0 ult
50% AM/FOO0 ult
60% AM/FOO ult

60% AM/FOO ult
50% AM/FQO ult
50% AM/FOO uit
60% AM/FOO ult
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28 Longterm insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptions (continued)

¢} RNPFN fund (continued)

Per policy expenses - regular premlums 2015 2014

Conventional Life Business £49 50 £3910
Pensions Deferred Annuities £44 80 £43 20
Life Deferred Annuities £40 50 £3910
Unitised with-profits ISA £53 00 £51 10
Unitised with-profits Bond £41 50 £40 00

Persistency - lapses, surrenders and paid up rates
A review of persistency 1s carned out annually Assumptions are adjusted where necessary to reflect more recent experience

as evidenced In the persistency trend analysis

Options and guarantees

The provisions held in respect of guaranteed annuity options are determined on a market consistent basis The total amount
provided tn respect of the future costs of the guaranteed annuity options was £83m (2014 £95m)

i} Non-participating business

Interest rate 2015 2014

Non-profits assurances 168% 152%
Non-profits general deferred annuities 168% 152%
Annuties in Payment (Life) 168% 152%
Annuities in Payment (Pension) 2 10% 1 90%
Pension Deferred Annuities 2 10% 1 90%
Maortality rate tables 2015 2014

Non-profits assurances
Non-profits general deferred annuities
Annuities in Payment (Male)

Annuittes in Payment (Female)

Pension Deferred Annuities

72 0% AM/FO0O ult
42 5% AM/FO00 ult
61 2% IMLOO with CMI_2009
Improvement model with a long-term
Improvement rate of 1.75%
72.3% IFLOO with CMI_2009
Improvement model with a long-term
Improvement rate of 1 5%
42 5% AM/F00 ult

72 0% AM/FOO ult
42 5% AM/FCO ult
61 2% IMLOO with CMI_2009
improvement mode! with a long-term
improvement rate of 1 75%

72 3% IFLOO with CMI_2009
improvement mode! with a long-term
improvement rate of 1 5%

42 5% AM/FOO ult

Appropriate adjustments were made to the standard mortahty tables to take account of actual expenence and publicly available

market data

fif) Linked fund

There are two main classes of contract included within the inked fund, one 1s classified as an insurance contract and the hability
1s Included within the long-term unit inked insurance contract hatwhties, the other 1s classified as an investment product and the
hability 1s included within the investment contract habilities The provision for umit inked contracts 1s equal to the value of the units
A non-unit liabihity consisting mainly of a sterling reserve calculated by carryig out cash flow projections on appropriate bases

15 included within the haility for insurance contracts only

Interest rate

2015

2014

Unit inked assurances 3 168% 1 52%
Mortality rate tables 2015 2014
Unit inked assurances 72% AM/FOO0 ult 72% AM/FOO ult
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29 Non-participating value of in-force business valuation assumptions
a) Soclety
Non-participating contracts

Interest rates

The earned rate and discount rate are set by reference to the nisk free yield curve applicable at the valuation date with appropriate
adjustments for an liquidity premium and margins for risk and uncertainty, with the exception of Retirement Solutions and Heritage
annuities in payment where the earned rate 1s based on the IRR of the risk adjusted backing assets cashflows

Mortality rate tables 2015 2014

Non-profit temporary assurances {onginal LVFS) AMS80/AF80 AMSBO/AFS0

TMNOO/TMS00 TFNOO/TFS00 TMNOQ/ TMS00 TFNOO/TFS00*

Non-profit temporary assurances CMI_2013 1 5% LT*

Whole of Life Assurances AMCOO0/AFC0O0 CMI_2013 1 5% LT* AMCOO/AFCOO* **

Other assurances AM92/AF92 AMO2/AF92

Retirement Solutions annuities In payment 95% RMV00,/RFV00 CMI_2013 95% RMVOQO/RFVO0 CMI_2013
1 5% LT*** 1 5% LT***

110% RMW‘;/ g;\:go CMI_2013 RMVOO/RFVOO CMI_2013 1 5% LT

Urut linked pensions (anginal LVFS) AMS2C20/AF92C20 AMSB2C20/AF92C20

Heritage annuities In payment

* A senres of duration and age-related adjustment factors are applied to the base mortality rates These adjustments vary
by product hine and smoking status

**  An allowance 1s made for future mortality improvements using uniform age-specific improvement rates derived as weighted
averages of CMI_2013 1 5% LT

*+* The mortality rates for enhanced annuity contracts are adjusted so as to allow for convergence to standard mortality
at advanced ages These adjustments vary according to lifestyle or medical condition, gender, age and duration in-force

Morbidity rate tables 2018 2014
Permanent health insurance

a) active lives CMIR12 CMIR12

b} claims reserves CMIR12 CMIR12
Critical iliness Reinsurer rates Rewnsurer rates

A series of adjustments are made to the standard mortality and morbichty tables to take account of actual experience and publicly
avallable market data The adjustments for permanent heaith insurance vary by product line, age, smoking status, sickness
duration, deferred pertods and occupations

Persistency and unit costs
Persistency and unit costs assumptions are based on our best estimate of future experience

A review of persistency 1s cammed out annually Assumptions for each product class are adjusted where appropnate
to reflect more recent expenence as evidenced in the persistency trend analysis

b) Liverpool Victona Life Company Limited - Ordinary Long-Term Fund
There 13 no non-participating value of in-force business recogmsed in the LYLC fund

c) RNPFN fund
There is no non-participating value of in-force business recognised in the RNPFN fund
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Fixed assets and investments
N

This section gives detall on the tangible, intangible and investment assets of the Society and Group that are used to generate
profit for the business

30 Property and equipment

~

Accounting for property and equipment

Operational property and equipment are held at cost less accumulated depreciation Cost includes the oniginal purchase
price of the asset and the costs attnbutable to bringing the asset to its working condition for 1ts intended use Both property
and equipment are depreciated on a straight ine basis over their estimated useful hves The pernods used are as follows

Freehold bulldings and finance lease property 10 to 50 years

Leasehold property enhancements 10 years or lease term If shorter
Fixtures and fittings 3 to 10 years

IT equipment 310 6 years

Provision 1s made for any imparrment in property and equipment

w
The assets’ residua! values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, at each Statement of Financiat Position date g
m
x
Freehold and Laasehold Flxtures, g
Ieasehold property fittings and IT S
proparty h | Total
Group £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 tanuary 2015 20 15 17 52
Additions 21 - 5 26
Disposals {(2) - — (2) o
At 31 December 2015 39 15 22 76 g |
=1
Accumulated depreciation %
At 1 January 2015 17 7 9 33 e
Provided In the year 1 2 3 6
Disposals (2) - - (2)
At 31 December 2015 16 9 12 37
Net book value at 31 December 2015 23 6 10 39 o
[=
Cost 5
At 1 January 2014 19 14 14 a7 5
Additions 1 1 3 5 &
At 31 December 2014 20 15 17 52
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2014 16 6 7 29
Provided in the year 1 1 2 4
At 31 December 2014 17 7 9 33
Net book value at 31 December 2014 3 8 8 19

Included within the Freehold and leasehold property category above are assets held under finance leases with a net book value
of £20m (2014 £ni)
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30 Property and equipment {continued)

Leasshold

Fixtures,

property fittings and IT

1 quip Tots!
Soclety £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2015 6 10 16
Additions - 4 4
At 31 December 2015 5] 14 20
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2015 3 5 8
Provided n the year 1 2 3
At 31 December 2015 4 7 11
Net book value at 31 December 2015 2 7 9
Cost
At 1 January 2014 8 7 13
Additions = 3 3
At 31 December 2014 6 10 16
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2014 3 4 7
Provided in the year - 1 1
At 31 December 2014 3 5 8
Net book value at 31 December 2014 3 5 8
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31 Intangible assets
~ |

Accounting for goodwlll and other intanglble assets
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group's share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary/associate

at the acquisition date and 15 included in intangible assets
Goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment at the end of the first
full year of acquisition Thereafter 1t 1s tested at each
Statement of Financial Position date for impairment against
the recoverable amount {being the higher of value (n use
or fair value less cost) of the relevant cash generating unit
and carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost
less accumulated impairment losses Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold

Goodwlill ansing on acquisitions prior to 1998 has been
eliminated against the Unallocated dvisibie surplus

This goodwill would be recognised In the Statement

of Comprehensive Income should there be a subseguent
disposal of the business to which it relates

Other intangibles

Where an acquisition takes place that gives access to
existing customers, distnbution channels or the nght to
charge for investment or policy administration services, the
present value of these 1S recognised as an intangible asset

The carrying value of the asset 1s amortised, on a straight
line basis over Its expected economic iife, and 1s assessed
annually for tmpairment

The expected economic life of other intangibles carried
by the Group 1s determined by reference to acquired
business, considenng factors such as the remaiming
terms of agreements, the norma! lives of related products
and the competitive position, and lies within the range

of 10 to 20 years

Present value of acquired In-force buslness (PVIF)

On acquisition of a portfolio of long-term insurance
contracts, the net present value of the Group's interest
in the expected cash flows of the in-force business

1s capitalised in the Statement of Financial Position

as an asset and s amortised, In line with the onginal
expected run-off of 20 years, based on the anticipated
lives of the related contracts

The carrying value of the asset 1s assessed annually
usIng current assumptions n order to determine whether
any impairment has ansen, compared to the amortised
acquired value

Any amertisation or impairment charge 1s recorded
In the Statement of Comprehensive Income within
Other operating and administrative expenses

IT Software

IAS 38 Intangible Assets requires the capitalisation

of certain expenditure relating to software costs
Software costs are capitalised if it 1s probable that

the asset created will generate future economic benefits
Costs incurred to establish technological feasibility or

to maintain existing levels of performance are recognised
as an expense

Software costs, including computer application software
ltcences, are recogmised as intangible fixed assets and
amortised using the straight ine method over their useful
lives (three to six years) The amortisation periods

used are reviewed annually

Software values are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes In circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable Where the
carrying amount 1S not recoverable the asset I1s written
down immediately to the estimated recoverable amount,
based on value in use calculations

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The Group determines whether goodwill and other
intangible assets are impaired at least on an annual basis
This requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of
the cash generating unit to which the goodwill I1s allocated
The Group has allocated the goodwill to two single cash
generating units based on the key operating segments

of the Group

Detalls of the key assumptions used in the estimation
of the recoverable amounts and the carrying value at
the reporting date are contained at the end of this note
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31 Intangible assets (continued)

Qther

Software

Intangible and licence

Goodwlll assets PYIF costs Tota!
Group £m tm £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2015 233 a5 63 11 402
Acquisitions 8 - - - 8
Additions - - - 10 10
At 31 December 2015 241 95 83 21 420
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2015 21 82 63 - 166
Charge for the year - 3 - 2 5
At 31 December 2015 21 85 83 2 171
Net book value at 31 December 2015 220 10 - 19 249
Cost
At 1 January 2014 233 a5 63 4 395
Additions - - - 7 7
At 31 December 2014 233 a5 63 11 402
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2014 21 79 63 - 163
Charge for the year - 3 — - 3
At 31 December 2014 21 82 63 — 166
Net book value at 31 December 2014 212 13 - 11 236

Present Value of acquired In-Force business {PVIF) was fully wnitten off in 2013

Other intangible assets comprise the value of the future benefit denved from the customer bases of RNPFN (in the Society) which

has been fully amertised, Britanma Road Rescue, Highway and the value of the Tomorrow/Retirement Solutions distnbution channel,
which are being amortised over penods varying between 10 and 20 years from the original acquisition date These intangible assets

will be fully amortised by 2027

Amortisation of £5m (2014 £3m) 1s presented within Other operating and administrative expenses in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income There was no impairment charge in 2015 (2014 £nil)

Goodwill has been allocated to the individual cash generating units which are based on the key segments of the Group as follows

Group
2015 2014
£m £m
Long-term insurance business 75 67
General insurance business 166 166
241 233
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31 Intangible assets (continued)

Other
intanglbla Software and

assets  licenco costs Total
Soclety £m £m tm
Cost*
At 1 January 2015 51 - 51
Additions - 1 1
At 31 December 2015 51 1 52
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2015 51 — 51
At 31 December 2015 51 - 51
Net book value at 31 December 2015 - 1 1
Cost
At 1 January 2014 51 — 51
At 31 December 2014 51 — 51
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2014 51 - 51
At 31 December 2014 51 — 51

Net book value at 31 December 2014

Impalrment testing of goodwill

Goodwill 1s reviewed annually for impairment, or more
frequently when there are indicators that impairment may have
occurred, by comparmg the carrying value to 1ts recoverable
amount The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
1S based on value In use calculations The calculations are
based upon discounting expected pre-tax cash flows at a
risk-adjusted interest rate approprate to the cash generating
unit, the determination of both of which requires the exercise
of jJudgement The estimation of pre-tax cash flows 1s
sensitive to the penods for which forecasts are available and
to assumptions regarding the long-term sustainable cash
flows While forecasts are compared with actual performance
and external economic data, expected cash flows reflect
management's view of future performance

Key assumptions used In the annual impalrment testing

of Intangible assets

The key assumptions used for impairment testing are set
out below for both the long-term insurance business and

the general insurance business The long-term insurance
business incorporates both the Heritage and Life businesses

Long-term insurance business

The recoverable amount of the long-term insurance business
has been determined using cash flow predictions based on
financial plans approved by management covering a three year
penod, with a terminal growth rate of 2% applied thereafter
The forecast cash flows have been discounted at a pre-tax
rate of 9% Both the growth rate and the discount rate

are consistent with the ranges cbserved in the market place
Based on the above assumptions, the recoverable amount
exceeded the carrying amount including goodwitl by £501m

A two percentage point increase in the discount rate would
reduce the recoverable amount by £125m, the discount rate
would need to be increased to 79% to reduce the excess

of the recoverable amount over the carrying value to zero

A reduction In the forecast cash flows of 10% per annum
would reduce the recoverable amount by £62m, the forecast
cash flows would need to be reduced by 82% per annum

to reduce the excess of the recoverable amount over the
carrying value 1o zero

General insurance business

The recoverable amount of the general insurance business
has been deterrmned using cash flow predictions based on
financial plans approved by management covering a three year
pertod, with a terminal growth rate of 2% applied thereafter
The forecast cash flows have been discounted at a pre-tax
rate of 9% Both the growth rate and the discount rate are
consistent with the ranges observed in the market place
Based on the above assumptions, the recoverable amount
exceeded the carrying amount including goodwill by £763m
A two percentage point increase in the discount rate would
reduce the recoverable amount by £328m, the discount rate
would need to be increased to 17% to reduce the excess

of the recoverable amount over the carrying value to zero

For the general insurance business the cash flows used in the
financial plans are most sensibive to changes in the loss ratio
A 1% increase 1n the loss ratio would reduce the recoverable
amount by £191m, the loss ratio would need to increase

by 4 1% over the longer term, 10 reduce the excess of the
recaverable amount over the carrying value to zero Key loss
ratio assumptions are based on a combination of histornc

and current market place trends, and management judgement
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32 Investments in group undertakings .

Accounting for investments In group undertakings
Shares in subsidlaries
The subsidianes are held in the Society's Statement of Financial Position at cost less any provision for impairment

Loan stock in subsidiaries

An assessment of the realtsable value 1s made at the year end and, if the Directors assess that there has been a permanent
fall in that value below the carrying value, a provision is made to bring the carrying value down to the assessed realisable value

Loan stock in substdianes is inthally measured at fair value Subsequent to initial recognition it 1s measured at amortised cost

2018 2014

Soclety £m £m

Shares in subsidiaries

Cost less provisions at 1 January 467 466
' Acquisitions 8 -
: Additions 6 1
! Reduction in carrying value including write-offs (11) -
. 470 467
Loan stock In subsidlarles

Cost at 1 January 300 300
' 300 300
j Shares and loan stock in subslidlaries at 31 December 770 767

The £8m acquisition relates to the purchase of the Wealth Wizards Group of companies by the Society in 2015 (see Note 50}

The Society has examined the carrying value of its subsidianes and concluded that a provision for impatrment of £11m

(2014 £nil) was required in regard 1o these investments Additions pnmarily retate to caprtal injections made into existing

subsidiary undertakings during the year

Further details of the Group s loan stock are given in Note 52 and the Group’s investments 1n Notes 46 and 47
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Other assets and liabilities
—

This section describes the other assets and labilities anising from the life insurance business within the Soclety and the fe
nsurance and general insurance businesses within the Group

S AV T PR YR

ke s

33 Insurance receivables

Group Soclaty
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m im £m im
Due from policyholders 159 134 2 1
Due from agents, brokers and intermedianies 84 69 - -
Due from reinsurers 18 17 18 17 !
261 220 20 18

Insurance recewvables are all due within one year for both the Group and the Society
The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date

34 Prepayments and accrued income

w
Group Society §
2015 2014 2015 2014 uﬁﬁ’
£m £im £m £m o
Accrued Interest 88 96 66 64 ‘3
Other prepayments and accrued income 37 27 25 14 5
125 123 91 78
Prepayment and accrued income balances are all due within one year for both the Group and the Society
35 Insurance payables
Group Society gb
2015 2014 2015 2014 r<u
£m £m £m £m g
Due to policyholders 31 27 27 21 §
Due to brokers and intermediaries 1 1 1 1
Due to reinsurers 254 10 1 1
286 38 29 23

In the latter part of 2015 the Group entered 1nto a Loss Portfolio Transfer Agreement resulting in reinsurance of 20% of its general
insurance booked reserves as at 31 December 2015 This has had an impact of £242m on the amounts due to reinsurers

<
=
The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date §
[=]
36 Trade and other payables &
Accounting for trade and other payables ~
Trade and other payables are recognised as they fail due They are measured initially at fair value and subseguently
at amortised cost *
Group Society
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m im
Bank overdrafts 27 18 16 6
Trade payables ir 19 16 19
Amounts owed to group undertakings - - 30 39
Other taxes and social security costs ae 27 4 7
QOther creditors 108 79 72 27
finance lease liabitities (see note 30) 20 2 - -
Accruals and deferred income 110 111 66 63 ~
318 256 204 161

The carrying amounts disclosed above reascnably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Pesition date
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Taxation )

-~

This section presents informatron relating to the tax charge and movements in the corporation and deferred tax assets and habilities
heid by the Society and Group

37 Income tax expense/(credit)

Current income tax

Current income tax labiities and assets are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation
authorities The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted

at the Statement of Financtal Position date

Deferred Income tax

Deferred income tax 1s recognised, using the liabiity method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets
and habilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements Deferred income tax 1s determined using tax
rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax hability 1s settled Deferred income
tax assets are recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxabte profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there i1s a legally enforceable rnight to offset current tax assets against
current tax habiittes and when the deferred income taxes assets and habilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authonty on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there 1S an intention to settle the balances on a net basis

a) Current year tax charge Group Soclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Current tax charge
Current year 8 25 1 11
Adjustment In respect of prior years {2) {1) {2) {1)
Total current tax 6 24 (1) 10

Deferred tax

Temporary differences 1 23 1 23
Adjustment in respect of prior years {1) — {1) 1
Total deferred tax - 23 - 24
Total income tax expense/(credit) 6 47 {1) 34
b) Reconclliation of tax charge Group Soclety

2015 2014 2015 2014

£m £m £m £m

Profit/{loss) before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer* 124 37 118 (20)
Tax calcutated at the average standard rate of corporation tax
in the UK at 20 25% (2014 21 5%) 25 8 24 4
Permanent differences
Income and expenses not subject to tax 6 2 - -
Mutual profit not subyect to tax (24) 4 (24) 4
Policyholder I-E tax 2 34 2 34
Adjustment to current tax charge in respect of prior years {2) (1) (2) (1)
Adjustment to deferred tax charge in respect of prior years {1) - {1) 1
Total charge 6 47 {1) 34

The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK changed from 21% to 20% with effect from 1 Apnl 2015
Accordingly, the profits for this financial year are taxed, where applicable, at an effective rate of 20 25%

* As a Friendly Society, all net earnings are for the benefit of participating policyholders and are carned forward within the
Unallocated divisible surplus (UDS), resulting in the profit for each financial year being zero Therefore the resulting Profit before
tax required to be disclosed under |AS 12 will always be equal to the tax charge being £6m (2014 £47m} and £(1)m (2014
£34m) for the Group and Society respectively

In order to present a more meaningful disclosure the Profit before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer 1s disclosed in the tables above
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38 Corporation tax asset

Group Soclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Corporaticn tax receivable 10 - 8 -
10 — 8 -
32 Deferred tax liabiiity
Group Soclety
Restated - Restated -
see Note 1 see Note 1
£m £m
Balance at 1 January 2015 (18} (18)
Amounts recorded tn the Statement of Comprehensive income - -
Amounts included in pension scheme re-measurements (23} (23)
Other movements {1) (1)
Balance at 31 December 2015 (42) {42)
Group Soclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
1} Analysis of deferred taxation temporary differences £m £m £m £m
Excess of depreciation 2 2 - -
Temporary differences on expenses 11 18 12 18
Temporary differences ansing on consolidation (1) (1) - -
Temporary differences on unrealised gans (24) {30) (24) (30)
Temporary differences on re-measurement
of defined benefit pension scheme (30) (7} (30) {7)
Deferred tax hability (42) {18} (42) {18)
n) Deferred taxation asset not recognised
Tax losses unrecognised 4 4 - -
4 4 - -

The value of deferred tax habihties expected to be settled after more than 12 months 1s £39m in the Group (2014 £18m)

and £39m in the Society (2014 £18m)

The calculation of deferred tax balances at the year-end also takes into account the reduction in the UK main corporation tax
rate to 20%, effective from 1 April 2015, and further reductions to 19% and 18%, both substantively enacted on 26 October 2015,
that will be effective from 1 Apni 2017 and 1 Apnl 2020 respectively

The valuation and recoverability of deferred tax assets relating to capital allowances in excess of depreciation, and temporary
differences on expenses 1s dependent on the availability of future taxable profits within the Seciety and Group Management
forecasts currently support the future recoverability of deferred tax assets recognised in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2015

40 Corporation tax hability

Qroup Soclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £im £m
Carporation tax - 16 - 10
- 16 - 10
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Employee benefits
A

This section detalls the costs and commitments associated with employing our staff

41 Employee benefits expense

Accounting for staff costs under IAS 19

Short-term employee benefits

to which the payments relate

The Society and Group apply IAS 19 Employee benefits in accounting for staff costs

Salaries, accrued bonuses and social security costs are recognised over the period in which the employees provide the services

Group Sociaty
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Wages and salanes 229 207 229 207
Social secunty costs 20 20 20 20
Pension costs 21 21 21 21
270 248 270 248

Wages and salaries include charges for ongoing in fight long-term incentive plans (LTIPs) for Life, General Insurance and Group
employees of £1 8m 1in 2015 (2014 £1 7m) The Group LTIP plan terms are described in the Annual Report on Remuneration

on page 103

For the 2013-15 scheme the Life and General Insurance businesses and Group have met the threshold targets for growth
in Enterprise Value and, Relative Investment Performance and £3 7m will be paid to eligible employees in April 2016

The number of employees dunng the year, including executive directors, calculated on a monthly average basis, was as follows

Group Scclaty
2015 2014 2015 2014
Number Number Number Number
Member and customer contact 3,979 3,952 3,979 3,952
Administration 2,051 1,937 2,051 1,937
6,030 5,889 6,030 5,889
42 Pension benefit asset/{obligation)
S~

Accounting for pension benefits under IAS 19

For defined benefit schemes, the net surplus or deficit

15 calculated annually with the assets measured at the fair
value at the Statement of Financial Position date and the
llabiities discounted at the rate of return avatlable on high
quality corporate bonds The net surplus, to the extent
recoverable, or deficit 1s recognised as a pension benefit
asset or liability in the Statement of Financial Position

The pension cost for the schemes 1s analysed between
current service cost, past service cost, net interest

on the net defined benefit habibty and any gain or l0ss
on settlement Current service cost 1s the actuanally
calculated present value of the benefits earned by the
active employees in each period Past service costs,
relating to employee service in prior penods ansing

in the current penod as a result of the introduction of,
or improvement to, retirement benefits, are recognised
in Other operating and administrative expenses on a
straight-line basis over the penod in which the increases
in benefits vest or are earned

All movements other than re-measurements b respect
of the pension benefit obligation are recognised in Other

operating and administrative expenses in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income Actuanal gains and losses
ansing from experience adjustments and changes in
actuaral assumptions are recognised as re-measurements
In the Statement of Comprehensive Income 1in the period

In which they arise

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to an independently admnistered pension fund The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid The contnbutions are recognised as an
employee benefit expense when they are due

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The valuations of the pension benefit obhigations for

the Group's two defined benefit schemes require actuarial
assumptions about discount rates, inflation, future salary
Increases, longevity and future pension increases

Due to the long-term nature of these obligations,

the estimates are subject to significant uncertainty

Details of the pnncipal assumptions used for each of the
defined benefit schemes are disclosed within the valuations
of the individual schemes disclosed in sections {n) and {u)
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42 Pension benefit asset/{obligation) {continued)

Deftned benefit pension schemes

The Group operates two defined benefit pension schemes, the LV= Employee Pension Scheme (‘LV Scheme'} and the Ockham
Pension Scheme (acquired as part of an earlier acquisition) The Society is the principal empioyer for both of these schemes
Further details of the LV and Ockham schemes are disclosed separately within sections {u} and {u1) of this note respectively

| Deflned contribution pension schemes
All employees are eligible to Join the defined contribution scheme Employees contribute a mimmum of 3% of salary The employee
contribution 1s double matched by the Society up to @ maximum employer contribution of 14% The assets of this scheme are held
separately from those of the Group 1n an independently administered fund The Group's contrtbution under this scheme during the
year amounted to £19m (2014 £19m)

i) Summary of defined benefit schemes

Pension beneflt asset/(obligation) 2015 2014
LV Scheme Cckham Total LV Scheme Ockham Total
! £m £m £m £m £m £m
Asset 87 - 87 21 - 21
Obligation - (3) (3) - {11) 11
87 (3) 84 21 {11) 10
Re-measurements 2015 2014 Restated — see Nete 1
LV Scheme Gckham Total LV S¢cheme Ockham Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Re-measurements 66 8 74 33 (7) 26
Income tax expense {23) - (23) {7} - ()
Amount charged to Total Comprehensive Income 43 8 51 26 {7) 19
Cumulative re-measurements recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income 115 {4) 111 72 (12} 60

fi) LV Scheme

a) Information about the scheme

The LV scheme 1s a final salary pension scheme, which
provides benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed
level of pension payable for ife The level of benefits depends
upon the member’s length of service and their final salary

The scheme assets are held in a separate trustee-admimstered
fund to meet long-term pension liabilities to past and present
employees

The liabilities of the scheme are measured by discounting
the best estimate of future cash flows to be paid out

by the scheme using the projected unit method, which

1s an accrued benefits valuation method

The scheme has a Corporate Trustee required to act in the
best interests of the scheme’s beneficiaries The Trustee may
be removed at the discretion of the Society, in its capacity

as principal employer, provided that the board of any new
trustee company comprises three directors representing the
members, including one director who must be a pensicner
and up to a further five directors selected by the Society

The LV scheme 1s recognising a pension benefit asset

of £87m as at 31 December 2015 (2014 £21m)

Recognising this asset under the current critena of IFRIC

14, 'The imit on a defined benefit asset, mmmum funding
requirement and their interaction’ 1s allowable because the
terms of the pension scheme trust deed state that the Society
has an unconditional right to any assets of the scheme which
ultimately remain following the scheme’s termination There
are currently proposals being discussed to amend IFRIC 14
Under these new proposals the Society would still be able

to recognise an asset on the scheme because the pension
scheme trust deed does not allow for the unilateral termination
and wind-up of the scheme by the trustees Also under the
terms of the pension scheme trust deed, assuming the gradual
settlement of the scheme hiabilities over time until all members
have left the scheme, the Society would have an uncondrtional
right to any of the assets of the scheme which remain, net

of tax and expenses As at 31 December 2015, these new
proposals had not been adopted

The scheme 15 closed to new entrants and was closed

to future accrual for existing members on 30 June 2013,

at which time they were eligible to join the defined contribution
pension scheme

2015 2014
b) Net Statement of Flnancia! Position £m £m
Present value of defined benefit obligation {1,080) (1,234)
Fair value of plan assets 1,167 1,255
Pension benefit asset at the end of the year 87 21
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Notes 10 the Financial Statements contnued

Year ended 31 December 2015

42 Pension benefit asset/(obligation) (continued)
i} LV Scheme (continued)

Prasent value Falr value of
of obligation plan assets Total

c) The movement in the net deflned benefit asset over the year is as follows £m £m £m
At 1 January 2015 (1,234) 1,255 21 \
Pension costs
Current service cost {2) - (2} ‘
Interest (expense)/income (41) 41 - .

{43) 41 {2) ‘
Re-measurements .
— Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included n interest {expense)/income - (83) (83)
— Gain from changes in demographic assumptions 13 - 13
— Gain from changes In financial assumptions 101 - 101
— Expernience gains 35 - 35

149 (83) 66
Other movements
- Contrnibutions by employer - 2 2
— Benefits paid 48 (48) -

48 (46} 2
At 31 December 2015 {1,080) 1,167 87
At 1 january 2014 (1,061) 1,049 12)
Pension costs
Current service cost {2) - (2)
Interest (expense)/income (48) 48 -

{50) 48 (2)
Re-measurements
— Return on plan assets, excluding amounts inciuded In interest (expense)/income - 202 202
- Loss from changes in financial assumptions (170) - (170)
— Experience gains 1 - 1

(169) 202 33

Other movements
- Contributions by employer - 2 2
- Benefits paid 44 (44) -
- Administrative expenses paid 2 (2) -

46 (44) 2 1
At 31 December 2014 (1,234) 1,255 21
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Notes to the Financial Statements conunued
Year ended 31 December 2015

42 Pension benefit asset/(cbligation) (continued)
if) LV Scheme (continued)

d} Principal assumptions used 2015 2014
Discount rate 395% 3 30%
RPIl inflation 310% 3 30%
CPl inflation 2 10% 2 30%
Pension increases for In-payment henefits
- RPI price inflation capped at 5% pa, floor of 3% pa 345% 3 40%
— RPI price inflation capped at 5% pa 310% 3 30%
— RPI price inflation capped at 2 5% pa 2 40% 2 50%
— CPl price inflation capped at 3 0% pa 2 10% 2 30%
Rate of (non-guaranteed minimum gension) increases In deferment 210% 2 30%
Cash commutation Active at the time of scheme closure 10 0% 10 0%
Deferred at the time of scheme closure 20 0% 20 0%

Scheme member valuation date 31 March 2015 31 March 2012

The discount rate and inflation rate assumptions for 2015 and 2014 have been set with reference to yield curves The single rates
disclosed above represent the weighted average equivalent rate based on the yield curve used

Mortality for members is assumed to follow the tables

below as at 31 December

2015

2014

Pre-retirement mortality Deferred pensioners

- Males
- Females

Post-retirement mortality Non-pensioners

- Males
- Females (former empioyees)
- Females {dependants)

Post-retirement mortality current pensioners and

dependants

- Males

- Females (former employees)
- Females (dependants)

LV specific tables from Club Vita
LV specific tables from Club Vita

LV specific tables from Club Vita
LV specific tables from Club Vita
LV specific tables from Club Vita

LV specific tables from Cilub Vita
LV specific tables from Club Vita
LV specific tables from Club Vita

1NMA x O 95 table
1NFA x 0 98 table

LV spectfic tables from Club Vita
LV specific tables from Club Vita
LV specific tables from Club Vita

LV specific tables from Club Vita
LV spectfic tabiles from Club Vita
LV specific tables from Club Vita

In all cases, as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, CMI Core 2011 projections with a long-term trend of 1 25% have

been applied

e) Sensitivity analysis Impact on defined benefit obligation of making changes to key assumptions

Change In assumptlion

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Discount rate
RPI rate
Life expectancy

Decrease by 0 5%
Decrease by 0 5%
Increase by 1 year

Increase by £102m (9%)
Decrease by £53m (5%)
Increase by £33m (3%)

The sensitivity analysis has been calculated by valuing the defined benefit obligation using the amended assumptions shown
in the table above and keeping the remaining assumptions the same as disclosed in the principal assumptions table for the
scheme, except in the case of the inflatton sensitivity where other assumptions that depend on assumed inflation have also

been amended correspondingly
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Notes to the Financial Statements contnued
Year ended 31 December 2015

42 Pension benefit asset/{obligation} (continued)

ii) LV Scheme (continued)
f) Plan asset information

The following table shows a breakdown of the plan assets

2015 2014
Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Linguoted Totat

£m £m £m % £m im m %
Equities and unit trusts 82 11 93 8 151 12 163 13
Debt securities 1,050 - 1,050 90 927 - 927 74
Cash and cash equivalents 68 - 68 6 45 - 45 4
Real estate/property - 38 38 3 - 39 39 3
Derivatives (38) {65) {103) (9) - 63 63 5
Other 1 20 21 2 - 18 18 1
Total 1,163 4 1,167 100 1,123 132 1,255 100

The investment objectives of the scheme remain the maximisation of income and capital growth consistent with the principles
of prudent management Investment managers have been appointed by the trustee to exercise ali or any of the trustee’s powers
and discretion in relation 1o investment of the Scheme’s assets The principal obrectives are stated below

+ To maintain a portfolio of assets of appropnate liquidity and diversification to generate income and capttal growth to enable
the scheme to meet the cost of current and future benefits as set out In the Trust Deed and Rules,

+ To limit the nsk of the assets failling to meet the habilities over the teng-term and in relation to the scheme specific funding
measure introduced by the Pensions Act 2004 in the shorter-term, and

* To control the long-term costs of the scheme by maximising the return on the assets whilst having regard to the objectives

stated above

Following the triennial scheme valuation that took place as at 31 March 2015, the Society as principal employer 15 currently
In discussions with the trustees as to the on-going funding requirements of the scheme following the valuation results

The Society continues to make payments of £158,720 per month towards the regufar expenses of administering the defined
benefit section of the Scheme The next formal valuation of the scheme 1s due no later than 31 March 2018

g) Pension scheme risks

Through 1ts defined benefit pension schemes the Group 1s exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which

are detailed below

Asset volatility

Changes in bond ylelds

Inflation risk

Life expectancy

The plan habilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields,
if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit The plan assets are predominantly
held in debt securities which match the habilities with a small holding of equities that are expected
to outperform corporate bonds in the long-term

A decrease in carporate bond yields will increase plan habihities, although this will be offset
by an increase in the vaiue of the scheme's bond holdings

The majority of the scheme's benefit obhgations are linked to inflation, therefore an Increase
in inflation will lead to an increase in habilities In most cases, caps on the level of inflationary
tncreases and derivatives are In place to protect the scheme against significant nses in inflation

The scheme's obligaticns are to provide benefits for the Iife of the member, s¢ any increases
in Iife expectancy will result in an increase 1in the scheme's llabiities In 2012 the trustees
of the LV Scheme entered into a longevity swap which mitigated the majonty of this risk

for the LV scheme

h) Expected matunty analysis of undiscounted pension Less than Betweon Bstwoen

b fits a yesar 12 years 2 5 years Over S yoars Total
ene £m £m £m £m £m

At 31 December 2015 44 39 124 2,300 2,507

The wesghted average duration of the gross defined benefit obligation 1s 18 years
The expected contributions to the scheme for the year ending 31 December 2016 are £2m
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2015

42 Pension benefit asset/{obligation) {(continued)

iii) Ockham Scheme

a) Information about the scheme

The Ockham scheme Is a final salary pension scheme, which provides benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed level

of pension payable for ife The level of benefits depends upon the members’ length of service and therr final salary The scheme
1s closed to new entrants

The scheme assets are held in separate trustee-administered funds to meet long-term pension habilities to past employees

The labilities of the scheme are measured by discounting the best estimate of future cash flows to be paid out by the scheme using o
the projected unit method, which 1s an accrued benefits valuation method

The scheme has a Board of Trustees who are required to act in the best interests of the scheme's beneficiaries Two of the trustees

are nominated by the members under the rules notified to the members of the scheme, to serve for a period of three years £
In accordance with the trust deed, the Society, as pnncipal employer, has the power to appoint and remove the other trustees §
of the scheme The member-nominated trustees may be removed before the end of their three year term only by the agreement i3
of all the remaining trustees é?
o
2015 2014 -
b) Net Statement of Financial Position £m £m
Present value of defined benefit obhigation {(122) {138)
Fair value of plan assets 119 127
Pension benefit obligation at the end of the year (3) {11}
o)
g
Presont value Fair value of g
of obligation plan assots Total g
¢) The movement in the net defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows £ £m £m @
At 1 January 2015 (138) 127 {11)
Penslon costs
Interest (expense)/income (4) 4 -
(4) 4 -
Re-measurements =4
- Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest (expense)/income - (8) 8) %
— Gain from changes in financial assumptions 11 - 11 8
— Experience gains 5 - 5 %
16 (8) 8
Other movements
- Benefits paid 4 {4) -
4 {4) -
At 31 December 2015 {122) 119 {3) |
At 1 January 2014 {120} 116 (4} ‘
Pension costs
Interest {expense}/income (5) 5 -
{5) 5 -
Re-measurements
— Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included mn interest (expense}/income - 10 10
— Loss from changes i financial assumptions (17} - (17)
(17) 10 (7)
Other movements
- Benefits paid 4 (4) -
4 {4)

At 31 December 2014 {138) 127 (11)
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42 Pension benefit asset/{obligation) (continued)
in) Ockham Scheme {(continued)

d) Principa! assumptions used 2015 2014

Discount rate 39% 31%
RPIl inflation 31% 32%
CPl inflation 21% 2 3%
Rate of increase in pensions (n payment

— linked to inflation 31% 3 2%
— fixed rate in line with scheme rules in hne with scheme rules
Rate of (non-guaranteed mirimum pension} increases in deferment 21% 2 3%
Cash commutation — Deferreds 20 0% 20 0%

The discount rate and inflation rate assumptions for 2015 and 2014 have been set with reference to yield curves The single rates
disclosed above represent the weighted average equivalent rate based on the yield curve used

Mortality rate assumptions are based on the same mortality tables as disclosed within the LV Scheme

e) Sensitlvity analysis Impact on defined benefit obligation of making changes to key assumptions

Change in assumption Impact on deflned benefit obligation

Discount rate
RPI rate
Life expectancy

Decrease hy 0 5%
Decrease by 0 5%
Increase by 1 year

Increase by £10m (8%)
Decrease by £5m (4%)
Increase by £5m (4%)

The sensitivity analysis has been calculated by valuing the defined benefit obligation using the amended assumptions shown
In the table above and keeping the remaining assumptiens the same as disclosed in the principal assumptions table for the
scheme, except In the case of the inflation sensitivity where other assumptions that depend on assumed inflation have also

been amended correspondingly

f} Plan asset information
Plan assets are compnsed as follows

2018 2014
Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unguoted Total

£m £m £m % £m £m £m %
Equities and unit trusts 36 - 36 30 35 - 35 27
Debt securties 81 - 81 68 69 - 69 54
Derivative swaps - {1} (1) (1) - 21 21 17
Cash and cash equivalents 3 - 3 3 2 - 2 2
Total 120 (1) 119 100 106 21 127 100

The overall investment oljective of the Ockham pension
scheme 1s to obtain a rate of return, net of investment
management charges, that 1s 2 5% p a In excess of the return
avallable on securities that broadly match the term and nature
of the scheme’s future benefit payments within a sk budget
that the trustees consider to be appropniate This involves the
use of derivatives (a swap overlay) to reduce the risks of the
assets not matching the nature and term of the scheme’s
future benefit cbhgations

g) Penston scheme risks

Following the trienntal scheme valuation that took place

as at 31 March 2015, the Society as prnncipal employer

1s currently In discussions with the trustees as to the
on-going funding requirements of the scheme following

the valuation results The Society continues to pay the
expenses for administenng the scheme The next formal
valuation of the scheme 15 due no later than 31 March 2018

Detalls of the pension scheme nisks that the Group 1s exposed to are disclosed within the LV Scheme

h} Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted pension benefits

Less than Between Between

a year 12 years 2 5ysars  Qver 5 years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2015 8 5 15 223 248

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation 1s 16 years
No contributions are expected to be made to the Ockham pension scheme for the year ending 31 December 2016
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Year ended 31 December 2015

Provisions, contingent liabilities and commitments

This section describes the provisions, contingent habilities and commitments of the Society and Group ansing from the ongoing
Iife and general insurance businesses and the exit from the banking and asset management busingsses i prior years

43 ProvisIions

Accounting for provisions
General

when the reimbursement 1s certain

The expense relating to provisions 1s presented in the Statement o
Onerous contracts

future economic benefits

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present tegal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
1t 1s maore likely than not that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been
reliably estimated Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed it 1s recognised as a separate asset

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure required to settle the abhgation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obhgation

f Comprehensive Income

A provision 1s made for onerous contracts in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligation exceed the expected

Movement during the year on provisions

Group Society
PPl Other PPI Other
proviston provisions Total provislon provislons Total
£m £m im £m £m £m
Batance at 1 January 2015 5 9 14 5 5 10
Provided during the year 2 1 3 2 1 3
Released dunng the year - 4) 4) - (2) (2)
Utilsed dunng the year {2) (1) (3) {2) - (2)
Balance at 31 December 2015 5 5 10 5 4 9
Other provisions relate to
Group Soclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
£Em im £m £m
Onerous contracts on property leases 3 1 3 1
Compensation payable on customer complaints 1 2 - 1
Other 1 5] 1 3
5 9 4 5

The payment protection insurance (PPl) provision 1s held

to cover future payments In respect of claims relating to PPI
policies potentially mis-sold to customers Following a review
of outstanding PPI claims carried out during the year, the

level of provision was increased by £2m The current level

of provision held 1s expected to be sufficient to cover the costs
of expected future redress and admimistration At 31 December
2015, following payments made during the year of £2m,

the provision was £5m Given the assumptions made it

is expected that up to £2m of payments will be set against
this prowsion duning 2016, with the remainder of the provision
utilised within three years

There are a large number of inter dependent assumptions
underpinning the PPl provision When considering the key
assumptions separately, the most significant driver of the
provision is complaint flow If the level of complaints were
10% higher {lower) than the estimated level, assuming

no change In other assumptions, then the provision would
have increased {decreased) by approximately £1m

The Group will re-evaluate the assumptions underiying

1ts analysis at each reporting date as more information
becomes avallabte
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2015

44 Contingent habihties

Accounting for contingent liabilities
Contingent habilities are disclosed if there 1s a possible future obligation as a result of a past event, or if there is a present
obhgation as a result of a past event but either a payment i1s not probable or the amount cannot be reasonably estimated

The Scciety has granted a contingent loan facility to the budget, with this facility only to be constdered as a short-term

RNPFN fund, a closed fund within the Society, up to a maximum emergency facility in the event of sudden and severe investment

of £100m (the value applying for 2015 was £66m), to be used shocks or an insurance catastrophe event

In the event of a shortfall in the capital resources of that fund

The RNPFN fund 1s required to manage 1ts capial in a manner A contungent liability of £24m exists in respect of a fixed

50 as not to require use of this facility and, if 1t 1s used, to repay charge over certain assets of the Group which have been

It to the Society as soon as possible While undrawn a charge charged to the Ockham Penston Trustee Limited as part

for the facility 1s made at 1% per annum of its deficit funding arrangements agreed with the Society,
as the sponsonng employer As at 31 December 2015 this

The Society has also granted a capital facihty of £20m to the fixed charge was transferred from assets held by Liverpool

board of Liverpool Victona General Insurance Group Limited Victoria Insurance Company Limited to assets held directly

{LVGIG) to be used in the event of a shortfall in the capital by the Society The charge will only crystallise in the event

solvency of LVGIG's regulated subsidiaries This would take of the insolvency of the Society or proceedings being started

the form of a permanent capital contribution and repayment by therr creditors No claims under this iability have been

would therefore be dependent on the future solvency position made and no insoivency proceedings have commenced

of LVGIG The risk appetite adopted by the LVGIG board requires against either the Society or any Group company during

the directors to manage its affairs within its agreed capital the course of 2015

45 Commitments

~
Accounting for assets held under leases
Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements and the risks and rewards are substantially transferred to the Group,
such finance leases are treated as If the assets had been purchased outright and the corresponding iability to the lessor
15 Included as an obligation in trade and other payables The lrability 1s based on the present value of mimmum lease payments
at the inception of the lease Any rentals in excess of this are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income as they anse
Depreciation on leased assets 15 charged to the Statement of Comprehensive income on a straight line basts over the lower
of the term of the lease or its estimated useful fife The capital element on finance leases 1s shown in the property and
equipment note

Lease payments are treated as consisting of capital and interest elements and the interest 1s charged to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income

All other leases are operating leases and the costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the
lease term The value of any lease incentive received to take on an operating lease (for example, rent free periods) 1s recognised
as deferred income and 1s released over the hfe of the lease

a) Capital commitments Group Soclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m

Authonised and contracted commitments payable after 31 December
not provided for in respect of

— other financial iInvestments 12 16 12 16
— property and equipment 10 9 10

22 25 22 25
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2015

45 Commitments (continued)

b} Operating lease commitments

The Group leases various properties under non-cancellable operating tease agreemenis The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights The future aggregate minimum lease payments net of income under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows

Group Soclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Within one year 6 6 5 5
Between one and five years 11 14 9 11
Over five years - 1 - 1
17 21 14 17

The Group has entered into commercial subleases for some of its properties that are unoccupied These leases have varying
terms and escalation clauses Where these subleases are insufficient to cover the Group’s operating lease agreements an
onerous contract provision for unused premises 1s set up The future aggregate minimum sublease payments expected to
be received under operating subleases are

Group Soclety
2015 2014 2015 2014
Em £im £m £m
Within one year 1 1 1 1
Between one and five years - 1 - 1
i 2 1 2

c) Finance lease commitments

At the beginning of the year, the finance lease refated to a property with a lease term of 99 years Duning the year this lease
was terminated and a new lease was put in place with a lease term of 25 years Interest rates are fixed at the contract rate
All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent payments The Group's
obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets

Group
2015 2014
£m £m
Gross finance lease labilities — minimum lease payments
Within one year 1 -
Between one and five years 5 1
QOver five years 24 16
30 17
Future finance charges on finance leases {190) {15)
Present value of financial lease liabilities 20 2
Group
2015 2014
£m £m
Gross future rentals committed in excess of finance lease mintmum lease payment
Within one year - 1
Between one and five years - 3
Qver five years - 45
- 49
Minimum lease payments 30 17
Gross commitment under finance leases 30 66
Group
2015 2014
£m £m
The present value of finance lease liabilities 1s as follows
Within one year 1 -
Between one and five years 2 -
Qver five years 17 2
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Notes to the Financial Statements contnued
Year ended 31 December 2015

45 Commitments (continued)
c) Finance lease commitments {continued)

Group
2015 2014
£m £m

Contingent rentals incurred in the penod are as follows
Relating to finance leases -

[

d) Other financial commitments

The Group has entered into several long-term contracts following service outsourcing These contracts will end no later than 2021
The present value of the remaining commitment 1s estimated at £64m (2014 £78m) for the Group and the Society These amounts
have not been provided for tn the financial statements

In December 2014, the Group announced its agreement to take over the majonty of the business interests of Teachers Provident
Society Limited, which trades as Teachers Assurance The formal transfer will take place in the first half of 2016, subject to
regulatory approval
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Scope of consolidation
_—

This section presents information on the Group's Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and structured entities
Detail 1s also given of the Unallocated divisible surplus of the Society and Group

46 Subsidiary undertakings
All subsidiary undertakings are included in the conseolidation The proportion of the voting nights in the subsidiary undertakings
held directly by the parent company do not differ from the proportion of ordinary shares held

The Group and all principal undertakings are incorporated and domiciled 1n England and Wales All holdings are in relation
to ordinary shares

The registered office 1s County Gates, Bournemouth BH1 2NF

Fercentage

Percentage  held by

non

held by controlling

Name Princlpal activity Group Interests
Subsidiaries

Frizzell Financial Services Limited (Note 1) Property management 100% 0%
Highway Insurance Company Linuted* General insurance 100% 0%
Highway Insurance Group Ltd* (Note 1) General insurance holding company 100% 0%
Liverpool Victona Financial Advice Services Limited {Note 1) Financial advice services 100% 0%
Liverpool Victoria General Insurance Group Limited* General insurance holding company 99% 1%
Liverpool Victoria Insurance Company Limited* General insurance 100% 0%
Liverpool Victona Life Company Limited Life insurance 100% 0%
Liverpool Victoria Portfolio Managers Limited {Note 1) Investment management 100% 0%
LV Protection Limited Insurance 100% 0%
LV Capital PLC (Note 1) Holding company 100% 0%
LV Equity Release Limited {Note 1) Origination of equity release hifetime mortgages 100% 0%
LV Insurance Management Limited * (Note 1) Management services 100% 0%
LV Life Services Limited (Note 1) Management services 100% 0%
LV Assistance Services Limited* (Note 1) Road Rescue - Pay on use 100% 0%
LV Repair Services Limited* (Note 1) Repalr services 100% O%
LV Commercial Mortgages Limited (Note 1) Commercial mortgages 100% 0%
NM Pensions Trustees Limited {(Note 1} Self-invested personal pension (SIPP) administrator 100% 0%
Ayresbrook Limited (Note 1) Holding company 100% 0%
Wealth Wizards Limited (Note 1} IT Software 70% 30%
Opal Benefits Limited* (Note 1) Financia! intermediary 100% 0%
Opal IFA Limited* (Note 1} Dormant 100% 0%
Wealth Wizards Advisers Limited* (Note 1) Financial intermediary 100% 0%
Liverpool Victoria Banking Services Limited {Note 2) Dormant 100% 0%
Liverpoo! Victoria Asset Management Limited (Note 2) Dormant 100% 0%
Highway Group Services Limited* {Note 2) Dormant 100% 0%
Highway Corporate Capital Limited* (Note 2} Dormant 100% 0%
Ockham Corporate Limited* (Note 2) Dormant 100% 0%
NLC Name No 1 Limited* (Note 2) Dormant 100% 0%
NLC Name No 2 Limited* (Note 2) Dormant 100% 0%
NLC Name No 3 Limited* (Note 2) Dormant 100% 0%
NLC Name No 4 Limited* (Note 2) Dormant 100% 0%
NLC Name No 5 Limited* (Note 2) Dormant 100% 0%
NLC Name No 7 Limited* {Note 2) Dormant 100% 0%

The LV= Penston Trustee Limited {Note 2)
The LV= General Trustee Limited (Note 2}
Ockham Pension Trustee Limited

Liverpool Victona Trustees Limited (Note 2)

Dormant trustee company Note 3
Dormant trustee company Note 3
Dormant trustee company Note 3
Dormant trustee company Note 3

* Owned by a subsidiary undertaking of the Society

Note 1 — The financial statements of these subsidiary undertakings have not been audited for the year ended 31 December 2015

These subsidiary undertakings are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of individual
financial statements by virtue of Section 479A of the Companes Act 2006
Note 2 - The financia! statements of these dormant companies have not been audited for the year ended 31 December 2015

These companies were entitied to exemption from audit under section 480 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to dormant companies

Note 3 - These companies are imited by Guarantee and have no 1ssued share capital

voday sifarens

SDUBUIBA0Y

o
c
=
Ix
2]
«©
o
=
>
=
W

PO TR Y




206 Lv= Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2015

46 Subsidiary undertakings (continued)
All the principal substdianes have the same year end as the Society and all have been included in the consolidation

Non-controlling interest
The non-controlling interest in respect of Liverpool Victoria General Insurance Group Limited and Wealth Wizards Limited
1S not material

Significant restrictions
There are no significant restrictions in place regarding any of the subsidianes above

47 Associates and joint ventures
The associates and joint ventures of the Society at 31 December 2014 are shown below They are incorporated and domiciled
in England and Wales

Name Class of shares Year end Princlpal actlvity Percentage hald
loint ventures
Great Victoria Partnership * 31/03/2015 Investment property 50 0%

* The percentage held represents the share of the partnership capital and partner loans held by the Society as at 31 December 2015

The Group holds 50% of the voting nghts of 1ts joint arrangement The Group has joint control over this arrangement as, under

the contractual agreement, unanimous consent 1s required from all parties to the agreement for all relevant activities The Group’s
Joint arrangement is structured as a partnership and provides the Group and the other parties to the agreement with rights to the
net assets of the partnership Therefore, this arrangement 1s classified as a jaint venture

Commitments and contingent Labilities in respect of joint ventures
There are no commitments or contingent liamlities relating to the Group's interest in the joint venture

Summansed financial information for joint ventures
In accordance with the provisions of IFRS 12 which states that an entity may present the summansed financial information
on the basis of the Jjoint venture's or associate's financial statements If
= the entity measures its interest in the joint venture or associate at fair value in accordance with IAS 28, and
« the joint venture or associate does not prepare IFRS financial statements and preparation on that basis would
be impracticable or cause undue cost

The summarised financial iInformation set out below I1s presented on the basis of the Great Victoria Partnership’s financial
statements which are prepared under United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice for the year ended 31 March 2015
Within the Group accounts this holding 1s accounted for as an Investment at fair value in accordance with the exemptions permitted
under {AS28 applicable to investment-linked insurance funds

/b

A
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47 Associates and joint ventures {continued)
31 March 31 March

2015 2014
Summarised Statement of Financial Position £m £m
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 4 3
Other current assets (excluding cash) 15 14
Total current assets 18 17
Financial liabilities {(excluding trade payables) (1) {1)
Other current habilities {including trade payables) {4) {(4)
Total current habilities {5) {5)
Non-current @
Investment properties 268 244 5
]
o
Financial habilities (79} {79) %
Total non-current habihties (79) (79) g
Net assets 202 177
Partners' capital 49 49
Revaluation reserve 149 124
Partners' current accounts 4 4 o
Total partners' funds 202 177 z
{0
31 March 31 March
2015 2014
Summarlsed Statement of Comprehensive Income £m £m
Net rental income 11 11
Property and refurbishment costs - (1}
Operating profit 11 10 o
Interest expense (3) {3) -
Profit on ordinary activities before partners' interest 8 7 §
Distnibutions paid (8) (6) ;

Profit for the financial year - 1
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48 Consolidated structured entities Open ended investment companies

A structured entity 1s an entity that has been designed such that voting or similar nights are not the dominant factor in deciding
who controls the entity, such as when voling rights relate to administrative tasks only, and the relevant activities are directed
by means of contractual arrangements

The Open Ended investment Companies (OEICs) have been identified as structured entities The shares held by the Group in the
QEICs do have voting rights attached, however the Group does not have presence on the board of the OECs The Authonsed
Corporate Director (ACD) 1s Threadneedle Investment Services Limited The Group’s interest in the OEICs 1s bound by the OBIC
prospectus and contractual arrangements

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The OEICS have been consohidated into the Group financial statements as 1t has been determined that the Group has control,
being the power to direct the relevant activities which expose the Group to variable returns from the OEICs The Group decides
on the investment across the portfolio of funds within each OFIC and 1s exposed to variable returns from the associated relevant
activities of the QEIC which are directed 1n accordance with contractual arrangements

The Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs) of the Society and Group at 31 December 2015 are shown betow

All OEICs are incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales and are included within the Group consolidation

Percentage of

units heid by
Parcentaga of non controfling
Name Principal activity Year end units halg* interest
Threadneedle Investment Funds It ICVC Open Ended Investment Company 31/12/2015 93% 7%
which consists of
Threadneedle Eurgpean ex-UK Growth Fund 98% 2%
Threadneedle Japan Growth Fund 100% 0%
Threadneedle Pacific ex-Japan Growth Fund 100% 0%
Threadneedle UK Equity Income Fund 92% 8%
Threadneedle US Equity Income Fund 86% 14%
Threadneedte UK Growth Fund 81% 19%
Threadneedle Investment Funds Il ICVC Open Ended Investment Company 31/12/2015 89% 11%
which consists of
Threadneedle UK Corporate Bond Fund 93% 7%
Threadneedle UK Fixed Interest Fund 98% 2%
Threadneedle UK Index Linked Fund 97% 3%
Threadneedle UK Short-Term Money Market Fund 99% 1%
Threadneedle UK Medium and Long-Dated
Corporate Bond Fund 99% 1%
Threadneedle UK Short-Dated Corporate Bond 66% 34%

* excludes units held by the LV= Employee Pension Scheme
The Group (s not required to provide financial support to the OEICs nor has 1t any intention of providing financial support

In April 2015 all the funds within the Threadneedle Investment Funds IV ICVC vehicle and the Threadneedle Balanced Managed
Fund were merged into comparable funds offered by Seven Investment Management The Group does not have a controlling interest
in these Seven Investment Management funds so from Apnl 2015 they have no longer been consolidated within the LV Group results

Non-controlling Interest

The total Group non-controlling interest for the year 1s £220m (2014 £622m), of which £43m (2014 £30m) s for Threadneedle
Investment Funds 11 ICVC, £177m (2014 £482m) s for Threadneedle Investment Funds Il ICVC and £nil (2014 £110m} s for
Threadneedle Investment Funds IV ICVC See page 209 for additional disclosures regarding matenal non-controlling interests

Significant restrictions
There are no significant restrictions in place regarding any of the OEICs above
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48 Consohdated structured entities Open ended investment companies (continued)
Summarised financial information on subsidlaries with material non-centrolling interests
Set out below 1s the summarised financial information for each subsidiary that has a non-controlling interest that 1s matenal
to the Group which includes Threadneedie Investment Funds Il ICVC, Threadneedle Investment Funds Il ICVC and Threadneedle
Investment Funds IV {CVC (which was wound up in 2015)
Summansed financial information 1s presented in order to enable users to understand the interest that non-controlling interests
have 1n the Group’s activities and cash flows The relevant financial information presented for the OEICs 15 a Statement of Financial
Position and the line item within the Statement of Comprehensive Income that 1s impacted by the performance of the OEICs
in the year An analysis of the Cash and cash equivalents balance is presented, cash flow movements in the year prnimanly anse
from investing activities
2018 2014
Summarlsed Statement of Financial Posltion £m £m w
Assets %
Financial assets at Fair value through income 2,027 2,436 3
Loans and other recervables 30 47 2
Cash and cash equivalents 45 64 §
Total assets 2,102 2,547
Liabilitles
Trade and other payables (24) (45)
Total iabihties (24) (45}
Net assets 2,078 2,502 o)
=
13
2018 2014 3
Cash and cash equlvalents comprise £m £m §
Bank balances 26 34
Short-term bank deposits 19 30
Cash and cash equivalents 45 64
2015 2014
Summarised Statement of Comprehensive Income £m £m
Net gains on mvestments 3 144

Movements on net assets comprises Net gains on investments of £3m (2014 £144m), plus reserve movements which relate
to funds repaid/received for the cancellation/issue of units

$UNOITY INQ
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49 Investments in unconsolidated structured entities

The Group has Interests in structured entities which are not consolidated as the definstion of control has not been met based
on the proportion of the investment of the structured entity held by the Group As at 31 December 2015 the Group's interest
n unconsolidated structured entities was £2,431m (2014 £1,678m) which are classified as investments held at farr value
through profit or loss

2015 2014
Investment £m £m
Residential Mortgage-Backed Secunties (RMBS) - 79
Open Ended Investment Companies 1,709 1,130
Unit trusts 229 167
Investment trusts - 1
Liquidity funds 493 301
Total 2,431 1,678

Included within the above are £1,651m (2014 £1,068m) of investments held to cover inked liakilites, other than these,
the Group's exposure to financial loss from the interest in the unconsohdated structured entities i1s imited to the investment
amount shown above The Group 15 not required to provide financial support to the entities, nor does 1t sponsor the entitigs

50 Business combinations

Wealth Wizards Group

in July 2015 the Society acquired a 70% controlling interest in the Wealth Wizards Group of companies for a cash consideration

of £8m The fair value of the net habilities acquired were less than £1m resulting in goodwill on acqguisition of £8m being recognised
in the 2015 financial statements (refer to Note 31) The income and profit after tax of the acquired business for the penod from
acquisition until 31 December 2015 1s not matena! to the Group

51 Unallocated divisible surplus

Accounting for the Unallocated divisible surplus ~
The Unallocated divisible surpius represents the excess of assets over and above the long-term insurance contract habilities
and other habilittes It represents amounts that have yet to be formally declared as bonuses for the participating contract
policyholders together with the free assets of the Society and Group Any profit or loss for the year ansing through the Statement
of Comprehensive Income (for the Society and for the Group} 1s transferred to or from the Unallocated divisible surpius

UK regulations, the Group s Principles and Practices of Financial Management, and the terms and conditions of participating
contracts set out the bases for the determination of the amounts on which the participating additional discretionary contract
benefits are based and within which the Group may exercise i1ts discretion as to the gquantum and timing of their payment

to contract holders

Group Soclaty

2014 2014

Restated - Restated -

2015 see Note 1 2015 see Note 1

£m £m £m im

Balance at 1 January 959 974 893 952
Transfer included within profit for the year 91 (34) 92 (78)
Transfer included within other comprehensive income 51 19 51 19

Balance at 31 December 1,101 959 1,036 893




Our Aceounts 211

Notes to the Financial Statements conunued
Year ended 31 December 2015

Other disclosures
N
This section details other disclosure matters, compnsing refated party transactions, directors' emoluments, with-profits actuary
detatls and other relevant Society information

52 Related party transactions

a) Key management compensation

Key management personnel of the Group compnise all executive and non-executive directors and senior management
The summary of the compensation of key management personne! for the year 1s as follows

Group
2016 2014
£'000 £ 000
Short-term employment benefits 8,415 7,704
Other long term benefits 41,138 562
Post-employment benefits 126 143
Total compensation of key management personnel 49,679 8,409

In¢luded withan Other long-term benefits in 2015 are the benefits ansing from the general insurance share scheme
(refer to section d below)

The aggregate premiums payable for the year by the Group Executive and Non-Executive Directors 1n respect of the Group’s products
was £62,124 (2014 £133,244)

b) The following transactions have taken place between the Society and other group companies

2015 2014

£m £m

Management charge by the Society (see note 13) 243 217

Movement in deferred margin (included in other financial latilities) 29 (10)

Beneficial interest of subsidiary in loans sold to the Society 67 111

Investment expense charge to the Society (5) (8)

Interest income from group undertakings 27 27

Dividend income from group undertaklﬂgs 22 3
Balances outstanding between the Society and other Group companies

2015 2014

£m £m

Payable by the Society (30) (68)

Receivable by the Society 55 73

Loans owed to the Society 300 300

1:0doy a1IBojeng
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52 Related party transactions {continued)

c) Loans to related parties

Loans owed to the Society represent two subordinated loan
notes totaliing £300m (2014 £300m) to LV Capital PLC 1ssued
in December 2012 These loans are disclosed within loan stock
In Note 32

The terms of the loans to LV Capital PLC are

(n A £130m unsecured subordinated loan note ocnginatly
repayable in 2015 with an interest rate of LIBOR ptus 8 5%
A deed of vanation to this loan note was signed in November
2015 agreeing to defer redemption to 2025 The interest rate
was amended to LIBOR plus & 5%, to reflect current market
rates, and

(1) A £170m unsecured senior [oan note repayable in 2047
with an interest rate of 9%

LV Capital may, subject to one month's notice and obtaining
wntten agreement of the Society, repay all or part of these loans

d) Share schemes

During 2013, certain key management personnel within

the general insurance business subscnbed for 4 5 million

£1 'B’ ordinary shares in Liverpool Victonia General Insurance
Group Limited {LVGIG), a subsidiary undertaking of the Society
This arrangement has been accounted for as a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction under IFRS 2 John O'Roarke,
a director of the Society, invested £1m as part of this
arrangement

Pursuant to the Articles of Assocration of LVGIG, the Society
was required to purchase these shares in 2016 for a price
equal to par plus rolled-up interest plus a percentage of the
increase in the total shareholder return (being the equity
tncrease in the market valuation of the general insurance
business plus ordinary dividends paid) from 1 January 2013
to 31 December 2015, as set out below

a) 0% if the growth rate 1s less than 9%,

by 5% iIf the growth rate 1s 9%,

c) Between 5% and 15% on a straight line basis to the extent
the growth rate 1s between 9% and 19%, or

d) 15% if the growth rate s greater than 19%

The annualised market value increase over the scheme period
was agreed at 15 7%

The purchase of the shares was contingent on the key
management perscnnel remaming with the Group unti 31
December 2015 Any leavers prior to this date would have their
shares purchased for a lesser amount pursuant to the contract
One of the members of the scheme left the Group during 2015
and has had their share repurchase price adjusted accordingly

The table below shows the amount of shares included in this
share scheme arrangement, the fair value of the goods and
services that the Group received as a part of this arrangement
and the final valuation of the shares

Less leavers

shares Falr Value
Shares repurchased  of goods Final share
subscribed for in 2015 and services  valuation
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
4,500 (1,000) 39,442 42,942

The fair value of the goods and services recewed by the Group
was £39 4m resulting in a £19 4m charge to Staff costs within
the 2015 financial statements (2014 £10m, 2013 £10m)

As at 31 December 2015 the iability to the key management
personnel of £42 9m was included within Trade and other
payables Mr O Roarke, a director of the Scociety, had a £11 1m
interest in this habihty This liability was settled in full at the fair
valuation amount in February 2016

e) Other related party disclosure

As disclosed In Note 44, the Society has granted a contingent
loan faciity to the RNPFN fund, a closed fund within the Group,
which 1s disclosed in contingent liabtlities

53 With-Profits Actuary
The following information has been provided in accordance with
section 77 of the Friendly Societies Act 1992

a} The With-Profits Actuary of the Society throughout 2015
was Mr A Walton, who 1s employed by Liverpool Victoria
Friendly Society Limited

b} The total emoluments of Mr Walton during the year were
£219,490 including car allowance, medical benefits and
pension centributions Mr Walton 1s a participant in the
Soctety's long-term incentive plan and held one insurance
policy 1ssued by a subsidiary of the Society

c

-

Mr Walton did not receive, nor will receive, any other
pecunary benefit

d

~~

Mr Walton was appointed With-Profits Actuary

on 10 October 2014, his total emocluments in 2014,

on a pro rata basis were £44,047 Prior to 10 October
2014, the With-Profits Actuary was Mr N J Dumbreck,

a Principal with the London office of Milliman LLP,

an external consultancy firm The Society paid fees

of £267,429 inclusive of VAT and expenses, to Miliman
LLP in respect of Mr Dumbreck's professional services
as With-Profits Actuary during 2014 It alse paid fees
of £18,416 inclusive of VAT and expenses, to Milliman
LLP n respect of other services provided by Milliman
LLP during 2014 Mr Dumbreck held two insurance
policies 1ssued on standard terms by one of the Society's
subsidiaries He had no other pecumary interest in any
transactions with the Society at any time dunng 2014
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54 Directors’ emoluments
a) Emoluments of individual directors, including emoluments of the Chairman and highest palid director were as follows
for the Society

R: tion from ongolng pollcy £'000 Total remuneration £'000
2015 2014 2015 2014
General
Penslon Insurance
Satary Deforrnd LTip rofated Other share
and fees Bonus Bonus 2013 15 baenefts" baneflts Total Total scheme Total Total
M J Rogers 538 496 204 597 118 17 1,970 1,666 - 1,970 1,666
PW Moore 368 255 105 306 51 i5 1,100 885 - 1,100 885
R A Rowney 326 242 118 207 72 15 980 600 - 980 600
J B O'Roarke 300 235 - - 66 15 616 672 10,126 10,742 672
M E Austen 181 - - - - - 181 177 - 181 177 @
J Dean 70 - - - - - 70 68 - 70 68 g
D Neave 70 - - - - - 70 68 - 70 68 %
C Keers 69 - - - - - 69 67 - 69 67 g
C Burton 69 - - - - - 69 64 - 69 64 £
J Edwards** 53 - - - - - 53 73 - 53 73
Total 2,044 1,228 427 1,110 307 62 5,178 4,330 10,126 15,304 4,340
* Pension related benefits include payments made to the Group’s defined contribution pension scheme and payments In leu
of pension contributions
[
[=]
** Resigned 24 September 2015 %
o
3
J B O’'Roarke does not participate in the Group LTIP scheme but has entered intc a separate share scheme arrangement which @

1s disclosed further within the related party transaction Note 52 and the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Other benefits include car allowances, medical, relocation, life assurance and other benefits 1n kind or their equivalent monetary value
b} Pension arrangements

The LV= Employee Pension Scheme 1s administered at Group level and incorporates both defined benefit and defined contribution

sections

The defined benefit section was closed to future accrual in 2013 at which point existing members were eligible to join the defined
contripbution section

jo]
c
£
pd
(%]
[s]
9
s
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The Society has made no contributions to personal pension arrangements during 2015 (2014 £nil)
There were £nil of contnbutions to the defined contribution section in 2015 (2014 £23,940)

R A Rowney and J B O'Roarke are deferred members of the defined benefit section

2015 2014
Deferred pension at end of year £ 000 £ 000
R A Rowney 31 31

J B O'Roarke 34 34
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55 Cash generated from operating activities

Group Sotlety
2015 2014 2018 2014
£m £m £m £m

Profit/{loss) before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer 124 37 118 (20)
Investment income (401) (377} (372} (324}
Other interest iIncome (26) (24} - -
Net losses/(gains) on mvestments 282 {832) 236 (822)
Finance costs 24 24 23 24
Net (increase)/decrease in denvatives {9) 26 32 27
Non-cash Items

Expenses deferred during the year {2} 1 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets S 3 - -
Depreciation on property and equipment 6 4 3 1
(Decrease)/increase in provisions and pension obligation (1) 4 1 2
Impatirment wnte-offs in subsidianes - - 11 -
Mutual bonus (27) (24) 27) (24)
Changes in working capital

Decrease/(increase) 1n loans and receivables 41 (41} 14 35
{Increase)/decrease in rensurance assets (387) 12 (127) 7
{Increase)/decrease in insurance receivables {41) 3 (2} (7)
(Increase)/decrease in other prepayments and accrued income {10) 1 (11} (3)
Increase In participating insurance contract habilities 110 429 110 429
Increase/{decrease) In non-participating insurance contract habilities 43 579 (56} 655
Decrease/{increase) In non-participating value of in force business 17 (65) 17 (85)
Increase in participating investment contract habilities 2 53 2 53
Increase In non-participating investment contract habibties 308 305 308 305
Increase In subordinated labilities - - - 1
(Decrease)/increase in other financial habilities {20) 70 (49) 88
Increase In insurance payables 248 - 6 -
Increase/(decrease) In trade and other payables 33 30 33 (9)

319 218 270 351

Cash generated from operating activities

56 Valuation

The latest pubhished report on the valuation of Assets and Liabilities of the Society (the Annual PRA Insurance Return)
was made at 31 December 2015 and Is available on request from the Group Company Secretary, County Gates, Bournemouth,

BH1 2NF and LV com

57 Society information

Liverpool Victona Fnendly Society Limited 1s a UK-incorporated and domtciled Friendly Society registered under the Friendly

Societies Act 1992

Lv= and Liverpool Victona are trademarks of Liverpool Victona Frnendly Society Limited LV= and LV= Liverpool Victona are trading

styles of the Liverpool Victona group of companies Liverpool Victonia 15 authonsed by the Prudential Regulation Authonty and

regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and Prudential Regulation Authonity, and 1s a member of the ABI, AFM and ILAG

Registered office

County Gates
Bournemouth

BH1 2NF

Telephone Q1202 292333




